
Page 1 of 8 
 

     
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL 

and JOINT MEETING of the 
CITY OF CUDAHY AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY and HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE CUDAHY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION  
Monday, March 14, 2016 – 6:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Council / Agency Member Garcia 
Council / Agency Member Guerrero 
Council / Agency Member Sanchez 
Vice Mayor / Vice Chair Hernandez 
Mayor / Chair Markovich 
 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

  

“Members of the Public are advised that all PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES and any OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES are to be turned off upon entering the City Council Chambers.” If you need to 
have a discussion with someone in the audience, kindly step out into the lobby. 
 
Written materials distributed to the City Council within 72 hours of the City Council meeting are 
available for public inspection immediately upon distribution in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall located at 
5220 Santa Ana Street, Cudahy, CA 90201.    
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, you should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (323) 773-5143 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  
 

CLARA STREET PARK  
TURNER HALL 
4835 Clara Street 

Cudahy, CA 90201 
Phone: (323) 773-5143 

Fax: (323) 771-2072 
 

REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 
LOCATION: 

 
CLARA STREET PARK 

Chamber of Commerce Room 
4835 Clara Street 

Cudahy, CA  90201 

Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
Christian Hernandez, Vice Mayor   
Baru Sanchez, Council Member  
Jack Guerrero, Council Member 
Chris Garcia, Council Member  
 

1 of 426



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, March 14, 2016 at 6:30 P.M. 
 

 

 Page 2 of 8  
 

4. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Captain Biagini 
B. Republic Services Presentation 
 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

(Mayor:  This is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council / Agency on matters 
relating only to items on the agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the yellow comment 
card located at the Council Chambers entrance and submit it to the City Clerk.  Speakers that 
submitted comment cards within the first 20 minutes of the meeting will be permitted to speak. 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54954.3(b), time limits are placed on the public comment 
period.  The Mayor will announce when public comment cards may no longer be submitted to the 
City Clerk and no public comment cards will be accepted after the Mayor’s announcement.  Each 
person who submits a public comment card will be allowed to speak only once and will be limited to 
three (3) minutes.  When addressing the Council / Agency please speak into the microphone and 
voluntarily state your name and address.)   

 
(Every person who, without authority of law, willfully disturbs or breaks up a City Council meeting, 
is guilty of a misdemeanor. [See, Cal. Penal Code § 403.].)  

 
 
6. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS / REQUESTS FOR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
(This is the time for the City Council / Agency to comment on any topics related to “City Business,” 
including announcements, reflections on city / regional events, response to public comments, 
suggested discussion topics for future council meetings, general concerns about particular city 
matters, questions to the staff, and directives to the staff (subject to approval / consent of the City 
Council majority members present, regarding staff directives).  Each Council / Agency Member will 
be allowed to speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
City Council Members shall not use this comment period for serial discussions or debate between 
members on City business matters not properly agendized.  The City Attorney shall be responsible 
for regulating this aspect of the proceeding.) 
 
 

7. CITY MANAGER REPORT (information only) 
 

 
8. REPORTS REGARDING AD HOC, ADVISORY, STANDING, OR OTHER COMMITTEE 

MEETINGS 
 
A. CITY MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS AD HOC COMMITTEE 

(Vice Mayor Hernandez and Council Member Sanchez) – Formed December 14, 2015) 
 

B. TECHNOLOGY AD HOC COMMITTEE 
(Vice Mayor Hernandez and Council Member Garcia) – Formed November 23, 2015 

2 of 426



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, March 14, 2016 at 6:30 P.M. 
 

 

 Page 3 of 8  
 

 
C. AD HOC COMMITTEE TO RECOMMEND APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS CITY 

COMMISSIONS 
(Vice Mayor Hernandez and Council Member Sanchez) – Formed August 24, 2015 
 

D. NATIONWIDE AD HOC COMMITTEE – Formed October 12, 2015 
(Council Members Garcia and Sanchez) 

 
E. AD HOC BOOK FAIR COMMITTEE 

(Mayor Markovich and Council Member Garcia) 
 

F. CUDAHY YOUTH LEADERSHIP AD HOC COMMITTEE 
(Mayor Markovich and Council Member Garcia) 
 

G. AD HOC BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 
(Mayor Markovich and Council Member Sanchez) 
 

H. SUCCESSOR AGENCY COMMITTEE 
(Mayor Markovich and Vice Mayor Hernandez) 
 

I. CASINO AND GAMING COMMITTEE 
(Vice Mayor Hernandez and Council Member Sanchez) 
 

J. AD HOC CLARA PARK EXPANSION COMMITTEE 
(Council Member Garcia and Mayor Markovich) 
 

K. FARMERS MARKET/SWAPMEET COMMITTEE 
(Council Member Garcia and Council Member Sanchez) 
 

L. CONTRACTS COMMITTEE 
(Council Member Garcia) 
 

M. PENSION REFORM COMMITTEE 
(Mayor Markovich) 
 

 
9. WAIVER OF FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

 
(Consideration to waive full text reading of all Resolutions and Ordinances by single motion made at 
the start of each meeting, subject to the ability of the City Council / Agency to read the full text of 
selected resolutions and ordinances when the item is addressed by subsequent motion.) (COUNCIL / 
AGENCY) 
 
Recommendation:   Approve the Waiver of Full Reading of Resolutions and Ordinances.  
 

  

3 of 426



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, March 14, 2016 at 6:30 P.M. 
 

 

 Page 4 of 8  
 

10. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
(Items under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There 
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council / Agency Member so requests, in which 
event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately.) 
 
(AS HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY) 
 
A. Adoption of a Proposed Resolution of the City of Cudahy, Acting as Housing Successor Agency, 

Approving an Amendment to the Housing Asset Transfer Form  page 9 
 

Presented by Finance Director and City Attorney 
 
Recommendation:  The City acting as Housing Successor Agency, is requested to adopt the 

proposed resolution to implement the Department of Finance’s 
December 16, 2015 order that the City as Housing Successor Agency 
revise its Housing Asset Transfer Form (the “HAT” Form) to add the 
property located at 4848-4854 Live Oak Street (Property) as part of the 
inventory of housing assets, rather than include the Property in the Long 
Range Property Management Plan because the Property was funded 
with low and moderate-income housing funds. 

 
(AS CITY COUNCIL) 
 
B. Approval of the Demands and Payroll Including Cash and Investment Report for the Month of 

January 2016  page 31 
 
Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to approve the Demands and Payroll in 

the amount of $870,167.98 including Cash and Investment Report by 
Fund for the month of January 2016. 

 
C. Approval of the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for the Month of January 2016 

page 49 
 
Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to approve the Local Agency Investment 

Fund (LAIF) Report for the month of January 2016 in the amount of 
$4,685,196.13. 

 
D. Approval of a Second Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with HR 

Dynamics & Performance Management for Human Resources Consulting Services  page 53 
 

Presented by Acting Human Resources Specialist 
 

4 of 426



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, March 14, 2016 at 6:30 P.M. 
 

 

 Page 5 of 8  
 

Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to approve the second amendment to the 
professional services agreement and scope of work with HR Dynamics & 
Performance Management for human resources consulting services. 

 
E. Adoption of a Proposed Resolution Authorizing Submittal of Future Applications for CalRecycle 

Payment Programs and Related Authorizations  page 119 
 

Presented by City Manager 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to: 
 

1. Adopt a proposed resolution authorizing future application 
submittals to the California Department of Resources Recycling and 
Recovery (CalRecycle) for payment programs and related 
authorizations; and 
 

2. Authorize the City Manager to execute all documents necessary to 
implement and secure payment. 

 
F. Approval of a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Wendy Chung for Creative Design 

Services  page 125 
 

Presented by City Manager 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to approve a professional services 

agreement for writing, editing, creative design services, civic 
engagement strategy and policy, and program coordination and 
management services under the direction of the City Manager for a one-
year term (i.e. March 2016 – March 2017) not to exceed $25,000. 

 
G. Approval of a First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with FUEL 

Creative Group  page 147 
 
Presented by City Manager 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to approve a first amendment to the 

professional services agreement in the amount of $23,000 with FUEL 
Creative Group extending the term to June 30, 2017 for the City’s 
quarterly magazine design services.  

 
H. Award Construction Contract Agreement for the Purchase and Installation of the Soccer Field 

Artificial Turf for Lugo Park Soccer Field and Restroom Renovation Project in an Amount Not to 
Exceed $357,015  page 179 
 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director 
 

  

5 of 426



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, March 14, 2016 at 6:30 P.M. 
 

 

 Page 6 of 8  
 

Recommendation: The City Council is requested to: 
 

1. Accept the artificial turf product submitted by AFE Sports (Astroturf 
Vendor) as in full compliance with the City of Los Angeles 
Specification All Weather Turf for soccer field; and 
 

2. Award Construction Contract Agreement for the purchase and 
installation of the soccer field artificial turf from AFE Sports in an 
amount not to exceed $357,015. 

 
I. Adoption of a Proposed Resolution Superseding and Repealing Resolution No. 16-04,  and 

Amending the Adopted Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan Establishing Provisions for All Full-time 
Employees, Hourly Employees and Appointed Officials  page 299 
 
Presented by Acting Human Resources Specialist 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to ratify the classification of Deputy City 

Clerk by adopting a proposed resolution amending the Fringe Benefits 
and Salary Plan establishing provisions for all full-time employees, 
hourly employees and appointed officials, and repeal Resolution No. 16-
04. 

 
J. Adoption of a Proposed Resolution Amending the Rules to Place Items on City Council Agendas 

and the Standard Order of Business of City Council Meetings  page 413 
 
Presented by City Attorney/City Manager 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to adopt a proposed resolution amending 

the rules to place items on the City Council Agendas and the Standard 
Order of Business of the City Council meetings. 

 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING - NONE 
 

 
12. BUSINESS SESSION - NONE 

 
 
13. COUNCIL DISCUSSION  

 
A. Mayor Markovich 

i. Discussion of Cities and Counties Proposed Amicus Brief:  Supreme Court Appeal on 
Immigration Executive Action 
 

ii. Discussion of Youth Leadership Committee Application 
 
 

6 of 426



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, March 14, 2016 at 6:30 P.M. 
 

 

 Page 7 of 8  
 

 
B. Vice Mayor Hernandez 

Discussion of Quarterly Magazine Ad Hoc 
 

 

14. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (Closed Session) 
 

(Each person will be allowed to speak only once on closed session items and will be limited to three 
(3) minutes.  When addressing the Council please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state 
your name and address.)   
 

 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
 

This is the time at which the City Council will meet in closed session to go over items of business on the 
closed session agenda.  It should be noted that because Councilman Guerrero will be participating from 
Bedwell Hall via teleconference, he will be patched into the closed session chambers from Bedwell Hall 
via telephone device.  At this time, all persons other than Councilman Guerrero and City personnel 
authorized by either the City Manager or the City Attorney will not be allowed to remain in Bedwell 
Hall.   Once closed session is completed and the City Council returns from closed session into open 
session, members of the public may then reenter the Council Chamber to rejoin the proceedings.  

 
 

CLOSED SESSION  
 

A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6(a) – Conference with Labor Negotiator Regarding 
Unrepresented Employees 
 
Title of Positions Subject to Negotiation:   Community Development Manager; Public Safety and 
Services Manager; Director of Community Services; Director of Parks and Recreation; Executive 
Secretary/Human Resources Specialist; and Finance Manager 
 
Designated Representative:  City Manager and City Attorney 
 

B. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6(a) – Conference with Labor Negotiator Regarding 
Unrepresented Employee 
 
Title of Position Subject to Negotiation:   City Manager 
Designated Representative:   City Attorney 
 

C. Pursuant to Government Code Sections 54956.9(d)(2) and 54956.9(d)(3)  – Conference with Legal 
Counsel to Discuss Matters Involving Anticipated Litigation/Significant Exposures to Litigation – 
[Two (2) potential cases] 
 

7 of 426



8 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
Date:  March 14, 2016 

To:  Honorable Mayor / Chair and City Council / Agency Members 

From:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director  
  By: Isabel Birrueta, Assistant City Attorney 

Subject: Adoption of a Proposed Resolution of the City of Cudahy, Acting as Housing 
Successor Agency, Approving an Amendment to the Housing Asset Transfer Form  

RECOMMENDATION 
 

The City acting as Housing Successor Agency, is requested to adopt the attached proposed 
resolution to implement the Department of Finance’s (DOF) December 16, 2015 order that 
the City as Housing Successor Agency revise its Housing Asset Transfer Form (the "HAT Form") 
to add the property located at 4848-4854 Live Oak Street (Property) as part of the inventory 
of housing assets, rather than include the Property in the Long Range Property Management 
Plan (LRPMP), because the Property was funded with low and moderate-income housing 
funds. 
  

BACKGROUND 
 

1. On or about March 17, 2011, the Community Development Commission City of Cudahy 
(the Former Redevelopment Agency) and City of Cudahy (City) formed the Cudahy 
Economic Development Corporation, a non-profit public benefit corporation (EDC).  The 
EDC was created as a separate and autonomous body to undertake community 
redevelopment activities within the City.   

 
2. On April 1, 2011, the Former Redevelopment Agency and EDC entered into a Project 

Funding Agreement setting forth terms for the support of development activities to be 
undertaken by the Cudahy EDC.  The Project Funding Agreement obligates the EDC to 
undertake certain development within the City, and in return, the Former 
Redevelopment Agency transferred bond proceeds, cash and real property assets of the 
Former Redevelopment Agency to the EDC for such community development purposes.   
 

 

Item Number 

10A 

9 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 2 of 5 

3. On April 1, 2011, the Former Redevelopment Agency and EDC entered into the 
Reimbursement Agreement whereby the EDC agreed to undertake certain public works 
projects.  
  

4. On January 17, 2012, prior to the dissolution of the Former Redevelopment Agency, the 
City Council of the City adopted Resolution No. 12-04 electing that the City serve as the 
successor agency and successor entity to the Former Redevelopment Agency and 
assume all housing assets and functions previously performed by the Former 
Redevelopment Agency pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34176.  

 
5. On May 1, 2012, Paramount Villas LLC, a California limited liability company and Alvaro 

Banegas (collectively “Paramount”) and the EDC, entered into the Second Amended 
Acquisition and Development Loan Agreement (Paramount Loan Agreement) involving 
the Property and states that it “amends and supersedes the Acquisition and 
Development Loan Agreement” dated January 9, 2012, and the amended agreement 
dated March 1, 2012, both between Paramount and the EDC.  
 

6. Paramount holds title to the Property based on documents executed by Paramount and 
EDC, including, without limitation, the following: (i) Grant Deed recorded as Instrument 
No. 20120623627; and (ii) Deed of Trust recorded as Instrument No. 20120623628, both 
recorded April 27, 2012 in Official Records. 

 
7. In or around July of 2012, the EDC rescinded its contracts with Paramount including the 

Paramount Loan Agreement. 
 
8. On August 1, 2012, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34176(a)(2), the City and 

the Successor Agency submitted to the DOF a Housing Assets Transfer Form (HAT Form) 
of all housing assets, including any assets transferred on or after February 1, 2012.  

 
9. On September 5, 2012, the DOF reviewed and approved the HAT Form.  
 
10. On April 9, 2013, Paramount filed, in Los Angeles Superior Court, Alvaro Banegas and 

Paramount Villas, LLC v. Cudahy Economic Development Corp. and the City of Cudahy, 
Case No.: VC063068, a lawsuit arising out of the contracts between Paramount and EDC 
including the Paramount Loan Agreement, and Paramount’s proposed development 
project at the Property (Lawsuit). 

 
11. On April 9, 2013, Paramount recorded two Notices of Pendency of Action (Lis Pendens) 

as Instrument Nos. 20130527150 and 20130527151, both of Official Records. 
 

10 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 3 of 5 

12. In August of 2013, the EDC filed a cross-complaint in the Lawsuit seeking, inter alia, 
rescission of contracts including the Paramount Loan Agreement and quiet title to the 
Property. 

 
13. On May 12, 2014, the Oversight Board adopted Resolution No. OB 14-03 directing the 

Successor Agency to transfer housing assets to the City as Successor Housing Agency, 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34176.  

 
14. On May 20, 2014, the City, acting as Housing Successor Agency, adopted Resolution No. 

14-32 to approve its acceptance of the housing functions and assets of the Former 
Redevelopment Agency.  
 

15. On April 15, 2014, the California State Controller’s Office (SCO) issued a report titled: 
Cudahy Redevelopment Agency Asset Transfer Review January 1, 2011 through January 
31, 2012, which orders the Successor Agency to recover the Property and other 
specified assets of the EDC, in accordance with the Dissolution Laws. 

 
16. On February 3, 2015, the Successor Agency adopted Resolution No. 15-01, approving an 

Asset Transfer Agreement between the EDC and the Successor Agency to effectuate the 
asset transfer ordered by the SCO. 

 
17. On February 5, 2015, the Board of Directors of the EDC adopted Resolution No. EDC-15-

01, approving the Asset Transfer Agreement. 
 
18. On March 12, 2015, the Oversight Board adopted Resolution No. OB15-07 approving the 

Asset Transfer Agreement. 
 
19. On May 11, 2015, the Successor Agency received an appraisal of the Property prepared 

by Kenneth T. Soergel providing that as of April 17, 2015, the Property appraised at One 
Million and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1,050,000) in its “as is” condition. 

 
20. On May 19, 2015, the Successor Agency approved an amendment to the Asset Transfer 

Agreement between the EDC and Successor Agency to effectuate the asset transfer 
ordered by the SCO. 

 
21. On June 4, 2015, the EDC approved the amendment to the Asset Transfer Agreement 

between the EDC and Successor Agency to effectuate the asset transfer ordered by the 
SCO. 

 

11 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 4 of 5 

22. On December 1, 2015, the Successor Agency determined that the Former 
Redevelopment Agency acquired the Property in 2009 with tax increment revenues 
derived from the low and moderate housing fund and, thus, notified the DOF that the 
Property should be excluded from the LRPMP. 

 
23. On December 16, 2015, the DOF notified the Successor Agency in writing that it 

approved the LRPMP and that the Property should be added to the HAT Form as part of 
the housing assets rather than the LRPMP because the Property was funded with 
moderate income housing funds. 

 
24. On about February 8, 2016, the parties involved in the Lawsuit negotiated a Settlement 

and Release Agreement for the transfer of Successor Agency’s right, title and interest in 
and to the Property under the Asset Transfer Agreement to Paramount provided that 
Paramount provides to the Successor Agency One Million and Two Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($1,200,000) for the purchase the Property. 

 
25. Any transfer of the Property to Paramount shall be contingent upon written 

acknowledgement from DOF confirming that the Property has been included in the 
revised HAT Form pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34176.  

 
ANALYSIS 

 
The Former Redevelopment Agency transferred five (5) parcels of real property previously 
acquired by the Former Redevelopment Agency to the Cudahy EDC, one of which included the 
Property, and the Former Redevelopment Agency also transferred the proceeds of 
redevelopment bonds issued in 2011 and certain cash balances of the Former Redevelopment 
Agency to the EDC.   

 
Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34175(b) and the California Supreme Court's 
decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et al. (53 Cal.4th 
231 (2011), on February 1, 2012, all assets, properties, contracts, leases, books and records, 
buildings, and equipment of the Former Redevelopment Agency transferred to the control of 
the Cudahy Community Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency (Successor 
Agency) by operation of law. 
 
Health and Safety Code Section 34177(g) directs the Successor Agency to effectuate the 
transfer of housing functions and assets to the appropriate entity designated pursuant to 
Health and Safety Code Section 34176, in this particular case being the City of Cudahy as 
Housing Successor Agency, and Health and Safety Code Section 34181(c) provides that the 

12 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 5 of 5 

Oversight Board of the Successor Agency (Oversight Board) shall direct the Successor Agency 
to transfer housing assets pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34176 to the Housing 
Successor Agency.  

 
The Successor Agency entered into a Settlement and Release Agreement with Paramount to 
settle the title dispute concerning the Property. The Settlement and Release Agreement 
requires Paramount to purchase the Property for $1.2 million dollars.  However, in order to 
consummate the sale of the Property, the City of Cudahy as Housing Successor Agency must 
first amend the HAT Form to include the Property as part of its inventory of housing assets.  
The Successor Agency expects that this amendment will permit the Successor Agency to sell 
the Property to Paramount to resolve the title dispute.   
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The adoption of the proposed resolution is necessary to implement the DOF’s December 16, 
2015 order that the City as Housing Successor Agency include the Property in the HAT Form.  
The Successor Agency expects that inclusion of the Property in the HAT Form will permit the 
Successor Agency to sell the Property to Paramount consistent with the terms of the 
Settlement and Release Agreement.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
No financial impact to the City’s General Fund will be incurred provided that Paramount 
complies with the terms of the Release and Settlement Agreement for the purchase of the 
Property. The net proceeds of the Settlement and Release Agreement will be deposited into 
the Housing Successor Agency Low and Moderate-Income Fund. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Proposed Resolution 

13 of 426



Attachment A 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY, ACTING AS 
HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY, APPROVING AN 
AMENDMENT OF THE HOUSING ASSET TRANSFER FORM  
 

 
WHEREAS, in April 2011, the Community Development Commission City of Cudahy 

(“the Former Redevelopment Agency”) and City of Cudahy (the “City”) formed the Cudahy 
Economic Development Corporation, a non-profit public benefit corporation (the “EDC”).  The 
EDC was created as a separate and autonomous body to undertake community redevelopment 
activities within the City; and   

 
WHEREAS, additionally, in April, 2011, the Former Redevelopment Agency and Cudahy 

EDC entered into a Project Funding Agreement setting forth terms for the support of 
development activities to be undertaken by the Cudahy EDC.  The Project Funding Agreement 
obligates the Cudahy EDC to undertake certain development within the City, and in return, the 
Former Redevelopment Agency transferred bond proceeds, cash and real property assets of 
the Former Redevelopment Agency to the Cudahy EDC for such community development 
purposes; and   

 
WHEREAS, additionally, in April, 2011, the Former Redevelopment Agency and Cudahy 

EDC entered into the Reimbursement Agreement whereby the EDC agreed to undertake certain 
public works projects; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to these agreements, the Former Redevelopment Agency 

transferred five (5) parcels of real property as previously acquired by the Former 
Redevelopment Agency to the EDC, including the property located at 4848-4854 Live Oak 
Street (the “Property”), and the Former Redevelopment Agency also transferred the proceeds of 
redevelopment bonds issued in 2011 and certain cash balances of the Former Redevelopment 
Agency to the EDC; and    

 
WHEREAS, on January 17, 2012, prior to the dissolution of the Former Redevelopment 

Agency, the City Council of the City adopted Resolution No. 12-04 electing that the City serve 
as the successor agency and successor entity to the Former Redevelopment Agency 
(“Successor Agency”) and assume all housing assets and functions previously performed by the 
Former Redevelopment Agency pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34176; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34175(b) and the California 

Supreme Court's decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et 
al. (53 Cal.4th 231 (2011), on February 1, 2012, all assets, properties, contracts, leases, books 
and records, buildings, and equipment of the Former Redevelopment Agency transferred to the 
control of the Successor Agency by operation of law; and  

 
WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Section 34177(g) directs the Successor Agency to 

effectuate the transfer of housing functions and assets to the appropriate entity designated 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34176, in this particular case being the City of 
Cudahy as Housing Successor Agency, and Health and Safety Code Section 34181(c) provides 
that the Oversight Board of the Successor Agency (the "Oversight Board") shall direct the 
Successor Agency to transfer housing assets pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 
34176 to the Housing Successor Agency; and  

14 of 426



Attachment A 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

WHEREAS, on May 1, 2012, Paramount Villas LLC, a California limited liability company 
and Alvaro Banegas (collectively “Paramount”) and the EDC, entered into the Second Amended 
Acquisition and Development Loan Agreement (“Paramount Loan Agreement”) involving the 
Property, and states that it “amends and supersedes the Acquisition and Development Loan 
Agreement” dated January 9, 2012, and the amended agreement dated March 1, 2012, both 
between Paramount and the EDC; and  

 
WHEREAS, Paramount holds title to the Property based on documents executed by 

Paramount and EDC, including, without limitation, the following: (i) Grant Deed recorded as 
Instrument No. 20120623627; and (ii) Deed of Trust recorded as Instrument No. 20120623628, 
both recorded April 27, 2012 in Official Records; and  

 
WHEREAS, in or around July of 2012, the EDC rescinded its contracts with Paramount 

including the Paramount Loan Agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, on August 1, 2012, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 

34176(a)(2), the City and the Successor Agency submitted to the DOF a Housing Assets 
Transfer Form (the "HAT Form") of all housing assets, including any assets transferred on or 
after February 1, 2012; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 5, 2012, the DOF reviewed and approved the HAT Form; 

and  
 
WHEREAS, on April 9, 2013, Paramount filed, in Los Angeles Superior Court, Alvaro 

Banegas and Paramount Villas, LLC v. Cudahy Economic Development Corp. and the City of 
Cudahy, Case No.: VC063068, a lawsuit arising out of the contracts between Paramount and 
EDC including the Paramount Loan Agreement, and Paramount’s proposed development 
project at the Property (“Lawsuit”); and  

 
WHEREAS, on April 9, 2013, Paramount recorded two Notices of Pendency of Action 

(Lis Pendens) as Instrument Nos. 20130527150 and 20130527151, both of Official Records; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, in August of 2013, the EDC filed a cross-complaint in the Lawsuit seeking, 

inter alia, rescission of contracts including the Paramount Loan Agreement and quiet title to the 
Property; and  

 
WHEREAS, on May 12, 2014, the Oversight Board adopted Resolution No. OB 14-03 

directing the Successor Agency to transfer housing assets to the City as Successor Housing 
Agency, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34176; and  

 
WHEREAS, on May 20, 2014, the City, acting as Housing Successor Agency, adopted 

Resolution No. 14-32 to approve its acceptance of the housing functions and assets of the 
Former Redevelopment Agency; and  

 
WHEREAS, on April 15, 2014, the California State Controller’s Office (“SCO”) issued a 

report titled: Cudahy Redevelopment Agency Asset Transfer Review January 1, 2011 through 
January 31, 2012, which orders the Successor Agency to recover the Property and other 
specified assets of the EDC, in accordance with the Dissolution Laws; and  

 
  

15 of 426



Attachment A 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

WHEREAS, on February 3, 2015 the Successor Agency adopted Resolution No. 15-01, 
approving an Asset Transfer Agreement between the EDC and the Successor Agency to 
effectuate the asset transfer ordered by the SCO; and  

 
WHEREAS, on February 5, 2015, the Board of Directors of the EDC adopted Resolution 

No. EDC-15-01, approving the Asset Transfer Agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 12, 2015, the Oversight Board to the Successor Agency (the 

“Oversight Board”) adopted Resolution No. OB15-07 approving the Asset Transfer Agreement; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 11, 2015, the Successor Agency received an appraisal of the 

Property prepared by Kenneth T. Soergel providing that as of April 17, 2015, the Property 
appraised at One Million and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1,050,000) in its “as is” condition; and  
 

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2015, the Successor Agency approved an amendment to the 
Asset Transfer Agreement between the EDC and Successor Agency to effectuate the asset 
transfer ordered by the SCO; and  

 
WHEREAS, on June 4, 2015, the EDC approved the amendment to the Asset Transfer 

Agreement between the EDC and Successor Agency to effectuate the asset transfer ordered by 
the SCO; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Successor Agency determined that the Former Redevelopment Agency 

acquired the Property in 2009 with tax increment revenues derived from the low and moderate 
housing fund and, thus, notified the Department of Finance (“DOF”) that the Property should be 
excluded from the Long Range Property Management Plan (“LRPMP”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 16, 2015, the DOF notified the Successor Agency in writing 

that it approved the LRPMP and that the Property should be added to the Successor Agency’s 
revised HAT Form as part of its inventory of housing assets and should be excluded from the 
LRPMP, as it was funded with moderate income housing funds; and  

WHEREAS, on about February 8, 2016, the parties involved in the Lawsuit negotiated a 
Settlement and Release Agreement for the transfer of Successor Agency’s right, title and 
interest in and to the Property under the Asset Transfer Agreement to Paramount provided that 
Paramount provides to the Successor Agency One Million and Two Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($1,200,000) to purchase the Property; and  

 
WHEREAS, any transfer of the Property to Paramount shall be contingent upon written 

acknowledgement from DOF confirming that the Property has been included in the revised HAT 
Form pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34176.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF CUDAHY, ACTING AS HOUSING SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are a substantive part of this 
Resolution. 
 
  

16 of 426



Attachment A 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

SECTION 2. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sections 
34176 and to implement DOF’s December 16, 2015 order that the Property shall be included in 
the Housing Successor Agency revised HAT and excluded from the LRPMP as the Property 
was funded with moderate income housing funds. 
 
 SECTION 3. The City of Cudahy, acting as Housing Successor Agency, hereby 
authorizes and directs: (i) submittal of an amendment request to DOF in order to amend the 
HAT Form to include the Property as part of the inventory of housing assets. 
 
 SECTION 4.  The amended HAT Form that will be submitted to DOF is attached hereto 
as Exhibit D. 

 
SECTION 5. The City staff and the chair of the Successor Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed, jointly and severally, to execute and record such documents and instruments and 
to do any and all other things which they may deem necessary or advisable to effectuate the 
amendment to the HAT Form as authorized by this Resolution. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of March 2016. 
 
 
 
        
 Cristian Markovich,  

Chair of the City of Cudahy as Housing 
Successor Agency  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 
 
      
Secretary of the City of Cudahy  
as Housing Successor Agency 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

17 of 426



Attachment A 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 
 
 
I, __________ Secretary for the City of Cudahy as Housing Successor Agency to the former 
Cudahy Community Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution No. ____ was passed, approved, and adopted by the City of Cudahy as 
Housing Successor Agency to the former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission/Redevelopment Agency signed by the Chair and attested by the Chair at a meeting 
of said Successor held on this 14th day of March, 2016, and that said Resolution was adopted 
by the following votes to wit: 
 

AYES:   
 
 NOES:  
 
 ABSTAIN:  
 
 ABSENT:  

 
 
   ________________________________ 

Secretary of the City of Cudahy as Housing 
Successor Agency 
 

 

18 of 426



Exhibit 1

19 of 426



Exhibit D - Loans/Grants Receivables

Item #
Amount of the loan 

or grant
Date the loan or 

grant was issued

Purpose for 
which the funds 
were loaned or 

granted

Are there 
contractual 

requirements 
specifying the 

purposes for which 
the funds may be 

used?

Repayment date, if 
the funds are for a 

loan
Interest rate 

of loan

Current 
outstanding 
loan balance

1 $280,000 11/1/1995 construction loan yes November-25 6.55% $561,432

2 $500,000 6/28/1998 construction loan yes May-26 1.00% $558,233
3 $590,000 6/30/2000 construction loan yes August-29 2.50% $757,262
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Yes

Elizabeth West & East 
LLP

Was the Low-Mod 
Housing Fund 

amount issued for a 
loan or a grant?

Person or entity to 
whom the loan or 
grant was issued

Yes Clara St. LLP

Yes

Live Oak LLP

City or County of xxxxx
Inventory of Assets Received Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34176 (a) (2) 

Exhibit 1

20 of 426



Exhibit 2

21 of 426



Exhibit 3

22 of 426



Former Redevelopment Agency: CUDAHY DEVELOPMENT COMMUNITY COMMISSION

Successor Agency to the Former
Redevelopment Agency: CITY OF CUDAHY SUCCESSOR AGENCY

Entity Assuming the Housing Functions
of the former Redevelopment Agency: CITY OF CUDAHY AS HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY

Entity Assuming the Housing Functions
Contact Name: Steven Dobrenen Title Finance Director Phone 323-773-5143 sdobrenen@cityofcudahyca.gov

Entity Assuming the Housing Functions
Contact Name: Title Phone

The following Exhibits noted with an X in the box are included as part of this inventory of housing assets:

Exhibit A - Real Property x

Exhibit B- Personal Property

Exhibit C - Low-Mod Encumbrances

Exhibit D - Loans/Grants Receivables x

Exhibit E - Rents/Operations

Exhibit F- Rents

Exhibit G - Deferrals

Prepared By: Steven Dobrenen - Finance Director

Date Prepared: 3/14/16

E-Mail Address

E-Mail Address

All assets transferred to the entity assuming the housing functions between February 1, 2012 and the date the exhibits were created are included in this housing assets list.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

AMENDED HOUSING ASSETS LIST

ASSEMBLY BILL X1 26 AND ASSEMBLY BILL 1484

(Health and Safety Code Section 34176)

Exhibit 4

23 of 426



Exhibit A - Real Property

Item #

Carrying Value

of Asset

Total

square

footage

Is the property

encumbered by

a low-mod

housing

covenant?

Source of low-

mod housing

covenant b/

Date of transfer to

Housing Successor

Agency

Construction

or acquisition

cost funded

with Low-Mod

Housing Fund

monies

Construction

or acquisition

costs funded

with other

RDA funds

Construction

or acquisition

costs funded

with non-RDA

funds

Date of

construction

or

acquisition

by the

former RDA

Interest in real property

(option to purchase,

easement, etc.)

1

$1,208,895 .92 Acres Yes Yes See Settlement

Agreement Terms

$1,200,000 N/A N/A 10-Jul-09 Paramount-Banegas-

Successor Agency

Settlement Agreement

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Square footage

reserved for low-

mod housing

Legal Title and

Description

.92 Acres4848-4854 Live Oak

St.

b/ May include California Redevelopment Law, tax credits, state bond indentures,

and federal funds requirements.

City of Cudahy

Inventory of Assets Received Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34176 (a) (2)

Type of Asset a/

Property

a/ Asset types may include low-mod housing, mixed-income housing, low-mod housing

with commercial space, mixed-income housing with commercial space.

Exhibit 4

24 of 426



Exhibit B - Personal Property

Item #

Carrying Value

of Asset

Date of

transfer to

Housing

Successor

Agency

Acquisition

cost funded

with Low-Mod

Housing Fund

monies

Acquisition

costs funded

with other RDA

funds

Acquisition

costs funded

with non-RDA

funds

Date of

acquisition by

the former RDA

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

a/ Asset types any personal property provided in residences, including
furniture and appliances, all housing-related files and loan documents,
office supplies, software licenses, and mapping programs, that were
acquired for low and moderate income housing purposes, either by
purchase or through a loan, in whole or in part, with any source of funds.

City or County of xxxx

Inventory of Assets Received Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34176 (a) (2)

Type of Asset a/ Description

NA

Exhibit 4

25 of 426



Exhibit C - Low-Mod Encumbrances

Item #

Contractual

counterparty

Total amount

currently

owed for the

Enforceable

Obligation

Is the property

encumbered by

a low-mod

housing

covenant?

Source of low-

mod housing

covenant b/

Current

owner of

the property

Construction or

acquisition cost

funded with

Low-Mod

Housing Fund

monies

Construction or

acquisition costs

funded with

other RDA funds

Construction

or acquisition

costs funded

with non-RDA

funds

Date of

construction or

acquisition of

the property

1 NA

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

City or County of xxxxx

Inventory of Assets Received Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34176 (a) (2)

Date contract for

Enforceable

Obligation was

executed

Type of housing built

or acquired with

enforceably

obligated funds a/

a/ May include low-mod housing, mixed-income housing, low-mod housing with
commercial space, mixed-income housing with commercial space.

b/ May include California Redevelopment Law, tax credits, state bond indentures, and
federal funds requirements.

Exhibit 4

26 of 426



Exhibit D - Loans/Grants Receivables

Item #

Amount of the loan

or grant

Date the loan or

grant was issued

Purpose for

which the funds

were loaned or

granted

Are there

contractual

requirements

specifying the

purposes for which

the funds may be

used?

Repayment date, if

the funds are for a

loan

Interest rate

of loan

Current

outstanding

loan balance

1 $280,000 11/1/1995 construction loan yes November-25 6.55% $561,432

2 $500,000 6/28/1998 construction loan yes May-26 1.00% $558,233

3 $590,000 6/30/2000 construction loan yes August-29 2.50% $757,262

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Yes

Elizabeth West & East
LLP

Was the Low-Mod

Housing Fund

amount issued for a

loan or a grant?

Person or entity to

whom the loan or

grant was issued

Yes Clara St. LLP

Yes

Live Oak LLP

City or County of xxxxx

Inventory of Assets Received Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34176 (a) (2)

Exhibit 4

27 of 426



Exhibit E - Rents/Operations

Item #

Type of property

with which they

payments are

associated b/

Property

owner

Entity that

collects the

payments

Entity to which

the collected

payments are

ultimately

remitted

Purpose for

which the

payments are

used

Is the property

encumbered

by a low-mod

housing

covenant?

Source of low-

mod housing

covenant c/

Item # from

Exhibit A the

rent/operation

is associated

with (if

applicable)

1

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

City or County of xxxx

Inventory of Assets Received Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34176 (a) (2)

c/ May include California Redevelopment Law, tax credits, state bond indentures,
and federal funds requirements.

b/ May include low-mod housing, mixed-income housing, low-mod housing with
commercial space, mixed-income housing with commercial space.

a/ May include revenues from rents, operation of properties, residual receipt
payments from developers, conditional grant repayments, costs savings and
proceeds from refinancing, and principal and interest payments from homebuyers
subject to enforceable income limits.

Type of payment a/

NA

Exhibit 4

28 of 426



Exhibit F - Rents

Item #

Type of property

with which the

payments are

associated b/

Property

owner

Entity that

collects the

payments

Entity to which

the collected

payments are

ultimately

remitted

Purpose for

which the

payments are

used

Is the property

encumbered

by a low-mod

housing

covenant?

Source of low-

mod housing

covenant c/

Item # from

Exhibit A the rent

is associated with

(if applicable)

1

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

City or County of xxxx

Inventory of Assets Received Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34176 (a) (2)

b/ May include low-mod housing, mixed-income housing, low-mod housing with
commercial space, mixed-income housing with commercial space.

c/ May include California Redevelopment Law, tax credits, state bond indentures,
and federal funds requirements.

Type of payment a/

NA

a/ May include rents or home loan payments.

Exhibit 4

29 of 426



Exhibit G - Deferrals

Item #

Fiscal year in

which funds

were deferred

Amount

deferred

Interest rate

at which

funds were

to be repaid

Current

amount owed

Date upon which

funds were to be

repaid

1

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

City or County of xxxxx

Inventory of Assets Received Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34176 (a) (2)

Purpose for which

funds were deferred

NA

Exhibit 4

30 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/14/16  Page 1 of 2 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 14, 2016 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director 

Subject: Approval of the City Demands and Payroll Including Cash and Investment 
Report for the Month of January 2016 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
The City Council is requested to approve the Demands and Payroll in the amount of 
$870,167.98 including Cash and Investment Report by Fund for the month of January 2016.   
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On December 13, 1993, Ordinance 476 was adopted and codified as Cudahy Municipal 

Code Section 3.04.080 indicating, "Except as otherwise provided, no warrant shall be 
drawn or evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time sufficient 
money in the treasury legally applicable to the payment of the same."  

 
2. On January 2016, the following demands and payroll have been audited by the Finance 

Department: 
 
Demands $    704,056.73 (Attachment A) 
Payroll Warrants $      97,595.80 (Attachment B) 
  $      68,515.45 (Attachment B) 
       
Total: $    870,167.98      
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Item Number 

10B 

31 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/14/16  Page 2 of 2 
    

 
ANALYSIS  
 
The Check Register Report (Attachment A), Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes and 
insurance premiums (Attachment B), Cash and Investment Report by Fund January 2016 
(Attachment C) indicate that the cash and investment balance was sufficient for 
disbursements for the month of January 2016, (Attachment D) a summary of cash received 
and disbursed by month during Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16, and (Attachment E) a summary of 
cash received and disbursed by month during FY 2014-15.  It is best practice in local 
governments for Bank Reconciliations to be completed within thirty days of month end.  
Accordingly, the timely completion of the bank reconciliation, and related reports, for the 
month ended February 29, 2016, as well as management review, will be completed by March 
31, 2016. 
 
 
CONCULSION 
 
The Finance Director certifies to the accuracy and availability of funds for payment.  A 
Demand/Warrant Register has been submitted to the City Council for approval in accordance 
with Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.070.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The Cash and Investment Report by Fund (Attachment C) indicates how the total 
disbursements of $870,167.98 were distributed between the funds of the City. 
 
 
 ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Check Register Report 
B. Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes and insurance premiums  
C. Cash and Investment Report by Fund January 2016 
D. Summary of Cash Receipt / Disbursement by Month FY 2016 
E. Summary of Cash Receipt / Disbursement by Month FY 2015 

 
 
 

32 of 426



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 1Page:

 1:29 pmTime:

02/09/2016Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

01/05/2016 2289 CONSOLIDATED DISPOSAL 39391

REFUSE ASSESSMENT DECEMBER2015Printed

 167,939.97

 0.00

 167,939.97

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28071 730-0000-2007.000  167,939.97 167,939.97  0.00

Check Amount  167,939.97

01/05/2016 5770 CSMFO 39392

CA SOCIETY MUNI FIN 2016 RENEWPrinted

 110.00

 0.00

 110.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28079 001-4151-6386.000  110.00 110.00  0.00

Check Amount  110.00

01/05/2016 8017 DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION 39393

QUARTERLY STRONG MOTIONPrinted

 90.63

 0.00

 90.63

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28066 001-4212-6779.000  90.63 90.63  0.00

Check Amount  90.63

01/05/2016 5697 DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES 39394

EQUIP REG RENEWAL SE661321Printed

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28075 201-4425-6394.000  25.00 25.00  0.00

 28076 201-4425-6394.000  25.00 25.00  0.00

 28077 201-4425-6394.000  25.00 25.00  0.00

 28078 201-4425-6394.000  25.00 25.00  0.00

Check Amount  100.00

01/05/2016 10106 HR DYNAMICS & PERFORMANCE MGNT 39395

CONSULTING DEC 14  - DEC 31Printed

 14,484.85

 0.00

 14,484.85

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28065 001-4015-6720.000  9,384.85 9,384.85  0.00

 28080 001-4011-6720.000  3,570.00 3,570.00  0.00

 28080 001-4930-6391.000  1,530.00 1,530.00  0.00

Check Amount  14,484.85

01/05/2016 0197 LA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 39396

LAW ENFORCEMENT OCTOBER 2015Printed

 307,305.63

 0.00

 307,305.63

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28070 001-4501-6763.000  307,305.63 307,305.63  0.00

Check Amount  307,305.63

01/05/2016 10194 MAGANA GARCIA CECILIA 39397

ZUMBA INSTRUCTORPrinted

 148.50

 0.00

 148.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28067 001-4350-6210.000  148.50 148.50  0.00

Check Amount  148.50

01/05/2016 9626 THE BANCORP BANK 39398

FORD FUSION HYBRID 2 VEHPrinted

 1,154.24

 0.00

 1,154.24

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28074 257-4780-6393.000  1,154.24 1,154.24  0.00

Attachment A

33 of 426



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 2Page:

 1:29 pmTime:

02/09/2016Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  1,154.24

01/05/2016 9995 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 39399

ADMIN FEE CUDAHY2011BPrinted

 1,865.60

 0.00

 1,865.60

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28068 610-4930-6820.000  1,865.60 1,865.60  0.00

Check Amount  1,865.60

01/05/2016 9991 TRANSTECH 39400

PLAN CHECK SERVICES BLDG SERVPrinted

 2,844.23

 0.00

 2,844.23

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28069 001-4212-6720.000  792.74 792.74  0.00

 28072 001-4212-6720.000  551.49 551.49  0.00

 28073 001-4212-6720.000  1,500.00 1,500.00  0.00

Check Amount  2,844.23

01/12/2016 4550 235- PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC. 39401

CYLINDER RENTALPrinted

 41.35

 0.00

 41.35

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28107 201-4425-6150.000  41.35 41.35  0.00

Check Amount  41.35

01/12/2016 0001 AAA BURGLAR ALARM CO, 39402

QUARTERLY OUTRIGHT ALARMPrinted

 1,471.00

 0.00

 1,471.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28110 001-4020-6720.000  1,471.00 1,471.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,471.00

01/12/2016 0057-1 AT & T INTERNET SERVICES 39403

LUGO PARK INTERNET #138690461Printed

 105.00

 0.00

 105.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28084 001-4020-6390.000  51.00 51.00  0.00

 28085 001-4020-6390.000  54.00 54.00  0.00

Check Amount  105.00

01/12/2016 9966 AT & T LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 39404

LONG DISTANCE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 130.54

 0.00

 130.54

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28087 001-4020-6390.000  130.54 130.54  0.00

Check Amount  130.54

01/12/2016 0057-2 AT & T PHONE SERVICE 39405

PHONE LINE SERV  NOV 8 - DEC 7Printed

 619.51

 0.00

 619.51

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28114 001-4020-6390.000  619.51 619.51  0.00

Check Amount  619.51

01/12/2016 4546 CENTRAL BASIN MUNICIPAL WATER 39406

RECYCLED WATER OCT 2015Printed

 177.36

 0.00

 177.36

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28091 001-4020-6395.000  177.36 177.36  0.00

Attachment A

34 of 426



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 3Page:

 1:29 pmTime:

02/09/2016Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  177.36

01/12/2016 6045 CONTRERAS GARDEN SUPPLY 39407

SERVICE EQUIPMENTPrinted

 265.00

 0.00

 265.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28083 001-4410-6770.000  265.00 265.00  0.00

Check Amount  265.00

01/12/2016 0186 COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 39408

ANIMAL CARE & CONTROL NOVEMBERPrinted

 4,023.36

 0.00

 4,023.36

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28104 001-4510-6703.000  4,023.36 4,023.36  0.00

Check Amount  4,023.36

01/12/2016 8338 DELTA FIRE PROTECTION & EQUIP 39409

INSTALL ANSUL R102 FIRE SUPPLYPrinted

 1,200.00

 0.00

 1,200.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28108 001-4020-6060.000  1,200.00 1,200.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,200.00

01/12/2016 10334 DEMETRIOU DEL GUERCIO SPRINGER 39410

ATTORNEY FEES CUDAHY EDCPrinted

 2,592.50

 0.00

 2,592.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28096 610-4930-6755.000  2,592.50 2,592.50  0.00

Check Amount  2,592.50

01/12/2016 10179 EMPIRE CLEANING SUPPLY 39411

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIESPrinted

 2,387.93

 0.00

 2,387.93

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28109 001-4020-6080.000  2,387.93 2,387.93  0.00

Check Amount  2,387.93

01/12/2016 8018 FERNANDO'S HARDWARE & LUMBER 39412

HARDWARE SUPPLIESPrinted

 65.37

 0.00

 65.37

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28097 001-4410-6140.000  65.37 65.37  0.00

Check Amount  65.37

01/12/2016 6087 FIRST AMERICAN DATA TREE 39413

SERVICE RENDERED DECEMBERPrinted

 115.92

 0.00

 115.92

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28098 001-4215-6080.000  115.92 115.92  0.00

Check Amount  115.92

01/12/2016 0126-1 GOLDEN STATE WATER COMPANY 39414

WATER SERVICE NOV 24 -  DEC 21Printed

 1,298.45

 0.00

 1,298.45

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28092 001-4020-6395.000  84.13 84.13  0.00

 28093 001-4020-6395.000  1,214.32 1,214.32  0.00

Check Amount  1,298.45

Attachment A

35 of 426



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 4Page:

 1:29 pmTime:

02/09/2016Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

01/12/2016 10053 HAULAWAY STORAGE CONTAINERS 39415

21FT STORAGE CONTAINERPrinted

 74.20

 0.00

 74.20

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28106 001-4020-6970.000  74.20 74.20  0.00

Check Amount  74.20

01/12/2016 2139 HINDERLITER DELLAMAS & ASST 39416

SALES TAX 4TH QUARTER 2015Printed

 2,985.86

 0.00

 2,985.86

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28095 001-4151-6720.000  2,985.86 2,985.86  0.00

Check Amount  2,985.86

01/12/2016 9723 IT SYSTEMHOUSE, INC. 39417

IT OUTSOURCING SERV DECEMBERPrinted

 3,200.00

 0.00

 3,200.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28099 001-4020-6720.000  3,200.00 3,200.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,200.00

01/12/2016 4553 J. V. PRINTING 39418

LETTER HEAD PAPERPrinted

 196.20

 0.00

 196.20

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28103 001-4020-6080.000  196.20 196.20  0.00

Check Amount  196.20

01/12/2016 9668 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS 39419

KONICA MINOLTA COPIER LEASEPrinted

 236.38

 0.00

 236.38

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28100 001-4020-6014.000  236.38 236.38  0.00

Check Amount  236.38

01/12/2016 1338-1 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION 39420

TAP NOVEMBER 2015Printed

 3,816.00

 0.00

 3,816.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28105 251-4760-6550.000  3,816.00 3,816.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,816.00

01/12/2016 10337 MIG 39421

PROFESSIONAL SERV NOV. 2015Printed

 26,934.36

 0.00

 26,934.36

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28094 001-4215-6720.000  26,934.36 26,934.36  0.00

Check Amount  26,934.36

01/12/2016 10121 NATIONWIDE GATE SERVICES 39422

SERVICED MAINT. YARD GATEPrinted

 925.00

 0.00

 925.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28112 001-4410-6389.000  925.00 925.00  0.00

Check Amount  925.00

01/12/2016 9717 PCAM, LLC 39423

SHUTTLE SERVICE NOVEMBERPrinted

 14,081.58

 0.00

 14,081.58

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

Attachment A

36 of 426



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 5Page:

 1:29 pmTime:

02/09/2016Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 28111 251-4740-6780.000  14,081.58 14,081.58  0.00

Check Amount  14,081.58

01/12/2016 0070 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON 39424

ELECTRICITY BILLSPrinted

 10,012.79

 0.00

 10,012.79

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28113 001-4020-6318.000  8,456.24 8,456.24  0.00

 28113 350-4430-6318.000  53.04 53.04  0.00

 28113 201-4420-6318.000  1,503.51 1,503.51  0.00

Check Amount  10,012.79

01/12/2016 4159 SUPERIOR CENTER CONCEPTS, INC. 39425

FOOD DISTRIBUTION DECEMBERPrinted

 819.50

 0.00

 819.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28102 510-4642-6145.000  819.50 819.50  0.00

Check Amount  819.50

01/12/2016 0071 THE GAS COMPANY 39426

NATURAL GAS - 4835 CLARA STPrinted

 152.84

 0.00

 152.84

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28088 001-4020-6380.000  38.86 38.86  0.00

 28089 001-4020-6380.000  49.27 49.27  0.00

 28090 001-4020-6380.000  64.71 64.71  0.00

Check Amount  152.84

01/12/2016 4775 THE JARVIS COMPANY 39427

INSTALLATION & REMOVAL OFPrinted

 4,210.00

 0.00

 4,210.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28082 201-4425-6387.000  4,210.00 4,210.00  0.00

Check Amount  4,210.00

01/12/2016 0078 TRACT 349 MUTUAL WATER CO 39428

WATER SERVICE OCT 1 - DEC 15Printed

 469.60

 0.00

 469.60

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28086 001-4020-6395.000  469.60 469.60  0.00

Check Amount  469.60

01/12/2016 2859 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT-SC 39429

DIG ALERT TICKETSPrinted

 21.00

 0.00

 21.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28101 201-4425-6735.000  21.00 21.00  0.00

Check Amount  21.00

01/12/2016 5631 WELLS LOCK & KEY 39430

KEY DUPLICATESPrinted

 75.00

 0.00

 75.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28081 001-4020-6370.000  75.00 75.00  0.00

Check Amount  75.00

01/20/2016 10205 APPLE ONE EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 39431

EMPLOYMENT SERVICE OCTOBER 31Printed

 5,589.71

 0.00

 5,589.71

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

Attachment A

37 of 426



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 6Page:

 1:29 pmTime:

02/09/2016Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 28117 001-4020-6720.000  473.76 473.76  0.00

 28118 001-4020-6720.000  434.28 434.28  0.00

 28119 001-4020-6720.000  789.60 789.60  0.00

 28120 001-4020-6720.000  783.02 783.02  0.00

 28121 001-4020-6720.000  454.02 454.02  0.00

 28122 001-4020-6720.000  473.76 473.76  0.00

 28123 001-4020-6720.000  769.86 769.86  0.00

 28124 001-4020-6720.000  631.68 631.68  0.00

 28125 001-4020-6720.000  779.73 779.73  0.00

Check Amount  5,589.71

01/20/2016 7019 BUSINESS CARD 39432

CREDIT CARD DECEMBER 2015  RIPrinted

 13,568.12

 0.00

 13,568.12

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28139 001-4020-6375.000  129.50 129.50  0.00

 28139 001-4350-6585.000  3,694.36 3,694.36  0.00

 28139 001-4011-6720.000  154.67 154.67  0.00

 28139 510-4642-6145.000  8,141.00 8,141.00  0.00

 28139 001-4020-6515.000  137.90 137.90  0.00

 28139 001-4350-6580.000  303.54 303.54  0.00

 28139 001-4015-6322.000  407.44 407.44  0.00

 28139 201-4425-6770.000  112.26 112.26  0.00

 28139 001-4001-6085.000  182.33 182.33  0.00

 28139 001-4020-6080.000  62.15 62.15  0.00

 28139 001-4001-6391.000  41.65 41.65  0.00

 28139 001-4151-6391.000  171.16 171.16  0.00

 28139 001-4018-6080.000  30.16 30.16  0.00

Check Amount  13,568.12

01/20/2016 0569 FEDERAL EXPRESS SERVICES 39433

FEDEX EXPRESS SHIPMENTPrinted

 89.23

 0.00

 89.23

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28128 001-4020-6385.000  66.32 66.32  0.00

 28129 001-4020-6385.000  22.91 22.91  0.00

Check Amount  89.23

01/20/2016 2724 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 39434

HARDWARE AND SUPPLIESPrinted

 1,470.47

 0.00

 1,470.47

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28138 201-4425-6150.000  65.69 65.69  0.00

 28138 001-4020-6370.000  833.46 833.46  0.00

 28138 001-4410-6140.000  571.32 571.32  0.00

Check Amount  1,470.47

01/20/2016 10106 HR DYNAMICS & PERFORMANCE MGNT 39435

HR CONSULTING JAN 1 -  JAN 17Printed

 8,066.44

 0.00

 8,066.44

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28145 001-4015-6720.000  8,066.44 8,066.44  0.00

Check Amount  8,066.44

01/20/2016 0215 JOBS AVAILABLE 39436

JOB POSTINGSPrinted

 1,365.00

 0.00

 1,365.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28115 001-4015-6310.000  1,365.00 1,365.00  0.00

Attachment A

38 of 426



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 7Page:

 1:29 pmTime:

02/09/2016Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  1,365.00

01/20/2016 0092-7 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES 39437

CONFERENCE REG JOSE PULIDOPrinted

 650.00

 0.00

 650.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28143 001-4011-6392.000  650.00 650.00  0.00

Check Amount  650.00

01/20/2016 10080 MAIL FINANCE 39438

POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE OCT-JANPrinted

 285.61

 0.00

 285.61

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28133 001-4020-6385.000  285.61 285.61  0.00

Check Amount  285.61

01/20/2016 1978 OFFICE DEPOT BUSINESS 39439

OFFICE SUPPLIESPrinted

 191.66

 0.00

 191.66

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28134 001-4020-6014.000  63.20 63.20  0.00

 28135 001-4020-6014.000 -31.60-31.60  0.00

 28136 001-4020-6014.000  31.37 31.37  0.00

 28136 001-4020-6080.000  27.46 27.46  0.00

 28137 001-4020-6014.000  101.23 101.23  0.00

Check Amount  191.66

01/20/2016 0095 PETTY CASH 39440

PETTY CASH REIMBURSEMENTPrinted

 370.35

 0.00

 370.35

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28130 001-4530-6394.000  5.00 5.00  0.00

 28130 001-4350-6585.000  108.65 108.65  0.00

 28130 001-4350-6585.000  48.73 48.73  0.00

 28130 001-4350-6585.000  7.63 7.63  0.00

 28130 001-4350-6585.000  13.08 13.08  0.00

 28130 001-4350-6585.000  9.98 9.98  0.00

 28130 001-0000-4990.000  100.00 100.00  0.00

 28130 001-4410-6140.000  34.23 34.23  0.00

 28130 001-4410-6140.000  2.18 2.18  0.00

 28130 001-4410-6080.000  35.96 35.96  0.00

 28130 001-4410-6770.000  4.91 4.91  0.00

Check Amount  370.35

01/20/2016 10372 RICOH USA, INC 39441

COPIER MACHINE MAINTENANCEPrinted

 6,510.92

 0.00

 6,510.92

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28131 001-4011-6720.000  132.46 132.46  0.00

 28132 001-4011-6720.000  139.43 139.43  0.00

 28144 001-4020-6014.000  6,239.03 6,239.03  0.00

Check Amount  6,510.92

01/20/2016 2802 SAM'S CLUB 39442

CREDIT CARD PAYMENT DECEMBERPrinted

 533.66

 0.00

 533.66

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28116 001-4020-6080.000  47.29 47.29  0.00

 28116 001-4350-6585.000  331.13 331.13  0.00

Attachment A

39 of 426



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 8Page:

 1:29 pmTime:

02/09/2016Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 28116 001-4015-6322.000  48.86 48.86  0.00

 28116 001-4350-6580.000  106.38 106.38  0.00

Check Amount  533.66

01/20/2016 0172 SMART & FINAL FOOD SERVICE 39443

FOOD DISTRIBUTION DECEMBERPrinted

 2,182.26

 0.00

 2,182.26

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28140 001-4020-6080.000  15.57 15.57  0.00

 28141 510-4642-6145.000  720.48 720.48  0.00

 28142 510-4642-6145.000  1,446.21 1,446.21  0.00

Check Amount  2,182.26

01/20/2016 9991 TRANSTECH 39444

CUDAHY CASINO/TRAFFIC STUDYPrinted

 15,965.00

 0.00

 15,965.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28126 001-0000-2194.000  15,965.00 15,965.00  0.00

Check Amount  15,965.00

01/20/2016 8292 URBAN FUTURES, INC. 39445

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES NOVEMBERPrinted

 3,791.25

 0.00

 3,791.25

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28127 610-4930-6720.000  3,791.25 3,791.25  0.00

Check Amount  3,791.25

01/27/2016 9738 ARENT FOX LLP 39446

LEGAL SERVICES OCTOBER 2015Printed

 1,646.00

 0.00

 1,646.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28147 001-4930-6755.000  1,560.00 1,560.00  0.00

 28152 001-4930-6755.000  86.00 86.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,646.00

01/27/2016 0057-1 AT & T INTERNET SERVICES 39447

LUGO PARK INTERNET #138690461Printed

 105.00

 0.00

 105.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28169 001-4020-6390.000  51.00 51.00  0.00

 28170 001-4020-6390.000  54.00 54.00  0.00

Check Amount  105.00

01/27/2016 9966 AT & T LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 39448

LONG DISTANCE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 125.08

 0.00

 125.08

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28172 001-4020-6390.000  125.08 125.08  0.00

Check Amount  125.08

01/27/2016 8021 AT & T MOBILITY 39449

CELLULAR SERVICE NOV 7 - DEC 6Printed

 493.64

 0.00

 493.64

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28157 001-4020-6390.000  437.13 437.13  0.00

 28157 201-4425-6390.000  56.51 56.51  0.00

Check Amount  493.64

Attachment A

40 of 426



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 9Page:

 1:29 pmTime:

02/09/2016Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

01/27/2016 0057-2 AT & T PHONE SERVICE 39450

LANDLINE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 2,863.11

 0.00

 2,863.11

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28171 001-4020-6390.000  2,863.11 2,863.11  0.00

Check Amount  2,863.11

01/27/2016 10133 AVANT-GARDE, INC. 39451

RMC PROP 1 GRANT APPLICATIONPrinted

 4,397.50

 0.00

 4,397.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28166 001-4020-6720.000  4,397.50 4,397.50  0.00

Check Amount  4,397.50

01/27/2016 1206 COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES IND WAST 39452

INSPECTION - IND WASTE/SEWERSPrinted

 331.99

 0.00

 331.99

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28158 001-4216-6720.000  331.99 331.99  0.00

Check Amount  331.99

01/27/2016 2167 DAILY BREEZE PRESS TELEGRAM 39453

CLASSIFIED ADVERTISINGPrinted

 862.36

 0.00

 862.36

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28174 001-4008-6310.000  394.25 394.25  0.00

 28175 001-4008-6310.000  468.11 468.11  0.00

Check Amount  862.36

01/27/2016 10005 DAPEER, ROSENBLIT & LITVAK 39454

CITY PROSECUTION SERVICEPrinted

 2,510.63

 0.00

 2,510.63

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28151 510-4230-6755.000  2,510.63 2,510.63  0.00

Check Amount  2,510.63

01/27/2016 10334 DEMETRIOU DEL GUERCIO SPRINGER 39455

ATTORNEY FEES CUDAHY EDCPrinted

 1,062.50

 0.00

 1,062.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28163 610-4930-6755.000  1,062.50 1,062.50  0.00

Check Amount  1,062.50

01/27/2016 10179 EMPIRE CLEANING SUPPLY 39456

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIESPrinted

 106.47

 0.00

 106.47

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28156 001-4020-6080.000  106.47 106.47  0.00

Check Amount  106.47

01/27/2016 5716 FOREST WOOD FIBER PRODUCTS 39457

PLAYGROUD WOODCHIPS CUDAHYPARKPrinted

 3,581.84

 0.00

 3,581.84

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28155 001-4410-6140.000  3,581.84 3,581.84  0.00

Check Amount  3,581.84

01/27/2016 10325 FROM LOT TO SPOT, INC. 39458

STRATEGIC GROWTH COUNCILPrinted

 1,037.50

 0.00

 1,037.50

Attachment A

41 of 426



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 10Page:

 1:29 pmTime:

02/09/2016Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28150 235-4215-6720.000  1,037.50 1,037.50  0.00

Check Amount  1,037.50

01/27/2016 10187 FUEL CREATIVE GROUP 39459

ONE CUDAHY MAGAZINE WINTERPrinted

 8,187.50

 0.00

 8,187.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28176 001-4011-6720.000  8,187.50 8,187.50  0.00

Check Amount  8,187.50

01/27/2016 0042 HUNTINGTON PARK RUBBER STAMP 39460

COMM NAME PLATES & BADGESPrinted

 241.26

 0.00

 241.26

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28173 001-4350-6080.000  15.21 15.21  0.00

 28173 001-4011-6080.000  15.21 15.21  0.00

 28173 001-4350-6080.000  97.82 97.82  0.00

 28173 001-4530-6080.000  56.51 56.51  0.00

 28173 001-4215-6080.000  56.51 56.51  0.00

Check Amount  241.26

01/27/2016 2378 ITL, INC. 39461

FUELPrinted

 1,325.40

 0.00

 1,325.40

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28159 001-4530-6040.000  54.00 54.00  0.00

 28159 201-4425-6040.000  198.25 198.25  0.00

 28159 001-4410-6040.000  188.55 188.55  0.00

 28160 001-4530-6040.000  174.63 174.63  0.00

 28160 201-4425-6040.000  100.29 100.29  0.00

 28160 001-4410-6040.000  112.86 112.86  0.00

 28161 001-4530-6040.000  57.11 57.11  0.00

 28161 201-4425-6040.000  33.64 33.64  0.00

 28161 001-4410-6040.000  157.72 157.72  0.00

 28162 201-4425-6040.000  88.53 88.53  0.00

 28162 001-4410-6040.000  159.82 159.82  0.00

Check Amount  1,325.40

01/27/2016 10218 PACIFICA SERVICES, INC. 39462

LUGO PARK SOCCER RENOVATIONPrinted

 380.00

 0.00

 380.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28164 510-7091-6725.000  190.00 190.00  0.00

 28165 510-7092-6725.000  190.00 190.00  0.00

Check Amount  380.00

01/27/2016 10304 ROGER J. GRODY, LLC 39463

CUDAHY QUARTERLY RESEARCHPrinted

 991.25

 0.00

 991.25

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28146 001-4011-6720.000  991.25 991.25  0.00

Check Amount  991.25

01/27/2016 0070 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON 39464

ELECTRICITY BILLSPrinted

 15,872.49

 0.00

 15,872.49

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28149 201-4420-6318.000  1,500.73 1,500.73  0.00

Attachment A

42 of 426



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 11Page:

 1:29 pmTime:

02/09/2016Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 28149 350-4430-6318.000  6,556.82 6,556.82  0.00

 28149 001-4020-6318.000  3,395.35 3,395.35  0.00

 28149 001-4410-6318.000  4,419.59 4,419.59  0.00

Check Amount  15,872.49

01/27/2016 0071 THE GAS COMPANY 39465

NATURAL GAS - 7810 OTIS AVEPrinted

 120.09

 0.00

 120.09

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28148 001-4020-6380.000  120.09 120.09  0.00

Check Amount  120.09

01/27/2016 0079 TRACT 180 WATER COMPANY 39466

WATER SERVICE NOV 1 - DEC 31Printed

 3,255.69

 0.00

 3,255.69

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28167 610-4930-6395.000  151.35 151.35  0.00

 28168 001-4020-6395.000  59.84 59.84  0.00

 28168 201-4425-6395.000  74.88 74.88  0.00

 28168 001-4020-6395.000  2,969.62 2,969.62  0.00

Check Amount  3,255.69

01/27/2016 9991 TRANSTECH 39467

LUGO PARK SOCCER RENOVATIONPrinted

 15,182.50

 0.00

 15,182.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 28153 510-7091-6725.000  1,263.00 1,263.00  0.00

 28154 510-7092-6725.000  13,919.50 13,919.50  0.00

Check Amount  15,182.50

Total Checks: Bank Total(excluding void checks): 77  704,056.73

Grand Total(excluding void checks):Total Checks:  77  704,056.73

Attachment A

43 of 426



Staff Report 
06/16/2015    

   

Attachment B 
 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes and insurance premiums: 

 
January 7, 2016 January 21, 2016

Issued Warrants Number 20604 - 20652 20653 - 20710
Voided Warrants

Issued Warrants Amount 5,152.47$                 6,216.42$                 
Direct Deposits (a) 50,956.65                 51,337.15                 
CalPERS Direct Deposit (b) 20,402.80                 
CalPERS Direct Deposit (c) 11,996.68                 
Payroll taxes (d) 9,087.20                  10,961.88                 

Total Amount 97,595.80$               68,515.45$               

Note (a) - Employess / Council Members / Commissioners
Note (b) - Payments for CalPERS medical insurance
Note (c) - Payments for CalPERS retirement contributions
Note (d) - Federal and State payroll taxes  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44 of 426



Attachment C

Cash and Investment Report by Fund January 2016

July 1, 2015 Inflow Outflow January 31, 2016 Receipts Disbursements
YTD YTD January 2016 January 2016

001 General Fund 4,202,673.02     3,821,073.40    5,194,535.75    2,829,210.67         1,625,390.61     588,632.42        
040 Drug Assets Seizure Fund 33,463.81          1,696.61           6,188.03           28,972.39             24.04                 -                    
201 State Gas Tax 1,155,209.38     286,565.04       391,930.92       1,049,843.50         877.80               30,480.05          
235 Other Grants -                     22,151.14         28,527.25         (6,376.11)              11,537.40          1,045.12           
240 Prop 1 B - Local Street Improv. 426,851.03        571.73              329,967.89       97,454.87             83.21                 -                    
251 Prop C 303,022.72        227,352.47       230,001.84       300,373.35            29,062.02          20,123.59          
252 Prop A 528,808.59        278,073.86       45,399.93         761,482.52            32,450.77          2,609.10           
253 Measure R 674,025.63        158,039.16       112,332.15       719,732.64            20,391.56          3,974.16           
255 TDA 21,297.00          -                    21,297.00         -                        -                    -                    
257 AQMD 39,132.03          9,235.66           8,080.68           40,287.01             34.63                 1,154.24           
260 Used Oil 13,582.26          27.62                6,927.00           6,682.88               9.38                   -                    
261 California Beverage Container 6,723.30            6,651.12           -                    13,374.42             11.10                 -                    
265 Recycling Grant 14,223.41          30.92                -                    14,254.33             11.83                 -                    
270 C.O.P.S 183,838.19        92,231.72         126,168.36       149,901.55            18,365.85          -                    
280 County Park Bond (149,084.19)       294,075.44       25,003.28         119,987.97            31.45                 -                    
300 CAL Home 73,368.33          5,167.07           416.00              78,119.40             64.82                 -                    
350 Street Lighting Fund 54,101.62          59,700.36         66,580.23         47,221.75             9,180.15            6,609.86           
510 CDBG (106,618.99)       279,794.34       252,453.62       (79,278.27)            500.00               39,025.57          
515 Federal STPL 357,690.30        777.63              -                    358,467.93            297.43               -                    
610 Successor Agency 2,376,586.79     1,414,731.73    2,362,489.53    1,428,828.99         1,348,409.23     9,463.20           
710 Youth Foundation 29,230.04          12,198.96         2,892.58           38,536.42             32.86                 -                    
720 Senior's Account 132.80               -                    -                    132.80                  -                   -                   

730 Refuse Assessment -                     217,695.49       175,641.95       42,053.54             42,053.54          167,939.97        
10,238,257.07   7,187,841.47    9,386,833.99    8,039,264.55         3,138,819.68     871,057.28        

LAIF- CITY 7,170,945.82     14,250.31 2,500,000.00    4,685,196.13         4,723.18 300,000.00        
Wells Fargo 3,067,311.31     7,173,591.16 6,886,833.99 3,354,068.48         3,134,096.50 571,057.28
TOTAL 10,238,257.13   7,187,841.47    9,386,833.99    8,039,264.61 3,138,819.68     871,057.28        

Total cash disbursements per January Demand and Payroll Reports
AP disbursements 704,056.73        
Payroll - January 7, 2016 97,595.80          
Payroll - January 21, 2016 68,515.45          

Sub-Total 870,167.98        

Add:  Total Bank charges in January 2016 712.80              
Add:  Credit card charges - senior event 176.50              
Total Cash Disbursements per January Cash & Investment Report 871,057.28        

CITY OF CUDAHY

45 of 426



Attachment D

City of Cudahy
Summary of Cash Receipt/Disbursement by Month - FY2016

Date
Cash Receipts Disbursement

July 2015 651,411.83                 1,996,824.31             
August 2015 525,809.71                 973,057.65                
September 2015 504,739.49                 2,693,637.62             (a)
October 2015 599,209.59                 1,187,642.72             (b)
November 2015 464,591.70                 448,241.85                
December 2015 883,280.28                 797,438.37                
January 2016 3,138,818.68             (c) 871,057.28                

Total: 6,767,861.28             8,967,899.80             

Note (a) - ROPS payment included
Note (b) - Contractual and a few months of legal fees included
Note (c) - ROPS distribution from County and bi-annual motor-vehicle-in-lieu included

Date
Cash Receipts Disbursement

July 2015 455,232.07                 1,686,307.48             (1)
August 2015 310,212.35                 649,764.75                
September 2015 277,503.64                 225,393.34                
October 2015 337,348.57                 987,241.29                (2)
November 2015 294,929.56                 308,263.96                
December 2015 286,534.34                 638,641.20                
January 2016 1,625,390.61             (3) 588,632.42                

Total: 3,587,151.14             5,084,244.44             

Average Per Month: 512,450.16                 726,320.63                

Note (1) - June checks not mailed until July, 2 sheriff payments, MIC, City liab. & workers comp
                  insurance, and PERS unfunded liab. included
Note (2) - 2 sheriff payments and a few months of legal fees included
Note (3) - bi-annual motor-vehicle-in-lieu included

All Funds

General Fund

46 of 426



Attachment E
City of Cudahy
Summary of Cash Receipt/Disbursement by Month - FY2015

Date
Cash Receipts Disbursement

July 2014 720,490.40                 923,923.80                
August 2014 382,106.70                 767,879.72                
September 2014 1,424,972.65             3,160,792.70             (b)
October 2014 471,491.06                 786,581.62                
November 2014 421,325.22                 691,734.37                
December 2014 850,582.56                 892,504.79                
January 2015 3,491,089.91             (a) 1,051,651.89             
February 2015 599,153.80                 696,856.77                
March 2015 862,605.62                 2,192,685.05             (b)
April 2015 743,355.21                 1,191,614.05             
May 2015 2,482,941.72             1,275,339.77             
June 2015 2,466,462.02             (a) 588,400.14                

Total: 14,916,576.87           14,219,964.67          

Note (a) - ROPS distribution from County included
Note (b) - ROPS payment included

Date
Cash Receipts Disbursement

July 2014 471,300.02                 781,449.52                
August 2014 260,467.68                 611,378.49                
September 2014 940,546.11                 303,299.61                
October 2014 292,356.65                 626,514.92                
November 2014 284,522.66                 533,804.16                
December 2014 357,716.42                 704,427.61                
January 2015 1,807,086.34             (1) 686,616.47                
February 2015 361,051.74                 261,378.22                
March 2015 205,294.22                 928,588.38                
April 2015 368,848.22                 619,116.39                
May 2015 2,025,604.57             (2) 656,597.18                
June 2015 214,465.92                 284,937.60                

Total: 7,589,260.55             6,998,108.55             

Average Per Month: 632,438.38                 583,175.71                

Note (1) - bi-annual motor-vehicle-in-lieu included
Note (2) - bi-annual motor-vehicle-in-lieu and Prop A exchange included

All Funds

General Fund

47 of 426



 
 

Blank Page 

48 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/14/16  Page 1 of 2 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 14, 2016 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director 

Subject: Approval of the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for the Month of  
January 2016 

 
RECOMMENDATION   
 
The City Council is requested to approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for 
the month of January 2016 in the amount of $4,685,196.13. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. In 1955, the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA) started. LAIF became part of the 

PMIA. The oversight is provided by the Pooled Money Investment Board (PMIB) and an 
in-house Investment Committee. The PMIB members consist of the State Treasurer, 
Director of Finance, and State Controller.  

 
2. In 1977, LAIF was created as a voluntary program by Section 16429.1 et seq. of the 

California Government Code.  The program was intended to be used as an investment 
alternative for California's local governments and special districts.  The LAIF continues 
today under State Treasurer John Chiang's administration.  

 
3. On January 1, 2016, the balance in LAIF was $4,980,472.95 (See Attachment A). 
 
4. On January 31, 2016, the balance in LAIF was $4,685,196.13 (See Attachment A). 
 
 
 

  

 

Item Number 
10C 

49 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/14/16  Page 2 of 2 
    

ANALYSIS 
 
The voluntary program offers local agencies the opportunity to participate in a major 
portfolio, which invests hundreds of millions of dollars, using the investment expertise of the 
State Treasurer’s Office investment staff at no additional cost to the taxpayer. 
 
All securities are purchased under the authority of Government Code Section 16430 and  
16480.4. The State Treasurer's Office takes delivery of all securities purchased on a delivery 
versus payment basis using a third party custodian.   
 
Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080 indicates, "Except as otherwise provided, no 
warrant shall be drawn or evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time 
sufficient money in the treasury legally applicable to the payment of the same." 
 
The report in Attachment A, in conjunction with the Demands and Payroll including the 
Investment Report by Fund for the month of January 2016, demonstrates the sufficiency of 
funds available to pay demands and payroll as required by Cudahy Municipal Code Section 
3.04.080.  
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Once the City Council approves the January 2016 LAIF, the LAIF ending balance of 
$4,685,196.13 may be relied upon when determining whether or not there are sufficient 
funds available to pay demands and payroll as required by Cudahy Municipal Code Section 
3.04.080.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 

   Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Balance 

50 of 426



Attachment A 
 

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 
  

General Account - City #98-19-225 
 
 
 
 
Beginning Balance as of: January 01, 2016 $4,980,472.95 
 
  
Ending Balance as of  January 31, 2016   $4,685,196.13 

=========== 
 

51 of 426



 
 

Blank Page 

52 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/14/16  Page 1 of 3 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 14, 2016 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Jennifer Hernandez, Acting Human Resources Specialist  

Subject: Approval of a Second Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement 
(PSA) with HR Dynamics & Performance Management for Human Resources 
Consulting Services 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to approve the Second Amendment to the Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) and scope of work with HR Dynamics & Performance Management for 
human resources consulting services.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On February 2, 2015, the Council approved the PSA with HR Dynamics & Performance 

Management to provide human resources consulting services.  
 

2. On June 8, 2015, the First Amendment to this PSA, modifying and clarifying the scope of 
work, was approved by the City Council.  
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Over the past 10 months, City staff have been working diligently alongside a seasoned human 
resources consultant who continues to successfully provide guidance as well as independent 
work related to various projects and high level, regulatory human resources issues / matters 
(e.g., Audit Compliance, Human Resources Assessment; Classification and Compensation 
Projects; Recruitments for Key Positions and Labor Relations Matters).  It is very important to 
the City that it have an experienced human resources consultant be available to the City 
Manager and staff for these critical functions until the City is able to close out existing high 

 

Item Number 

10D 

53 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/14/16  Page 2 of 3 
    

level projects, as outlined in the attached Human Resources Consulting Scope of Services 
(Attachment B), needed to improve the sustainability and efficiency of the City’s Personnel 
Department.  The attached Scope of Services clearly delineates the timeline for completion of 
identified projects, and highlights the numerous accomplishments to date.     
 
The original PSA was approved for $72,960.00, which was exhausted in August of 2015. 
Subsequently, an additional appropriation of $50,000 was approved by the City Council in the 
FY 2015-2016 City Budget.  Consistent with Section 5.1B of the agreement1, the consultant 
was authorized to continue to provide services to the City.   To date, the City has incurred an 
additional $21,875.95 in costs above the original PSA amount, but has stayed within the 
additional $50,000 2015-16 City Budget appropriation with a remaining available balance of 
$12,400.78. Overall, costs incurred by the City of Cudahy to date for Human Resources 
consulting services are $94,835.95, however, the list of accomplishments included in the 
attached Scope of Services are very comprehensive and thorough 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
City Council approval of the Second Amendment to the HR Dynamics & Performance 
Management PSA for human resources consulting services will continue the current work 
underway by assisting the City Manager in assessing, and rebuilding the Human Resources 
Department into a best practices department. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
To date, the City has incurred an additional $21,875.95 in costs above the original agreement 
amount of $72,960, resulting in a total incurred cost of $94,835.95. This additional cost is 
currently budgeted within the FY 2015-16 City Budget for Human Resources Consulting 
services, which was budgeted at $50,000. Previous costs were absorbed by a $65,000 one-
time budget appropriation in the FY 2014-15 City Budget.   
 
An additional $59,280 in funding is being requested in order to complete several high level HR 
matters by the end of FY 2015-16, consistent with the attached Scope of Services 
 

  

                                                           
1 “… In no event shall the total compensation and costs payable to Consultant under this Agreement exceed the 
Contract Price unless the availability of funds for the added expenditure is first reviewed by the Finance Director 
and the City Manager of the City and unless such added expenditure is specifically approved in advance and in 
writing by the City.,” 

54 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/14/16  Page 3 of 3 
    

ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Second Amendment to Professional Service Agreement with HR Dynamics & Performance  

Management – 2016  
B. Human Resources Consulting Scope of Services 
C. First Amendment to Professional Service Agreement with HR Dynamics & Performance 

Management – 2015 
D.   Professional Service Agreement with HR Dynamics & Performance Management - 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

55 of 426



Attachment A 
 

1 

 
 

SECOND AMENDMENT 
TO AGREEMENT FOR TEMPORARY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  

(Engagement: Temporary Human Resources Services) 
(Parties: HR Dynamics and the City of Cudahy) 

 
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO TEMPORARY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(the “Agreement”) to that certain document entitled “Temporary Professional Services” (the 
“Master Agreement”) executed as of February 2, 2015, by and between the City of Cudahy, a 
municipal corporation (hereinafter, “City”) and HR Dynamics & Performance Management 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”) is made and entered into this 22nd day of February 2016.  For 
the purposes of this Agreement, City and CONSULTANT may be referred to collectively by the 
capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to City or CONSULTANT 
interchangeably. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on or about February 2, 2015, the Parties executed and entered into the 
Master Agreement which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, on or about June 8, 2015, the City amended the Master Agreement in its 
entirety and replaced its language with the First Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend the First Amendment in its entirety and replace its 
language with this Second Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT has the necessary training, experience and competence to 
perform specialized consulting services requested by City; and 

WHEREAS, selection of the CONSULTANT is expected to achieve the desired results in 
an expedited fashion; and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT has submitted a proposal to City and has affirmed its 
willingness and ability to perform such work; and 

WHEREAS, City has the authority to retain the services of CONSULTANT; and 

WHEREAS, the execution of this Second Amendment was approved by the Cudahy City 
Council at its Regular Meeting of January 11, 2016. 

56 of 426



Attachment A 
 

2 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

1. Retention of Consultant. City retains CONSULTANT to perform, and 
CONSULTANT agrees to render, those services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter 
“the Services”). 

2. Standard of Performance.  While performing the Services, CONSULTANT shall 
exercise the reasonable professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members 
of CONSULTANT’s profession, and shall use reasonable diligence and best judgment while 
exercising professional skill and expertise. 

3. Term. This Agreement shall have a limited term commencing from January 11, 
2016 and ending on June 30, 2016, unless terminated as provided elsewhere in this Agreement 
(hereinafter, the “Term”).  Upon the conclusion of the Term, this Agreement may renew for up 
to two (2) three month extension terms, upon approval from City Council, unless City issues 
written notice sixty (60) days in advance of its intent not to authorize any additional extension 
term(s).  Nothing in the foregoing sentence shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the 
City’s ability to terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of the initial Term or any 
extension term. 

4. Personnel.  CONSULTANT may utilize Henry T. Garcia, co-consultant, to 
perform portions of the Services.  Mr. Garcia shall remain assigned through completion of the 
Services unless otherwise mutually agreed by the parties in writing, in which case any substitutes 
shall be subject to City approval. 

5. Contact.  Jose Pulido, City Manager, shall be CONSULTANT’s contact with 
respect to the Services preformed pursuant to this Agreement unless an alternative contact is 
otherwise designated in writing to CONSULTANT by City. 

6. Compensation/Reimbursement.   

A. CONSULTANT shall perform all of the various services and tasks that 
comprise the Work in accordance with Exhibit “A.”  CONSULTANT 
shall be billed out at an hourly rate of NINETY FIVE DOLLARS PER 
HOUR ($95.00/hour) (hereinafter “Hourly Rate”). 

B. Notwithstanding section 6.A, above, CONSULTANT’s total 
compensation for the Services under this Agreement may not exceed the 
sum of ONE HUNDRED FIFTY FOUR THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED 
SIXTEEN DOLLARS ($154,116.00) (hereinafter, the “Contract Price”).  
In no event shall the total compensation and costs payable to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement exceed the Contract Price unless 
the availability of funds for the added expenditure is first reviewed by the 

57 of 426



Attachment A 
 

3 

Finance Director-Treasurer and the City Manager of the City and unless 
such added expenditure is specifically approved in advance and in writing 
by the City.   

C. City shall pay CONSULTANT at the Hourly Rate as CONSULTANT 
performs the various services and tasks that make up the Work.  
CONSULTANT shall submit to City a monthly itemized statement 
indicating the work performed, costs incurred and hours of service 
rendered by CONSULTANT and its various employees.  The statement 
shall describe the specific tasks performed.  City shall not withhold 
applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments made to 
CONSULTANT.  

D. REIMBURSEMENT.  City recognizes that CONSULTANT may incur 
certain expenses of a non-personal nature in the performance of 
Consultant’s duties under this Agreement.  City agrees to reimburse or to 
pay for an amount not to exceed FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00) 
per month for such business expenses that are incurred by 
CONSULTANT in the performance of CONSULTANT’s duties in 
accordance with City’s expense reimbursement procedures, as the same 
may be updated and/or amended from time to time by the City Council.   

7. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT and co-consultant shall at all times 
during their performance of the services retain their status as independent contractor.  City 
retains CONSULTANT on an independent contractor basis and CONSULTANT is not an 
employee of City.  Any additional personnel, including co-consultant mentioned herein, 
performing the Services governed by this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT shall at all 
times be under CONSULTANTs exclusive direction and control. CONSULTANT shall pay all 
wages, salaries, and other amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance 
under this Agreement and as required by law.  CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all 
reports and obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social 
security, taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance and workers’ compensation 
insurance.  CONSULTANT shall be responsible for scheduling hours of work by its personnel, 
including co-consultant, as well as the following: 

• Control and responsibility for the conduct of CONSULTANT’s 
personnel/employees and how and when Services are performed; 

• Determining when and the amounts CONSULTANT’s personnel will be 
paid; Payment of any overtime, vacation pay, sick pay, employee benefits 
(including but not limited to health insurance, life insurance, disability 
insurance, unemployment and workers compensation insurance). 

• Evaluation of CONSULTANT’s personnel 

• Providing anything needed to perform the Services; 

58 of 426



Attachment A 
 

4 

• CONSULTANT shall provide any required instruction to its personnel as 
to how the Services are performed; 

• CONSULTANT shall be responsible for its expenses and expenses of its 
personnel except as otherwise specified in this Agreement; 

• CONSULTANT shall be free to contract for similar services with other 
clients; 

• CONSULTANT bears all risk of profit or loss; 

• CONSULTANT shall be responsible for any investment required to 
provide the Services; and 

• CONSULTANT shall have its own office or facilities (if needed), its own 
vehicles and handle its own billing and bookkeeping. 

8. Indemnification.  City shall indemnify and hold CONSULTANT and co-
consultant harmless, including providing for adequate representation, from and against any and 
all alleged claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses, as well as reasonable attorneys' fees 
and other legal or other costs and expenses which may be suffered or incurred by 
CONSULTANT and/or co-consultant arising from an adverse action taken by an employee or 
member of the City Council against one or more employees or CONULTANT as a result of 
CONSULTANT or co-consultant's work, unless such claims, damages, liabilities, costs as 
expenses are a result of CONSULTANT's or co-consultant's gross negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

To the extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT will defend and hold City and its 
directors, officers, agents, representatives, and employees (collectively “Indemnitees”) harmless 
from all claims, losses, and liabilities (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) to the extent caused 
by CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, or authorized agents’ breach of 
this Agreement; its failure to discharge its material duties and responsibilities as provided in this 
Agreement; or the negligence, gross negligence, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT or 
CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, or authorized agents in the discharge of those duties and 
responsibilities. 

9. Insurance.  CONSULTANT agrees that it shall procure and maintain for the term 
of this Agreement (and for such extended period of time as may be required under the 
Agreement) insurance against claims for death or injuries to persons or damages to property that 
may arise from or in connection with CONSULTANT’s performance of the various services, 
functions, duties and tasks set forth under the Agreement as described below.  Throughout the 
term of the Agreement, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain the following policies of 
insurance: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure 
and maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) 
as broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 
coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001) or its equivalent.  Such CGL 
Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars 

59 of 426



Attachment A 
 

5 

($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) 
in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, property 
damage, operations, products and completed operations, and contractual 
liability.  

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and 
maintain Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services 
Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 
(any auto).  Such Automobile Liability Insurance shall have minimum 
limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage.  

C. Professional Liability Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and 
for a period of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure 
and maintain Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to 
CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such coverage shall have minimum limits 
of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and 
shall be endorsed to include contractual liability.   

10. Confidentiality.  All memoranda, contracts, complaints, documentation, written 
information, and other materials provided to, or prepared by, CONSULTANT in connection with 
the performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by CONSULTANT and shared 
exclusively with City as deemed appropriate by City. 

11. Termination.  CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except upon 30 
days' written notice to City.  This Agreement may be terminated by City without cause, upon 30 
days' written notice to CONSULTANT.  In the event of termination, CONSULTANT shall be 
entitled to receive compensation during the thirty (30) day notice period at the rates set forth in 
this Agreement but not thereafter. 

In the event of breach of the Agreement by CONSULTANT, City may terminate the 
Agreement immediately by written notice to CONSULTANT; may reduce payment to the 
CONSULTANT in the amount necessary to offset City's resulting damages; and may pursue any 
other legally available remedies.  In said event, CONSULTANT shall be entitled to the 
reasonable value of its services, at the rates set forth in this Agreement, performed up to the day 
it received City's Notice of Termination, minus any offset from such payment representing City's 
damages from such breach.  Failure of CONSULTANT to provide City reports and other written 
material, which meets or exceeds reasonable professional standards, shall cause damages which 
are unascertainable at the inception hereof, entitling City to offset any payments due on the 
Agreement in the form of liquidated damages and not as a penalty. City reserves the right to 
delay any post-termination payment until completion of any partially-completed Services or 
correction of any substandard Services, as may be determined in City's sole discretion, so as to 
permit a full and complete accounting of costs. 

12. Ownership of Documents.  All reports and other contract deliverables prepared 
under this Agreement by CONSULTANT shall be and remain the property of City upon City’s 
compensation of CONSULTANT for the Services as herein provided.  CONSULTANT shall not 
release to others information furnished by City without prior approval of City. 

60 of 426



Attachment A 
 

6 

13. Notices.  Services of any notices, bills, invoices or other documents required or 
permitted under this Agreement shall be sufficient if sent by one party to the other by United 
States mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 

City’s Notice Address 
City of Cudahy 
Attn: Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 
 
CONSULTANT 
Rhonda D. Strout-Garcia 
HR Dynamics  & Performance Management, Inc. 
461 Green Orchard Place  
Riverside, CA 92506 

 

14. Authority.  The individuals executing this Agreement and the instruments 
referenced herein on behalf of CONSULTANT each represent and warrant that they have the 
legal power, right and actual authority to bind CONSULTANT to the terms and conditions 
hereof and thereof. 

15. Construction of Agreement: This Agreement shall not be construed in favor of, or 
against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement together 
through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective attorneys. 

16. Severability: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 
otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect.  

17. Amendment; Modification:  No amendment, modification or supplement of this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties, 
subject to City approval.  The requirement for written amendments, modifications or 
supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be void and invalid. 

18. Captions:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 
content, or intent of this Agreement. 

19. Inconsistencies or Conflicts:  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency 
between the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall control.   

20. Entire Agreement: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters addressed 
herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, or entered 
into between City and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this Agreement.  No statements, 
representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, made by any Party which are not 
embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, modification or supplement to this 

61 of 426



Attachment A 
 

7 

Agreement shall be valid and binding unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant 
to Section 17, above. 

21. Counterparts:  This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original counterparts 
each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten amendment, 
modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall be valid or binding unless made to all 
three counterparts in conformity with Section 17, above.  One fully executed original counterpart 
shall be delivered to CONSULTANT and the remaining two original counterparts shall be 
retained by City.  

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and CONSULTANT have caused this Agreement to be 
duly executed on the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF CUDHAY    CONSULTANT: HR DYNAMICS 
 
 
By:       By:       
 
Name:       Name:       
 
Its:       Its:       

 

  

62 of 426



Attachment A 
 

8 

EXHIBIT “A” 

(See the attached Scope of Work) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63 of 426



Attachment A 
 

9 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES CONSULTING 

 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
1) Conduct a comprehensive review and assessment of the status of the City’s 

Human Resources  function; collect data; evaluate findings and make 
recommendations consistent with industry best practices in the following areas 
including, but not limited to: 

 
 Appropriate staffing levels. 
 Appropriate systems and use of technology. 
 Record keeping methods. 
 Customer service and client department satisfaction. 
 City’s training and development programs. 
 City’s recruitment and selection programs. 
 City’s employee and labor relations programs.  

1.  

2) Conduct a comprehensive review of the City’s classification/compensation and 
fringe benefit provisions, including the following: 

 
 Review all applicable Resolutions, MOU’s, and personnel rules. 
 Consolidate all applicable salary and benefit provisions into a 

comprehensive Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan document. 
 Conduct job analyses for all City positions, and prepare current and 

relevant job descriptions. 
 Recommend an organizational structure/staffing plan to address current 

needs. 
 Identify the City’s labor market (comparable agencies) and compensation 

philosophy. 
 Conduct a salary and benefits survey with comparable agencies. 

 
3) Review and recommend cost effective strategies to the City’s employee benefit 

programs.  
 

64 of 426



Attachment A 
 

10 

4) Conduct a comprehensive review of the City’s labor agreements and personnel 
rules, and provide recommendations to the City Manager for labor negotiations.  
2.  

5) Perform a full analysis and update of the City’s personnel rules.    
3.  

 
6) Provide advisement to the City Manager and the Acting Human Resources 

Specialist regarding handling of various complex Human Resources matters.  
 

7) Provide advisement to the City related to compliance with various audit findings, 
including strategies and solutions.   

4.  

8) Develop a formal complaint process for the City, including applicable forms and 
tracking system.   
5.  

METHODOLOGY 
 
The Consultant shall develop a timeline for the independent completion of all defined 
tasks, to be completed in 18 months.  The Consultant shall meet with staff at prescribed 
times initiated by the Consultant, as needed for the purposes of conducting various 
interviews and collecting data in order to evaluate the Human Resources function 
including files, reports, official documents, policies, practices, etc.   
 
Data collected will be used to compare against best practices and in order to make 
recommendations to the City for future consideration and implementation. 
 
DELIVERABLES 
 
The following products shall be delivered to the City: 
  

1) New Job Descriptions 
2) Salary/Benefit Survey 
3) HR Assessment/Best Practices 
4) Fringe Benefit and Salary Plan Document 
5) Updated Personnel Rules 
6) Organizational Chart 
7) Labor Agreement Recommendations/Reforms 
8) Complaint Process System 

 
 

 

 

65 of 426



Attachment B 
 

 

 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
HUMAN RESOURCES CONSULTING 

 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
Key: 
Completed Tasks 
January – June 2016 Tasks 
July – December 2016 Tasks 
January – December 2016 Tasks 

 
Tasks Timeline Hours 

Task #1 - Conduct a Comprehensive Review and Assessment of the Status of the City’s 
Human Resources Function; Collect Data; Evaluate Findings and Make Recommendations 
Consistent with Industry Best Practices in the following Areas including, but not limited to 
1) Appropriate staffing levels; 2) Appropriate systems and use of technology; 3) Record 
keeping methods; 4) Customer service and client department satisfaction; 5) City’s training 
and development programs, 6) City’s recruitment and selection programs; and 7) City’s 
employee and labor relations programs.  Recommend and implement solutions based on 
immediate needs.  

1.     Review and assess the City’s Human Resources function; 
collect data; make observations; review and establish compliant 
personnel files; review systems, records and materials; discuss 
systems and processes with staff. 

1/1/16 – 12/30/16 40 

2. Obtain feedback regarding HR services and 
employee/departmental satisfaction level during job analysis 
interviews; compile results. 

3/21/16 – 12/30/16 20 

3.  Compare City’s practices to “best practices” checklist; 
determine areas of compliance/non-compliance, and areas for 
future programmatic and/or professional enhancements. 

7/1/16 – 12/30/16 60 

4.  Prepare summary report with recommendations, and 
timeline for implementation based on level of priority, including 
both short term and long term goals. 

11/1/16 – 11/30/16 20 

5.   Reviewed 2015/16 HR Budget and made recommendations 
to City Manager. 

Completed 

6. Developed “New Hire Checklist” and “New Hire 
Packet/Forms” due to immediate need and for compliance 
purposes. 

Completed 

7.    Reviewed labor poster compliance. Completed 

8.    Prepared “Offer Letter” for use in hiring process. Completed 

66 of 426



2 
 

9.    Prepared “Exit Checklist” for employee separations. Completed 

10.  Recommended activities for “Administrative Professionals 
Day” recognition. 

Completed 

11. Recommended activities for “National Customer Service 
Week.” 

Completed 

12.  Developed a City-wide Customer Service Policy. Completed 

13. Facilitated the selection of an outside trainer to conduct 
City-wide Customer Service Training; implemented Phases I & 
II.  

Completed 

14.  Revised/updated the City Employment Application (“Ban 
the Box” for legal compliance). 

Completed 

15.  Developed disciplinary templates for all stages of 
progressive discipline (warning through Skelly letter). 

Completed 

16.  Prepared Post-Employment Offer Drug Testing Analysis 
Form. 

Completed 

17.  Review potential time-keeping options for the City. 7/1/16 – 12/30/16 30 

18. Identified various HR professional development 
opportunities/resources for staff. 

Completed 

19.  Verified I-9 Form compliance for staff and elected officials. Completed 

20.  Prepared a “Recruitment Plan” template. Completed 

21.  Provided sample interview questions and “Rating Sheet” 
Templates with scoring guidelines. 

Completed 

22.  Prepared Job Announcement Template. Completed 

23.  Assist in the review and development of language and 
structure for the City website – HR page. 

7/1/16 – 12/30/16 30 

Estimated Total Hours Remaining 
 

200 

67 of 426



3 
 

 

Tasks Timeline Hours 

Task #2A - Conduct a Comprehensive Review of the City’s Classification/ Compensation 
and Fringe Benefit Provisions.  

1. Review all applicable Resolutions, MOU’s and personnel 
rules. 

Completed 

2. Reconciled multiple salary schedules for prior years and 
created accurate salary grade tables and salary schedules for 
all job classifications; interpreted MOU language intent and 
agreement; coordinated with MEA for resolution of prior 
increases and finalized schedules.  

Completed 

3.  Assisted City Manager with reorganization of City staff and 
structure through the budget process, and implemented further 
changes to the City’s new Fringe Benefit and Salary Plan to 
reflect new titles and deletion of obsolete titles; included 
incentive plan for management as an optional tool.   

Completed 

4. Consolidated all applicable salary and benefit provisions 
into a comprehensive Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan 
Document and obtained City Council approval. 

Completed 

5. Researched prior resolutions, Council audio tapes and 
minutes to determine intent and formal actions taken related to 
salary and benefits for elected officials; prepared new 
Resolution to clarify and resolve pending issues including the 
matter of PERS Medical Vesting and Retiree benefits for 
elected officials.  

Completed 

6. Conduct project planning meeting with Cudahy’s 
Management Team to further review scope of work and 
approve consultant time-line. 

1/11/16 – 1/15/16 2 

7.   Receive City’s current job descriptions in electronic format 
in order to create customized individual job analysis 
questionnaires for employee and supervisory completion 
related to job content. 

Reconciliation process found 
that the City had few existing job 
descriptions requiring an 
additional step. See #8 below.  

8.   Obtain job descriptions from other agencies in Electronic 
and/or hard copy; format and/or type job descriptions into 
standardized template for use as a baseline in conducting next 
steps of the study. 

In Progress 
 
1/11/16 – 1/29/16 

48 

9.    Create customized individual job analysis questionnaires 
for employee and supervisory completion related to job content. 

2/1/16 – 2/12/16 16 

10.   Notify Municipal Employee Association (MEA) of Study 
Process; meet with MEA as requested. 

2/16/16 – 2/19/16 4 

11. Conduct orientation session(s) with employees and 
supervisors to overview the process and methodology, and to 
disseminate questionnaires; respond to questions and inquiries 
from employees and provide guidance.  

2/22/16 – 2/26/16 4 

68 of 426



4 
 

12. Employees to complete questionnaires, and 
supervisors/department heads to review and comment prior to 
submittal to consultant.   

2/29/16 – 3/11/16 N/A 

13.    Receive and review employee completed questionnaires; 
prepare specific follow-up questions for job analysis interviews 
with incumbents based on questionnaires.  

3/14/16 – 3/18/16 10 

14.    Conduct individual interviews for full-time employees (one 
hour each), and group interviews for each classification for part-
time employees (one hour each session).    

3/21/16 – 3/25/16 30 

15.  Review and evaluate job analysis questionnaires and 
interview notes; analyze for knowledge, skill, ability, education 
and experience relevance, hierarchical consistency, conformity 
with ADA language relative to essential job functions (including 
physical requirements) and FLSA designation (exempt versus 
non-exempt); develop classification recommendations (new, 
delete, title change, and/or reclassify). 

3/28/16 – 4/15/16 40 

16.  Discuss and finalize job description format with City; 
develop new “draft” job descriptions and job series as 
appropriate for all classes included in the study to uniformly 
reflect the essential functions; prepare class specifications to 
include definitions, purpose, distinguishing characteristics, 
supervision received and exercised, working conditions, FLSA 
status, position duties and special requirements including 
licensing and certification requirements; recommend job series 
to provide career ladders based on differentiation including 
experience, knowledge, duties and certifications achieved.      

4/18/16 – 5/13/16 80 

17.   Meet with City’s Management Team to review proposed 
changes to the Classification Plan and employee allocation 
recommendations; provide feedback regarding reporting 
relationships and structure; implement feedback received; 
present final plan. 

5/16/16 – 5/20/16 8 

18.   Coordinate and facilitate feedback to employees on Job 
Analysis/ Classification Study results and recommendations; 
address employee concerns; finalize job descriptions and 
submit in electronic format; finalize employee allocations, 
recommendations and Classification Plan.   

5/23/16 – 5/27/16 16 

19.   Meet with Municipal Employee Association (MEA) to share 
Classification Study Results, including employee allocations, 
new classes, and obsolete classes for deletion from the 
Classification Plan.  

5/30/16 – 6/3/16 4 

20.    Provide coaching and mentoring to HR staff in performing 
the Classification Study/Job Analysis Process. 

1/4/16 – 6/10/16 Included 

Estimated Total Hours Remaining 
 

262 

69 of 426



5 
 

 
Tasks Timeline Hours 

Task #2B – Conduct a Salary and Benefits Survey with Comparable Agencies. 

1.  Collect data relative to current comparable agencies; 
consider local labor market, geographic area, and comparable 
size and services; discuss with Cudahy’s management team 
and finalize list.  Survey to include 8-10 comparable agencies.     

Completed 

2.   Discuss the organization’s compensation philosophy with 
Cudahy’s City Council; discuss recruitment and retention 
issues; determine whether agency desires a competitive 
position of “lead, lag or match.”    

7/4/16 – 7/8/16 8 

3.   Develop survey instrument and job summary descriptions 
based on the new/proposed job descriptions for designated 
classes.  Salary survey shall include benchmark classes and/or 
up to 25 job classes.   

7/4/16 – 7/8/16 12 

4.    Contact established comparison agencies to obtain support 
for salary survey participation, and identify key contact person, 
compensation plan data and/or website information. 

Completed 

5.   Conduct salary survey; distribute survey by mail, fax, and/or 
email, as appropriate.  

7/11/16 – 7/12/16 12 

6.  Conduct follow-up with comparison agencies to obtain 
requested data and to ensure comparability of job matches; 
extract data from documentation provided by agencies as 
required. 

7/25/16 – 7/29/16 20 

7.  Compile and analyze salary survey data and compute 
market averages based on comparing monthly maximum base 
salary.   

8/1/16 – 8/5/16 20 

8.   Compare salary structure to the market averages; prepare 
salary survey report and summary overview describing results. 

8/8/16 – 8/12/16 20 

9.   Develop recommended salary adjustments to benchmark 
classes (and related classes) based on survey results and 
internal salary relationships taking into consideration structural 
changes needed for internal alignment, and desired market 
positioning for competitiveness. 

8/15/16 – 9/02/16 40 

10. Prepare and present preliminary report to City’s 
Management Team; receive feedback and make necessary 
adjustments. 

9/5/16 – 9/9/16 12 

11.   Prepare and present final report to employee groups, City 
Council, and others as determined by City Manager. 

9/12/16 – 9/16/16 12 

12.  Provide coaching and mentoring to staff in conducting 
Salary Surveys and preparing/recommending salary structures.   

7/1/16 – 9/16/16 Included 

Estimated Total Hours Remaining 
 

156 

70 of 426



6 
 

 

Tasks Timeline Hours 

Task #3 – Review and Recommend Cost Effective Strategies to the City’s Employee Benefit 
Programs. 

1.  Evaluate employee benefit programs and work with City 
staff in the transition to a new benefits provider to achieve 
cost-savings. 

Completed 

2. Assist with the City’s Labor Negotiations with the 
Municipal Employee Association (MEA) in the 
implementation/negotiation of new plans. 

Completed 

3. Participated in the review of the City’s Risk 
Management Program and the analysis of proposals; 
participated in the recommendation to change providers and 
assisted staff in the transition to Keenan & Associates to 
provide Workers’ Compensation, Safety, and General Liability 
programs providing the City with cost-savings and enhanced 
services. 

Completed 

4. Provide on-going staff assistance and advisement 
related to Benefit programs including Workers’ Compensation, 
Safety and General Liability programs; Training, Record 
keeping and specific employee cases. 

On-going 
1/4/16 – 12/30/16 
 

Estimated Total Hours Remaining* 
(*1 hour per week x 52 weeks) 

 

Hours Included Under Task #6 

71 of 426



7 
 

 

Tasks Timeline Hours 

Task #4 – Conduct a Comprehensive Review of the City’s Labor Agreements and Personnel 
Rules, and Provide Recommendations to the City Manager for Labor Negotiations. 

1.      Review MOU and Personnel Rules. Completed 

2. Conduct review of legal fees associated with HR and 
Labor matters; recommend use of LCW for labor negotiations 
and complex legal HR matters. 

Completed 

3. Meet with City Manager and Department Heads to 
determine operational needs and business necessities for 
City’s proposal for Labor Negotiations. 

Completed 

4. Develop a comprehensive list of potential reforms 
including proposed language changes. 

Completed 

5. Make recommendations to City Manager. Completed 

6. Assist with Labor Negotiations process; coordinate with 
Labor Negotiator and City Staff. 

Completed 

7. Review various City and MEA proposals and costs of 
City and MEA proposals.   

Completed 

8. Provide guidance to City staff and attend various 
meetings as required; brief City Manager regarding labor 
negotiations progress. 

Completed 

9. Attend closed session Council meetings as required to 
provide pertinent updates.  

Completed 

10. Assisted with achieving a 4 year contract with numerous 
reforms for over-all long-term savings.  

Completed 

11. Assist with the implementation of the MOU including 
updates to the Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan and adoption 
of Resolution to amend Plan; implementation of 4/10 schedule 
transition plan related to FLSA compliance; implementation of 
retroactive salary adjustments for employees. 

1/4/16 – 2/15/16 20 

12. Resolve grievance issue related to performance 
evaluation process/re-visit performance evaluation form. 

4/15/16 – 6/30/16 20 

13. Provide City Council with relevant information related to 
the Management Group, and recommend appropriate salary 
and benefit changes, consistent with the MEA; prepare 
necessary documents showing historical actions and costs 
associated with recommendations; attend meetings with City 
representatives and City Council as necessary. 

1/4/16 – 3/15/16 40 

14. Assist and advise regarding labor and grievance issues. 1/4/16 – 6/30/16 20 

Estimated Total Hours Remaining 
 

100 

72 of 426



8 
 

 

Tasks Timeline Hours 

Task #5 – Perform a Full Analysis and Update of the City’s Personnel Rules. 

1. Research resolutions to determine the last official 
adopted Personnel Rules. 

Completed 

2. Utilizing the most recently prepared (un-adopted) 
Personnel Rules (2012), reconcile the draft to the City’s 
MOU, and add/revise as required for consistency and for 
currency with changes in labor law; finalize draft in redlined 
format with changes noted.  

8/1/16 - 10/14/16 81 

3. Conduct meetings with City Manager and HR staff to 
review proposed changes. 

10/17/16 – 10/21/16 8 

4. Meet with MEA to present updated Personnel Rules; 
receive feedback and finalize document. 

10/24/16 -10/28/16 8 

5. Present document to City Council for approval and 
address questions or concerns.  

10/31/16 – 11/4/16 4 

Estimated Total Hours Remaining 
 

101 

73 of 426



9 
 

 

Tasks Timeline Hours 

Task #6 – Provide Advisement to the City Manager and the Acting Human Resources 
Specialist Regarding Handling of Various Complex Human Resources Matters.  

1.     Meet with City Manager regularly to discuss current 
issues and to provide status updates on current projects. 

On-going   
 

2.    Meet with Acting HR Specialist regularly to discuss 
current issues and to provide guidance. 

On-going   
 

3.     Respond to inquiries by email or phone, as necessary 
related to various HR and organizational issues and provide 
guidance to staff. 

On-going  

4. Assisted with the “Affordable Care Act” analysis for 
applicability to the City of Cudahy. 

Completed 

5. Prepared and presented a new Performance Evaluation 
Tool. 

Completed 

6. Facilitated the City Manager Performance Evaluation 
Process involving multiple meetings with the City Council in 
Closed Session. 

Completed 

7.     Conducted a Compensation Analysis for the City 
Manager Performance Evaluation Process. 

Completed 

8.     Provided assistance in the handling and resolution of a 
grievance related to the matter of Longevity Pay for 
employees. 

Completed 

9.    Provide assistance and guidance to the Acting HR 
Specialist in the Recruitment Process for several “key” 
positions including City Clerk, Public Safety Services 
Manager, and Community Development Manager. 

1/1/16 – 3/15/16 

10.    Assisted in the search for an Interim City Clerk and On-
Boarding of Interim City Clerk. 

Completed 

11.   Provided guidance to City staff related to ADA 
requirements related to compliant process and mandatory 
posters. 

Completed 

12. Reviewed current Workers’ Compensation cases and 
status and provided guidance. 

Completed 

13. Reviewed and assisted in preparation of draft holiday 
schedule and City Hall closure. 

Completed 

14. Recommended implementation of 2016 Payroll calendar 
and provided guidance in the development of the document.   

Completed 

15. Provide guidance to City staff related to Safety 
programs. 

On-going 
 

74 of 426



10 
 

16. Provide guidance to City staff in responding to California 
Public Records Act requests related to HR records.  

On-going 
 

17. Respond to various inquiries from the City Council. On-going 
 

18. Assisted City Manager with “Standardization of Work 
Hours” for employees consistent with regulatory compliance for 
9/80 Alternative Workweek Plan; provided guidance and 
recommendations regarding compliance with overtime 
regulations (Fair Labor Standards Act);  prepared employee 
communication memo, and assisted with timecard 
reconciliation to transition to proper timekeeping method. 

Completed 

19. Reviewed Acting Pay status related to two employees 
consistent with Personnel Rules and appropriate level of 
compensation and advised City Manager. 

Completed 

20. Assist City Manager and Acting HR Specialist with 
various confidential personnel matters. 

On-going 
 

21. Assist the Acting HR Specialist with implementation of 
the new MOU including processing of retroactive salary 
adjustments and change to 4/10 schedule to ensure 
compliance with FLSA over-time rules. 

In Progress 
 

Total Hours * 
(*Estimated 4-5 hours per week x 52 weeks) 

236  

75 of 426



11 
 

 

Tasks Timeline Hours 

Task #7 – Provide Advisement to the City Related to Compliance with Various Audit 
Findings, Including Strategies and Solutions. 

1.   Assist in the resolution of the CalPERS audit and 
compliance requirements. 

In Progress See 
Below 

2.     Resolved Finding #1 – “The Agency’s pay schedule did 
not meet all the requirements of the Government code and 
CCR.”  

Completed 

3.     Resolved Finding #2 – “The Agency incorrectly reported 
pay rate and earnings.” 

Completed 

4.       Resolved Finding #3 – “The Agency did not report special 
compensation as required by CCR Section 571.” 

Completed 

15. Resolve Finding #4 – “The Agency unlawfully employed 
a retired annuitant.” 

In Progress   24 

16. Resolve CalPERS Observation – “The Agency’s 
administration of a contract exclusion for hourly compensated 
employees is not clearly defined.”   
* Response submitted to CalPERS Contract Unit– further 
amendments will be required to the City’s contract with 
CalPERS and to the City’s Classification Plan following the 
Classification Study. 

In Progress *  
 
1/4/16 – 12/30/16 

80 

7.    Provided guidance to the City related to the implementation 
of the new Sick Leave Law including mandatory employee 
notices, policy language for approval by the City Council via 
Resolution, and payroll records for employee accruals. 

Completed 

8.     Reviewed State Controller’s Report findings related to HR. Completed 

9.      Coordinated with staff to provide mandatory Transparency 
Reports on-line. 

Completed 

10.    Assist City staff with the implementation of new legislation 
for 2016 including preparation of policy language, employee 
communications, payroll system changes, and related activities 
as required. 

1/4/16 – 3/30/16 60 

Estimated Total Hours Remaining* 
 

164 

76 of 426



12 
 

 

Tasks Timeline Hours 

Task #8 – Develop a Formal Complaint Process for the City, including applicable forms and 
tracking system. 

1. Review complaint processes utilized by other agencies 
and obtain sample policies and forms. 

Completed 

2. Develop complaint process and form for the City’s use. Completed 

3. Present final documents to the City Manager for 
implementation. 

Completed 

4. Provide assistance and guidance to the City in the 
handling/processing of citizen complaints when related to 
employees. 

On-going 
1/4/16 – 12/30/16 

Total Hours 
(*Estimated 1-2 hours per week x 52 weeks) 

80 

 

77 of 426



13 
 

 
JANUARY – JUNE 2016  

HUMAN RESOURCES PRIORITIES 
 

 
Priority  
Level 

Tasks Hours Cost Based on 
Estimated 
Hours Per Task 

A. Task #7 – Provide Advisement to the City 
Related to Compliance with Various Audit 
Findings, Including Strategies and Solutions. 

74 $7,030 

B. Task #6 – Provide Advisement to the City 
Manager and the Acting Human Resources 
Specialist Regarding Handling of Various 
Complex Human Resources Matters. 

118 $11,210 

C. Task #4 – Conduct a Comprehensive Review of 
the City’s Labor Agreements and Personnel 
Rules, and Provide Recommendations to the City 
Manager for Labor Negotiations. 

100 $9,500 

D. Task #2A - Conduct a Comprehensive Review of 
the City’s Classification/ Compensation and 
Fringe Benefit Provisions. 

262 $24,890 

E. Task #1 - Conduct a Comprehensive Review and 
Assessment of the Status of the City’s Human 
Resources Function; Collect Data; Evaluate 
Findings and Make Recommendations 
Consistent with Industry Best Practices in the 
following Areas including, but not limited to 1) 
Appropriate staffing levels; 2) Appropriate 
systems and use of technology; 3) Record 
keeping methods; 4) Customer service and client 
department satisfaction; 5) City’s training and 
development programs, 6) City’s recruitment and 
selection programs; and 7) City’s employee and 
labor relations programs.  Recommend and 
implement solutions based on immediate needs. 

30 $2,850 

F. Task #8 – Develop a Formal Complaint Process 
for the City, including applicable forms and 
tracking system. 

40 $3,800 

 Total Hours 624 $59,280.00 
 
 
 

78 of 426



14 
 

JULY – DECEMBER 2016 
HUMAN RESOURCES PRIORITIES 

 
Priority  
Level 

Tasks Hours Cost Based on 
Estimated 
Hours Per Task 

A. Task #7 – Provide Advisement to the City 
Related to Compliance with Various Audit 
Findings, Including Strategies and Solutions. 

90 $8,550 

B. Task #6 – Provide Advisement to the City 
Manager and the Acting Human Resources 
Specialist Regarding Handling of Various 
Complex Human Resources Matters. 

118 $11,210 

C. Task #2B – Conduct a Salary and Benefits 
Survey with Comparable Agencies. 

156 $14,820 

D. Task #1 - Conduct a Comprehensive Review and 
Assessment of the Status of the City’s Human 
Resources Function; Collect Data; Evaluate 
Findings and Make Recommendations 
Consistent with Industry Best Practices in the 
following Areas including, but not limited to 1) 
Appropriate staffing levels; 2) Appropriate 
systems and use of technology; 3) Record 
keeping methods; 4) Customer service and client 
department satisfaction; 5) City’s training and 
development programs, 6) City’s recruitment and 
selection programs; and 7) City’s employee and 
labor relations programs.  Recommend and 
implement solutions based on immediate needs. 

170 $16,150 

E. Task #5 – Perform a Full Analysis and Update of 
the City’s Personnel Rules. 

101 $9,595 

F. Task #8 – Develop a Formal Complaint Process 
for the City, including applicable forms and 
tracking system. 

40 $3,800 

 Total Hours 675 $64,125.00 

79 of 426



15 
 

 

 

 
 

THE IMPORTANCE OF JOB DESCRIPTIONS 
 
 
 

 
Accurate and up-to-date job descriptions are important to the organization, as they form the 
basis and foundation of many other related Human Resources functions including recruitment/ 
selection, training and development, and performance evaluation.  Job descriptions, although 
often overlooked by many organizations, are valuable to both the employee and the employer 
for a variety of reasons.  Job descriptions are used for the following purposes: 
 
• Defining the specific jobs that each employee is responsible for completing within the 

organization. 
 
• Assisting new employees in orienting themselves to the organization. 
 
• Establishing the “essential duties” of the position in accordance with ADA guidelines, 

and serving as a tool for the “interactive process” in the event accommodation is 
requested in the pre-employment process, or during post-employment. 

 
• Defining “distinguishing characteristics” within a class series, and the key distinctions 

between the various levels. 
 
• Defining reporting relationships and level of supervision received and exercised. 
 
• Setting forth lines of promotion within the job series allowing for career advancement 

opportunities, and associated requirements. 
 
• Establishing minimum requirements and qualifications (knowledge, skills and abilities) 

required to perform the position. 
 
• Defining all pertinent details for the purpose of developing a job announcement, 

screening potential candidates against established minimum requirements, and for the 
development of skills tests and interview questions. 

 
• Serving as the basis for evaluating an employee’s job performance allowing for 

comparison between employee performance and the job description’s stated 
expectations. 

 
• Serving as the basis for establishing employee training programs to ensure employees 

possess and maintain appropriate knowledge, skills and abilities for their current 
positions, and to develop career development training opportunities for upward 
advancement. 

 
• Serving as the basis for establishing compensation, in which jobs must be evaluated in 

order to make comparisons and to determine a fair base salary. 
 
• Ensuring legal compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). 

80 of 426



Attachment C

81 of 426



Attachment C

82 of 426



Attachment C

83 of 426



Attachment C

84 of 426



Attachment C

85 of 426



Attachment C

86 of 426



Attachment C

87 of 426



Attachment C

88 of 426



Attachment C

89 of 426



Attachment C

90 of 426



Attachment C

91 of 426



Attachment C

92 of 426



Attachment C

93 of 426



Attachment C

94 of 426



Attachment C

95 of 426



Attachment C

96 of 426



Attachment C

97 of 426



Attachment C

98 of 426



Attachment C

99 of 426



Attachment C

100 of 426



Attachment C

101 of 426



Attachment C

102 of 426



Attachment C

103 of 426



Attachment C

104 of 426



Attachment D

105 of 426



Attachment D

106 of 426



Attachment D

107 of 426



Attachment D

108 of 426



Attachment D

109 of 426



Attachment D

110 of 426



Attachment D

111 of 426



Attachment D

112 of 426



Attachment D

113 of 426



Attachment D

114 of 426



Attachment D

115 of 426



Attachment D

116 of 426



Attachment D

117 of 426



 
 

Blank Page 

118 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 1 of 3 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Date:  March 14, 2016 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Jessica Balandran, Senior Administrative Analyst 

Subject: Adoption of a Proposed Resolution Authorizing Submittal of Future 
Applications for CalRecycle Payment Programs and Related Authorizations 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

The City Council is requested to: 
 
1. Adopt a proposed resolution authorizing future application submittals to the California 

Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) for payment programs and 
related authorizations; and 
 

2. Authorize the City Manager to execute all documents necessary to implement and secure 
payment. 

  
 

BACKGROUND 
 

1. Since 1999, Cudahy has received funds for 11 funding cycles from the Beverage Container 
Recycle City/County Payment Program. 
 

2. On August 5, 2015, the City was approved to receive $6,631.00 for Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-
15 to purchase beverage container recycling receptacles for facilities and parks, purchase 
Clean-Up Day safety equipment, and for recycling education materials and outreach for 
local schools.  
 

3. On January 23, 2016, the City received notification through email from Recycling Specialist 
Shamila Tooker from the Beverage Container Grants Unit of CalRecycle notifying all 
jurisdictions of the new resolution requirement for FY 2015-16. 

 

Item Number 

10E 

119 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 2 of 3 

ANALYSIS 
 
The California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) established the 
annual Beverage Container Recycling City/County Payment Program to disburse funds to 
qualifying agencies throughout California. The funds are generated from the California 
Redemption Value (CRV) collected from consumers whenever beverage containers are 
purchased within the State. The amount of grant funds allocated to agencies is based on 
population. Starting in 2016, CalRecycle has updated procedures and now requires each 
agency to adopt a resolution authorizing participation in the annual grant payment program.  
 
The funds from the Beverage Container Recycling City/County Payment Program must be 
used to promote beverage container recycling. To ensure regulatory compliance, CalRecycle 
requires the City to submit a Funding Request and receive advance approval for all grant 
expenditures. Additionally, the City is required to submit an Expenditure Report with 
supporting documentation for funds expended. 
 
Recently the City returned unused Beverage Container Recycling City/County Payment 
Program funds of $6,698 for FY 12-13 because they were not used. Currently staff has used 
the FY 14-15 funds to purchase neon safety vests for volunteers who participate in the 
Cudahy Clean-Up Days. Staff also anticipates purchasing beverage recycling receptacles for 
City facilities before the end of the fiscal year. These receptacles have not been identified.  
The funds have also been used for educational ads in the most recent ONE Cudahy (City 
quarterly magazine) and will be spent on a new ad that will appear in the upcoming quarterly 
magazine which will be used for a sticker to distribute to local schools.  
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Approval of the proposed resolution, per the request of the funding agency, will prepare the 
City for future funding opportunities with CalRecycle for the City, which requires an approved 
resolution. If no action is taken on the proposed resolution this may result in funding being 
delayed or not approved by CalRecycle.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None.  No matching funds are required.  
 
 

120 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Proposed Resolution Authorizing Submittal of Applications for CalRecycle Payment 

Programs and Related Authorizations 
 

B. Email from Recycling Specialist Shamila Tooker - CalRecycle  

121 of 426



Attachment A 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO.   
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF AN 
APPLICATION FOR  CALRECYCLE PAYMENT 
PROGRAMS AND RELATED AUTHORIZATIONS 

 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Resources Code section 48000 et seq. the 
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (“CalRecycle”) has established 
various payment programs to make payments to qualifying jurisdictions; and 
 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority CalRecycle is required to establish 
procedures governing the administration of the payment programs; and 
 

WHEREAS, CalRecycle’s procedures for administering payment programs 
require, among other things, an applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution 
certain authorizations related to the administration of the payment program. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY DOES 
HEREBY FIND, ORDER AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and incorporated herein 

by reference. 
 
2.  The City of Cudahy is authorized to submit an application to CalRecycle 

for any and all payment programs offered; and 
 
3.  The City Manager, or his/her designee, is hereby authorized as Signature 

Authority to execute all documents necessary to implement and secure payment; and 
 

4.  This authorization is effective until rescinded by the Signature Authority or 
this Governing Body. 

 
5. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption.  The City Clerk shall 

certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy at the regular meeting of this _______ day of __________ 2016. 

  

       
 Cristian Markovich  
 Mayor 

122 of 426



 
ATTEST:        
 
 
 
        
Laura Valdivia       
Interim City Clerk      

 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 
 
 
 I, Laura Valdivia, Interim City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution No._____ was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy, signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk at a special meeting of said 
Council held on the ______ day of __________, 2016, and that said Resolution was 
adopted by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:    
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  

      
Laura Valdivia 
Interim City Clerk 

 

123 of 426



From: Tooker, Shamila@CalRecycle
Cc: Cadiz, Divina@CalRecycle; Cota, Marissa@CalRecycle; Duclo, Donnell@CalRecycle; Estrada,

Rhoderick@CalRecycle; Wright, Tharon@CalRecycle; Byrne, Alex@CalRecycle;
"John.Catching@carecycle.ca.gov"; Uyeda, Stanley@CalRecycle; McIntosh, Blair@CalRecycle

Subject: Beverage Container Recycling City/County Payment Program - New Requirement for Fiscal Year 2015-16
Date: Wednesday, December 23, 2015 1:13:28 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
image006.png
Payment program resolution.docx

Good Afternoon
 
Beginning with the fiscal year 2015-16 funding cycle, all jurisdictions will be required
to provide a Resolution no later than the funding request due date (to be announced
in the near future.)
 
To assist you with this new requirement, we have attached a Resolution template
specific to payment programs.  Open the attached Resolution template and save it to
your computer.  Fill in the yellow highlighted areas with your jurisdiction’s name and
the job title of the signature authority.  If you plan on using other language or think you
have an existing resolution that may be valid please email it to
grantassistance@CalRecycle.ca.gov and use City/County Payment Program
Resolution and your city or county name in the subject line.  We will review it to
ensure it meets the payment program requirements prior to you seeking approval
from your board or council.
 
Note: jurisdictions should anticipate the amount of time needed by your board or
council to obtain an approved Resolution by the funding request due date.  Failure to
provide an approved Resolution may result in funding being delayed or not approved.
 
 

Shamila Tooker
 

Beverage Container Grants Unit
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
(916) 322-3069
Shamila.Tooker@CalRecycle.ca.gov
 

Connect with us! 

         
 

Attachment B

124 of 426

mailto:Shamila.Tooker@calrecycle.ca.gov
mailto:Divina.Cadiz@CalRecycle.ca.gov
mailto:Marissa.Cota@CalRecycle.ca.gov
mailto:Donnell.Duclo@calrecycle.ca.gov
mailto:Rhoderick.Estrada@calrecycle.ca.gov
mailto:Rhoderick.Estrada@calrecycle.ca.gov
mailto:Tharon.Wright@CalRecycle.ca.gov
mailto:Alex.Byrne@calrecycle.ca.gov
mailto:John.Catching@carecycle.ca.gov
mailto:Stanley.Uyeda@calrecycle.ca.gov
mailto:Blair.McIntosh@calrecycle.ca.gov
mailto:grantassistance@CalRecycle.ca.gov
mailto:Shamila.Chandra-Tooker@CalRecycle.ca.gov
http://www.facebook.com/pages/Sacramento-CA/CalRecycle/232843879097
http://twitter.com/calrecycle/
http://feeds.calrecycle.ca.gov/default.aspx
http://www.youtube.com/user/CalRecycle?feature=creators_cornier-http://s.ytimg.com/yt/img/creators_corner/YouTube/youtube_32x32.png
http://m.calrecycle.ca.gov/Mobile/







[bookmark: _GoBack]RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT PROGRAMS AND RELATED AUTHORIZATIONS



WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Resources Code section 48000 et seq. the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) has established various payment programs to make payments to qualifying jurisdictions; and



WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority CalRecycle is required to establish procedures governing the administration of the payment programs; and



WHEREAS, CalRecycle’s procedures for administering payment programs require, among other things, an applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution certain authorizations related to the administration of the payment program.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that (name of applicant) is authorized to submit an application to CalRecycle for any and all payment programs offered; and



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the (job title), or his/her designee, is hereby authorized as Signature Authority to execute all documents necessary to implement and secure payment; and



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this authorization is effective until rescinded by the Signature Authority or this Governing Body.



Date Adopted ______________



ATTEST/CERTIFIED ____________________ (name(s)



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 1 of 3 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Date:  March 14, 2016 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Jessica Balandran, Senior Administrative Analyst 

Subject: Approval of a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Wendy Chung for 
Creative Design Services 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

The City Council is requested to approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for writing, 
editing, creative design services, civic engagement strategy and policy, and program 
coordination and management services under the direction of the City Manager (see attached 
scope of work) for a one-year term (i.e. March 2016 – March 2017) not to exceed $25,000. 
  
 

BACKGROUND 
 

1. On July 12, 2014, the City Council held a Strategic Planning Session which identified the 
need to develop a new City image and a better means of communicating with the public.  
 

2. On June 29, 2015, the City Council as part of the Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 City Budget 
appropriated $30,000 in funding for the production of a new logo and quarterly magazine. 
 

3. On September 8, 2015, the City Manager retained the services of Wendy Chung to assist 
with the City’s rebranding efforts and to coordinate the development of new City 
Quarterly magazine.   
 

4. From September through November 2015, Ms. Chung worked with City staff and Fuel 
Creative Group to develop the new City logo and brand.  Concurrently, Ms. Chung worked 
with Fuel Creative group to finalize the preliminary designs for the City’s new quarterly 
magazine. 

 

Item Number 

10F 

125 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 2 of 3 

 
5. During December 10, 2015, Cudahy’s ONE Magazine was published and distributed 

citywide. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Consistent with the City Council’s direction at the Summer 2014 Strategic Planning Session to 
develop a new City logo and quarterly magazine, the City Manager began to move forward 
with this effort in January 2015.  Given the City Manager’s past experience in producing an 
award winning quarterly magazine for another city, it quickly became apparent that the City 
did not have the staff expertise or experience to produce a high quality magazine on a short 
or long-term basis.  The City Manager contacted Wendy Chung for assistance with the new 
logo design and quarterly magazine.  Over the course of three months, Ms. Chung did a great 
job in coordinating the new City logo development as well as the new city quarterly magazine 
template for “ONE Magazine” from start to finish. 
 
Consequently, to continue with the seamless production of future ONE Magazine editions, 
the City Manager is requesting that Ms. Chung be retained by the City for a one-year period.  
The City Manager has also requested that Ms. Chung be available to provide staff assistance 
with several special projects such as: the creation of City presentation materials (i.e., State of 
the City) and templates consistent with the new City logo brand for meetings and 
presentations to other elected officials; enhance the City’s website; and community outreach 
and marketing campaigns.  All materials produced by Ms. Chung would be subject to the City 
Manager’s review and approval before dissemination under this PSA which does not require 
insurance coverage. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
City Council approval of this PSA with Wendy Chung ensures that the City would continue 
with the production of the City’s quarterly ONE Magazine on a timely manner. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The FY 2015-16 Mid-Year City Budget includes re-appropriation of $15,000 from City Clerk’s 
budget to cover cost of this PSA for the remainder of this fiscal year.  For the FY 2016-17 City 

126 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 3 of 3 

Budget, the City Council would need to appropriate funding from a variety of funding sources 
for this PSA. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Proposed Professional Service Agreement 

127 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 1 

 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(Wendy Chung: Writing, Editing, and Creative Design Services) 

(Parties: City of Cudahy and Wendy Chung) 
     
THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into this __ day of ______________ 2016 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and 
between the CITY OF CUDAHY, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and Wendy Chung 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and 
CONSULTANT may be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The 
capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably.  
 
 WHEREAS, CITY wishes to engage CONSULTANT to provide the following 
specialized services: writing, editing, and creative design services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CITY’s in-house personnel is presently unable to perform the 
specialized services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT possesses the specialized training, skill, expertise 
and experience required to perform the services contemplated under this Agreement; 
and 
  
 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the various services and tasks set 
forth under this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
herein contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  

I.  

ENGAGEMENT TERMS 
 

1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT 
agrees to perform the services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Scope of Services”).  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish 
to CITY all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and 
incidental and customary work necessary to competently perform and timely 
complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Services.  For the 
purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks set forth in 

128 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 2 

 

the Scope of Services shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized 
term “Work.”    

 
1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of one (1) year.  Nothing in this 

Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to 
terminate this Agreement at any time for convenience or for cause. 

 
1.3 COMPENSATION:    

 
A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the 

Scope of Services in accordance with the compensation schedule which is 
attached hereto as Exhibits “B” hereinafter, the “Approved Rate Schedule”).     

 
B. CONSULTANT’s total compensation during the Term of this Agreement or any 

extension term shall not exceed the budgeted aggregate sum of TWENTY-FIVE 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000) (hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed Sum”), unless 
such added expenditure is first approved by the CITY.  In the event 
CONSULTANT’s charges are projected to exceed the Not-to-Exceed Sum prior 
to the expiration of the Term or any single extension term, CITY may suspend 
CONSULTANT’s performance pending CITY approval of any anticipated 
expenditures in excess of the Not-to-Exceed Sum or any other CITY-approved 
amendment to the compensation terms of this Agreement.  

 
1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION:  Following the conclusion of each calendar 

month, CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the 
services and tasks performed during the recently concluded calendar month, 
including services and tasks performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred.  If the amount of CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a 
function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s personnel, the invoice shall 
indicate the number of hours worked in the recently concluded calendar month, 
the persons responsible for performing the Work, the rate of compensation at 
which such services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each task and 
service performed and a grand total for all services performed.  Within thirty (30) 
calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in 
writing of any disputed amounts included in the invoice.  Within thirty (30) 
calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall pay all undisputed amounts 
included on the invoice.  CITY shall not withhold applicable taxes or other 
authorized deductions from payments made to CONSULTANT.  

 
1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and 

accurate records with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a 
period of three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  
CITY shall have the right to access and examine such records, without charge, 
during normal business hours.  CITY shall further have the right to audit such 
records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect all program data, 

129 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 3 

 

documents, proceedings, and activities.  All other “Documents and Data” as 
defined in paragraph 6.1 shall be and remain property of the CITY. 

 
1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to 

perform the Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the 
undertaking contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior 
to completion of any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, 
CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY immediately and without delay, all materials, 
records and other work product prepared or obtained by CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, CONSULTANT shall only be 
compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks and other work 
performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction for any 
damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

 
II. 

PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 
 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the City Manager 
and the Senior Administrative Analyst (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) 
to act as its representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The City 
Manager shall be the chief CITY Representative.  The CITY Representatives or 
their designee, which designee the CITY may assign by notifying CONSULTANT 
in writing, shall act on behalf of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  
CONSULTANT shall not accept directions or orders from any person other than 
the CITY Representatives or their designee. 

 
2.2 CONSULTANT’S REPRESENTATIVES: CONSULTANT hereby designates 

Wendy Chung or designee, which designee CONSULTANT may assign by 
notifying CITY in writing, to act as its representative for the performance of this 
Agreement (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT 
Representative shall have full authority to represent and act on behalf of the 
CONSULTANT for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT 
Representative or designee shall supervise and direct the performance of the 
Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all means, 
methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory 
coordination of all portions of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the 
CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  

 

130 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 4 

 

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  
CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the 
Work and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY 
Representatives at all reasonable times.  All work prepared by CONSULTANT 
shall be subject to inspection and written approval by CITY Representatives or 
their designees. 

 
2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT 

represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following: 
 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the 
highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to 
the CITY; 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws 
and regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government 
Code section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code section 
81000 et seq.); 

D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be 
performed under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of 
performance;  

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, 
knowledge, training and experience to perform those services and tasks 
assigned to them by CONSULTANT; and 

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited to 
subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, 
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the tasks and services contemplated under this Agreement and all 
such licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and approvals shall be 
maintained throughout the term of this Agreement and made available to 
CITY for copying and inspection. 

 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at 
CONSULTANT’s own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from 
CITY, any services necessary to correct any errors or omissions caused by 
CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the standard of care set forth under 
this Section or by any like failure on the part of CONSULTANT’s employees, 
agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.  Such effort by 
CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions shall be commenced within 
three (3) business days upon their discovery by either Party and shall be 
completed within no more than fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of 
discovery or such other extended period of time authorized by the CITY 
Representatives in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion except for 

131 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 5 

 

any error or omission which may be a hazard to health or life safety in which 
case corrective action shall be taken immediately and shall be diligently 
completed.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that CITY’s acceptance of 
any work performed by CONSULTANT or on CONSULTANT’s behalf shall 
not constitute a release of any deficiency or delay in performance.  The 
Parties further acknowledge, understand and agree that CITY has relied upon 
the foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to 
the representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, 
knowledge and experience necessary to perform the Work skillfully, 
competently and to the highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession. 

 
2.5 ASSIGNMENT:  The skills, training, knowledge and experience of 

CONSULTANT are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  
Accordingly, CITY has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the 
person(s) who will perform the services and tasks to be undertaken by 
CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees that it shall not 
assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations 
under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY.  In the 
absence of CITY’s prior written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer 
shall be ineffective, null and void and shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement.  

 
2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT 

CONTRACTOR:  The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under 
CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, 
methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an independent contractor basis 
and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right to perform similar or 
different services for other principals during the term of this Agreement, provided 
such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s competent and timely 
performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and provided the 
performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure of 
CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel 
performing the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not 
employees of CITY and shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive 
direction and control.  CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, salaries and other 
amounts due such personnel and shall assume responsibility for all benefits, 
payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and the like.  
CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting 
such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, 
income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ 
compensation insurance and the like. 

 

132 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 6 

 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants are 
determined by the CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a 
threat to the adequate or timely performance of the tasks assigned to 
CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or property, or if any of CONSULTANT’s 
officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants fail or 
refuse to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the CITY, such officer, 
employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant shall be promptly 
removed by CONSULTANT and shall not be reassigned to perform any of the 
Work.   

 
2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in 

compliance with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws 
control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT’s 
compliance with applicable laws shall include without limitation compliance with 
all applicable Cal/OSHA requirements.   

 
2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT 

shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or 
applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental 
disability or medical condition. 

 
2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, 

understand and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed 
by CONSULTANT are, and shall at all times remain, wholly independent 
contractors and are not officials, officers, employees, departments or 
subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for the 
negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors and subconsultants.  CONSULTANT and all persons retained or 
employed by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind 
CITY in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on 
behalf of, or against, CITY, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such 
authority is expressly conferred to CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is 
otherwise expressly conferred by CITY in writing. 

 
III. 

INSURANCE [RESERVED] 
 

IV. 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 
4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 

employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, 
to the fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, 

133 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 7 

 

damage, claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any 
other cost arising out of or in any way related to the performance of this 
Agreement.  Accordingly, the provisions of this indemnity provision are intended 
by the Parties to be interpreted and construed to provide the CITY Indemnitees 
with the fullest protection possible under the law.  CONSULTANT acknowledges 
that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in the absence of CONSULTANT’s 
commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 

 
4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, 
damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of 
or in connection with CONSULTANT’s performance of Work hereunder or its 
failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except 
such loss or damage which is caused by the sole negligence or willful 
misconduct of the CITY.  

 
4.3  CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 

CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT 
as a result of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification 
arising under this Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay 
taxes on amounts received pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with 
applicable workers’ compensation laws.  
 

4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the 
provisions of any workers’ compensation act or similar act.  CONSULTANT 
expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY 
and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers.  
 

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions 
identical to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor 
or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT 
in the performance of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain 
such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, CONSULTANT 
agrees to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY 
and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers from and against any and all claims and losses, costs or expenses for 
any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury to any property 
resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful 
acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person 
or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 

134 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 8 

 

of this Agreement.  Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ 
fees incurred by counsel of CITY’s choice.  
 

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against 
CONSULTANT because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of 
any insurance policy or certificate required pursuant to this Agreement.  This hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall apply regardless of whether or not 
any insurance policies are determined to be applicable to the claim, demand, 
damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 
 

4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the 
duty to indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the 
termination or normal expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other 
rights or remedies which the CITY may have at law or in equity.   

 
V. 

TERMINATION 
 
5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE:  CITY may terminate this Agreement at any 

time for convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of 
five (5) calendar days’ prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this 
Agreement.  Upon such termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be 
compensated only for those services and tasks which have been performed by 
CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the termination.  CONSULTANT may 
not terminate this Agreement except for cause as provided under Section 5.2, 
below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, CITY may require 
CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data, as 
defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared by 
CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT 
shall be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) 
calendar days of CITY’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this 
Agreement on the part of CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement for 
convenience as provided under this Section. 

 
5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  
 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task 
set forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform 
any such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an 
event of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events of 
Default, the Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to the 
defaulting Party (hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which shall 

135 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 9 

 

specify: (i) the nature of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure 
the Event of Default; and (iii) a date by which the Event of Default shall be 
cured, which shall not be less than the applicable cure period set forth under 
Sections 5.2.B and 5.2.C below or if a cure is not reasonably possible within 
the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and diligently prosecute such 
cure to completion.  The Event of Default shall constitute a breach of this 
Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default within the 
applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this 
Agreement.   

 
B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the following 

time periods: 
 

i. Within five (5) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 
failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or 
agents with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work 
product which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to CITY or CITY’s 
employees or agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 5-
day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional 
time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has 
commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 5-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to grant additional time for 
the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2.B.i. that exceeds seven 
(7) calendar days from the end of the initial 5-day cure period; or 

 
ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for 

any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of 
the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that 
CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that 
the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure 
period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 
5.2.B.ii that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-
day cure period. 

 
In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any 
duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure 
to timely perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or 
task), an Event of Default on the part of CONSULTANT shall include, but 
shall not be limited to the following:  (i) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to 
perform any of the services or tasks called for under the Scope of Services; 
(ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under this 
Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a 

136 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 10 

 

reasonable time; (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard or 
violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation; (iv) the 
initiation of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, 
reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to CONSULTANT, whether 
voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform or 
observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement;  
and/or (vi) CITY’s discovery that a statement, representation or warranty by 
CONSULTANT relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in 
any material respect. 

 
C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-

five (45) calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, 
unless the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day 
cure period.  Prior to the expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may 
submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon 
a showing that CITY has commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default 
and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day 
cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with 
CITY’s failure to timely pay any undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as 
provided under Section 1.4, above, shall be cured by CITY within five (5) 
calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default Notice to CITY. 

 

D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending 
CONSULTANT’s cure of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT 
written notice of CITY’s intent to suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
(hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY may issue the Suspension Notice 
at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of Default. Upon such 
suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services 
and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.  No actual or 
asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as 
provided herein. 

 
E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall 

constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No 
waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party 
shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or 
otherwise.  

 
F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 

remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of 
any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available 

137 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 11 

 

by law.  In addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under 
this Agreement in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole 
and absolute discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following 
remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately terminate 

this Agreement in whole or in part; 
 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of 
performance; 

 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the 

Agreement to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of the 
Agreement  or to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  
 

 CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses 
that CITY incurs upon a breach of this Agreement by CONSULTANT or in the 
CITY’s exercise of its remedies under this Agreement.  

 
G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole 

remedy shall be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the 
recovery of any unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this 
Agreement for completed services and tasks.   

 
5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement 

shall constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or 
other covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement 
contained in this Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily 
given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by 
custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  
 

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this 
Agreement pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its 
term or any extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section 
or provision contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination 
or normal expiration of this Agreement. 

 
VI. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All 

Documents and Data shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction 

138 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 12 

 

or limitation upon their use or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, the term “Documents and Data” means and includes all reports, 
analyses, correspondence, plans, drawings, designs, renderings, specifications, 
notes, summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, 
lists, data compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or 
assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement and fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not 
limited to Documents and Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or electronically.  
This Agreement creates, at no cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to copy, 
use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain any and all copyrights, designs, and other 
intellectual property embodied in all Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall 
require all subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that 
CITY shall be granted the same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain 
Documents and Data prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or 
subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in 
the performance of this Agreement.  

 
6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information 

developed or received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this 
Agreement are deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed by 
CONSULTANT without prior written consent by CITY.  CITY shall grant such 
consent if disclosure is legally required.  Upon request, all CITY data shall be 
returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  
CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any 
publicity pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, 
television or radio production or other similar medium without the prior written 
consent of CITY. 

 
6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither 

CONSULTANT nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, 
or has an ownership interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court 
or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 
U.S.C., section 3789 et seq. and the California False Claims Act, Government 
Code section 12650 et seq.  

 
6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given 

to the respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as 
the respective Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

 
 
 

 

139 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 13 

 

Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or 
successfully transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or 
when mailed, forty-eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal 
Service, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable 
address.   

 
6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is 
reasonably necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

 
6.6 SUBCONTRACTING:  CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the 

Work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the 
prior written approval of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation 
subcontracts with subconsultants), if any, shall contain a provision making them 
subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating 
to insurance requirements and indemnification. 

 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right 
to employ other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon 
by CONSULTANT. 

 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains 
that it has not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid 
nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, 
brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the 
award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, 
CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term 
of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of 
his or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or 
obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

 

CONSULTANT: CITY:  
Wendy Chung 
1838 Cliffhill Drive 
Monterey Park, CA  91754 
Phone: (626) 560-1713  
 

City of Cudahy 
Attention: City Manager 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 
Attn:  City Manager 
Phone:  (323) 773-5143 
Fax: (323) 771-2072 

140 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 14 

 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every 
provision of this Agreement. 

 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation 
between the Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles 
County Superior Court of the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law 
requires that all or part of any such litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, 
venue, without exception, shall be in the Central District of California located in 
the City of Los Angeles, California. 
 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other 
Party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with 
this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and 
recover from the losing Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of 
such action. 

 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 

 

6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT:  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of 
any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this 
Agreement inure exclusively to the Parties. 

 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT:  This Agreement shall not be construed in 
favor of, or against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared 
this Agreement together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of 
their respective attorneys. 

 
6.15 SEVERABILITY:  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 

otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.  

 

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of 
this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by 
both Parties, subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written 
amendments, modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted 
waiver shall be void and invalid. 

 

141 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 15 

 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are 
for convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or 
describe the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits 
attached hereto, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.   

 

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
matters addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or 
understandings, whether oral or written, or entered into between CITY and 
CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this Agreement.  No statements, 
representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, made by any Party 
which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, 
modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding unless in 
writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.16, above. 

 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original 
counterparts each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or 
typewritten amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts 
shall be valid or binding unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with 
Section 6.16, above.  One fully executed original counterpart shall be delivered to 
CONSULTANT and the remaining two original counterparts shall be retained by 
CITY.  

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed the day and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 
 
 
CITY OF CUDAHY: 
 
 
By:        
       Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
 
[By the Mayor’s signature, above, the 
Mayor hereby confirms the City’s 
waiver of any and all insurance 
obligations for Consultant.] 
      

 CONSULTANT: 
 
 
By:         
      Wendy Chung 
 
 
Title        

142 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 16 

 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
       Deputy City Clerk 
 
 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:        
       City Attorney 

  
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

Scope of Services  
 
 
 
Writing, Editing and Creative Design Services 
 
Under direction and approval of City Manager, develop and produce miscellaneous 
media, including quarterly magazine, web content, document templates, and other 
civic/promotional collateral. All materials are subject to City review and final approval.  
 
Example of responsibilities: 
 

• Interacting with staff, consultants, public and various sources; 
• Potentially interacting with student interns;  
• Packaging public information for general audience;  
• Researching public records and online sources; 
• Developing and creating content consistent with City brand (taking photos, 

writing and editing copy, creating presentations, designing templates, etc.); 
• Preparation of various award/grant submittals; 
• Uploading content (website, social media, etc.).  

 

Civic Engagement Strategy & Policy  
 
Under direction and approval of City Manager, assist in developing programs, strategies 
and policies for community engagement.  
 
Example of responsibilities: 

143 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 17 

 

 
• Developing strategies and policies for programs and events, to increase 

community engagement in various forms (digital, community events, etc.); 
• Researching best practices; 
• Recommending policies to support new City brand, communications initiatives 

and tools (e.g., internal guidelines for branding/logo use/social media/etc.; quality 
control of outreach collateral; etc.) 

• Establishing routines and processes to support communication functions (e.g., 
magazine production procedures; web maintenance standards; recommending 
software; establishing databases; etc.). 

 

Program Coordination/Management 
 
Under direction and approval of City Manager, assist in the coordination, development 
and implementation of some civic engagement programs and events—e.g., Youth 
Committee and special community events (e.g., open streets). 
 
Example of responsibilities: 
 

• Interacting with various staff, consultants, contractors, and public—including 
youth; 

• Developing strategic plans for implementation; 
• Coordinate activities (e.g., developing agendas, budgets, etc.); 
• Engage in outreach and marketing campaigns. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

144 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 
Page 18 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “B”  
Approved Rate Schedule 

 
 
 
 
Rate of Compensation 
 
Sixty Dollars ($60.00) per hour. 

 
 

145 of 426



 
 

Blank Page 

146 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/2016  Page 1 of 3 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 14, 2016 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  Jessica Balandran, Senior Administrative Analyst   

Subject: Approval of a First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) 
with FUEL Creative Group 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to approve a First Amendment to the Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) in the amount of $23,000 with FUEL Creative Group extending the term to 
June 30, 2017 for the City’s quarterly magazine design services. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On July 12, 2014, the City Council held a Strategic Planning Session which identified the 

need to develop a new City image and a better means of communicating with the 
public. 

 
2. On August 11, 2014, the new City Manager began his tenure with the City. 

 
3. On October 24, 2014 the City Council approved the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 City Budget 

which included funding for the City newsletter. 
 

4. On November 4, 2014, the City Council approved the FY 2014-15 City Budget One Time 
appropriations which included funding for City rebranding. 

 
5. On January 2, 2015, the City Manager contacted FUEL Creative Group regarding the 

City’s need for rebranding and newsletter design professional services.  
 

  

 

Item Number 

10G 

147 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/2016  Page 2 of 3 
    

6. On January 8, 2015, the City Manager had a teleconference call with Brent Rector who is 
the Art Director and Principal for this firm to discuss the City’s need for:  1) rebranding; 
2) new quarterly magazine; and 3) website development. 

 
7. On January 14, 2015, FUEL Creative Group provided the City Manager with a proposal 

for the City rebranding and newsletter design services. 
 

8. On January 20, 2015, City Council approved a PSA with FUEL Creative Group in the 
amount of $33,224 for City rebranding and a new City newsletter.   
 

9. From September through November 2015, Fuel Creative Group worked with City staff 
and the City’s magazine consultant Wendy Chung on the development of both the new 
City logo and the quarterly magazine. 
 

10. On December 10, 2015, One Cudahy/Una Comunidad Magazine featuring the new City 
Logo was finalized and subsequently hand delivered door to door.  
 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
In the summer of 2014 the City Council held a Strategic Planning Session where they 
identified the need to develop a new City image and a better means of communicating with 
the public as a result of having its community image battered by the corruption scandal two 
years before.  Consistent with this direction, in early 2015 the City Council awarded a PSA to 
Fuel Creative Group to help the City rebrand itself and to develop a new City magazine. 
 
During 2015, staff worked with Fuel Creative Group and magazine consultant Wendy Chung 
to update and develop a new City logo and quarterly magazine.  The end product was the 
inaugural One Cudahy / Una Comunidad Magazine which was completed on December 10, 
2015.  This 40 page bi-lingual magazine was hand delivered to every door.  The magazine 
includes a guide to City Hall, General Plan details, key points for a safer community, and 
featured a calendar, news, highlights and a recreation guide.  Shortly after the magazine was 
distributed, staff received an increase in calls inquiring about the identified sports 
opportunities and the Cudahy Clean-Up Day.  The City website also received more views than 
usual.  
 
Under this proposed First Amendment to the PSA, FUEL Creative Group would design and 
produce the City’s two upcoming quarterly magazines for the FY 2015-16.  Since the City 
prints the magazine in-house, there is flexibility on the final page count (i.e., 32, 36, or 40 
pages with less or more ads) depending on what issues need to be communicated to the 

148 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/2016  Page 3 of 3 
    

public.  It should be noted that under the City’s Purchasing Ordinance No. 649 adopted June 
8, 2015, the City has been able to piggy-back off the RFP work of another city to secure the 
magazine rates quoted by Fuel Creative Group to the City. 
 
In order to help off-set the cost of this quarterly magazine, City staff is also working to utilize 
grants and local service providers (i.e., COPS, CalRecycle, Southern California Edison, Republic 
Services, and Southern California Gas Company) to include helpful ads for residents 
promoting safety, environmental safety, and upcoming events.  
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
In order to ensure that the next One Cudahy / Una Comunidad magazine is produced and 
delivered in the City in March 2016, the City Council is requested to approve the First 
Amendment to the PSA with FUEL Creative Group in the amount of $23,000 for the City’s 
quarterly magazine design services. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The FY 2015-16 City Budget adjustment requires a transfer of $23,000 from the City Clerk’s 
budget which is enough to cover the next two quarterly magazines through June 30, 2016.  
Funding for next Fiscal Year quarterly magaines and contract will be discussed by the City 
Council as part of the regular Fiscal Year (FY) 2016-17 City Budget process. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement for FUEL Creative Group 
B. Staff Report from January 20, 2015 City Council Agenda 

149 of 426



 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2016 
FIRST AMENDMENT 

TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 (Parties:  Fuel Creative Group and City of Cudahy) 

 
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (“First Amendment”) to that certain agreement entitled 

“2015 Professional Services Agreement” dated as of January 20, 2015 (the “Master 
Agreement”), is hereby made and entered into this ___nd day of  _____________ ___, 2016 (the 
“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Cudahy, a municpal corporation (hereinafter, 
“City”) and Fuel Creative Group, a California corporation (herinafter “Consultant”).  For 
purposes of this First Amendment, the capitalized term “Parties” shall be a collective reference 
to the City and Consultant and the capitalized term “Party” shall refer to the City or Consultant 
interchangeably, as appropriate. 

  
RECITALS 

 
This FIRST AMENDMENT is made and entered into with respect to the following facts: 
 

 WHEREAS, on or about January 20, 2015, the Parties executed and entered into the 
Master Agreement (attached hereto as Attachment 1) to allow Consultant to provide 
professional services to the City, as provided therein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to modify and amend the terms of the Master Agreement, as 
permitted under section 6.16 of the Master Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties specifically seek to amend the Master Agreement to increase the 

term of the Master Agreement, as set forth in Section 1.2(A), and increase the not-to-exceed sum 
of THIRTY-THREE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED TWENTY-FOUR DOLLARS ($33,224) 
by TWENTY THREE THOUSAND ($23,000) to establish a new not-to-exceed sum of FIFTY 
SIX THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED TWENTY FOUR ($56,224); and 
 

WHEREAS, Consultant represents that it still possesses the specialized training, skill, 
expertise and experience required to perform the services contemplated under the Master 
Agreement. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

Attachment A

150 of 426



 

2 
 

1. Subsection A of Section 1.2 (Prosecution of Work) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 

A. This agreement shall increase the term to June 30, 2017. CITY, in its reasonable 
discretion, may grant CONSULTANT additional time to complete the Work.  The 
granting of such additional time by the CITY shall in no way entitle 
CONSULTANT to compensation in excess of the Contract Price, defined below, 
in so far as the need of additional time is not reasonably attributable to the CITY;  

 
2. Subsection 1.3.1 of Section 1.3 (Compensation) of the Master Agreement is 

hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

A. CITY agrees to compensate CONSULTANT for the services provided under 
this Agreement and CONSULTANT agrees to accept in full satisfaction for 
such services, payment in accordance with the Approved Fee Schedule and 
Proposal.  See Exhibit “A.”  CONSULTANT shall perform the Services 
during the course of the term set forth in Section 1.1, above.  CONSULTANT 
agrees to accept in full satisfaction for such services, payment in accordance 
with the compensation structure reflected in Exhibit “A.”  Based on the 
foregoing, CONSULTANT’s total compensation for the Work under this 
Agreement may not exceed the sum of FIFTY SIX THOUSAND TWO 
HUNDRED TWENTY FOUR ($56,224)(hereinafter, the “Contract Price”).  
The Parties agree that the Contract Price includes compensation for all labor, 
materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks, costs, and incidental and 
customary work necessary to competently perform the Work as well as 
compensation for all specifically delineated expenses set forth in the Scope of 
Work.   

 
3. Exhibit “A” of the Master Agreement is hereby supplemented and augmented by 

the proposal attached hereto as Attachment 2. 
 

4. Except as otherwise set forth in this First Amendment, the Master Agreement 
shall remain binding, controlling and in full force and effect.  Section 6.19 of the Master 
Agreement notwithstanding, this First Amendment together with the Master Agreement shall 
constitute the entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
matters addressed in both documents. 

 
5. The provisions of this First Amendment shall be deemed a part of the Master 

Agreement and except as otherwise provided under this Amendment, the Master Agreement and 
all provisions contained therein shall remain binding and enforceable. In the event of any conflict 
or inconsistency between the provisions of this First Amendment and the provisions of the 
Master Agreement, the provisions of this First Amendment shall control, but only in so far as 
such provisions conflict with the Master Agreement and no further.  

 

Attachment A

151 of 426



 

3 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this First Amendment to be executed 
on the day and year first appearing above. 
 
 
 

 
CITY: 
 
City of Cudahy  
 
 
By:___________________________________ 

Jose Pulido 
City Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
     City Attorney 
      

 CONTRACTOR 
 
Fuel Creative Group 
 
 
By:_____________________________ 
 
Name: Brent Rector 
 
Title: Principal 
 
 
 

   
 

 
 
 

 

Attachment A

152 of 426



 

4 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
MASTER AGREEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment AAttachment A

153 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

154 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

155 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

156 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

157 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

158 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

159 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

160 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

161 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

162 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

163 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

164 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

165 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

166 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

167 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

168 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

169 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

170 of 426



Attachment AAttachment A

171 of 426



 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
PROPOSAL TO AUGMENT EXHIBIT “A” OF MASTER AGREEMENT 

 

Attachment AAttachment A

172 of 426



 

CUDAHY PROPOSAL: 2016-2017 UNO DESIGN 
AND PRODUCTION  

Nicolette Countryman Jose Pulido February 17, 2016 
Project Manager City Manager, Cudahy 
916.669.1591  
nicolette@fuelcreativegroup.com  

Hi Jose, 

Thank you for reaching out to FUEL to design the UNO Magazine for 
2016-2017. Please find our outlined costs for the production of each issue, 
including variable issue sizes. 

Should you have any further questions regarding this proposal, please do not 
hesitate to reach out to me. Thank you for your time! 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Nicolette Countryman 
Project Manager 

  

Attachment AAttachment A

173 of 426

mailto:nicolette@fuelcreativegroup.com


2 UNO - 32 PAGES $9000 

FUEL will create a 32-page issue of UNO utilizing the established look and 
feel. FUEL will design a cover, 3 features (includes infographic), and 6 ads 
that will be incorporated into the publication.  
 
FUEL will provide up to three proofs of UNO.  
 
Final deliverable will be a high-resolution PDF uploaded to the client’s 
chosen print vendor’s FTP site, as well as a web-optimized version 
delivered to the client.  
 
UNO - 36 PAGES/6 ADS $9875 
 
FUEL will create a 36-page issue of UNO utilizing the established look and 
feel. FUEL will design a cover, 4 features (includes infographic), and 6 ads 
that will be incorporated into the publication.  
 
FUEL will provide up to three proofs of UNO.  
 
Final deliverable will be a high-resolution PDF uploaded to the client’s 
chosen print vendor’s FTP site, as well as a web-optimized version 
delivered to the client.  
 
UNO - 36 PAGES/8 ADS $10625 
 
FUEL will create a 36-page issue of UNO utilizing the established look and 
feel. FUEL will design a cover, 4 features (includes infographic), and 8 ads 
that will be incorporated into the publication.  
 
FUEL will provide up to three proofs of UNO.  
 
Final deliverable will be a high-resolution PDF uploaded to the client’s 
chosen print vendor’s FTP site, as well as a web-optimized version 
delivered to the client.  
 
UNO - 36 PAGES/10 ADS $11250 
 
FUEL will create a 36-page issue of UNO utilizing the established look and 
feel. FUEL will design a cover, 4 features (includes infographic), and 10 ads 
that will be incorporated into the publication.  
 
FUEL will provide up to three proofs of UNO.  
 
Final deliverable will be a high-resolution PDF uploaded to the client’s 
chosen print vendor’s FTP site, as well as a web-optimized version 
delivered to the client.  
 
UNO - 40 PAGES/6 ADS $10500 
 
FUEL will create a 36-page issue of UNO utilizing the established look and 
feel. FUEL will design a cover, 4 features (includes infographic), and 6 ads 
that will be incorporated into the publication.  
 
FUEL will provide up to three proofs of UNO.  

Attachment AAttachment A

174 of 426



 
3 

Final deliverable will be a high-resolution PDF uploaded to the client’s 
chosen print vendor’s FTP site, as well as a web-optimized version 
delivered to the client.  
 
UNO - 40 PAGES/8 ADS $11250 
 
FUEL will create a 36-page issue of UNO utilizing the established look and 
feel. FUEL will design a cover, 4 features (includes infographic), and 8 ads 
that will be incorporated into the publication.  
 
FUEL will provide up to three proofs of UNO.  
 
Final deliverable will be a high-resolution PDF uploaded to the client’s 
chosen print vendor’s FTP site, as well as a web-optimized version 
delivered to the client.  
 
UNO - 40 PAGES/10 ADS $11875 
 
FUEL will create a 36-page issue of UNO utilizing the established look and 
feel. FUEL will design a cover, 4 features (includes infographic), and 10 ads 
that will be incorporated into the publication.  
 
FUEL will provide up to three proofs of UNO.  
 
Final deliverable will be a high-resolution PDF uploaded to the client’s 
chosen print vendor’s FTP site, as well as a web-optimized version 
delivered to the client.  

 

 

 

 

If you approve of this cost, please sign and return to FUEL via fax to 916.290.0425 or email to 
nicolette@fuelcreativegroup.com.  
 
 

 
 

APPROVED BY: PRINTED NAME DATE 
 
 
 

 
APPROVED BY: SIGNATURE DATE 
 

 

Attachment AAttachment A

175 of 426



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  January 20, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director  

Subject: PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FUEL CREATIVE GROUP FOR CITY 
BRANDING AND CITY NEWSLETTER 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The City Council is requested to approve a professional services agreement with FUEL 
Creative Group for City branding options and City newsletter at a cost not to exceed $32,000 
with a term of February 2015 through June 30, 2016. 
  
BACKGROUND 
1. On July 12, 2014, the City Council held a Strategic Planning Session which identified the 

need to develop a new City image and a better means of communicating with the 
public. 

 
2. On October 24, 2014 the City Council approved the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 City Budget 

which included funding for the City newsletter. 
 

3. On November 4, 2014, the City Council approved the FY 2014-15 City Budget One Time 
appropriations which included funding for the City rebranding. 

 
4. On January 2, 2015, the City Manager contacted FUEL Creative Group regarding the 

City’s need for branding and newsletter design professional services.  
 
5. On January 8, 2015, the City Manager had a teleconference call with Brent Rector who is 

the Art Director and Principal for this firm to discuss the City’s need for: rebranding; new 
quarterly magazine; and website development. 

 
6. On January 14, 2015, FUEL Creative Group provided the City Manager with a proposal 

 

Item Number 

10H 

Attachment B

176 of 426



for the City branding and newsletter design services. 
 
ANALYSIS 
In many communities across the country, quarterly city publications serve as a valuable tool 
of information for city announcements for projects, programs and activities.  FUEL Creative 
Group has extensive and award winning experience in graphic design, branding, and magazine 
publications.  Their municipal clients include the cities of Sacramento, Roseville, Rancho 
Cordova, San Fernando, Temple City as well as the State of California Travel and Tourism 
Commission.  Google, NBC, the Sacramento Press and Prosper Magazine are among those in 
their corporate portfolio.   
 
Under this proposed professional services agreement, FUEL Creative Group will rebrand the 
City and produce the City’s upcoming quarterly magazine for the remainder of FY 2014-15 
(i.e., February 1st to June 30th) and on into FY 2015-16 (i.e., July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016).  The 
combined design efforts will yield a unique branded title, new bi-lingual magazine format 
with an initial eight page count – the page count is subject to change as staff works to 
development more content for the magazine in subsequent quarterly newsletters.  During FY 
2015-16, City staff would work to minimize the impact to the General Fund by leveraging 
other funding sources such as grants or local service providers (i.e., Southern California 
Edison, Republic Services, and Southern California Gas Company). 
 
CONCLUSION 
The City Council is requested to approve a professional services agreement with FUEL 
Creative Group for City rebranding and quarterly magazine design services both of which 
were identified by the City Council to the City Manager as being high priorities for this 
community. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
As part of the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 City Budget and One Time Appropriations, the City 
Council approved $17,000 in the City Manager’s Budget and $15,000 from the One Time 
Appropriations for City branding.  The City has budgeted a total of $32,000 and the cost of the 
City Branding and Magazine total of $33,224, consequently the City will have to make an 
adjustment to the budget to fund the remaining $1,224.  Although if the City opts out from 
the “On-Site Visit” that is being proposed, there would be a surplus of $376. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Professional Services Agreement  

Attachment B

177 of 426



 
 

Blank Page 

178 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 1 of 6 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Date:  March 14, 2016 

To:  Honorable Mayor / Chair and City Council / Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 

Subject: Award Construction Contract Agreement for the Purchase and Installation of 
the Soccer Field Artificial Turf for Lugo Park Soccer Field and Restroom 
Renovation Project in an Amount Not to Exceed $357,015. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

The City Council is requested to: 
 
1. Accept the artificial turf product submitted by AFE Sports (Astroturf Vendor) as in full 

compliance with the City of Los Angeles Specification All Weather Turf for soccer field; and   
 

2. Award Construction Contract Agreement for the purchase and installation of the soccer 
field artificial turf from AFE Sports in an amount not to exceed $357,015. 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

1. Between May 2014, and December 2015, City Council approved and allocated funding 
through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), General Fund, Cudahy Youth 
Foundation, and Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors for the renovation of the Lugo 
Park soccer field and restroom/concession stand (Background outline - Attachment G). 
 

2. On January 11, 2016, City Council awarded the construction contract to the lowest 
responsible bidder Asphalt, Fabric, and Engineering, Inc. in the amount of $899,950.00 for 
the renovation of the Lugo Park soccer field and restroom/concession stand. 

 

 

Item Number 

10H 

179 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 2 of 6 

3. On January 22, 2016, City Manager and Project Manager met with City of Los Angeles 
Parks and Recreation Department representative Jimmy Newsom and City of Los 
Angeles’s Turf Consultant Joe DiGeronimo to visit several artificial turf soccer fields.   

 
4. On February 1, 2016, City staff solicited competitive price quotes to furnish and install 

“City of Los Angeles Specification All Weather Turf” at Lugo Park from the following 
vendors: 

 
The Synthetic Grass Producers: 
 

a. Shaw Sports Surface, by Shaw Industries, Dalton, GA 
b. ACT Global, Austin, TX 
c. Domo Sports Grass, Dalton, GA 
d. Astroturf, Dalton, GA 
e. Hellas Construction, Leander, TX 
f. Sprinturf, LLC, Marietta, GA 
g. Path to Prosperity, Inc., Purchase Green 
h. Fieldturf 

 
5. On February 8, 2016, the following turf vendors submitted a proposal in response to the 

City’s request: 
 

a. AFE Sports (Astroturf Vendor)  $357,015.00 
b. Shaw Sports Surface   $353,396.00 
c. Duraturf     $531,256.36 
d. Hellas     $538,000.00 

 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
I. Intro Summary  

 
During the beginning stages of the initial concept drawings for the Lugo Park Soccer 
Field renovation project, staff and the City Council received considerable feedback from 
a number of people regarding the heat stemming from old tire rubber pellets in 
traditional artificial turf fields.  The City certainly took this information to heart and 
began the process of finding other artificial field setups and configurations that 
addressed these concerns.  This journey took City staff through a number of artificial 
field’s products and vendors touting new cooler artificial fields that didn’t use rubber 
tire pellets.  

 

180 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 3 of 6 

II. Construction Contract Award 
 

After the construction contract award to Asphalt, Fabric, and Engineering, Inc., the City 
received information from various Artificial Turf Vendors for various types of artificial 
turf for the soccer fields.  Consequently, it was determined that each vendor provided 
unique materials and specifications that prevented the City from comparing like 
products to one another. 
 
Subsequently, staff began to conduct additional research to identify other means of 
evaluating various types of artificial turf types offered by different vendors, and select 
the most cost effective and efficient product for the City.  

 
III. Identification of Alternative Artificial Turf Materials and Specifications 

 
Staff discovered that in order to compare artificial turf products, the City of Los Angeles 
Parks and Recreation Department created a standard specification for artificial turf for 
their soccer fields, which enabled various turf vendors to submit proposals based on a 
standard specifications developed by one of the largest public agencies (City of Los 
Angeles). 
 
Resultant of the discovery of standardized specifications created by the City of Los 
Angeles, staff coordinated site visits to three City of Los Angeles Parks, and met with the 
City of Los Angeles’s Turf Consultant, Joe DiGeronimo for more information. 
 

IV. City of Los Angeles Artificial Turf Site Visits 
 

Two of the site locations (with multiple soccer fields) had Los Angeles Specification All 
Weather Turf installed.  One location had an alternate artificial turf installed.  It was 
found that after using various types of artificial turfs by various manufacturers, the City 
of Los Angeles was not satisfied with any of the products in the existing market. This 
resulted in the development of a standard specification for soccer field artificial turf, 
which they refer to as “All Weather Turf”.   
 
It was found that the All Weather Turf proved to be a superior product when compared 
to like products from competing vendors. Specifically, the All Weather Turf design and 
speciation’s reduces the amount of excavation of the site by incorporating in-plain 
drainage via special padding in the sub-base/under padding. Consequently, while 
ensuring adequate drainage, this eliminates extensive drainage piping under the turf, as 
well as ongoing maintenance and repairs. 

181 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 4 of 6 

V. Soliciting Proposals from Turf Vendors 
 

Using the specifications as developed by the City of Los Angeles, City of Cudahy staff 
solicited competitive price quotes to furnish and install “City of Los Angeles Specification 
All Weather Turf” (Attachment 1) at Lugo Park. Solicitations were released to the 
following pre-screened vendors from the Los Angeles Specifications: 

 
The Synthetic Grass Producers: 
 a. Shaw Sports Surface, by Shaw Industries, Dalton, GA 
 b. ACT Global, Austin, TX 
 c. Domo Sports Grass, Dalton, GA 
 d. Astroturf, Dalton, GA 
 e. Hellas Construction, Leander, TX 
 f. Sprinturf, LLC, Marietta, GA 

 
VI. Turf Vendor Submittals 

 
Subsequently, the following turf vendors submitted a proposal in response to City’s 
request: 

a. AFE Sports (Astroturf Vendor)  $357,015.00 
b. Shaw Sports Surface   $353,396.00 
c. Duraturf     $531,256.36 
d. Hellas     $538,000.00 

 
The following vendors informed the City that they would not submit a proposal: 

a. Sprinturf, LLC 
b. FieldTurf 

 
The following vendors did not respond and did not inform the City that they would not 
submit a proposal: 

a. ACT Global 
b. Path to Prosperity, Inc., Purchase Green 

 
Two lowest prices were submitted by: 

a. AFE Sports (Astroturf Vendor)  $357,015.00 
b. Shaw Sports Surface   $353,396.00 

 
The difference between the two lowest prices is 3,619.00, approximately 1%. 

 

182 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 5 of 6 

VII. Turf Vendor Evaluation 
 

After evaluation of the various turf submittals, as explained in Attachment 3-Turf 
Submittal Analysis by Independent Expert Turf Consultant, Joe DiGeronimo, the product 
submitted by AFE Sports (Astroturf Vendor) fully meets the City of Los Angeles All 
Weather Turf Specifications.   

 
VIII. Project Scope/Construction Contract Modification 
 

The overall scope and funding for the project also includes restroom renovations for 
ADA compliance.  The current construction contract covers only the construction of the 
Soccer Field improvements.  Staff researched the option of purchasing a pre-fabricated 
restroom facility and demolish the existing restroom building.  The cost of a new pre-
fabricated restroom facility is approximately in the $250,000 range.  The project budget 
does not have sufficient funds for a new pre-fabricated restroom facility.  As part of 
value engineering, staff will evaluate the renovation of existing restroom facility.  Staff 
will present the results of the additional value engineering to City Council at an 
upcoming meeting. 

 
The City of LA All Weather Turf is designed by the City for heavy use and longevity.  The 
selected artificial turf is manufactured by AstroTurf.  It is designed to be a low maintenance 
system with less need for grooming and de-compaction of infill.  The LA All Weather Turf has 
also reduced the pile height of the turf, which allows for a dense, uniform, sure-footed 
surface that players appreciate.  In addition, the turf is installed on a shock pad, which assures 
proper shock attenuation while eliminating the need for crumb rubber.  The pad has (in-
plane) drainage channels for adequate drainage of water.  Another unique material used in LA 
All Weather Turf is ZeoFill, which is made out of a natural organic resource from the earth 
(Zeolite). It has a negatively charged honey-combed molecular structure, which absorbs the 
water and holds it for slow release to cool the surface temperatures.  Also, ZeoFill infill will 
pull gases towards itself and hold it until sodium ion in rain water releases the magnetivity 
and the force of heavy rainfall will flush out the bacteria, forcing it through the turf into the 
ground rejuvenating the turf.   
 
The use of the City of Los Angeles Specification All Weather Turf for soccer field will not 
increase the total project estimated project cost of $1.6 million.  While the under padding 
with drainage channels adds to the turf cost, because it eliminates the need for extensive 
drainage pipes and cost for such pipes, the previously estimated total project budget of $1.6 
million is not anticipated to change at this point.   
 

183 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16 
   Page 6 of 6 

This would make the most sense as AFE Sports (Astroturf Vendor) is also the base contractor. 
Avoiding any concerns of the base and turf construction under one contractor. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Authorization to purchase and use the City of Los Angeles Specifications All Weather Turf for 
soccer field will result in a proven, standard and quality product.  The application of this 
product will also reduce the excavation of the site, as it comes with a special padding that also 
serves and drainage additional (in-plane) drainage channels, which ensures an adequate 
drainage, and eliminates extensive drainage piping under the turf, as well as maintenance.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The LACDC has allocated $860,816 to the subject project for construction costs, construction 
management, and inspection of the project. Additionally, a General Fund allocation of 
$375,000; Cudahy Youth Foundation contribution of $16,000; and Los Angeles County Board 
of Supervisors grant of $270,000 will be used to cover the project costs. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Request for Quotes with All Weather Turf per City of Los Angeles Specifications 
B. AFE Sports Submittal  
C. Shaw Sports Turf Submittal  
D. Duraturf Submittal 
E. Hellas Submittal 
F. Turf Submittal Analysis by Independent Expert Turf Consultant, Joe Digeronimo  
G. January 11, 2016 City Council Meeting Contract Award Staff Report 
H. Draft Contract Agreement 

 

184 of 426



February 1, 2016 
 
To: Interested Artificial Turf Vendors 
 
Subject: City of Cudahy request for Price quotes to furnish and install “City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf” at 

Lugo Park in the City of Cudahy 
 
City of Cudahy is requesting from interested Vendors a price quote to furnish and install “City of Los Angeles Spec All 
Weather Turf” at Lugo Park in the City of Cudahy.  Lugo Park is located at 7810 Otis Avenue, Cudahy, CA 90201 (north-
east corner of Otis Avenue and Elizabeth Street). 
 
Soccer field play area is: 

300’ x 150’ = 45,000 sf 
Total turf area with additional side areas is: 

330’ x 165’ = 54,450 sf 
 
Provide all labor, equipment and materials to 
install 

City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf 
with Zeolite Infill (1.75 lbs per sf), 
Underlayment Pad and Impermeable 
Isolation Fabric Liner per Attached 
Specifications. 
 
Price shall also include installation of soccer 
lines, and all transportation of materials and 
8 year Warranty as specified in the attached 
City of LA specifications. 
 
City will construct the field with necessary 
grading, base perimeter drainage pipe and 
curbs for the “City of Los Angeles Spec All 
Weather Turf” installation under separate 
contract. 
 
 

 
Total Price to provide All Weather Turf in full compliance with City of LA Specs:_________________ 

 
o With the price quote, submit your product specifications and a statement that your product is in full compliance with 

the attached City of LA Specs. 
o Price shall include taxes and all other costs.  City may purchase the above thru CMAS or similar purchasing systems or 

per City of LA prices. 
o The selected vendor shall have the turf material ready and start the installation within 45 calendar days of City’s 

approval of the purchase order, and complete the installation within 20 calendar days thereafter. 
 
The City will utilize an Independent Expert Turf Consultant (Joe DiGeronimo) to respond to any questions you may have, 
and to review the submitted information for compliance with the City of LA All Weather Turf Specs, and make a decision 
in the best interest of the City.  The City will also utilize the Independent Expert Turf Consultant (Joe DiGeronimo) for the 
plant inspection, material testing to ensure the material is provided and installed in compliance with the attached City of 
LA specifications. 
 

185 of 426

mallen
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



Interested vendors shall submit their price quotes and relevant information as indicated above by February 8, 2016, 5 PM: 
 
The submittal may be submitted electronically via e-mail to: 

Michael Allen 
Acting Community Development Director 
mallen@cityofcudahyca.gov 
 

Or by hard copy via mail to: 
Michael Allen 
Acting Community Development Director 
City of Cudahy 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 

 
If you have any questions, please contact via e-mail: 

Joe DiGeronimo 
Independent Expert Turf Consultant 
E: dgeronimo@aol.com 
C: 508-579-8015 
 
With copy to: 
Ali Cayir, PE 
City of Cudahy CIP Manager 
E: ali.cayir@transtech.org 
C: 714-883-8677 

 
 
Attachments:     

Attachment 1: Site Map 
Attachment 2: City of Los Angeles Specs for All Weather Turf 

186 of 426

mailto:mallen@cityofcudahyca.gov
mailto:dgeronimo@aol.com
mailto:ali.cayir@transtech.org


   

N 

ELIZABETH ST 

O
TI

S 
A

V
E 

LUGO PARK 
EXISTING CONDITIONS 

N 

187 of 426



 

300’ 

1
5

0
’ 

15’ 15’ 

7
.5

’ 
7

.5
’ 

A
P

P
R

O
X

. 1
5

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
P

A
C

ES
 

A
P

P
R

O
X

. 1
4

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
P

A
C

ES
 

NEW D/W 

LUGO PARK SOCCER FIELD 
PROPOSED ALL WEATHER TURF PER CITY OF LA SPECS 

N 

SOCCER FIELD PLAY AREA 
300’ x 150’ = 45,000 sf 

 
TOTAL TURF AREA WITH ADDITIONAL SIDE AREAS 

330’ x 165’ = 54,450 sf 

ELIZABETH ST 

O
TI

S 
A

V
E 

188 of 426



CITY OF LOS ANGELES I DEPARTMENT OF RECREATION AND PARKS 
ALL WEATHER TURF SPECIFICATION 

16. SYNTHETIC TURF AND SUB-BASE DRAINAGE 
(revision date 3/18/2015) 

SECTION A: SUB-GRADE FOUNDATION AND DRAINAGE 

PART I: General: 

A. DEFINITION 
1. This section defines requirements for the materials, installation, and operating 

perfonnance of a sub-grade foundation and drainage system needed for a 
professional-grade synthetic turf field. Defined are the primary system 
requirements for insuring vertical and dimensional stability of the soil and 
adequate storm drainage of the playing surface. 

B. STANDARDS 
1. All specifications listed are defined per applicable ASTM standard test 

methods, unless no ASTM standard exists. All other specifications and 
tolerances listed shall be defined under standard ANSI and/or ISO drawing 
and specification rules. 

Note: This specification requires installation of a continuous foundation-grade 
concrete curb around the entire perimeter of the athletic field. A formed top 
ledge or side-mounted composite header (2' x 4') is required for synthetic turf 
attachment. 

PART II; MATERIALS 

A. FIELD SOIL rsoLATION FABRIC 
1. The prepared soil subsurface shall be isolated from the installed field and 

drainage system above i't with the specified soil isolation fabric. The soil 
isolation fabric is a woven polyurethane-based material with a minimum gage 
of 12 mils in thickness. 

2. A non-permeable membrane is recommended for all soils: Drainage 
properties of the selected non-permeable fabric shall be 0.1 O gallons per 
minute per square-foot maximum (ASTM 04491 ). Mirafi 550X fabric or 
approved equal. 

B. TRENCH SOIL ISOLATION FABRIC 
1. The soil isolation fabric is a polypropylene-based material with a minimum 

gage weight of five (5) Ozlyd2. Minimum permeability is 130 
gallons/minute/square foot, Mirafi 180N, or approved equal. A non
permeable membrane may be recommended under specific site conditions -
see plans to verify. 

C. PERIMETER DRAINAGE COLLECTOR PIPE 
1. Drainage piping is a perforated HOPE pipe, diameter specified on plans. 

Page 11 

189 of 426



D. PERIMETER CURB 
1. A continuous foundation grade curbing of 3000 psi concrete shall be installed 

along the entire perimeter of the synthetic field. See plans for curb 
dimensions. 

SECTION B: STABILIZED SOIL BASE COURSE 

PART I: GENERAL 

A. DESCRIPTION OF WORK 
1. Extent: It shall be the responsibility of Contractor to provide all labor, 

materials, equipment and tools necessary for the complete installation of a 
cement dust stabilized sub-grade in the specified area as shown on the 
Drawings. 

2. After the removal of all organic material having an organic content of more 
than 25%, the sub-base shall be graded for planarity. 
a. Break-up and or pulverize, similar to lime treatment, existing soil as 

necessary to re-grade the treated area as shown on the Drawings, 
minimum depth of 8 inches. 

b. Using cement, treat those areas no deeper than 8". 
c. Rough grade and compact the mixed material to achieve 98% 

compaction. 
1) Fine grade to specified tolerance. 

B. REQUIRED CONTRACTOR EXPERIENCE 
1. The Contractor shall demonstrate experience on at least two (2) sub-grade 

stabilization projects of the type herein specified. 

PART II: MATERIALS 

A. Portland Cement Oust 
Type-II cement shall conform to the requirements of ASTM C150. 

PART 111: EXECUTION 

A. BASE CONSTRUCTION 
1. The Contractor sha II a pp rove, in writing, the cross-sectiona I detail for 

construction 

B. STABILIZATION OF SUB-GRADE 
1. Apply 10% by volume Portland Cement dust to treatment area and mix in with 

a pulverizing machine. Water as needed to allow setting up of soil cement 
a. Cement shall be 360 pounds per cubic yard 
b. Material shall be mixed thoroughly into the existing top 6" of soil using 

one or more of the following: 
1) Bomag pulverization machine 
2) high speed tiller 

Page 12 

190 of 426



3) plowing disc 
4) rototiller 

2. All work in a designated portion of the field area shall be completed, including 
fine grading, within 24 hours. Cure time of the material is 24 to 72 hours 
without rain. Do not apply if temperature is below 40 degrees F, including 
cure process time. 

3. Rough grade area to+/- 1" tolerance. Compact area with 8-10 ton vibrator 
double drum roller. 

4. Fine grade to a 3/8" tolerance within ten feet, maintaining the existing cross 
slope. Compact with double drum roller. 
a. A leveling course of decomposed granite or crusher dust not larger than 

%" and having a fine content (200 sieve) of not less than 18% can be 
installed at not more than 1" thickness. 

C. QUALITY ASSURANCE 
1. Testing: 

a. The penneability of the sub-base stabilized material shall be checked by 
a registered geotechnical engineer from a sampling of the aggregate 
sieve prior to placing the liner on the base. The permeability shall not 
exca~d %"par hour using a doubla-;ing infiltration tastir.g method (ASTM 
03385). 

b. Testing shall occur after installation and final rolling of the base 
installation at 10,000 square feet intervals. 

c. The Contractor is responsible to meet this performance specification, 
before proceeding with installation of the stone leveling course, and shall 
bear the cost of the on-site testing and the cost of any additional work 
necessary to achieve compliance with the specification. 

d. All test results shall be logged and documented by the owner's Technical 
Representative or Geotechnical Engineer. If at any time the stabilized 
stone base does not meet specifications, it shall be the Contractors 
responsibility to restore, at his expense, the processed stone base to the 
required grade, cross-section and density. 

e. After the contractor has independently confirmed compliance with all the 
above tolerances (planarity and elevation verified by a licensed surveyor 
and compaction, gradation, & permeability verified by Geotechnical 
Engineer), he shall notify the appropriate party and schedule a final 
inspection for approval. The contractor shall make available an orbital 
laser system to the Inspection Team for the inspection process. 

f. All testing fees shall be paid for by the Contractor. 

Page 13 

191 of 426



SECTION C: PERIMETER COLLECTOR DRAINAGE 

PART I: GENERAL 

A. This work consists of the perimeter perforated pipe and drain rock installed in the 
perimeter trench. 

PART II: MATERIALS 

A. Rock shall consist of free-flowing%" minus diameter coarse drain rock. It shall 
comply with the following gradation criteria: 

Mesh size % Passing 

3/4" 
t 

100 l 
5/8 100 

1/2'' 90-100 

3/8" 70-90 

#4 25-40 

#8 15-30 

#30 5-15 

#50 0-7 

#200 I 0-3 

PART lit: QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. The permeability of the aggregate shall be checked by a registered geotechnical 
engineer from a sample of the aggregate sieve prior to shipping the rock to the site. 
In addition, tests shall be coordinated through the Project Manager to test the rock 
in 600 ton increments of shipping. The rock shall have a permeability rate no less 
than 36" per hour and shall be per Din 8035 Part 7, ASTM 2434 {constant head), or 
ASTM 03385 (double- ring) testing methods. In addition to the lab testing, after 
installation of any aggregate base cross-section designed to conduct rainfall from 
the turf to the sub-soils and/or under-drain system shall be tested in situ for 
infiltration rate, using a double-ring infiltrometer (ASTM D-3385-94). The test shall 
be performed in the presence of the Project Manager. The average infiltration rate 
of 12 critical areas of the field, as determined by the Project Manager. shall not be 
less than 48" per hour of vertical water passage per hour, with no one location 
having a rate less than 36" per hour. The Contractor is responsible to meet this in
situ performance specification, before proceeding with the installation of the 
synthetic turf, and shall bear the cost of the on-site testing and the cost of any 
additional work necessary to achieve compliance with the specification. It shall be 
the Contractor's responsibility to restore at his expense, the processed stone base 
to the required grade, cross-section and density. 

B. All testing fees shall be paid for by the Contractor. 

Page 14 

192 of 426



C. The Contractor shall notify the Project Manager and designated City inspector to 
schedule a final inspection for approval of base and subgrade prior to installing 
the synthetic turf. The Contractor shall make available an orbital laser system to 
the inspection team for the inspection process. 

0 . METHODS 
1. UNDERLYING SOIL 

Prior to preparing the site for subgrade foundation and drainage installation, 
all surface turf and vegetation shall be removed and properly disposed of off
site. 

2. SOIL PREPARATION 
The native soil shall be sufficiently irrigated and strafed as required to meet 
the final conditions set forth below. 
Field Contour - Overall surface contour after final grading and compaction 
shall be as indicated in the Construction Documents. 

3. SUBGRADE AND BASE COMPACTION 
After final contouring and rolling, the subgrade soil compaction: 
a. The soil compaction shall be greater than 95% on average, with no 

measurement less than 95%, in accordance with ASTM D-698, based on 
eight (8) samp!es taken at reasonably spaced (pseudo-iandom locations 
across the field surface location). The designated City Inspector may 
modify the exact location in the field depending on field conditions. Where 
site soil is considered expansive, the compaction shall be greater than 
95% on average, with no measurement less than 93%. 

b. Installed compaction of base material shall average 95% minimum 
measured at eight (8) locations reasonable spaced across the field 
surface with no individual measurement less than 90%. The designated 
City inspector may modify the exact location in the field. 

4. SUBGRADE AND BASE PLANARITY 
a. Local soil contour after final compaction and grading shall not have 

deviations in surface shape greater than 3/8" over a 1 O' span. Final 
contour shall be plotted on a table of laser-sighted grade elevations using 
a rectangular grid size appropriate to the area of synthetic turf. Soil grade 
elevations are to be reviewed and approved by the designated City 
inspector prior to installation of the soil isolation fabric. 

b. The finished surface of the compacted and laser-graded base material 
should be set %" below the top surface of the nailer. A graded surface 
tolerance of +/-1/8"' is required along the nailer. 

5. PERIMETER COLLECTOR DRAINAGE PIPE INSTALLATION 
a. Perimeter drainage system shall be coupled with a main drain exit, see 

Construction Drawings. 
b. The perimeter drainage trench is nominally placed 4' inboard of the 

perimeter curbing with a minimum width of 18"and a minimum depth of 
18" (at the "uphill" end of the system). 

Page 15 

193 of 426



c. Surface contour between the drainage trench and perimeter concrete 
curb should be counter-sloped to the field at a minimum of 1% for 
surrounding infiltration or as specified in the provided Construction 
Drawings. 

d. Trenches shall be cleared of all loose debris. 
e. Install perforated HOPE pipe in the perimeter collector trenches. 
f. The centerline of the pipe shall coincide with the centerline of the trench. 
g. A minimum of 4" of the collector trench drain rock shall be placed in the 

bottom of the collector trenches, on top of the specified soil isolation 
fabric. The drainage rock shall be compacted per specification. Fill the 
remainder of the collector trenches with the specified pipe and the 
specified drainage rock to top of subgrade, compacted per specification. 

h. The trench bottoms shall have a drainage slope of 0.5% minimum with a 
preferred slope of 0. 75% throughout the entire system or as specified in 
the provided Construction Drawings. 

SECTION D: PERIMETER CURBING AND TURF ATTACHMENT 

PART I: GENERAL 
A. DESCRIPTION OF WORK: 

1. A continuous foundation grade curbing shall be installed around the entire 
perimeter of the synthetic field. 

2. Curbing shall be primarily composed of foundation grade concrete, with an 
additional polymer composite lumber nailer that will serve as the attachment 
surface for the turf. 

3. Polymer composite 2x4 lumber is attached (concrete nailed) directly to the 
poured concrete curbing then more securely attached using 1/4" diameter 
concrete threaded studs {Tapcons, or equivalent) at 3' maximum spacing. 
The top surface of the nailer should be located 2 inches below the top surface 
of the concrete curbing, or if an additional surface is applied to the concrete 
curbing, then 2 inches below that finish surface. 

4. Curbing can be installed as a "exposed" style with the turf edge adjacent an 
exposed top section of concrete (or other paved surface) or as a "hidden" 
style with the turf edge adjacent and level with soil area (infield for example) 
or other non paved surface. See Construction Documents for exact 
orientation. 

5. Turf is attached directly to the concrete supported polymer composite curbing 
utilizing galvanized fabric studs placed at 8" intervals. 

PART II: QUALITY ASSURANCE I APPROVALS 
A. It is required that the subsurface be properly installed, inspected and approved 

prior to turf installation by the turf company and designated City inspector. 
Finished synthetic base installation workmanship shall be approved in advance 
by the turf manufacturer. Approvals to be based on a physical inspection 
performed at the site prior to installation of any synthetic turf material. 

B. Any approvals sought after turf installation will be declined. Any associated 
repair or replacement costs associated with rework of the synthetic base will be 
the responsibility of the turf supplier/installer. 

Page I 6 

194 of 426



PART Ill: INSTALLATION COMPLETION 
A. Upon completion, the base installer will conduct a thorough inspection and walk

through with the City's Project Manager, Bureau of Construction Administration 
Inspector and Landscape Architect. See inspection requirement in the General 
Conditions and General Requirements of the Contract Documents. This 
inspection is -to ensure that the Contractor has complied with the Contract 
Documents, to identify key features of the installation, and to ensure all details 
meet specifications and performance requirements. 

SECTION E: SYNTHETIC TURF SECTION 

PART I: GENERAL 

A. DESCRIPTION OF WORK 
1. The work under this section includes but is not limited to the installation of the 

geotextile membrane, new synthetic grass system, in-fill materials, in-laid 
markings, perimeter termination and maintenance equipment. 

B. SUBMITT ALS 
1. Installation Qualifications: The synthetic grass sub/contractor shall 

demonstrate experience on at least five (5) installations of the proposed 
material in the last year. The synthetic grass manufacturer shall certify the 
designated supervisory personnel on the project. A letter on the 
manufacturer's letterhead shall be submitted affirming the sub/contractor as 
competent in the installation of the material, including seaming methods, in
laid markings, termination and proper installation of the product. 

2. Synthetic Grass Sample: The Contractor shall submit a 6"X9" sample of the 
synthe1ic grass and in-fill system proposed for this contract for approval of 
colors, in-fill, seaming materials and layout of the system prior to ordering the 
materials. 

3. Warranty: The Contractor shall submit a manufacturer's warranty listing an 
eight (8) year guarantee against ultra-violet ray fading, degradation, or 
defects, such as excessive wear or defibrillation. The guarantee shall include 
and cover that the product will not decrease in pile height by more than 15%, 
decrease in face weight (without in-fill) by more than 20% and not exceed a 
G-max (force reduction) of 110 G's initially and not exceed 140 G's over the 
guarantee period. The Contractor is required to perform the necessary testing 
during a scheduled time at least one time per year during the guarantee 
period. The results of the testing shall be submitted to the City of Los Angeles 
project manager within 30 days of each test. Failure to submit the results will 
serve as notice to perform such testing by the City of Los Angeles to 
determine the extent of the needs under this guarantee. 

The Contractor is required under this guarantee to supply and install all in-fill 
materials and synthetic grass to maintain the performance levels of this 
guarantee. 

Page 17 

195 of 426



4. Testing and Quality Control: Submit to the Project Manager a copy of the 
results certified by an independent testing laboratory for the following tests 
performed on the synthetic grass system. 

5. Fiber shall be Parallel Slit Film with nylon monofilament thatch layer. 

6. All material shall be constructed using the C-8 resin technology. 

7. Pile Yarn Type 62 oz. Slit Film with 18 oz. nylon mono 
filament fiber thatch layer 

Yarn Denier 
Yarn Breaking Strength 
Yarn Melting Point 
Pile Height 
Pile Weight 
Total Weight 
Backing Perforations 
Tuft Bind {Without in-fill) 
Tuft Bind (With in-fill) 
Grab Tear Strength 
Impact Attenuation 
Pill Burn Test 

ASTM D-1577 
ASTM D-2256 
ASTM D-789 
ASTM D-418 
ASTM D-418 
ASTM D-418 
ASTM D-418 
ASTM D-1335 
ASTM D-1335 
ASTM D-1682 
ASTM D-355 
ASTM D-2859 

***FTIR Lisport Test: .Pile composition (this is not necessary and would take 14 
days to perform. The fibers have already been tested. So we can request this 
test at the time of submittals 

8. Maintenance and Operating Data: Submit to the Project Manager a copy of 
maintenance and operating data for the synthetic grass system. Provide 
descriptions of all equipment recommended for the maintenance, repair, 
citing turf and activities not recommended relative to the warranty. Include 
maintenance recommendations including coverings for special events, small 
repair procedures, minor seam repair, discussion of the precautions to be 
practiced, general maintenance and uses to avoid to protect the turf system. 

9. Site Acceptance: As a part of this contract, this contractor shall be 
responsible to oversee the installation of the base and drainage and to 
comment on any problems or conflicts that may be discovered. Upon 
completion of the base work, submit a letter confirming the site inspection has 
been performed, noting any discrepancies. problems and/or conflicts. A 
summary of certification of the acceptance of the base and drainage shall be 
submitted. 

C. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR LAYOUT AND RULES 
1. All markings shall be performed using selected colors of turf materials. 

D. FIELD SLOPE 

Page I 8 

196 of 426



1. Each field shall be installed with a SLOPED surface. The slope of the field 
may not exceed a finish profile of 0.75% grade for the Base Bid. This will be 
maintained throughout. Any modification to this slope shall be submitted in 
advance to the Project Manager for final review and approval. 

E. DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
Packing and Shipping: Deliver products in original unopened packaging with 
legible manufacturers' identification. All materials shall be stored in a dry place 
out of the direct sunlight. 

1. Bulk Materials: Deliver materials in clean, washed and covered trucks to 
eliminate contamination during transportation. On site stockpiling locations to 
be coordinated with the City of Los Angeles. Stockpile only in areas free of 
debris and away from drainage routes. Cover all materials with plastic or 
geotextile if materials are to be stockpiled more than 48 hours. 

F. FIELD SYSTEM HOLD HARMLESS 
The contractor shall hold the City of Los Angeles, Project Manager and Field 
Consultant harmless from infringement of any current or future patent issued for 
the synthetic grass system, fibers, backings, including shock pad (as required), 
installation methods and vertical draining characteristics. The successful 
Proposer will be required io submii a ieiier for conseni from their surety. Surety 
will indemnify the requirements. 

G. FIELD DIMENSIONS AND LAYOUT 
The Contractor will be responsible for furnishing, setting and marking all lines, 
seams and markings for the field. The Contractor shall at all times maintain all 
necessary benchmarks and control points to locate all events and markings. 

H. PROTECTION OF UTILITIES AND STRUCTURES 
This Contractor shall take special care to protect all field and stadium structures 
and utilities. 

I. WARRANTY OF SYNTHETIC GRASS SYSTEM 
1. The Warranty/Guarantee shall cover, in general, the usability of the turf 

system (and pad as required); accessories use characteristics and suitability 
of the installation. All items covered by the warranty are to be replaced or 
repaired with new materials, including installation at the sole expense of the 
warranting contractor for a period of eight (8) years to the City of Los Angeles 
from the date of substantial completion. The field materials shall be 
guaranteed for the designated uses as follows: 
a. Marching Band 
b. Football 
c. Soccer 
d. Physical Trustees exercises 
e. Physical Trustees activities 
f. Lacrosse 
g. Field Hockey 

Page 19 

197 of 426



h. Rugby 
i. Pneumatic rubber tired maintenance and service equipment 
j. Pedestrian traffic and other similar uses 

2. A principal of the applicable firm, duly authorized to make contracts, shall 
sign the turf contractor warranty. The term "contractor" contained herein 
means the firm furnishing the warranty. "Owner" is the City of Los Angeles. If 
the turf manufacturer of the synthetic grass system is not the same entity as 
the contractor, the warranty shall be co-signed by the manufacturer and the 
installation contractor. 

J. FORM OF WARRANTY OF THE SYNTHETIC GRASS SYSTEM 
1. Contractor hereby warrants to the City of Los Angeles, subject to the 

limitations and conditions set forth below, that its synthetic grass system 
consisting of the synthetic turf described as , the 
shock-absorbing under-pad (if necessary) described as 
________ , and the adhesives used in the installation, are free 
from defects in material and workmanship and shall, for a period of eight (8) 
years from the date of acceptance by the City of Los Angeles, remain 
serviceable for the activities as listed above. 

2. Contractor warrants to the City of Los Angeles that its synthetic grass 
materials shall not fade, fail, shrink, wrinkle or reflect excessive wear. 
Contractor shall, at their sole expense and cost, replace such areas of the 
synthetic grass system not performing to these standards for the life of the 
warranty. 

3. Definitions: 
a. The term "not fade" in the context of this warranty shall mean that the 

synthetic grass material remain a uniform shade of green or the other 
colors installed with no significant loss of color as defined by not greater 
than 20% loss or shade reduction. 

b. The term "not fail" or "excessive wear" as used in the context of this 
warranty shall mean that the length and weight of the face yarn or pile 
material in the synthetic turf surface shall not have been decreased by 
more than 8% per year according to ASTM 0418, nor exceed 20% during 
the warranty period. In the event that the synthetic turf materials do not 
retain its fiber height or shock absorbency and is consequently no longer 
serviceable during the warranty period, the Contractor shall, at their sole 
expense, replace such portions of the system that are no longer 
serviceable. 

c. The term "serviceable" in the context of this warranty shall mean that the 
synthetic turf material shall have a maximum '"G" force value according to 
Procedure A, B, or C of ASTM 0355, not exceed 110 G's at any location 
upon installation and shall not exceed 140 G's thereafter throughout the 
life of the warranty period. This shall be determined by conducting 
dynamic cushioning tests at the six field locations as required per ASTM 
0355 procedures. "G" force factor values to be determined at 70 degrees 
F. Any increase from 110 G's to allowable 140 G's maximum shall be at a 
relatively uniform rate not to exceed 10 G's in any single year. 

Page I 10 

198 of 426



4. Where applicable, the fabric shall adhere firmly and completely to the under 
pad or seaming tape over the entire warranty period. 

5. Contractor warrants to the City of Los Angeles that the permeable synthetic 
turf system shall drain vertically a minimum of 10 inches precipitation per 
hour for a maximum of 24 hours continuously, without visible surface 
ponding. 

6. Contractor shall replace with new materials, at their sole expense, any 
damage to the synthetic grass system, which extends more than one meter 
beyond the location of foreign combustibles, which may ignite, and fire
damage the synthetic grass system. The Contractor shall not be held 
responsible for any incidental or consequential damages. These warranties 
and the Contractor's obligations here-under are expressly conditioned upon: 

a. The City of Los Angeles making all minor repairs to the synthetic grass 
system upon the discovery of the need for such repairs. 

b. The City of Los Angeles maintaining and properly caring for the synthetic 
grass system in accordance with the Contractor's maintenance manual 
and instructions. 

c. The City of Los Angeles complying with the dynamic and static load 
specifications estabiished by the Contractor. 

7. The warranty is not to cover any defect, failure, damage or undue wear in or 
to the synthetic grass system caused by or connected with abuse, neglect, 
deliberate acts, acts of God, casualty, static or dynamic loads exceeding 
Contractor's recommendations. 

8. Contractor shall examine the synthetic turf system at least once per year or in 
regards to any claim that the City of Los Angeles makes to be present at any 
time, to analyze the results of all tests conducted by the City of Los Angeles 
or others, and to conduct such tests of their own. Contractor shall not be 
responsible for any costs or expenses incurred by the City of Los Angeles or 
others with respect to such tests, except the Contractor shall pay for costs of 
all tests and analysis conducted or directed by their representative. The 
annual testing will be at the expense of the Contractor and the results 
delivered to the City of Los Angeles within 60 days of the testing. 

9. In the event the Contractor does not respond to the City of Los Angeles's 
written notice within 1 O ·days of receipt of the notice or does not submit, 
schedule and execute corrective work within 60 days {weather permitting). 
the City of Los Angeles has the option of having the work performed at the 
expense of the Contractor. 

10. The Contractor will be given 7 days notice in the form of a certified letter 
notifying the Contractor of the end of the 60 day scheduling period. 

11. Sample form of warranty herein set forth is a suggested for use for the work 
under this section. Manufacturers' standard form of warranty may be used 

Page 111 

199 of 426



provided conditions specified herein are incorporated. All claims by the City of 
Los Angeles under this warranty must be made in writing to the Contractor's 
address. 

Within 30 days after the City of Los Angeles learns of the defect, giving rise to 
the claim. This warranty shall constitute a contract made in the State of 
California and shall be governed by the laws of that State. 

PART II: MATERIALS 

A. GENERAL 
1. The field surfacing system shall be a vertically draining permeable synthetic 

grass system consisting of a synthetic grass like pile that shall be tufted into a 
triple layer synthetic backing. The final coating shall be a polyurethane based 
material. 

2. The suppliers listed are capable vendors for the specified material. This 
specification will supersede any references to the vendors' specifications or 
product literature. The specification is meant to identify the quality and 
quantity of the specific components and performance results. Any material 
exceeding the specifications shall be considered as an equal. Any material 
with variations from the specifications shall be approved by the Owner prior to 
acceptance under this specification and contract. 

The Synthetic Grass Producers: 
a. Shaw Sports Surface, by Shaw Industries, Dalton, GA 
b. ACT Global, Austin, TX 
c. Domo Sports Grass, Dalton, GA 
d. Astroturf, Dalton, GA 
e. Hellas Construction, Leander, TX 
f. Sprinturf, LLC, Marietta, GA 
g. Equal Producers approved by the City of Los Angeles only 

3. The entire system shall be resistant to weather, insects, rot, mildew, fungus 
growth and be non-allergenic and non-toxic. The entire system shall be 
constructed to maximize dimensional stability, to resist damage and normal 
wear and tear from its designated uses and to minimize the ultra-violet 
degradation. 

4. All adhesives used in bonding the system together shall be resistant to 
moisture, bacterial and fungus attacks, and resistant to ultra-violet rays at any 
location upon installation. 

5. Include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and services to install 
complete all-weather synthetic grass system. 

6. Zeolite Infill: as supplied by ZeoFill, Product lead time is 30 days minimum. 
Contact Brian Pierce 760.300.3920 ext. 1001. Mesh size 12 - 20. 
• General Chemical Formula Na6[Al6Si30072]24H20 

Page 112 

200 of 426



• Clinoptilolite Content 
• Cation Exchange Capacity (CEC) 
• Form 
• Shape 
• Color 
• Pore Diameter 
• Specific Gravity 
• Bulk Density 
• pH (natural) 
• Alkali Stability 
• Acid Stability 
• Hardness 
• Swelling Index 

97%+ 
1.6-2.0 meg/g 
Granules 
Angular 
Gray-green 
4.0 - 7.0 angstroms 
1.89 
50 - 65 lbs/ft3 
7.0 
pHof7-10 
pH of 3- 7 
4.2 - 4.5 Mohs 
Nil 

B. DYNAMIC CUSHIONING REQUIREMENTS OF THE SYNTHETIC GRASS 
SYSTEM 
1. Acceptable manufacturers I systems of drain-mat, or approved equal (to be 

installed over the impermeable liner fabric): 
a. UltraBase Champion series, by UltraBaseSystems, St. Petersburg, FL 

(866) 921-7888. 
b. Brock Systems, POINet13ase Series, by Brock USA, Boulder, CO, "!t:!ft!..::.. 

Brockusa.com (877)276-2587. Brock Power Base: 0.95" thick. 
c. ProPlay 23D, by Schmidt Foam. 
d. ThermaGreen, Sportlite 23mm thickness, (877} 782-4492. 

2. The dynamic cushioning of the combined turf and in-fill system (and pad if 
required) shall not exceed a maximum of 110 G's at 70 degrees F. per ASTM 
1936-98, F355, Procedure A at any location within 30 days of the installation. 
The system shall not exceed 140 G's over the warranty period. 

3. Packing and Shipping: Deliver products in original unopened packaging with 
legible manufacturers' identification. All materials shall be stored in a dry 
place out of the direct sunlight. 

4. The in-fill system shall have not less than 2 pounds of Zeolite, 12 - 20 mesh 
sieve size. 
a. The material shall have a MOHS hardness of 4.2 to 4.8. 

C. PERMEABILITY REQUIREMENTS OF THE SYNTHETIC GRASS SYSTEM 
1. The combined turf, in-fill system and pad shall drain vertically at a minimum 

of 10 inches of precipitation per hour for 24 hours continuously, without 
visible surface ponding. 

D. ADHESIVE MATERIAL PROPERTIES 
1. Adhesive material to adhere the synthetic turf shall be: 

a. 34-G adhesive as manufactured by Synthetic Surfaces, Inc. of Scotch 
Plains, NJ. 

Page 113 

201 of 426



b. StaBond (one part adhesive), By StaBond adhesive, Gardena, CA. 
c. Mapai Ultrabond PU 1 K(single component), Mapai, Deerfield Beach, FL 
d. The adhesive shall be applied at the rate not to exceed 60 square feet per 

gallon. 
e. Hot melt glue method using National Adhesives (281) 731-8949 Product 

#34-5637. 

2. The adhesive shall have the same warranty period as the synthetic grass 
system. 

E. SYNTHETIC TURF PILE SURFACE 
1. The pile surface shall provide good traction in all types of weather with the 

use of conventional "sneaker type shoes" and composition, molded sole 
athletic shoes. The pile surface shall be suitable for both temporary and 
permanent line. Markings and permanent markings using a rubber base paint 
where applicable. 

2. The pile height shall be constructed to allow a total of 3/4" of free fiber after 
the in-fill materials are installed. 

F. SYNTHETIC TURF SYSTEM MATERIAL COMPONENTS 
1. Pile fibers sh~ll resemble freshly grown natural grass in appearance, texture 

and color (except for the color turf for markings). 

2. Fibers shall be a combination of 31% parallel slit film (1.5mm pattern) having 
a denier of 100 micron (before the oven), 31% monofilament having a denier 
of not less than 1200 and 230 micron (before the oven) of 100% polyethylene 
fiber with 18% nylon (500 denier) monofilament as a thatch zone. Total fiber 
weight shall be not less than 80 ounces per square yard. 

3. Pile surface shall be nominally uniform in length not less than 1-3/4". 

4. The fibers are tufted through a two layer (one woven and one non-woven) 
synthetic backing material. 

5. The final coating or secondary backing shall be a moisture cure polyurethane. 
This backing shall be not less than 20 ounces. Latex backing material is not 
acceptable. The secondary backing or polyurethane coating shall be uniform 
and monolithic when cured. 

6. If sewn, all turf seams shall be constructed of reinforced backing material or 
sewn with high strength polyester fiber cord. Sewn seams shall be a "double 
loop stitch" (bagger seams are not acceptable) type seam. Seams shall lay 
flat after in-fill. 

7. All glued seams shall have a 12" wide seaming tape of nylon or Mylar, fully 
coated with adhesive. All seams shall not have any adhesive applied to any 
exposed fibers. All graphics or markings can be in-laid or cut-in. 

Page 114 

202 of 426



8. All turf shall be perforated for drainage after the final backing coating. The 
perforations shall be not less than 1/4" in diameter and have a uniform 
spacing of not less than 4" on center. Perforations shall be complete and full 
diameter for a minimum of 95% of the each roll. 

9. On-site perforations are to be inspected prior to installation of the product. 

1 O. Fabric surface shall be constructed and installed in minimum widths of 15 feet 
with no longitudinal or transverse seams, except for inlaid lines with a finished 
roll assembly. The seams shall be 15'-0" apart and shall have the white 5-
yard line tufted into each panel for the full width of the field. Rolls that do not 
comply with the proper length or conform to the seaming diagram as 
submitted prior to the installation, shall be rejected from the site. No fitted 
pieces will be allowed to true alignment. 

G. PERFORMANCE AND TEST REQUIREMENTS 
1. Melting Point ASTM D789 135 degrees C. 

2. Specific Gravity 

3. Breaking Strength 

4. Coefficient of Friction 

5. Pill Burn Test 

6. Tuft Bind (without in-fill) 
Tuft Bind (with in-fill) 

7. Pile Height 

8. Fiber Face Weight 

9. Fiber Construction 

10. Gauge Width 

ASTM 0792 .950 to .960 

ASTM 05034 Length 283 lbs./ft. 
Width 208 lbs. /ft. 

ASTM 05034 Dry 1.15 Wet 1.00 

ASTM D2859 8 Passed/O Failed 

ASTM 01335 8 lbs./sq.ft. 

ASTM 01335 22 lbs./sq.ft. 

ASTM 0418 1-3/4" minimum 

ASTM D418 80 oz./sq. yard total 

ASTM 0418 Fibers shall be a combination 
of 62 oz. parallel slit film 
(1.5mm pattern} having a 
denier of 100 micron (before 
the oven) with 18oz. nylon 
(500 denier) monofilament as 
a thatch zone. Total fiber 
weight shall be not less than 
80 ounces per square yard. 

ASTM 0418 3/16" but not more than 1/4" 
max. 

Page 115 

203 of 426



11 . Fiber Denier 

12 Fiber Thickness 

13. Fibers (Yarn): 
a. Strenex, by Shaw: Color 

shall be Field Green 

ASTM 0418 Slit film 10,000 Denier 
Monofilament PE 1200 
Nylon Thatch 500 

ASTM 0418 Slit film100 microns 
Monofilament 230 microns 
Nylon 80 microns 
(minimum thickness) before 
the oven. 

b. Bonar Ultra HD: Color shall 
be Sport Green 

c. Dr. Karl Wetekam & Co. 
Narnberger Strate 30-32 
Melsungen, Hessen 34212 
Germany 
Phone: 0049-5661-73770 

d. Radici Group, Italy 
e. Matrix Velocity, by Hellas, 

Austin, TX 

14. Secondary 
Backing 

ASTM 0418 20 oz. Non-filled Polyurethane 
(CLEAR) 

H. Post Installation Testing Requirements: 
After the installation the Contractor shall have the field tested for performance 
within two weeks of completion. The test shall be the ASTM F-355 Shock 
Attenuation (Gmax). The testing laboratory will be required to test each field in 20 
locations as determined by the City or shown on the drawing. At each location the 
Gmax level will be recorded in addition to the infill depth measurement. 

I. Post Installation Testing Requirements: 
1. After the installation the Contractor shall have the field tested for 

performance within two weeks of completion. 
2. The testing requirements shall be according to the STC (Synthetic Turf Council) 

and in conformance with the FIFA Quality Concept. 
3. TESTS: 

a. Ball Roll: 6 to 1 O meters 
b. Ball Bounce: 60 to 100 centimeters 
c. Force Reduction: 55 to 70 
d. Deformation: 8to12 mm 
e. Torque: 25 to 50 ka/ 
f. Traction: 120 to 180 
i. Evenness: 9mm within 3m straiohtedoe I 

j. Gm ax: 110 to120 (initial) 
k. Seams: All Seams are checked for i 

' 

Page 116 

204 of 426



I. Infill De th: 

4. Testing Laboratories: 
a. All in-situ field performance testing shall be performed by a FIFA certified 

laboratory 
b. Laboratories. 

1) Labosport Inc, Montreal, Canada +1(514)277-9111 
2) Sports Labs USA, Seattle, WA (508) 259-0030 

J. MARKINGS 
1. A complete field lining, marking and field boundary system with team areas 

limits, etc. shall be provided with the initial installation. Layouts shall be 
accurately surveyed and marked prior to installation. 

2. All lines, numbers and field markings except one-yard marks are to be tufted 
or inlaid with the specific colored turf. All markings shall be uniform in color, 
providing a sharp contrast with the turf color and shall have sharp and distinct 
edging. Markings shall be true and shall not vary more than 1/2" from 
specified width and location. 

3. Manufacturer is to guarantee that the synthetic fiber is adaptable to painted 
lines. 

4. Minimum Lining and Markings: All Green Field area with white, red and 
yellow as indicated on the drawings for soccer markings. 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

A. INSTALLATION 
1. Perform all work in strict accordance to the drawings, shop drawings and 

manufacturer's specifications and instructions. 
2. Verification: The Contractor is responsible for the inspecting, verifying and 

completing all installed work of this section. 
3. Weather Permitted Conditions: The Contractor shall not perform any work if any 

of the following conditions exist; 
a. Ambient air temperatures are below 45 degrees F. 
b. Material temperature falls below 45 degrees F. 
c. Rain is forecast or falling 
d. Conditions exist or are pending that will be unsuitable to the installation of the 

system. 

B. CERTIFICATION OF THE BASE INSTALLATION 
1. THE BASE AND DRAINAGE, THE Contractor is responsible for the review and 

acceptance of the base and drainage. 
2. Upon completion of the base, this contractor shall submit the acceptance of the 

base in written form, noting any deficiencies. 

C. DELIVERY AND INSPECTION OF MATERIALS 
Prior to the installation of any materials and immediately upon delivery of the 
synthetic turf system and components to the project site, the Contractor shall 
inspect/verify the following: 
1. Damaged or defective items 

Page 117 

205 of 426



3. Appropriate turf pile height and roll lengths 
4. Uniformity of perforations 
5. Arrival of adhesives in sealed dry containers 
6. Arrival of in-fill with a dry, loose condition, and contained in large sacks or bags 

without tears 

D. CITY OF LOS ANGELES TESTING 
1. The City of Los Angeles reserves the right to submit any material, either before 

or after installation to any testing it deems necessary to satisfy the conditions of 
this contract. 

2. Any material tested and found not in compliance with the contract will be rejected 
and replaced with material conforming to the specifications. This will be done at 
the sole expense of the contractor. 

3. Any testing performed by the City of Los Angeles will be at the City of Los 
Angeles's expense. The contractor is responsible for the cost of all testing the 
fails. 

E. TURF INSTALLATION 
1. After acceptance of the base materials, any turf material with less than the 20 oz. 

secondary backing shall have a the 6 oz. non-woven geotextile membrane is 
installed under each area of the panel, the synthetic turf is staged and unrolled 
as necessary for a daily installation. No material will be allowed to be unrolled 24 
hours prior to installation. If a shock pad is required, the in-situ pad can be 
installed over the accepted base. Control of the finish grade and contour shall be 
the responsibility of the contractor. 

2. Seams 
a. All panel seams shall be securely sewn using a double stitch bagger seam 

and/or glued to a backing material of nylon or mylar. 
b. All panel seams spacing are to be held to a minimum of 15 feet unless prior 

approval of seaming diagram indicates a lesser panel. 
c. All inlaid areas shall have full fastenings and no loose areas. At no time can 

pulling on the section separate the material. 
d. All seams and inlaid areas shall be brushed thoroughly before infill materials 

are installed. 

3. Turf Edges and Termination 
All edges and ends of the turf shall be secured to a termination area. This 
termination shall be as detailed in the drawings. The contractor shall submit a 
shop drawing of this termination detail prior to any work on the site. 

F. LINES, MARKINGS AND IN-LAID TURF 
1. See drawings for locations and colors of lines, in-laid turf, and (if applicable) 

logos. 
• All lines to be 4" wide 

G. INSTALLATION OF IN-FILL 
1. In-fill material shall consist of 2 lbs. per square foot of Zeolite. Zeolite must be 

approved by the city's third party inspector prior to installation. 

Page 118 

206 of 426



2. The in-fill material shall be installed to a depth that results, after finish brushing, 
in an exposed fiber length of not less than 3/4". 

3. This contractor shall be required to return to the site after not less than 30 days 
to inspect and add in-fill materials as needed. 

4. No in-fill materials shall be installed until the turf system is fully installed with all 
lines and markings. 

5. The entire synthetic turf installation shall be thoroughly brushed with a minimum 
of 1 O passes to remove any wrinkles and defibrillate the slit film prior to the 
installation of the in-fill material. 

6. The in-fill materials shall be installed in layers not to exceed 0.375 pound per 
square foot per layer. 

7. The turf shall remain free draining at all times: before, during and after the in-fill 
materials are installed. 

H. GENERAL CLEANUP 
1. The site shall be kept clean and free of debris throughout the installation. Empty 

barreis, sacks, bags and remnant materiais shaii be appropriately and iegaiiy 
stored or disposed of daily. 

2. After completion of the entire project, all debris remaining that is not a part of the 
final project shall be removed from the site. 

SECTION F: WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE 

PART I: SYNTHETIC TURF SYSTEM: 

A. GENERAL 
1. The Contractor shall be required to issue a non-prorated guarantee for 100% 

of all labor, materials, workmanship and services for the Synthetic Surface 
and Markings for: 

2. Synthetic Grass System for a period of eight (8) years. This warranty will be 
not be subject to pro-rating of the surface for any failure due to installation or 
materials. The surface wear will be determined by an independent consultant 
acceptable to all parties. 

3. The guarantee for the surface systems shall remain in force for a period of 
not less than eight (8) Years specified from the date of written acceptance of 
the work. 

a. The Owner will notify the contractor in writing of any issues that require 
remedial work on the field area. 

b. The Contractor shall respond to the notification within 48 hours of receipt 
and schedule any major defect or repair within 72 hours or as weather 

Page 119 

207 of 426



permits. 
c. The warranty requires that 1he contractor shall be required to perform all 

required repairs in a permanent and suitable manner as deemed 
necessary 1o maintain a safe playing condition at all times. 

d. The warranty requires that in case of any major repair or replacement, the 
contractor is to schedule such work as to not interfere with the Owner's 
primary use or schedule. 

e. Any replacement or repair area shall match (as close as possible) the 
appearance of 1he existing turf. 

f. Failure to service the requirements of this warranty will be charge to the 
contractor. 

4. Any defects caused by delamination, peeling, normal abrasion or raveling 
that is not in original conformance with the testing specifications shall be 
repaired or replaced at no cost to 1he City of Los Angeles Department of 
Recreation and Parks during this guarantee period. 

a. In addition to the Contractor's warranty, the contractor shall be required to 
submit the following documents in regard to the guarantee: 

1) Provide an EIGHT (8) year warranty for the turf product from the 
manufacturer for all work performed under this contract. 

2) Provide an EIGHT (8) year warranty for the fibers from the fiber 
manufacturer for all work performed under this contract. 

3) Provide an EIGHT (8) year surfacing manufacturer and installer 
written guarantee for the synthetic grass. 

4) Provide an EIGHT (8) year third party insured warranty issued by a 
company licensed to do business in the State of California. This 
company shall have a Best rating of A- or more. The limits of the 
policy shall not be less than $5,000,000.00 per year with a single limit 
of not less than $500,000.00 per field (not site). 

5) The City of Los Angeles shall be listed as additionally insured. 
6) There will be no a deductible allowance for this policy. 
7) Documents shall be submitted to the City of Los Angeles Department 

of Recreation and Parks prior to final payment. 

5. The Contractor will be responsible for all tests that fail the specification. The 
City of Los Angeles reserves the right to submit the surface to the above tests 
at any time during the length of the guarantee. Consideration will be given to 
the time and use of the surface. 

6. This warranty does not cover excessive wear of the surface caused by 
misuse. The City of Los Angeles will be given an instructions and caretaking 
procedures before final acceptance. This is to follow the maintenance 
guidelines as specified by the surfacing manufacturer. 

Page 120 

208 of 426



CONCRETE 
PERIMETER 

CURB PER 
PLAN 

ADJACENT 
FINISH GRADE 

NOTE: 

--..... ~- ~, WEATHER TURF-";<" '\ 
ALL EOLITE INFILL ·! 

;;'~~~~ECIFICATIONS ~- UNDERLAYMENTPAD 

~;~;.,..·-~ ,, 

COMPACTED SUBGRADE 
(90% AVERAGE COMPACTION) 

\:-:<:-~~~~;\ ... "~:~::~:~ "--1" THICK LEVELING COURSE 

'"\'·\~.-::::-\;:·:".:;._.·'::::~.')~ 8" THICK CEMENT STABILIZED 

NOTE: 
GRADE BElWEEN CONCRETE 
PERIMETER CURB AND 
DRAINAGE TRENCH SHOULD BE 
COUNTER-SLOPED TO THE 
FIELD PER ELEVATIONS ON 
GRADING PLANA 

( ------, 
36"TYP 

' ' '\ 
BASE 

..____ IMPERMEABLE ISOLATION 

'\ 

' ' ' \ 
' 

FABRIC LINER PER 
SPECIFICATIONS 

' ' ' 
SLOPE PER ', 
GRADING PLAN Y.,,,... - ..... ' 

-------/ ' 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~,~1~·;1.,n~-~~' i"~~~·-~~~~~~~J!~~ 

-~--PERMEABLE ISOLATION FABRIC 

~ LINER. SEE NOTE NO. 2 

'I; 8" ADS, N-12 PERFORATED HDPE 
-¥------;it*- DRAIN PIPE OR APPROVED EQUAL. 

1. SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR MATERIAL QUALITY 

AND OTHER INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS. 

36" SEE GRADING PLAN FOR INVERT ELEV. 

2. USE IMPERMEABLE ISOLATION FABRIC LINER 

WHEN SOIL CONDITIONS REQUIRE. SEE PLANS. 

j TYPICAL TURF PROFILE AND PERIMETER DRAINAGE 
N.T.S. j CJA 3.19.1s lRP DETAIL 209 of 426



 

 

Date:  March 19, 2015 

 

To:   Mahmood Karimzadeh, Principal Architect 

   Bureau of Engineering, Architectural Division 

 

   Neil Drucker, Envirn Affrs OFC/PM III 

   Bureau of Engineering, Recreational and Cultural Facilities 

 

From:  Cathie Santo Domingo, Superintendent 

Department of Recreation and Parks: Planning, Construction, and 

Maintenance Division 

    

Subject: Revisions to Synthetic Turf Specifications and Detail 

 

 

In an effort to continue to provide top quality installations of our synthetic turf fields, the 

Department of Recreation and Parks has incorporated significant upgrades to our 

synthetic turf specifications.   These upgrades include changes to the in-fill material, the 

synthetic turf, the sub-base structure, and the cushioning technology.  The latest version 

of the specifications and an updated detail (both to be considered living documents) are 

attached. 

 

Please ensure that all synthetic turf projects not currently in construction incorporate the 

new specifications, and that projects in construction are evaluated on a case by case basis 

for change order feasibility to comply with the new specifications. 

 

You may contact Robert Oyakawa at 213/202-2646 or robert.oyakawa@lacity.org for 

any needed clarifications. 

 

 

 

cc:  Bill Lee, Jim Newsom 

 

attachments:  Synthetic Turf Specifications, Synthetic Turf Detail 

 

210 of 426

mailto:robert.oyakawa@lacity.org


 

 

From: Douglas E. Coulter [mailto:dcoulter@afesports.com]  
Sent: Monday, February 08, 2016 4:49 PM 
To: Ali Cayir <ali.cayir@transtech.org>; mallen@cityofcudahyca.gov 
Cc: 'Joe' <dgeronimo@aol.com>; 'Jeff Fenton' <jfenton@afesports.com> 
Subject: RE: CUDAHY-REQUEST FOR QUOTES FOR ALL WEATHER TURF PER CITY OF LA SPEC 
 
Michael, 
 
Attached please find Lugo quote for City of L.A. Recreation and Parks turf Spec. which includes DT-32 turf from 
Astroturf, Pro Play 20mm shock pad, and  Zeo-Fill for the infill. 
Specification and  additional information for all products included.   
Please call or email with any questions. 
 
Best Regards 

 
 

Douglas Coulter 
President 

AFE SPORTS 
2683 Lime Avenue Signal Hill CA 90755 

O:562.981.2508 
F:562.997.4109 
M:310.261.3837 
emai l :  mai lto :dcoul ter@afesports.com  
www.afesports.com 
 

 
 

 
 
 

211 of 426

mailto:dcoulter@afesports.com
www.afesports.com
mallen
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



February 1, 2016 

To: Interested Artificial Turf Vendors 

Subject: City of Cudahy request for Price quotes to furnish and install "City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf' at 
Lugo Park In the City of Cudahy 

City of Cudahy is requesting from interested Vendors a price quote to furnish and install "City of Los Angeles Spec All 
Weather Turf' at Lugo Park in the City of Cudahy. Lugo Park is located at 7810 Otis Avenue, Cudahy, CA 90201 (north
east corner of Otis Avenue and Elizabeth Street). 

Soccer field play area is: 
300' x 150' = 45,000 sf 

Total turf area with additional side areas Is: 
330' x 165' = 54,450 sf 

Provide all labor, equipment and materials to 
install 
City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf 

with Zeolite Infill (1.75 lbs per sf), 
Underlayment Pad and Impermeable 

Isolation Fabric Liner per Attached 

Specifications. 

Price shall also include installation of soccer 
lines, and all transportation of materials and 
8 year Warranty as specified in the attached 
City of LA specifications. 

City will construct the field with necessary 
grading, base perimeter drainage pipe and 
curbs for the uCity of Los Angeles Spec All 
Weather Turf' installation under separate 
contract. 

-~COllP~_',..,.'. .. ·"~~3'.:'}--._~":r= 
NO'TE: 
G!W>EllE1WEENCONCRETE 
PERlllE1n CURB AND 
DRAlNAGE TRENCH SHOUlDBE 
COUNTER..sLOPED TO THE 
FIElD PER ELEVATIONS ON 
GRADING PIAN. A 
( --~ 

36"TVP 

ISOlATION 

'r THla<LAYERQF %' CRUSHEl> 
WASHED STONE (!111% COMPACTION) 
~·CRUSHED WASHED STONE 
(00% COMPACTION) 

NOTE: ,i.... __ ...:;,--tr' ADS ..... 2 PERFORATED HDPE 
DRAIN Pll'6 OR APPROVED EQUAL 

I. SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR MATE!RIAI. QUAU1Y SEE GRADING PlAN FOR INVERT ELEV. 
AND OTHER INSTALLATION REQI llREMENTS. 
2. USE IMP£RMEABlE ISOLATION FABRIC LINER 
WHEN sen. COND1TIONS REQUIRE. SEE PlANS. 

TYPICAL TURF PROFILE AND PERIMETER DRAINAGE 
N.T.S. 

Total Price to provide All Weather Turf in full compliance with City of lA Specs: ~57, <!>/(,. 

o With the price quote, submit your product specifications and a statement that your product is in full compliance with 
the attached City of LA Specs. 

o Price shall include taxes and all other costs. City may purchase the above thru CMAS or similar purchasing systems or 
per City of LA prices. 

o The selected vendor shall have the turf material ready and start the installation within 45 calendar days of City's 
approval of the purchase order, and complete the installation within 20 calendar days thereafter. 

The City will utlllze an independent Expert Turf Consultant (Joe DiGeronimo) to respond to any questions you may have, 
and to review the submitted information for compliance with the City of LA All Weather Turf Specs, and make a decision 
in the best interest of the City. The City will also utilize the Independent Expert Turf Consultant (Joe DiGeronimo) for the 
plant inspection, material testing to ensure the material is provided and installed in compliance with the attached City of 
LA specifications. 

212 of 426



City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf” at Lugo Park 
7810 Otis Ave. ,Cudahy Ca. Lic: A-747934

2/8/2016
Revised 2/8/2016

Qty Unit Per Unit Total Notes

1.0 Synthetic Turf

1.1 Furnish and Install AstroTurf DT-32 and Zeo-Fill 54,450                 sf

Includes 8 year warranty $279,509.00

1.2 Proplay 20mm and drain mat and shock pad 54,450                 Sf

$77,506.00

Project is based on Prevailing  Wages 

Grand Total $357,015

For Scope and Qualification Questions: Please contact Jeff Fenton… 562.997.4129

The terms and conditions and specific bid inclusions and exclusions to be provide upon final drawings.

of

Date Signature Name and Title Company Name

[MUST BE AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OR PERSON WITH CONTRACT SIGNING AUTHORITY)

Agreed {signed}

Lugo Park2683 Lime Ave.
Signal Hill, CA 90755
p. 562.997.4129 / f. 562.997.4109

213 of 426



City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf” at Lugo Park 
7810 Otis Ave. ,Cudahy Ca. Lic: A-747934

2/8/2016

Qty Unit Per Unit Total Notes

1.0 Synthetic Turf

1.1 Furnish and Install AstroTurf DT-32 and Zeo-Fill 54,450                 sf

Includes 8 year warranty $77,506.00

1.2 Proplay 20mm and drain mat and shock pad 54,450                 Sf

$279,509.00

Project is based on Prevailing  Wages 

Grand Total $357,015

For Scope and Qualification Questions: Please contact Jeff Fenton… 562.997.4129

The terms and conditions and specific bid inclusions and exclusions to be provide upon final drawings.

of

Date Signature Name and Title Company Name

[MUST BE AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OR PERSON WITH CONTRACT SIGNING AUTHORITY)

Agreed {signed}

Lugo Park2683 Lime Ave.
Signal Hill, CA 90755
p. 562.997.4129 / f. 562.997.4109

214 of 426



The 
Golden 
Ser i e S 

215 of 426



From the Folks Who Invented  
NON-RUBBER FILLED Turf Systems

Simultaneously protecting our two 
most precious resources, our children 
and our water, is a challenge. AstroTurf 
was invented 50 years ago after it was 
discovered that “city kids” were less 
physically fit than children raised in the 
country. But the problem has not abated – 
we all know there is an epidemic of obesity 
afflicting children in America and the 
benefits of exercise and teamwork have 
never been more important.

Second, WATER.  In key parts of the country, 
water is just not plentiful enough to  
waste on lush, green playing fields. And to 
keep natural grass fields at optimum, even 
when water is plentiful, requires keeping 
players OFF fields to restrict wear and tear.  

In the past 15 years, “infilled” artificial  
turf has clearly met these challenges.   
Now synthetic turf is seen for what  
should be – a workhorse, a great tool for 
high-demand athletic and recreational 
facilities needing to offer “unlimited playing 
time”… or close to it. 

In honor of AstroTurf’s  
Golden Anniversary, we bring  
you the Golden Series

by

F
O

R
 E

V
E

R
Y

 C
H

A
L

L
E

N
G

E
,

 T
H

E
R

E
 I

S
 A

 S
O

L
U

T
I

O
N

The 
Golden 
Ser i e S 

The newest  Challenge 
Yet, turf market has evolved again.  
Some users and purchasers are reluctant 
to accept one of the key ingredients 
behind the success of today’s turf 
systems – SBR crumb rubber.

216 of 426



In honor of AstroTurf’s  
Golden Anniversary, we bring  
you the Golden Series

THE GOLDEN SERIES –  
SOPHISTICATED TECHNOLOGY  
FOR DISCERNING CLIENTS

Using special fiber combinations and 
manufacturing equipment, AstroTurf’s 
Golden Series systems are unique.   
All versions incorporate a lower layer of 
high denier, texturized monofilament fiber 
– using AstroTurf’s famous RootZone® 
technology – to give the taller pile PE 
fibers unmatched “lift” and resilience.

The Golden Series’ tall pile is available 
with a choice of the two most durable  
PE fibers on the market today – XP slit 
film or the HM (“high micron”) mono 
recently introduced to the US market.  
Either fiber simply blows away competing 
fibers when it comes to wear tests, 
exceeding 150,000 cycles on the Lisport 
linear abrading tester. Any RootZone-
supported surface results in a more 
uniform, predictable playing field,  
which players justifiably demand.  
Golden Series systems are extremely 
dense, durable yet player-friendly.  
(Third Generation on the left v. Fourth Generation 

Golden Series on the right)

THE ROLE OF THE PAD 

While replacing cheap tire rubber with  
a heavy fiber pile and RootZone is  
NOT a cheap solution, AstroTurf has 
taken creative steps to minimize costs 
associated with eliminating cheap  
rubber and sand. First, it has reduced  
the pile height of the turf. This allows  
for a dense, uniform, sure-footed  
surface that players appreciate.   
In addition, all Golden Series systems  
are installed on a shock pad.   
This assures proper shock attenuation 
(Gmax) while eliminating the need for 
crumb rubber (or more expensive in-fill 
alternatives like TPE).

ADD SOME GRANULES

Golden Series systems require a bit  
of ballast, which can mean silica sand.   
But we haven’t stopped there.  

The first Golden Series system  
(DT32) incorporated Zeofill™,  
a moisture-absorbing mineral that  
adds a cooling function to the  
ballast layer. 

•	 Unmatched durability for unlimited 
playing time and ROI

•	 Uniform, predictable play with a focus 
on player safety

•	 Excellent bio-mechanical function 

•	 Superior system shock absorbency

•	 Cooler temperatures 
(no black rubber) at both chest level 
and on the surface itself

•	 Low abrasion PE fibers

•	 No rubber “splash”

•	 Grass-like appearance

•	 Low maintenance – less need for 
grooming and decompaction of infill

•	 Permanent lines and markings

•	 Worry-free seams

•	 Standard AstroTurf warranty  

and service

2015 InSTAllATIonS
Van Nuys Sherman Oaks Park, LA (soccer)

Gilbert Lindsay Park, LA (soccer)

Jesuit High Schooll, Sacramento (football)

San Francisco 49ers (sidelines)

Bernal Park, Pleasanton  (football)

Golden SeRIeS 
SYSTeMS hAVe  
All The BeneFITS oF 
TRAdITIonAl  
In-FIlled TURF

The Golden Series (over Brock Powerbase)

ASTRoTURF’S SolUTIon
While most AstroTurf systems incorporate crumb rubber  
– we do NOT believe science supports a ban on or concern 
about re-cycled tire rubber for sports surfaces – still, AstroTurf 
is the most experienced, capable turf manufacturer in the 
world when it comes to unfilled systems. As a result, AstroTurf 
was tasked by key industry designers and users to develop a 
new generation of high – performance “no rubber” systems 
providing all the important benefits of traditional in-filled turf.  
Challenge met – AstroTurf’s Golden Series. These rubber-free 
systems have quickly set a new benchmark for innovation and 
acceptance as an alternative for demanding clients. 

217 of 426



www.astroturf.com   800-723-TURF (8873)   help@astroturf.com

218 of 426



Polyethylene

Green

Value Units Value Units
1.25 In. 31.75 mm

80 oz/yd² 2,712 g/m²
106.5 oz/yd² 3,611 g/m²

6.5 oz/yd² 220 g/m²
20 oz/yd² 678 g/m²

>10 lbs. >3.6 kg.
>200 lbs. >91 kg.
<50 ppm <50 ppm

7,020 Denier 7,799 D-Tex
>50 % >50 %
>20 lbs. >9.1 kg.
248 F° 120 C°
3/16 In. 0.95 cm

>30 In./hr >76.2 cm/hr
3.9/3.9 mils 100 /100 microns

15 Ft. 4.6 M

           AstroTurf® has the right to modify technical specifications on the above-mentioned product.  Delivered products can slightly differ from the technical data. 

           AstroTurf® guarantees the technical quality of the proposed article.

           Minimum infill depth of .99 inches at time of completion of infill installation. 10jg15

Standard Color Field Green

ASTROTURF® DT-32
MATERIALS
Primary Yarn Polymer
Yarn Cross Section Slit Film

Polyethylene Yarn Denier / Ends 8,040 / 1

UV Stabilized Yes
Fabric Construction Tufted
Secondary Yarn Polymer Texturized Monofilament
Secondary Yarn Color
Primary Backing 18 Pic/ 13 Pic
Coating Type Polyurethane

Texturized Yarn Denier / Ends [Root Zone®] 6,000/8
AstroFlect™ Available

Finish Fabric English System Metric System ASTM Test F-1551
Nominal Specification Method
Pile Height [Nominal]** D-5823
Face Weight D-5848
Total Fabric Weight D-5848
Primary Backing Weight D-5848
Secondary Coating Weight D-5848
Tuft Bind D-1335
Grab Tear Strength [Average] D-5034
Lead Content F-2765

Yarn Melting Point D-789
Machine Gauge D-5793

Total Yarn Linear Density D-1577
Elongation to Break D-2256
Yarn Breaking Strength D-2256

Flammability TEST PASSED TEST PASSED D-2859
Water Permeability w/ Infill F-1551

Valid through 12/31/16.

Fiber Thickness [Primary/Secondary] D-3218
Fabric Width None

Note: Any change from the specified values is considered a special product that will require confirmation from manufacturing. All values are ± 5%

219 of 426



  

 
* 

 

TEST REPORT 

 

DATE:       04-25-2015                                 TEST NUMBER: 0401055 

   

CLIENT AstroTurf 

    

TEST CONDUCTED Turf Battery  

  

  

 

 

PRODUCT NAME DT32 

DESCRIPTION OF PRODUCT TESTED 
179470 

Turf 

REFERENCE WR #15108 

 

TEST RESULTS: 

 
 

AVERAGE PILE YARN WEIGHT ASTM D5848 80.8 Ounces/Square Yard 

AVERAGE TOTAL WEIGHT ASTM D5848 107.8 Ounces/ Square Yard 

SECONDARY BACKING WEIGHT ASTM D5848 20.4 Ounces/ Square Yard 

PRIMARY BACKING ASTM D5848 6.6 Ounces/ Square Yard 

AVERAGE TUFT LENGTH     ASTM D5823 1.27 Inch 

STITCHES PER INCH ASTM D5793 5.4 Stitches Per Inch 

GAUGE ASTM D5793 3/16 

BACKING PERFORATION PATTERN  3 x 4 

BACKING PERFORATION DIAMETER  0.198 Inch 

PILL FLAMMABILITY W/INFILL SYSTEM ASTM D2859 8 of 8 - Passes 

TUFT BIND ASTM D1335 9.6 Lbs. 

GRAB TEAR (L/W) ASTM D5034 
268.6 Lbs. -  Length 

334.3 Lbs. - Width 

FIBER IDENTIFICATION AATCC 20 Polyethylene    

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

220 of 426



 

ProPlay-Sport20D_USA 1-3 version 01-01-2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ProProProProPlayPlayPlayPlay----Sport20Sport20Sport20Sport20DDDD    
 

Technical data sheetTechnical data sheetTechnical data sheetTechnical data sheet    
 

    
ProPlayProPlayProPlayProPlay----Sport20Sport20Sport20Sport20D is D is D is D is designed as a sportdesigned as a sportdesigned as a sportdesigned as a sport    technical technical technical technical 

layer for artificial layer for artificial layer for artificial layer for artificial grass sportsgrass sportsgrass sportsgrass sports    fieldsfieldsfieldsfields....    

    

Next to the necessary sportNext to the necessary sportNext to the necessary sportNext to the necessary sport    technical chartechnical chartechnical chartechnical characteristics, acteristics, acteristics, acteristics, 

the ProPlaythe ProPlaythe ProPlaythe ProPlay----Sport20Sport20Sport20Sport20D has additional D has additional D has additional D has additional (in(in(in(in----plane) plane) plane) plane) 

drainage channelsdrainage channelsdrainage channelsdrainage channels    which ensure an adequate drainage which ensure an adequate drainage which ensure an adequate drainage which ensure an adequate drainage 

of water in case the artificial turf system is build on a of water in case the artificial turf system is build on a of water in case the artificial turf system is build on a of water in case the artificial turf system is build on a 

watertight bottom.watertight bottom.watertight bottom.watertight bottom.    

    

FFFFor a or a or a or a prompt installationprompt installationprompt installationprompt installation, the ProPlay, the ProPlay, the ProPlay, the ProPlay----Sport20Sport20Sport20Sport20D D D D is is is is 

suppliedsuppliedsuppliedsupplied    as as as as interlocking panelsinterlocking panelsinterlocking panelsinterlocking panels    which are equipped which are equipped which are equipped which are equipped 

with expansion slots. with expansion slots. with expansion slots. with expansion slots. The installation guideThe installation guideThe installation guideThe installation guide    can be can be can be can be 

downloaded at our website downloaded at our website downloaded at our website downloaded at our website (www.schmitzfoam.com) (www.schmitzfoam.com) (www.schmitzfoam.com) (www.schmitzfoam.com) 

oooor r r r available upavailable upavailable upavailable upon request at our sales department.on request at our sales department.on request at our sales department.on request at our sales department.        

    

 
    

 
 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    
     

Physical characteristicsPhysical characteristicsPhysical characteristicsPhysical characteristics 

 
ProPlay-Sport20D consists of thermal bonded (closed-celled) 
cross-linked Polyethene foam (PEX). This foam comes from 
production residues and contains no contaminants.  ProPlay-
Sport20D is tested based on microbiological resistance (according 
EN 12225) resistance to: weathering (according EN 12224), 
oxidation (according EN-ISO 13438), acids & bases (according EN 
14030). The predicted durability of PEX is a 100 years minimum 
(according ISO/TR 13434). 
 
ProPlay-Sport20D is tested on (mechanical) wear using the 
Lisporter test. Even after 65.000 cycles Lisporter (average 30* 
year usage) there are hardly any differences in sport technical 
characteristics  (SA,VD, HIC).  
 
The ProPlay-Sport20D is tested on aging according EN 13744 and 
EN 13817. This aging test has virtually no influence on the 
dimensional properties of ProPlay-Sport20D. 

 
* based on 1 cycle = 1 hour of usage and 2080 hours of usage per year (average usage  

    of 52 weeks a year and 40 hrs a week) 

   

7
,5

 ft 

3,08 ft 

221 of 426



 

ProPlay-Sport20D_USA 2-3 version 01-01-2015 

 

  

    

    

Technical dataTechnical dataTechnical dataTechnical data    
 
PhysicalPhysicalPhysicalPhysical    

      
Thickness at 0,3 psi (2kPa) load 0,79 in 

 
Mass per unit area 0,66 lb/ft² 

    
StrengthStrengthStrengthStrength    

Tensile  38 psi ASTM D 3575 / EN 12230 

Compressive at 25% deflection 15 psi ASTM D 3575 

Thickness after 72 hr recovery 0,78 in 
 

Compressive at 50% deflection 52 psi ASTM D 3575 

Thickness after 72 hr recovery 0,77 in 
 

       
PerformancePerformancePerformancePerformance    

   
Impact attenuation [gmax] * 80-110 EN 1177 / ASTM F 1292 

    
Drainage and isolationDrainage and isolationDrainage and isolationDrainage and isolation    

   
Water flow rate under 2 in (51 mm) hydraulic head 15 gpm/ft² ASTM D 4491 / EN ISO 11058 

   (resulting) Water permeability by permittivity 5,9 gpm/ft² ASTM D 4491 / EN ISO 11058 
In-plane water flow rate at 0.3 psi (2 kPa) load and 
0.005 hydraulic gradient (0.5% slope) 

0,53 gpm/ft² ASTM D 4491 / EN ISO 11058 

(resulting) Hydraulic transmissivity [θ] 106 gpm/ft ASTM D 4716 / EN ISO 12958 

Thermal conductivity [λ10] 0,03 BTU/hr.ft.°F ASTM C 177 / EN 12667 

    (resulting) Thermal resistance [R-value] 2271 hr.ft².°F/BTU ASTM C 177 / EN 12667 

  
* Results will vary depending on actual field configuration and final cross-section design  
     

222 of 426



 

ProPlay-Sport20D_USA 3-3 version 01-01-2015 

 

The provided information is, to the best of our knowledge, true and accurate (at the time of revision). This information is based on (independent) 
measurements and (where possible) based on average values, measured over a long and representative period. Additional information (e.g. 
additional characteristics, specific (independent) reports or statistical analysis) is available upon request. Schmitz Foam Products is allowed to 
change this information and/or the product (without notice) and assumes no legal responsibility for use of and/or reliance on this information. 

    

Drainage graphDrainage graphDrainage graphDrainage graph    
 

Drainage distance [m] versus rainfall [mm/h] at different gradients. Measured according to the 
LND method.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200

i=0,006…

drainage distance in  yardra
in

fa
ll

 i
n

  
 i
n

c
h

/h
r

223 of 426



All Weather Sports Field Infill

224 of 426



All Weather Sport Fields that utilize crumb rubber and silica sand started to be used since
1996. Today there are thousands ofrFields across the United States. Since 1996 players and
owners have had growing concerns with the infill systems that are on the market today. The
concerns weather true or not range from; high surface temperatures, crumb rubber
containing chemicals, bacteria, MRSA, pungent odor’s, abrasiveness of the surface, Prop 65
use of Silica Sand and players inhaling dust from silica sand, Some artificial grass infilluse of Silica Sand and players inhaling dust from silica sand, Some artificial grass infill
options that are being used today to get away from the traditional infill are Organic’s,
Envirofill, Durafill, Copper slag, TPE, TPV, Flexsand, Recycled Infill Materials. However
owners have found these products to be very expensive to the project and some of them
require a major amount of maintenance and water overtime.

Solution: A product named ZeoFill® born in 2008 made out of a natural organic resource
from the earth. It is different than any other infill because ZeoFill® is a negatively charged
honey-combed molecular structure which absorbs the water like a magnet and holds it for
slow release to cool the surface temperatures. You can use your existing irrigation to water
the field before practice and not have the humidity raise dramatically as it does today on
older fields. The surface will stay cool for much longer periods of time.

225 of 426



One of the many health benefits that ZeoFill® provides is the Infill will pull any
gases towards itself and hold it until sodium ion (Na+) in rain water releases the
magnetivity and the force of heavy rainfall will flush out the bacteria, forcing it
through the turf into the ground making your turf virtually new again. The
sodium forces the calcium ions out and recharges the ZeoFill® when dry. Thissodium forces the calcium ions out and recharges the ZeoFill® when dry. This
also can be achieved by treating the field with a very low cost solution called
Field Clenz when mother nature does not cooperate.

The nicest part of ZeoFill® when pertaining to sport field application is that you are not
reinventing the wheel so to speak. The only difference in using ZeoFill® over silica sand is
you gain the benefits of a cooler surface, less pungent VOC of the rubber smell, no silica
sand for dusting and increase chances of silicosis collection of bacteria from the surface.
Your project budget is not being taxed, your maintenance is not changing, your watering is
not increasing everything you do today or plan on doing when building a new field all
remains the same.

t
226 of 426



Compared to other zeolite products found in
the USA, ZeoFill has the purest clinoptilolite
zeolite to avoid possible issues with drainage or
even damage to the turf fibers. Harmful
elements of the environment in other zeolites
contain metals that could contain volcanic glass,
lead or even crystalline free silica. Our
competitors have 0.01% cyrstalline free silica
and claim to be 98% pure. I don't think so.
ZeoFill stands for quality and is the safest
zeolite for artificial grass infill.zeolite for artificial grass infill.

DURABILITY IN FIELD APPLICATION

Purity is not the only benefit of ZeoFill.
Performance testing has been done in Belgium
for durability in field applications. We have
established an 8 (eight) year warranty for
degeneration on ZeoFill due to the correct
Mohs hardness of ZeoFill. Other similar
products don't compare and could dissipate
sooner. ZeoFill is an angular infill but not sharp
enough to tear turf fibers.

227 of 426



DURABILITY IN FIELD APPLICATION

Purity is not the only benefit of ZeoFill. Performance
testing has been done in Belgium for durability in field
applications. We have established an 8 (eight) year
warranty for degeneration on ZeoFill due to the
correct Mohs hardness of ZeoFill. Other similar
products don't compare and could dissipate sooner.products don't compare and could dissipate sooner.
ZeoFill is an agular infill but not sharp enough to tear
turf fibers.

PROPOSITION 65 SAFE

Proposition 65 Warning labels are not needed when
using ZeoFill Infill.

We are Prop 65 Safe. We do not have any trace of
crystalline free silica like our competitors.

228 of 426



DRAINAGE

ZeoFill is a molecular structure which allows
liquid to drain through itself slowly after
saturation. We don't have the harmful
angular elements of the environment
restricting water from flowing through
ZeoFill like other zeolites.

COOLER FIBERSCOOLER FIBERS

Water down your turf before the big game.
Keeps turf cooler for longer periods of time
than any other infill product by
evapotranspiration. For more information, See
our ZeofiLites for Cooling Synthetic Turf pdf.

229 of 426



Zeolites for Cooling Synthetic Turf 
 
Zeolite Cooling Properties  
Zeolite cooling properties are similar to Transpiration which is water within a plant and the subsequent 
loss of water as vapor through stomata in its leaves. The natural mineral zeolite (e.g. porous 
aluminosilicate) has the property to naturally attract (adsorb) water vapor for long periods of time and 
to incorporate it in its internal crystal lattice while releasing heat at the same time:  
 
Cooling System  
A zeolite cooling system requires cycling between adsorption and desorption.  
While heat is released in the zeolite, and cooling is seen at the evaporation level. If absorption proceeds 
in an evacuated environment the attraction of water by the zeolite is so forceful that the internal 
pressure drops dramatically. The remaining water in an attached vessel evaporates, cools down turf 
fibers immediately due to the effect of evapotranspiration resulting in cooler synthetic turf fibers. 
Evapotranspiration (ET) is the sum of evaporation and transpiration from the Earth's land surface to 
atmosphere which is an important part of the water cycle. Evaporation accounts for the movement of 
water to the air from the zeolite granule. 
  

 
Figure 5: Desorption phase of a Zeolite system 

 
Figure 5 shows the desorption phase. For a comparison to the absorption and transpiration of heat, the 
left container (sorber) in takes on the role of a single zeolite granule saturated with water under 
sunlight, and the right container is the (condenser) after evapotranspiration effect. When the zeolite is 
saturated with water either by soaking using any water source or condensation, desorption is initiated 
by heat from sunlight at high temperatures. The adsorbed water molecules are forced to evaporate 
(desorption), and condensation takes place in the condenser. The sequence of adsorption/desorption 
processes is completely reversible.  
 
Advantages and Disadvantages 
The adsorption of zeolites is very strong, thereby providing the family of materials with unique 
adsorption properties and permitting extremely high efficiencies for adsorption with artificial turf. 
Another advantage of zeolite systems is that they allow heating and cooling at the same time. One 
disadvantage of zeolite systems is that to provide continuous cooling, systems need to cycle between 
multiple sorption modules. Meaning; when the zeolite granules are dry, no evaporation occur resulting 
in comparable temperatures to standard silica sand infills. High humidity areas will benefit more than 
areas with low humidity.  
 
Materials 
Currently the zeolite mines produces more than 1.4 million tons of zeolite annually and it can be 
expected that the worldwide demand and consequently the production will further increase for a 
multiple of uses. Only 97% + pure zeolite is adequate for use as an infill for any synthetic turf application 
as lower purity can destroy turf fibers and/or cause drainage issues due to the negative elements it 
holds.  
 

230 of 426



 

ZEOFILL                             TECHNICAL DATA SHEET 2010 

Hydrous Sodium Aluminosilicate 
Natural Clinoptilolite 

Zeolite Granules and Powders 
 

TYPICAL PROPERTIES 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

TYPICAL CHEMICAL ANALYSIS 
 

This product contains no detectable crystalline silica 
 

MAJOR EXCHANGEABLE CATIONS 

 
 

General Chemical Formula Na6[Al6Si30O72]24H2O 

Clinoptilolite Content 97%+ 

Cation Exchange Capacity (CEC) 1.6 – 2.0 meg/g 

Form Granules and powders 

Shape Angular 

Color Gray – green 

Pore Diameter 4.0 – 7.0 angstroms 

Specific Gravity 1.89 

Specific Surface Area 40m2/g 

Bulk Density 50 - 65 lbs/ft3 

pH (natural) 7.0 

Alkali Stability pH of 7 - 10 

Acid Stability pH of 3 - 7 

Hardness 4.0 - 5.0 Mohs 

Swelling Index Nil 

SiO2 Al2O3 Fe2O3 CaO MgO Na2O K2O MnO TiO2 

66.7 11.48 0.9 1.33 0.27 3.96 3.42 0.025 0.13 

Rb+ Na+ Ba+2 Mg+2 Li+ Ag+ Sr+2 Fe+3 K+ Cd+2 

Cu+2 Co+3 Cs+ Pb+2 Ca+2 Al+3 NH+4 Zn+2 Hg+2 Cr+3 

231 of 426



 

From: Leon Behr <leon.behr@shawinc.com> 
Sent: Monday, February 8, 2016 2:09 PM 
To: Michael Allen; Leon Behr; Leie Sualua; Jason Kyzer 
Subject: Shaw Sports Turf Quotation-Lugo Park  
  
Dear Mr. Allen: 
 

Please see attached our quotation for the supply & installation of synthetic turf for 
this project. 

 
Our quotation is based upon supply & installation of the following: 
 

Synthetic Turf with 3 pounds per square foot silica sand infill 
Schmitz Foam 23 D pad 

Hercushield 2400 Liner 
 
Total: $ 353,396.00 

 
Should you have questions regarding our product or to confirm our scope of work, 

either Leie Sualua or me would be happy to assist in answering any questions. 
 
Best regards 

 
Leon Behr 
 
--  
LEON BEHR  
 
Shaw Sports Turf 
185 South Industrial Boulevard 
Calhoun, GA 30701 
 
office: 706.625.7909 
fax:    706.625.7964 
email:  leon.behr@shawinc.com 
 
 

 
A Division of Shaw, A Berkshire Hathaway Company 
www.shawsportsturf.com 
 
Follow us on Facebook and Twitter 

    
 
 
 
********************************************************** 

232 of 426

mailto:leon.behr@shawinc.com
tel:706.625.7909
tel:706.625.7964
mailto:leon.behr@shawinc.com
http://www.shawsportsturf.com/
mallen
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



 

Privileged and/or confidential information may be contained in this message. If you are not the addressee indicated in this message (or are 
not responsible for delivery of this message to that person) , you may not copy or deliver this message to anyone. In such case, you should 
destroy this message and notify the sender by reply e-mail. 
If you or your employer do not consent to Internet e-mail for messages of this kind, please advise the sender. 
Shaw Industries does not provide or endorse any opinions, conclusions or other information in this message that do not relate to the official 
business of the company  or its subsidiaries. 
********************************************************** 
 

 

233 of 426



February 1, 2016 

To: Interested Artificial Turf Vendors 

Subject: City of Cudahy request for Price quotes to furnish and install “City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf” at 
Lugo Park in the City of Cudahy 

City of Cudahy is requesting from interested Vendors a price quote to furnish and install “City of Los Angeles Spec All 
Weather Turf” at Lugo Park in the City of Cudahy.  Lugo Park is located at 7810 Otis Avenue, Cudahy, CA 90201 (north-
east corner of Otis Avenue and Elizabeth Street). 

Soccer field play area is: 
300’ x 150’ = 45,000 sf 

Total turf area with additional side areas is: 
330’ x 165’ = 54,450 sf 

Provide all labor, equipment and materials to 
install 

City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf 
with Zeolite Infill (1.75 lbs per sf), 
Underlayment Pad and Impermeable 
Isolation Fabric Liner per Attached 
Specifications. 

Price shall also include installation of soccer 
lines, and all transportation of materials and 
8 year Warranty as specified in the attached 
City of LA specifications. 

City will construct the field with necessary 
grading, base perimeter drainage pipe and 
curbs for the “City of Los Angeles Spec All 
Weather Turf” installation under separate 
contract. 

Total Price to provide All Weather Turf in full compliance with City of LA Specs:_________________ 

o With the price quote, submit your product specifications and a statement that your product is in full compliance with
the attached City of LA Specs.

o Price shall include taxes and all other costs.  City may purchase the above thru CMAS or similar purchasing systems or
per City of LA prices.

o The selected vendor shall have the turf material ready and start the installation within 45 calendar days of City’s
approval of the purchase order, and complete the installation within 20 calendar days thereafter.

The City will utilize an Independent Expert Turf Consultant (Joe DiGeronimo) to respond to any questions you may have, 
and to review the submitted information for compliance with the City of LA All Weather Turf Specs, and make a decision 
in the best interest of the City.  The City will also utilize the Independent Expert Turf Consultant (Joe DiGeronimo) for the 
plant inspection, material testing to ensure the material is provided and installed in compliance with the attached City of 
LA specifications. 

$ 353,396.00

234 of 426



 

 
From: Tim Dennis <notification@getjobber.com> 
Sent: Monday, February 8, 2016 5:15 PM 
To: Michael Allen 
Subject: Quote from DuraTurf - 02/08/2016  
  

 

DuraTurf  
310-933-4472 
Suite 120  
406 Amapola Avenue  
Torrance, CA 90501 

 

 

 

Hi Michael,  
 
We are pleased to present this quote for synthetic turf installation at Lugo Park. This 
turf system is in full compliance with the City of LA Specs provided on February 1, 2016. 
I will provide the product specifications in a separate email. Please review and call me 
with any questions.  
 
To initiate this contract, please sign, date and return with a 10% deposit and mail to:  
 
DuraTurf  
406 Amapola Ave, Suite 120  
Torrance, CA 90501  
 
We want to thank you for this opportunity, we look forward to doing business with you. 
Should you have any additional questions or concerns please do not hesitate to contact 
us.  
 
Thank you,  
 
Tim  
 
Main: 310-933-4472  
Fax: 310-882-6848  
Direct: 310-526-3856 - Tim Dennis  

 

Delivered by Jobber Copyright © 2016, Octopusapp, Inc.  
 

 

 

From: Tim Dennis <tim@duraturfusa.com> 
Sent: Monday, February 8, 2016 5:23 PM 

235 of 426

https://secure.getjobber.com/
mailto:tim@duraturfusa.com
mallen
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D



 

To: Michael Allen 
Subject: Product Specifications For Lugo Park Synthetic Turf  
  
Hi Michael: 
 
I have attached the product specifications for the Lugo Park Synthetic Turf project to this 
email.  Please do not hesitate to call if I can be of further assistance. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Tim 
 
Timothy Dennis 
President, CEO 
 
406 Amapola Avenue, Suite 120 

Torrance, CA 90501 

(310) 933-4472 

Yelp | Facebook | Twitter 

www.duraturfusa.com 

 

 
 

 

236 of 426

http://www.yelp.com/biz/duraturf-torrance
https://www.facebook.com/duraturfartificialturf
https://twitter.com/DuraturfUS
http://www.duraturfusa.com/


Service / Product Description Total

Lugo Park Provide all labor, equipment and materials to install City of Los Angeles Spec All
Weather Turf with Zeolite Infill (2.0 lbs per sf), Underlayment Pad and Impermeable
Isolation Fabric Liner per February 1, 2016 Specifications

- DESSO UNI-X30 TURF SYSTEM

- THERMA GREEN SPORTLITE HD23 UNDERLAYMENT PAD

- HERCUSCRIM 12 MIL IIF LINER

- MAPEI ULTRABOND TURF PU 1K ADHESIVE

- MAPEI 12" SEAM TAPE

$531,256.36

License #980895

This quote is valid for the next 30 days, after which values may be subject to
change.

Qualifications & Exclusions:
- All work to be performed during normal business hours (8:00am-6:00pm)
Monday - Saturday.
- Work area must be fully accessible and free of encumbrances during entire
project.
- No other contractors may be permitted in our work area during entire project.
- If work must be stopped due to encumbrances or other contractors, a $480.00
remobilization fee will be charged.

Total $531,256.36

1 of 2 pages

City of Cudahy
7810 Otis Avenue
Cudahy, California 90201

Estimate #5635
From DuraTurf  

310-933-4472
Suite 120
406 Amapola Avenue
Torrance, CA 90501

Bill To 7810 Otis Avenue
Cudahy, California 90201

Sent On 02/08/2016
Estimator Tim Dennis

237 of 426



Notes Continued...
- Work area will be broom cleaned daily. 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE:  

- 10% upon acceptance of contract 
- 30% when field is green 
- 30% when infill is complete 
- 30% when field is complete 

Signature: _____________________      Date: _____________

2 of 2 pages

City of Cudahy
7810 Otis Avenue
Cudahy, California 90201

Estimate #5635
From DuraTurf  

310-933-4472
Suite 120
406 Amapola Avenue
Torrance, CA 90501

Bill To 7810 Otis Avenue
Cudahy, California 90201

Sent On 02/08/2016
Estimator Tim Dennis

238 of 426



THINK . ACT . PLAY 

Desso Sports Systems keeps on pioneering in the field of artificial grass for football. For years Desso Sports 
designs and produces its artificial grass systems in-house.Therefore we can swiftly supply our customers 
with the newest innovations. Goal is to provide the best artificial grass system for every use, ambition and 
budget. 

Beside systems for top football, you can now also choose an artificial grass pitch without infill. From now on 
you can train and play on a system of which the top layer consists of 100% artificial grass and where players’ 
comfort and durability are guaranteed.

The durability of two types of fibre in one system
Usually for football the infill gives the (long) grass fibres the necessary performance and helps to keep them 
upright. To equip Desso UNI-X with an optimal durability and to preserve the resilience of the grass, Desso 
Sports Systems combined two types of fibre into one system.

The monofilament polyester fibre is extremely durable and provides the grass with extra resilience. Therefore 
the system retains the same performance, even after years of use. The combination with the curled polyamide 
fibre supplies an optimal grip and performance. Extensive tests have pointed out that playing comfort and 
durability of Desso UNI-X surpasses all expectations of the recreational football player.

Desso Sports     
info@dessosports.com        Dessosports.com

DESSO UNI-X

Desso UNI-X, the artificial grass pitch for football without infill

Desso UNI X

- Play football on artificial grass without infill

- Playing comfort, good grip and traction

- Efficient and yet easy to maintain: cleaning and brushing is enough

- UNI-X durability thanks to the combination of two fibres: polyester and polyamid

Advantages
- Artificial grass without infill
- Use of shockpad is recommended
- No SBR or other elastomers
- Easy to maintain
- Highly durable
- Very attractive look
- Fits within the framework of durable development: minimal transport of complementary
  materials such as sand and rubber infill

a Tarkett Sports company

239 of 426



Version 1 - April 04, 2014

No rights can be derived from the above mentioned figures. Above technical data sheet contains indicative numbers only, in conformity with the applicable industry
standards. Desso Sports reserves the right to amend these specifications without notice. Furthermore these specifications relate exclusively to the Desso synthetic
turf carpet, used for the installation of a synthetic turf sports field. In no way these specifications contain or imply a guarantee for the quality of the installed synthetic
turf sports field nor its performance, for which Desso Sports Systems rejects any liability. For warranty application rights, Desso synthetic turf is to be installed and
maintained according to Desso Sports Systems installation and maintenance instructions.

PRODUCT CONFIGURATION

DESCRIPTION REFERENCE SPECIFICATIONS TOLERANCE

Production method DIN 61151 Tufted (straight), cutpile

Gauge 3/16" – alternating rows of pile 1 and 2

Pile height 1.18 ‘’ ± 5%

Total thickness 1.26’’

# stitches /m ISO 1763 155 /yd ± 10%

# stitches /m² ISO 1763 29,990 /yd² ± 10%

# filaments (# piles)

Pile type 1 : 89,970 /yd² (29,990 /yd²)

Pile type 2 : 179,940 /yd² (29,990 /yd²)

Total 269,910 /yd² (59,980 /yd²)

± 10%

Pile weight 86.7 oz/yd² ± 10%

Total weight DIN 53854 124.9 oz/yd² ± 10%

FIBER CHARACTERISTICS

Composition Polyethylene (PE)

Fiber type

Pile type 1 : Desso iDNA X-series, straight non-fibrillating fibre (6 monofilaments each 650µm
thick), 100% polyethylene, UV resistant, 11,700 denier

Pile type 2 : Curled fibre (12 monofilaments each 125µm thick), 100% polyethylene, UV
resistant, 9,630 denier

Fiber shape X-shape + curled

Fiber color Duo – tone, green

Fiber width 4.37 yds

Fiber thickness 650 µm (pile type 1), 125 µm (pile type 2)

Number of fibers / tuft 6 (pile type 1) + 12 (pile type 2)

Denier 11,700 (pile type 1) + 9,630 (pile type 2)

Pile anchorage ≥ 40 N (or 9.0 lbs force) pile type 1 (ISO 4919, tolerance ± 10%) 

UV resistance Desso yarns are highly UV-resistant due to a high UV-stabilizer content:

BACKING CHARACTERISTICS

DESCRIPTION REFERENCE SPECIFICATIONS TOLERANCE

Primary backing

type DIN 61151 Plain needled fabric with glass scrim layer

weight 8.7 oz /yd²

Coating / secondary backing

type DIN 61151 Waterpervious SBR Latex

weight 29.5 oz /yd² ± 10%

Number of perforations 90 pcs /m2

SYSTEM GUIDELINES

Application Suitable for various sports, such as football, rugby, American football, etc.

Infill No infill, always use in combination with a shock absorbing layer

Installation Desso artificial turf should be installed according to Desso Sports Systems installation instructions.

Maintenance Maintenance is the basis for retaining sport functional properties and appearance level.

Abrasion resistance Desso Uni-X has been subjected to simulated wear up to 20,200 cycles (Lisport, EN 15306))

DESSO SPORTS SYSTEMS
Technical specifications

Desso Uni-X-30

240 of 426



 

 

 

 

TEST REPORT 

 

 

 

DATE:   08-12-2015  TEST NUMBER:  0401272 

 

CLIENT Tarkett 

    

TEST CONDUCTED Turf Battery  

  

    

PRODUCT NAME Desso Sports Systems Uni-X 

DESCRIPTION OF PRODUCT TESTED Turf 

 
TEST RESULTS: 

 

AVERAGE PILE YARN WEIGHT ASTM D5848 81.4 Ounces/Square Yard 

AVERAGE TOTAL WEIGHT ASTM D5848 122.1 Ounces/Square Yard 

SECONDARY BACKING WEIGHT ASTM D5848 32.2 Ounces/Square Yard 

PRIMARY BACKING ASTM D5848 8.5 Ounces/Square Yard 

AVERAGE PILE HEIGHT    ASTM D5823 1.25 Inch 

GAUGE ASTM D5793 3/16 

BACKING PERFORATION PATTERN  4 x 4 

BACKING PERFORATION DIAMETER  0.194 Inch 

TUFT BIND ASTM D1335 9.9 Lbs/Lbs. (Infilled) 9.9 lbs. 

GRAB TEAR (L/W) ASTM D5034 

249.9 Lbs. - Length 

275.6 Lbs. - Width 

SHOE TRACTION-SOCCER 

W/INFILL SYSTEM 
ASTM F1551 

Dry Avg Static COF: 1.75 

Wet Avg Static COF: 1.61  

SHOE TRACTION-FOOTBALL 

W/INFILL SYSTEM 
ASTM F1551 

Dry Avg Static COF: 1.70 

Wet Avg Static COF: 1.55 

PILL FLAMMABILITY W/INFILL SYTEM ASTM D2859 8 of 8 Pass 

 

 LISPORT IN PROGRESS 

 

241 of 426



 

 
 

 
From: Jack Adams <jadams@hellasconstruction.com> 
Sent: Monday, February 8, 2016 4:10 PM 
To: Michael Allen 
Cc: Amanda Willman 
Subject: Hellas Response - Request for Quotes for All Weather Turf per City of LA Spec  
  
  
Mr. Allen, 
  
Please find attached Hellas Construction’s response for the Request for Quotes for All Weather Turf per City 
of LA Spec for Lugo Park.  Should you have any questions, please contact estimator Bill Klimek at (425) 750-
0630 or via email at bklimek@hellasconstruction.com.  
  
Thank you for your consideration, 
  
Amanda Willman 
Bid Coordinator 
  
Hellas Construction, Inc. 
12710 Research Blvd., Ste. 240 
Austin, TX 78759 
P: (512) 250-2910 
F: (512) 250-1960 
  
Visit us at http://www.hellasconstruction.com 
  

 

242 of 426

mailto:jadams@hellasconstruction.com
mailto:bklimek@hellasconstruction.com
http://www.hellasconstruction.com/
https://www.facebook.com/hellas.construction
https://plus.google.com/101234876562887847233
https://www.linkedin.com/company/hellas-construction-inc
https://twitter.com/hellasconstruct
https://www.youtube.com/user/HellasConstruction
mallen
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT E



 

 
  
 

243 of 426



February 1, 2016 
 
To: Interested Artificial Turf Vendors 
 
Subject: City of Cudahy request for Price quotes to furnish and install “City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf” at 

Lugo Park in the City of Cudahy 
 
City of Cudahy is requesting from interested Vendors a price quote to furnish and install “City of Los Angeles Spec All 
Weather Turf” at Lugo Park in the City of Cudahy.  Lugo Park is located at 7810 Otis Avenue, Cudahy, CA 90201 (north-
east corner of Otis Avenue and Elizabeth Street). 
 
Soccer field play area is: 

300’ x 150’ = 45,000 sf 
Total turf area with additional side areas is: 

330’ x 165’ = 54,450 sf 
 
Provide all labor, equipment and materials to 
install 

City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf 
with Zeolite Infill (1.75 lbs per sf), 
Underlayment Pad and Impermeable 
Isolation Fabric Liner per Attached 
Specifications. 
 
Price shall also include installation of soccer 
lines, and all transportation of materials and 
8 year Warranty as specified in the attached 
City of LA specifications. 
 
City will construct the field with necessary 
grading, base perimeter drainage pipe and 
curbs for the “City of Los Angeles Spec All 
Weather Turf” installation under separate 
contract. 
 
 

 
Total Price to provide All Weather Turf in full compliance with City of LA Specs:_________________ 

 
o With the price quote, submit your product specifications and a statement that your product is in full compliance with 

the attached City of LA Specs. 
o Price shall include taxes and all other costs.  City may purchase the above thru CMAS or similar purchasing systems or 

per City of LA prices. 
o The selected vendor shall have the turf material ready and start the installation within 45 calendar days of City’s 

approval of the purchase order, and complete the installation within 20 calendar days thereafter. 
 
The City will utilize an Independent Expert Turf Consultant (Joe DiGeronimo) to respond to any questions you may have, 
and to review the submitted information for compliance with the City of LA All Weather Turf Specs, and make a decision 
in the best interest of the City.  The City will also utilize the Independent Expert Turf Consultant (Joe DiGeronimo) for the 
plant inspection, material testing to ensure the material is provided and installed in compliance with the attached City of 
LA specifications. 
 

244 of 426

awillman
Typewritten Text

jadams
Typewritten Text
$538,000.00

jadams
Typewritten Text

jadams
Typewritten Text



 

 
 1 

 
VELOCITY XP Blade®-80oz Synthetic Turf System 

Sample Specifications 
 

SECTION 02535 – INFILLED SYNTHETIC TURF 
 
 
1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS 
 
A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions 

apply to this section. 
 
1.2 SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Furnish all labor, materials, tools and equipment necessary to install, in place, all synthetic turf 
material as indicated on the plans and as specified herein.  The installation of all new materials shall 
be performed in strict accordance with the manufacturer’s written installation instruction, and in 
accordance with all approved shop drawings. 

 
A. Prior to order of materials, the Turf Contractor shall submit the following: 
 

1. Product Data including Independent Test Lab Results 
2. Installation Details 
3. Sample Warranty 
4. Field layout and striping plans 
5. Details on construction, especially any details that may deviate from plans and specifications. 

 
B. Prior to the beginning of installation, the manufacturer/installer of the synthetic turf shall inspect the 

subbase and supply a Certificate of subbase Acceptance for the purpose of obtaining manufacturer's 
warranty for the finished synthetic playing surface. 

 
C. Prior to Final Acceptance, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner three (3) copies of Maintenance 

Manuals, which will include necessary instructions for the proper care and preventative maintenance 
of the synthetic turf system, including painting and striping. 

 
1.3 SHOP DRAWINGS 
 
A. Shop drawings shall be prepared at the scale of the construction documents and contain all pertinent 

information regarding installation.  These drawings shall be submitted to the Owner for approval prior 
to the manufacturing and shipment of materials. 

 
B. Submit drawings for: 
 

1. Installation details; edge detail, goal post detail, other inserts and covers, etc. 
2. Striping plan; layouts showing any field lines, markings and boundaries, and field logos per     
   project drawings. 
 

1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 
A. Manufacturer/Installer's Experience: 
 

The synthetic turf installer/manufacturer shall have the experience of at least ten (10) acceptable 
installations of full-size football or soccer fields (minimum of 70,000 SF) in the United States within the 

245 of 426



 

 
 2 

past five (5) years of tufted, mono-fiber grass-like fabric that are infilled with a layered system of pea 
gravel and rubber.  Provide this listing with the bid. 

 
The Turf Contractor shall employ only qualified, experienced supervisors and technicians skilled in the 
installation of the specified system. 

 
B. Turf Contractor shall meet the following criteria: 

 
1. Have proper license, in good standing, and have never had a license revoked. 

 
2. Have not had a Surety or Bonding Company finish work on any contract within the last five (5) 

years. 
 

3. Have not been disqualified or barred from performing work for any public Owner or other 
contracting entity. 

   
C. Warranty: 
 

The Contractor shall submit its Manufacturer's Warranty with (3
rd

 party) verification manufacturing 
was to standards.  The warranty guarantees the usability and playability of the synthetic turf system 
for its intended uses for an eight (8) year period commencing with the date of Substantial Completion. 
  

 
1. The warranty submitted must have the following characteristics: 

 
a. Must provide coverage for eight (8) years from the date of Substantial Completion. 

 
b. Must warrant materials and workmanship. 

 
c. Must verify through a (3

rd
 party) that the materials installed meet or exceed the 

product specifications. 
 

d. Must have a provision to either make a cash refund or repair or replace such 
portions of the installed materials that are no longer serviceable to maintain a 
serviceable and playable surface. 

 
e. Must be a manufacturer’s warranty from a single source covering workmanship and 

all self-manufactured or procured materials. 
 
 
1.5 EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
A. If the surface on which the new synthetic turf system is to be placed is an existing asphaltic/concrete 

base, the Turf Contractor will be responsible for any damage to the concrete during 
removal/installation of the synthetic turf system. The football goal posts, if any, are to be removed and 
reinstalled by the Owner or Prime Contractor to facilitate the installation of the new synthetic turf 
system. 

 
B. If the surface on which the new synthetic turf system is to be placed is a new asphaltic concrete base 

or a new base of porous aggregate, the Synthetic Turf Contractor will be responsible for any damage 
to the subbase during removal/installation of the synthetic turf system after the deficiencies (if any) 
have been corrected as noted on the Certificate of Subbase Acceptability. New football goal posts (if 
any) and/or infield dirt mix backfill within the contiguous turf limits or immediately adjacent thereto are 
not to be installed by the Owner/Prime Contractor until after the new synthetic turf system has been 
completed. 

246 of 426



 

 
 3 

 
1.6 SCHEDULE 
 
A. Turf Contractor shall complete all work on the synthetic turf system in accordance with the published 

project schedule. 
 
B. The Turf Contractor will require unencumbered use of an area within 30 feet of the synthetic turf 

area(s) being installed in order to complete his work.  Turf Contractor shall also be afforded 
unencumbered access through the construction site to reach the turf field area being installed. 

 
1.7 SURFACE AREA 
 
A. The Turf Contractor is to verify all measurements. 
 
1.8 UTILITIES 
 
A. Owner/Prime Contractor will supply necessary water, adequate lighting and electricity for installation. 

Owner/Prime Contractor shall permit the use of toilet and wash up facilities. 
 
2.0 PRODUCTS 
 
2.1 MATERIALS 
 
A. Shall be a tufted, slit-film fiber grass-like fabric coated with a secondary backing of high grade 

polyurethane.  The fibers shall be tufted to a finished pile height of approximately 1.25” to 1.5”.  The 
turf fabric shall be filled with a layered system of pea gravel and rubber.   

 
B. All components and their installation method shall be designed and manufactured for use on outdoor 

athletic fields.  The materials as hereinafter specified, should be able to withstand full climatic 
exposure in all climates, be resistant to insect infestation, rot, fungus and mildew; to ultra-violet light 
and heat degradation, and shall have the basic characteristic of flow through-drainage allowing free  
movement of surface run-off through the turf fabric where such water may flow to the existing 
subbase and into the field drainage system. 

 
C. The finished playing surface shall appear as mowed grass with no irregularities and shall afford         

excellent traction for conventional athletic shoes of all types.  The finished surface shall resist           
abrasion and cutting from normal use.  The installed system shall be suitable for football, soccer, 
lacrosse, baseball, softball, PE classes, intramurals and recreational use. 

 
D. Pile yarn (Polyethylene) shall be a proven athletic caliber yarn designed specifically for outdoor use 

and stabilized to resist the effect of ultraviolet degradation, heat, foot traffic, water and airborne 
pollutants. The pile fiber shall possess the following physical characteristics: 
  

E. Infill material shall be a layered system of pea gravel and rubber granules in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s recommendations and the Owner’s preference. 

  
F. Perimeter and interior edge details, underground storm sewer piping and connections, and goal 

post foundations required for the system shall be as detailed and recommended by the 
manufacturer, and as approved by the Owner.  The costs for these embedded items shall be 
included in the Sitework Contractor's price along with the compacted, porous subbase. 

 
G. Approved product: Velocity XP® synthetic turf as manufactured by Hellas Construction, Inc. 
             
 

247 of 426



 

 
 4 

 
VELOCITY XP Blade®-80oz Synthetic Turf System 

Sample Specifications 
 
 

 

 Standard Property Specification 

    

 ASTM D418/D5848 Slit Film Pile Weight 62 oz. /Sq. Yd. 

 ASTM D5848 Primary and Secondary Backing Weight 7.9 oz. /Sq. Yd. 

 ASTM D5848 Nylon Secondary Yarn Weight 18 oz. /Sq. Yd. 

 ASTM D5848 Secondary Coating Weight 26 oz. /Sq. Yd. 

 ASTM D5848 Face Weight 80 oz. /Sq. Yd. 

 ASTM D5848 Total Weight 113.9oz. /Sq. Yd. 

 ASTM 1577 Monofilament Nylon Thatch Yarn Denier 500 

 ASTM 1577 Slit Film Yarn Denier 10,000 

 ASTM D418/D5848   Pile Height Finished 1.75” 

 ASTM D5793 Tufting Gauge 1/2” 

 ASTM D5848 Primary Backing Tri-layer woven  

Polypropylene 

 ASTM D5848 Secondary Coating Polyurethane 

 ASTM D1335 Tuft Bind without Infill 10 lbs. +/- 

 ASTM D1682/D5034 Grab Tear (width) 275-287.4 lbs. Force 

 ASTM D1682/D5034 Grab Tear (length) 300-340.91 lbs. Force 

 ASTM D4991 Carpet Permeability >40 inches/hour 

 ASTM D2859 Flammability (Pill Burn) Pass 

 ASTM E-11 Zeolite Infill 1.5 to 2.0 lbs. 

 ASTM F355 G-max (Impact Attenuation) <105 at installation 

<165 over Warranty life 

  Fabric Width 15’ 

  Perforation 3/16” Holes 4” x 4” 

  Yarn 115 Microns 

   Parallel Fibrillated PE 

 
 
All Characteristics listed above nominal +/- 5% 
This document is for illustrative purposes and may change without notice.  Purchaser should 
verify that a representative specification of the system to be installed has been received prior to 
the establishment of a project or contract. 
 
Velocity® synthetic turf incorporates life like blades of grass, tufted into the strongest and most 
dimensionally stable backing system available with a polyurethane pre-coat for the ultimate in 
tuft-bind.  Velocity® is filled with Zeolite of 1.5 – 2.0 lbs creating the most realistic looking and 
feeling surface ever.   
Infill will be a minimum of 75% of synthetic turf pile height.  
Velocity XP® is a fully UV stabilized system ideal for outdoor use. 
 
 
 

248 of 426



 

 
 5 

 
3.0 EXECUTION 
 
3.1 GENERAL 
 
A. The installation shall be performed in full compliance with approved shop drawings. 
 
B. Only factory-trained technicians, skilled in the installation of athletic calibre synthetic turf systems 

working under the direct supervision of the synthetic turf manufacturer’s installation supervisors shall 
undertake the placement of the system. 

 
C. The surface to receive the synthetic turf shall be inspected and certified by the turf manufacturer as 

ready for the installation of the synthetic turf system and must be perfectly clean as installation 
commences and shall be maintained in that condition throughout the process. 

 
3.2 INSTALLATION 
 
A. The subbase and curbs shall be inspected by the Engineer or Sitework Contractor by means of a 

laser level and plotted on a 10-foot grid. Based upon the Contractor’s inspection of the topological 
survey, the Sitework Contractor shall fine grade the subbase suitably - including properly rolling and 
compacting the base to achieve a surface planarity within ¼” in 10 feet (+0, -1/4”0).  OWNER, 
ENGINEER OR PRIME CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT APPROVE THE SUBBASE FOR TOLERANCE 
TO GRADE WITHOUT OBTAINING THE TOPOLOGICAL SURVEY. 

 
B. The Turf Project Superintendent shall thoroughly inspect all materials delivered to the site for both 

quality and quantity to assure that the entire installation shall have sufficient materials to maintain the 
schedule and proper mixing ratios. 

 
C. Synthetic turf shall be loose laid across the field and attached to the perimeter edge detail. Turf shall 

be of sufficient length to permit full cross-field installation.  No head or cross seams will be allowed, 
except as required for inlaid fabric striping or to accommodate programmed cut-outs. 

 
D. All seams shall be flat, tight, and permanent with no separation or fraying.  All seams and markings 

shall be adhered to a special tape with a single component, high strength polyurethane adhesive 
applied per the Turf Supplier’s standard procedures for outdoor applications. 

 
E. Infill materials shall be properly applied in numerous thin lifts using special broadcasting equipment to 

produce a layered system of pea gravel and rubber particles.  The turf shall be raked and brushed 
properly as the mixture is applied.  The infill material shall be installed to a depth of about 2 inches.  
The layered system of pea gravel and rubber materials can only be applied when the turf fabric is dry. 

 
F. Weather/climatic conditions may be a factor in delay of installation, but shall not warrant the accrual of 

additional liquidated damages.  Should the ambient outdoor temperature fall below 45 degrees F, the 
Contractor and Owner will discuss available options and/or stoppage of work.  However, the final 
decision shall be at the Contractor’s discretion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

249 of 426



 

 
 6 

 
3.3 FIELD MARKINGS AND DECORATIONS 
 
A. Field markings and decorations shall be installed in accordance with approved project shop drawings. 

 
3.4 CLEAN UP 
 
A. Turf Contractor shall provide the labor, supplies and equipment as necessary for final cleaning of 

surfaces and installed items. 
 
B. All usable remnants of new material shall become the property of the Owner. 
 
C. The Turf Contractor shall keep the area clean throughout the project and clear of debris. 
 
D. Surfaces, recesses, enclosures, etc., shall be cleaned as necessary to leave the work area in a clean, 

immaculate condition ready for immediate occupancy and use by the Owner. 
 
4.0 OTHER MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 
 
A. Maintenance Equipment 
 

Provide one (1) towed, non-powered Turf Sweeper with hitch, excluding prime mover vehicle. The 
sweeper attachment shall be of sufficient size to cover a 36” wide swath in a single pass. The 
sweeper attachment shall be fitted with synthetic bristle brushes as recommended by the synthetic 
turf manufacturer and shall be used primarily to collect surface debris.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Hellas Construction, Inc. 

12710 Research Blvd. Ste. 240 

Austin, Texas 78759 

T 512.250.2910 

F 512.250.1960 

www.hellasconstruction.com 

Fibrillated Slit-Film 
Fiber 

250 of 426

../../TURF%20SPECS%202012/Velocity/www.hellasconstruction.com


 
 

DMA Sports Design Group, LLC 
Sports Facilities Design Consulting Forensics Investigation Certified Testing 

 
 
 
 
 
February 17, 2016 
RE: Recommendation for Award of Turf Bid 
 
TO:  Ali Cayir, PE 
From:  Joe DiGeronimo 
 
Dear Mr. Cayir:  
 
After review of the bids as submitted by various contractors for the Lugo Park field, the following is my review 
and recommendation for the award.  
 
We received bids from: 
 Asphalt Fabric and Engineering (AFE) 
 Shaw Industries 
 Hellas Construction 
 Sprinturf, Inc.  
 Duraturf/Desso 
 

Two lowest prices were submitted by: 
AFES/Astroturf $357,015.00 
Shaw Sports Surface, by Shaw Industries $353,396.00 
The difference between the two lowest prices is 3,619.00, approx. 1%. 

 
Shaw was not in compliance with the specifications, offering their version of the specifications.  
The discrepancies of the Shaw bid are: 

a. Their stitch gauge is ¼” vs. 3/16” as specified.  
b. Their infill was silica sand vs. Zeolite. Silica sand will compact and wear on the turf fibers.  
c. Silica sand is also on the Prop 65 list for materials that would require warning signage.  
d. Their structural fiber is polypropylene vs. nylon. Nylon is a stronger fiber and would allow the turf 

to be supported as designed.  
e. Their fiber tufting was to turf was to construct the turf having the structural fiber of polypropylene 

in the same needle as the face yarn. This is not in accordance with the specifications as the 
specifications call for separate needles. The reason for separate needles is to allow the structural 
fiber to crimp down creating a support for the face yarn. The same needle fibers will not work as 
polypropylene filler will not support the face yarn. 

f. Shaw did not submit any specifications for their product or test data to support their bid.  
g. After two calls for the specifications we still have not received any information other than their bid 

price.  
h. My review and determination is based on my discussion with Leie Sualua of Shaw. He stated his 

intended specifications.  
  
The recommendation is to award the project to AFE for the turf. You should award the contractor as a standard 
form contractor. I would not recommend using CMAS as this will increase each bid by 4-1/2% as the charge for 
CMAS. This would make the most sense as AFE is also the base contractor. This would avoid any concerns of the 
base and turf construction under one contractor.  
 
 
 
Joe DiGeronimo 
DMA Sports 
Turf Consultant 
 
 

5188 Andrew Jackson St., Oceanside, CA 92057 (508)579-8015  
9712 Lynnhaven Avenue   Lubbock, Texas 79423   
www.DMASportsDesign.com DGeronimo@aol.com 

251 of 426

mailto:DGeronimo@aol.com
mallen
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT F



Attachment G 
 

Staff Report 
01/11/16 
   Page 1 of 6 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Date:  January 11, 2016 

To:  Honorable Mayor / Chair and City Council / Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 

Subject: Contract Award for Lugo Park Soccer Field Project through the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

The City Council is requested to award a Section 3 contract for construction services for the 
Lugo Park Soccer Field Project, through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) to 
Asphalt, Fabric, and Engineering, Inc. not to exceed $899,950 for the soccer field renovation 
work. 
  
 

BACKGROUND 
 

1. On May 6, 2014, the City Council approved the CDBG funded Lugo Park Restroom 
Rehabilitation and Soccer Field Renovation Projects.   

 
2. On November 17, 2014, the City received clearance from the CDBG Grants Management 

Unit to commence drawing down funds for the Lugo Park Restroom Rehabilitation and 
Soccer Field Renovation Projects.  

 
3. On February 12, 2015, City staff submitted a request to Willdan Engineering for cost 

estimates and a draft concept plan for the Lugo Park Restroom Rehabilitation and Soccer 
Field Renovation Projects.  

 
4. On March 13, 2015, the City submitted a letter to the Los Angeles Community 

Development Commission (LACDC) for the use of excess CDBG funds, which shows total 
CDBG expenditure of $95,000 for Lugo Park in CDBG funds by September 30, 2015. 

 

Item Number 

12A 

252 of 426



Attachment G 
 

Staff Report 
01/11/16 
   Page 2 of 6 

5. On March 17, 2015, the City Council approved a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) 
with Transtech for Project Management Services. 

 
6. On April 15, 2015, Willdan Engineering provided staff with an updated concept plan and 

cost estimates for the Lugo Park Restroom Rehabilitation and Soccer Field Renovation 
Projects. This update included cost estimates and plan modifications to accommodate the 
current available budgets for these projects. 

 
7. On April 21, 2015, the City Council approved a PSA with Pacifica Services, Inc. for Labor 

Compliance and Contract Services. 
 

8. On August 13, 2015, the City forwarded Pacifica Services, Inc. completed Bid Documents 
for CDBG’s review and approval. 

 
9. On September 28, 2015, the City Council approved circulation of Notice Inviting Bids to 

potential bidders, subject to receiving LACDC’s approval to circulate the Bid Package.   
 

10. On October 13, 2015, the City’s Community Development Department received LACDC’s 
approval, and staff placed the Notice Inviting Bids and the Bid Package at 9 electronic plan 
rooms used by contractors, and also emailed the bid package to approximately 95 
contractors that were in City’s database.   

 
11. On October 13, 2015, the City’s Community Development Department requested both, 

Amendment No. 2 for Lugo Park Soccer Field for an increase of $78,338 and Amendment 
No. 2 for Lugo Park Restroom Rehabilitation for an increase of $150,000.  

 
12. On October 28, 2015, the City held a Mandatory Pre-Bid meeting for contractors to 

explain the Section 3 requirements. 
 

13. On November 18, 2015, the Interim City Clerk held a Bid Opening for interested 
contractors to submit their bid proposals. 

 
14. On December 3, 2015, the City’s Community Development Department requested 

Amendment No. 3 for Lugo Park Soccer Field for an increase of $194,947 from a cancelled 
program. (i.e., Public Facilities & Parking Lot Improvements)   

 

253 of 426



Attachment G 
 

Staff Report 
01/11/16 
   Page 3 of 6 

Currently obligated funding sources include: 

CDBG (601694-13) (Restroom) $    225,000 
CDBG (601694-14) (Soccer Field) $    635,816 
Cudahy Youth Foundation $      16,000  
L.A. County Board of Supervisor $    270,000 
City's General Fund $    375,000 
Total Available Funds $ 1,506,547 
 

15. On December 7, 2015, Pacifica Services, Inc., provided their Section 3 bid analyses for the 
proposals submitted and same day were forwarded by the City to CDBG for Labor 
Compliance Officer for review.   
 

16. On November 18, 2015, the Interim City Clerk received a total of 12 bids. The four lowest 
proposals were submitted by the following contractors: 
 
Company Name        Bid Amount 
Asphalt, Fabric, and Engineering, Inc.    $   899,950.00 
CA Legacy Construction      $1,017,089.00 
Los Angeles Engineering, Inc.     $1,019,421.00 
EC Construction, Inc.      $1,034,421.00 

 
17. On December 16, 2015, LACDC approved the Bid Results for the lowest apparent bidder, 

Asphalt, Fabric, and Engineering, Inc. 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Over the past years, City staff has worked diligently to develop and establish projects that will 
benefit the community.  As a result of public interest, the City Council directed staff to 
proceed with the rehabilitation of the Lugo Park Restroom and Soccer Field. 
 
Pursuant to the CDBG Program the City received Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 CDBG Funds on May 
6, 2014 for the above mentioned project. The City has programmed this project with the City 
Council in a regular Council Meeting (May 6, 2014) and with the regulatory agency, 
respectively. The City expects to complete the project by May/June 2016 weather permitting.  
 
The City solicited bid proposals for construction services by issuing a Notice to Contractors for 
the Lugo Park Restroom Rehabilitation and Lugo Park Soccer Field Projects.  The scope of 
work of this project consists of providing all labor, equipment, and materials to replace the 

254 of 426



Attachment G 
 

Staff Report 
01/11/16 
   Page 4 of 6 

existing modified soccer field and restrooms at Lugo Park. It also entails the completion of 
other miscellaneous items (such as asbestos and hazardous waste proper handling/removal 
per current code requirements) and provides all required appurtenances. 
 
Consistent with CDBG program guidelines, the apparent lowest bidder has been reviewed for 
Section 3 compliance (Federal Labor Standards), and all required bid documents. Asphalt, 
Fabric, and Engineering, Inc. has been reviewed for past performance, and project 
experience, and has been approved by the LACDC as the lowest apparent and responsive 
bidder. 
 
The following is the breakdown of project expenditures in order to complete the renovation 
of the Lugo Park Soccer Field and Restrooms: 
 

Lugo Park Soccer Field and Restroom  
Project Total: 

 
$1,600,805 

Construction Cost  $    899,950 

10% Contingency $      89,950 

Artificial Turf Purchase $    300,000 

Bathroom Renovation $    100,000 

Pacifica (Labor Compliance) $      10,905 

Transtech (Engineering and Project Management) $    200,000 
Total Line Item Cost: $ 1,600,805 

 
The Lugo Park Improvements Project involves reconstruction of an existing sports field surface 
with artificial turf and drainage system, restoration of existing turf areas, and modification and 
upgrade of the existing irrigation system; site amenities, such as spectator bleachers, chain link 
fence, sports equipment; ADA compliant restrooms.  In response to comments received at the 
May 5, 2015 City Council meeting, site soils, utility and parking analysis, additional scope items 
were added to improve the project, including: 
 

1. Additional safety netting; 
 

2. Reconfiguring, widening, and reconstructing the northerly section of the parking lot 
to create 20 additional parking spaces; 
 

255 of 426



Attachment G 
 

Staff Report 
01/11/16 
   Page 5 of 6 

3. Closure of the existing northerly driveway/gate on Otis Avenue and opening a new 
driveway aligning with the east-west drive isle along the south side of the field. The 
existing driveway is located at the south-east corner of Otis Avenue and Olive Street, 
and due to its close proximity to the intersection, ingress/egress at this driveway is 
operationally difficult, and creates confusion. To improve the operational efficiency and 
safety, this driveway will be relocated further south; 
 

4. Relocation of existing parking lot lights to allow widening of the parking area; and 
 

5. Re-route electrical conduits for the existing sports filed lights. This is necessary because 
of the infrastructure and drainage system that will be installed under the artificial turf 
area. The existing electrical conduits were found to be shallow and in conflict with the 
new infrastructure and drainage system; and Installation of a new sewer line. The 
existing sewer line was found to be substandard, undersized and had insufficient slope, 
which will result in back-up and clogging if not replaced. 

 
The above items were not part of the initial project scope and budget, as these items were 
added to the project as additional improvements. The estimated costs of these additional items 
are approximately $100,000.  While the total estimated cost, including the additional 
improvements, is approximately $1.7 million, the City has added additional available CDBG 
Funds to the project.  City staff is also considering the option of upgrading the existing 
concession stand/restroom building for ADA compliance, rather than adding a separate pre-
fabricated concession stand/restroom facility. This option will leave more open space area, as 
well as may also reduce the cost.  Based on lower bid amount received, the estimated cost is 
reduced from $1.7 million to $1.6 million.  The current identified budget is $1,506,547, which 
requires approximately $95,000 additional budget based on updated project costs.  Staff will 
continue to look for any other potential cost savings and/or additional funds to reduce the 
costs further to the extent feasible, and report back to City Council later with further cost and 
funding information as necessary. 

 
 

CONCLUSION 
 

Approval of the above mentioned contract will allow the City to move forward with the 
implementation of Lugo Park Soccer Field Renovation Project, to be completed by end of 
May/June 2016 weather permitting.  The City will first move forward with the renovation of the 
Soccer Field because the bid received was lower than expected.  The City will still pursue the 
Restroom Renovation and will request the City Council to approve a contract at a later date.   

 

256 of 426



Attachment G 
 

Staff Report 
01/11/16 
   Page 6 of 6 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The LACDC has allocated $860,816 to the subject project for construction costs, construction 
management, and inspection of the project. Additionally, a General Fund allocation of 
$375,000; Cudahy Youth Foundation contribution of $16,000; and Los Angeles County Board 
of Supervisors grant of $270,000 will be used to cover the project costs.  The project has a 
balance amount of $1,506,547. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Bid Opening Minutes from November 18, 2015 
B. Section 3 Clause (For reference) 
C. Contract Agreement 
 

257 of 426



1 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
 

PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 
 

LUGO PARK IMPROVEMENTS ARTIFICIAL TURF PURCHASE CONTRACT 
Related Reference Project 

CDBG Project No.: 
601693-14 (Lugo Park Restroom Rehabilitation) 
601694-14 (Lugo Park Soccer Field Renovation) 

This is a CDBG Federally Funded Project 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT “Agreement” is made and entered into this ________ day of 2016, by and between 
the CITY OF CUDAHY, a Municipal Corporation located in the County of Los Angeles, State of California 
hereinafter called CITY, and AFE SPORTS,  [a corporation], located at 2683 Lime Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 
90755, hereinafter called CONTRACTOR, collectively referred to as the Parties. 
 
 

RECITALS 
 
CITY, requested from Artificial Turf Vendors written price quotes the following: 
 

Price quotes to furnish and install “City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf” at Lugo Park in the 
City of Cudahy in the City of CUDAHY, California, hereinafter called PROJECT. 

 
Price Quotes were received from various vendors on February 8, 2016 before 5 PM. 
 
At its regular meeting held on March 14, 2016, the CITY Council duly accepted the Price Quote of 
CONTRACTOR for said PROJECT as being the lowest reasonable price quote in compliance with the City 
of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and of the mutual covenants and agreements 
herein contained, said parties do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE I – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
The CONTRACT DOCUMENTS for the PROJECT shall consist of: 
 
• document titled:  

Price quotes to furnish and install “City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf” at Lugo Park in the 
City of Cudahy in the City of CUDAHY, California, hereinafter called PROJECT, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and by this reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 

• CONTRACTOR’s Proposal, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and by this reference 
incorporated herein and made a part hereof 

• CDBG Section 3 Clause & Requirements 
• Federal Labor Standard Provisions 
• Current Federal DOL Wage Decision 

Attachment H

258 of 426



2 

• Federal EEO and Affirmative Action Requirements  
• and all referenced specifications, details, standard drawings, and appendices, together with this 

contract and all required bonds, insurance certificates, permits, notices and declarations, affidavits, 
and also including any and all addenda or supplemental agreements clarifying, amending, or 
extending the work contemplated as may be required to insure its completion in an acceptable 
manner. 

 
All of the above-mentioned documents are intended to complement the other documents so that any 
work called for in one, and not mentioned in the others, or vice versa, is to be executed the same as if 
mentioned in all of said documents.  The document comprising the complete contract are hereinafter 
referred to as the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and are incorporated herein by this reference and made and 
part hereof as though they were fully set forth herein.  
 
All of the rights and obligations of the CITY and CONTRACTOR are fully set forth and described in the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
In the event there is a conflict between the terms of the Contract Documents, the more specific or 
stringent provision shall govern.  City shall decide which option is the more specific or stringent 
provision. 
 
 

ARTICLE II - AGREEMENT 
 
For and in consideration of the payments and agreements be made and performed by CITY, 
CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to furnish all materials and perform all work required for the PROJECT and 
to fulfill all other obligations as set forth in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
 

ARTICLE III - COMPENSATION 
 
CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to receive and accept the total amount Three Hundred Fifty-seven 
Thousand Sixteen ($357,016), set forth in CONTRACTOR’s submittal, a copy of which is attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B” and by this reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof, as full compensation 
for furnishing all materials, performing all work, and fulfilling all obligations hereunder.  
 
Said compensation shall cover all expenses, losses, damages, and consequences arising out of the nature 
of the work during its progress or prior to its acceptance including those for well and faithfully 
completing the work and the whole thereof in the manner and time specified in the CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS, and also including those arising from actions of the elements, unforeseen difficulties or 
obstructions encountered in the prosecution of the work, suspension or discontinuance of the work, and 
all other unknowns or risks of any description connected with the work.   
 
The sum identified in Article III is not subject to escalation, the CONTRACTOR having satisfied himself 
with said CONTRACT price, which includes all labor and material increases anticipated throughout the 
duration of this CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT.  
 
CITY shall retain five percent (5%) of said CONTRACT price until said time as the provisions of Article XIV 
herein have been met. 

Attachment H

259 of 426



3 

 
Progress payments shall  be made in accordance with Section 9 of the Standard Specifications for Public 
Works as amended by the General Provisions and Special Provisions. 
 
Upon receipt of a properly presented payment request, the Contract Officer shall process the payment 
request in accordance with Public Contracts Code Section 20104.50.  The Contract Officer shall review 
the payment request as soon as possible.  If the Contract Officer rejects the payment request, it shall be 
returned to the Contractor within seven days of its receipt by the City with an explanation for the 
reasons of its rejection.  If the payment request is approved in writing by the Contract Officer, payment 
shall be made within thirty (30) days of receipt of an undisputed and properly presented payment 
request.  Late payments shall bear interest at the legal rate of interest in accordance with Code of Civil 
Procedure 685.010.  City shall pay Contractor a sum based upon ninety-five percent (95%) of the 
contract price apportionment of the labor and materials incorporated into the work under the contract 
during the period covered by said statement.  The remaining five percent (5%) thereof shall be retained 
as performance security. 
 
Substitution of Securities for Retention.  The contractor may deposit securities in lieu of the 5% progress 
payment retentions in accordance with California Public Contracts Code 22300. 
 
CITY’s obligation is payable only and solely from Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds 
appropriated from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and for the 
purpose of this CONTRACT. All funds are appropriated every fiscal year beginning July 1.  In the event 
this CONTRACT extends into the succeeding fiscal year and funds have not been appropriated, this 
CONTRACT will automatically terminate as of June 30 of the current fiscal year. The CITY will notify the 
CONTRACTOR in writing in ten (10) days of receipt of the non-appropriation notice.  
 
 

ARTICLE IV - CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS 
 
CITY hereby promises and agrees to employ, and does hereby employ, CONTRACTOR to provide the 
materials, do the work, and fulfill the obligations according to the terms and conditions herein 
contained and referred to, for the said amounts set forth in Article III hereof, and hereby agrees to pay 
the same at the time, in the manner, and upon the conditions set forth in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
In addition, CONTRACTOR hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions of both State 
and Federal law with respect to the employment of unauthorized aliens. 
 
Should CONTRACTOR so employ such unauthorized aliens for the performance of work and/or services 
covered by this contract, and should the Federal Government impose sanctions against the CITY for such 
use of unauthorized aliens, CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to, and shall, reimburse CITY for the cost of all 
such sanctions imposed, together with any and all costs, including attorney’s fees, incurred by the CITY 
in connection therewith. 
 
Furthermore, CONTRACTOR hereby represents and warrants that it is not currently, and has not at any 
time within the past five (5) calendar years been, suspended, debarred, or excluded from participating 
in, bidding on, contracting for, or completed any project funded in whole or in part by any federally 
funded program, grant or loan, or any project funded in whole or in part by a program, loan or grant 
from the State of California, and that CONTRACTOR currently has and for the past five (5) calendar years 

Attachment H

260 of 426



4 

has maintained in good standing, a valid California contractor’s license.   CONTRACTOR agrees to 
complete and execute any statement or certificate to this effect as may be required by the City or by any 
federal or State of California program, loan or grant utilized on this PROJECT.   
 
 

ARTICLE V – COMMENCEMENT DATE 
 
CONTRACTOR shall commence work on the date specified in the Notice to Proceed to be issued to said 
CONTRACTOR by the Director of Public Works of CITY and shall complete work on the PROJECT as 
specified in Exhibit A and B. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI – NO DISCRIMINATION 
 

CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate in its recruiting, hiring, promotion, demotion or termination 
practices on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental 
disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, age, or sexual orientation in the performance of this 
CONTRACT and shall comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as 
set forth in Part 2.8 of Division 3, Title 2 of the California Government Code; the Federal Civil Rights Act 
of 1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all 
administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to such acts and order. 
 
CONTRACTOR hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions of the Federal 
Immigration and Nationality Act (8 USCA 1101, et seq.), as amended; and, in connection therewith, shall 
not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein.  Should CONTRACTOR so employ such unauthorized 
aliens for the performance of work and/or services covered by this AGREEMENT, and should the Federal 
Government impose sanctions against the CITY for such use of unauthorized aliens, CONTRACTOR 
hereby agrees to, and shall, reimburse CITY for the cost of all such sanctions imposed, together with any 
and all costs, including attorney’s fees, incurred by the CITY in connection therewith. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII – LABOR CODE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Compliance with SB 854 Registration:  This Work is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement 
by the Department of Industrial Relations.  No prime contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid 
proposal for a public works project (submitted on or after March 1, 2015) unless registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5.  No prime contractor or 
subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a public works project (awarded on or after 
April 1, 2015) unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code 
section 1725.5.   The Contractor will be required to post job site notices as described in 8 California Code 
of Regulation section 16451(d).   
 
Contractor acknowledges that under California Labor Code sections 1810 and following, 8 hours of labor 
constitutes a legal day’s work.  Contractor will forfeit as a penalty to City the sum of $25.00 for each 
worker employed in the execution of this Agreement by Contractor or any subcontractor for each 
calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than 8 hours in any one 
calendar day and 40 hours in any one calendar week in violation of the provisions of Labor Code section 
1810.  (Labor Code § 1813). 

Attachment H

261 of 426



5 

 
Copies of the determination of the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations of the prevailing 
rate of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute this Agreement 
will be made available upon request from the City Engineer’s Office. 
 
Contractor must post at the work site, or if there is no regular work site then at its principal 
office, for the duration of the Contract, a copy of the determination by the Director of the 
Department of Industrial Relations of the specified prevailing rate of per diem wages.  (Labor 
Code § 1773.2).  The Contractor shall post WH-1321 ENGLISH and WH-1321 SPANISH at the work site.   
 
Contractor, and any subcontractor engaged by Contractor, must pay not less than the specified 
prevailing rate of per diem wages to all workers employed in the execution of the contract.  (Labor Code 
§ 1774.)  Contractor is responsible for compliance with Labor Code section 1776 relative to the retention 
and inspection of payroll records. 
 
Contractor must comply with all provisions of Labor Code section 1775.  Under Section 1775, Contractor 
may forfeit as a penalty to City up to $50.00 for each worker employed in the execution of the Contract 
by Contractor or any subcontractor for each calendar day, or portion thereof, in which the worker is 
paid less than the prevailing rates.  Contractor may also be liable to pay the difference between the 
prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 
which each worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate. 
 
Nothing in this Contract prevents Contractor or any subcontractor from employing properly registered 
apprentices in the execution of the Contract.  Contractor is responsible for compliance with Labor Code 
section 1777.5 for all apprenticeable occupations.  This statute requires that contractors and 
subcontractors must submit contract award information to the applicable joint apprenticeship 
committee, must employ apprentices in apprenticeable occupations in a ratio of not less than one hour 
of apprentice’s work for every five hours of labor performed by a journeyman (unless an exception is 
granted under §1777.5), must contribute to the fund or funds in each craft or trade or a like amount to 
the California Apprenticeship Council, and that contractors and subcontractors must not discriminate 
among otherwise qualified employees as apprentices solely on the ground of sex, race, religion, creed, 
national origin, ancestry or color.  Only apprentices defined in Labor Code section 3077, who are in 
training under apprenticeship standards and who have written apprentice contracts, may be employed 
on public works in apprenticeable occupations.   
 
This is a federally-assisted CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT. Federal Labor Standards Provisions, including 
prevailing wage requirements of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts will be enforced. In the event of a 
conflict between Federal and State wages rates, the higher of the two will prevail.  Modification of 
Federal Wage Rates published within ten (10) days prior to the scheduled Bid Opening date shall apply 
to the contract. 
 
The Contractor shall submit payroll records to the City weekly for each week in which any contract work 
is performed. The Contractor is also responsible for the submission of payroll records by all its 
Subcontractors performing any contract work on this Project.  
 
The payroll records submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to 
be maintained under Section 5.5(a) (3) (i) of 29 C.F.R. Part 5. Each payroll submitted shall be 

Attachment H

262 of 426



6 

accompanied by a Statement of Compliance signed by the Contractor or Subcontractor or his or her 
agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the Contract, and shall 
certify the following: 
• The payroll records for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under 

Section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of 29 C.F.R. Part 5, and that such information is correct and complete; 
• Each employee employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly 

wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made 
either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set 
forth in Regulations, 29 C.F.R. Part 3; 

• Each employee has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash 
equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage 
determination incorporated into the Contract. 

 
This information may be submitted in any form desired, however, Form WH-347 is provided as an 
optional template. The Contractor shall submit a Statement of Non-Performance for each week of work 
for which craft work was not performed. 
 
The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the Contractor or Subcontractor to civil or 
criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States 
Code. 
 
The Contractor shall submit copies of apprentice certification(s) for each apprentice performing work on 
the Contract to accompany the first payroll record in which that apprentice appears. The City will 
recognize apprentice certifications from the U.S. Department of Labor and the California Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not 
registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate 
on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. 
 
The CONTRACTOR’s duty to pay State prevailing wages can be found under Labor Code Section 1770 et 
q. and Labor Code Sections 1775 and 1777.7 outline the penalties for failure to pay prevailing wages and 
employ apprentices including forfeitures and debarment. 
 
The Contractor agrees that the City, through its authorized representatives, has the right, at all 
reasonable times, to make site visits to review Project accomplishments and for other reasons, such as 
employee interviews. If any site visit is made by the City on the premises of the Contractor or any of its 
Subcontractors under this Contract, the Contractor shall provide and shall require its Subcontractors to 
provide, all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience of City representatives in 
the performance of their duties. All site visits and evaluations shall be performed in such a manner as 
will not unduly delay work being conducted by the Contractor or Subcontractor(s). 
 
If the work involves excavation of any trench five feet or more in depth the contractor shall submit a 
detailed plan of shoring, bracing, sloping or other provisions to be made for worker protection.  Such plan 
shall be approved by a qualified representative of the City. (LC 6705). 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII - PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW 
 
Each and every provision of law required to be included in these Contract Documents shall be deemed 

Attachment H

263 of 426



7 

to be included in these Contract Documents.  The Contractor shall comply with all requirements of 
applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, the 
provisions of the California Labor Code and California Public Contract Code which are applicable to this 
Project.  Such laws, rules and regulations shall include, but not be limited to the following. 
Contractor’s License. 
 The Contractor shall possess a type A or B California Contractor's license at the time of award of 
the Contract. 
 
Ineligible Contractor Prohibited. 
 Any contractor or subcontractor who is ineligible to perform work on a public works project 
pursuant to Section 1777.1 or 1777.7 of the Labor Code is prohibited from performing work under this 
Contract. 
 
Unfair Business Practices Claims. 
 The Contractor or subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the City all rights, title, and 
interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Section 
15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2, (commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of 
the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services or materials pursuant to 
the public works contract or the subcontract.  This assignment shall be made and become effective at 
the time the City renders final payment to the Contractor without further acknowledgment by the 
parties.  (Section 7103.5, California Public Contract Code.). 
 
Hazardous Materials and Unknown Conditions. 
 
A. CONTRACTOR shall, without disturbing the condition, notify CITY in writing as soon as 

CONTRACTOR, or any of CONTRACTOR’s subcontractors, agents or employees have knowledge 
and reporting is possible, of the discovery of any of the following conditions: 
 
1. The presence of any material that the CONTRACTOR believes is hazardous waste, as 

defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code; 
 

2. Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing from those indicated in the 
specifications; or, 

 
3. Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature, different materially from 

those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of this 
character provided for in this Contract. 

 
B.  Pending a determination by CITY of appropriate action to be taken, CONTRACTOR shall provide 

security measures (e.g., fences) adequate to prevent the hazardous waste or physical conditions 
from causing bodily injury to any person. 

 
C. CITY shall promptly investigate the reported conditions.  If CITY, through its Director of Public 

Works, or her designee, and in the exercise of its sole discretion, determines that the conditions 
do materially differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and will cause a decrease or increase in the 
CONTRACTOR’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the work, then CITY 
shall issue a change order. 

 

Attachment H

264 of 426



8 

D. In the event of a dispute between CITY and CONTRACTOR as to whether the conditions 
materially differ, or involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or increase in the 
CONTRACTOR’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the work, 
CONTRACTOR shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date, and shall proceed with 
all work to be performed under the Contract.  CONTRACTOR shall retain any and all rights which 
pertain to the resolution of disputes and protests between the parties. 

 
 

ARTICLE IX - INDEMNITY 
 
CONTRACTOR shall assume the defense of and indemnify and save harmless the CITY, its elective and 
appointive boards, officers, agents and employees, and Design Engineer and Construction Manager from 
all claims, loss, damage, injury and liability of every kind, nature and description, directly or indirectly 
arising from the performance of the CONTRACTOR’s work, regardless of responsibility of negligence; and 
from any and all claims, loss, damage, injury and liability, howsoever the same may be caused, resulting 
directly or indirectly from the nature of the work covered by the contract, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; provided 

 
(a) That CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights against CONTRACTOR which 

it may have by reason for the aforesaid hold-harmless AGREEMENT because of 
the acceptance by CITY or the deposit with CITY by CONTRACTOR, of any of the 
insurance policies hereinafter described in this AGREEMENT. 

 
(b) That the aforesaid hold-harmless AGREEMENT by CONTRACTOR shall apply to 

all damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have 
been suffered, by reason of any of the aforesaid operations of CONTRACTOR, or 
any subcontractor, regardless of whether or not such insurance policies shall 
have been determined to be applicable to any of such damages or claims for 
damages.  

 
 

 
 

Attachment H

265 of 426



9 

ARTICLE X - BONDS 
 
Warranty & Guarantee 
 
New Materials.  Contractor guarantees that all materials and equipment furnished will be new unless 
otherwise specified in the Contract Documents. 
 
One Year Guarantee.  Contractor guarantees all materials and equipment furnished and Work 
performed for a period of one (1) year from the date of substantial completion is free from all defects 
due to faulty materials or workmanship.  Contractor shall promptly make such corrections as may be 
necessary by reasons of such defects including the repairs of any damage to other property, whether 
real or personal.  The City will give notice of observed defects with reasonable promptness.  If 
Contractor fails to make such repairs, or other Work that may be made necessary by such defects, the 
City may do so and charge the Contractor the cost thereby incurred, plus 10% for administrative 
expenses.  The Performance Bond shall remain in full force and effect through the guarantee period.  
Contractor shall execute the Public Improvement Warranty. 
 
Bonds.  
 
Contractor shall provide a payment bond consistent with the terms of this section and City may not 
waive this requirement.  Contractor shall also provide a performance bond consistent with the terms of 
this section, unless City waives such requirement in writing.  Each bond shall (1) be in writing; (2) signed 
by at least one admitted surety insurer under oath; (3) if a bond is signed by more than one surety 
insurer, include a statement that the sureties are jointly and severally liable on the obligations required 
hereunder; (4) list the address at which the principal and surety/sureties may be served with notices, 
papers, and other documents under this chapter; (5) be in the form of a bond and not in a deposit in lieu 
of a bond; (6) be consistent with any other requirements of the City that reasonably relate to a 
guarantee that the project will be completed at no cost to the City.   
 
Payment Bond.  Contractor shall furnish and file with City a bond in the sum of one hundred percent 
(100%) of the Compensation.  Consistent with Civil Code § 3248, the bond shall provide that if the 
Contractor or any subcontractors hired by Contractor fails to pay (1) any of the persons named in Civil 
Code § 3181; (2) amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to work or labor 
performed under this Agreement; or (3) for any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid 
over to the Employment Development Department from the wages of employees of the contractor and 
subcontractors pursuant to Unemployment Insurance Code §13020 with respect to the work and labor 
that the sureties will pay for the same, and also, in case suit is brought upon the bond, a reasonable 
attorney’s fee, to be fixed by the court.  The bond shall, by its terms, inure to the benefit of any of the 
persons named in Civil Code § 3181 so as to give a right of action to those persons or their assigns in any 
suit brought upon the bond.  The bond provided under this section shall be released by written 
authorization of the City Engineer at the completion of the one year warranty period described in 
section 0, above, provided that Contractor is not in default on any provision of this Agreement.   
 
Performance Bond.  Contractor shall provide City with a bond in the sum of one hundred percent (100%) 
of the Compensation to guarantee the completion of the Work, to protect City if Developer is in default 
of this Agreement, and to secure Contractor’s one-year guarantee and warranty.  The City Council may, 
in its sole and absolute discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a 
portion or portions of the security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepted 

Attachment H

266 of 426



10 

by City, provided that Contractor is not in default on any provision of this Agreement.  All security 
provided under this section shall be released at the end of the warranty period described in section 0, 
above, provided that Contractor is not in default on any provision of this Agreement. 
 
 
 

ARTICLE XI - INSURANCE 
 
CONTRACTOR shall not commence work under this contract until CONTRACTOR shall have obtained all 
insurance required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and such insurance shall have been approved by 
CITY as to form, amount and carrier, nor shall CONTRACTOR allow any subcontractor to commence work 
on any subcontract until all similar insurance required of the subcontractor shall have been so obtained 
and approved. 
 

(a) COMPENSATION INSURANCE - CONTRACTOR shall take out and maintain, during 
the life of this contract, Worker’s Compensation Insurance for all of 
CONTRACTOR’s employees employed at the site of improvement; and, if any 
work is sublet, CONTRACTOR shall require the subcontractor similarly to provide 
Worker’s Compensation Insurance for all of the latter’s employees, unless such 
employees are   covered by the protection afforded by CONTRACTOR.  If any 
class of employees engaged in work under this contract at the site of the 
PROJECT is not protected under any Workers’ Compensation law, CONTRACTOR 
shall provide and shall cause each subcontractor to provide adequate insurance 
for the protection of employees not otherwise protected.  CONTRACTOR shall 
indemnify CITY for any damage resulting to it from failure of either 
CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor to take out or maintain such insurance. 

 
(b) COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY, PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS 

HAZARD, COMPREHENSIVE AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY AND CONTRACTUAL 
GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE.  CONTRACTOR shall take out and maintain 
during the life of this contract such comprehensive general liability, 
products/completed operations hazard, comprehensive automobile liability and 
contractual general liability insurance as shall protect CITY, its elective and 
appointive boards, officers, agents and employees, Design Engineer and 
Construction Manager, CONTRACTOR, and any subcontractor performing work 
covered by this contract, from claims for damage for personal injury, including 
death, as well as from claims for property damage which may arise from 
CONTRACTOR’s or any subcontractor’s operations under this contract, whether 
such operations be by CONTRACTOR or by any subcontractor, or by anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by either CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor, 
and the amounts of such insurance shall be as follows: 

 
(1) Public Liability Insurance in an amount of not less than TWO MILLION 

DOLLARS ($2,000,000); 
 

(2) Products/Completed Operations Hazard Insurance in an amount of not 
less than TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000); 

 

Attachment H

267 of 426



11 

(3) Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance in an amount of not less 
than TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000); 

 
(4) Contractual General Liability Insurance in an amount of not less than 

TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000). 
 

A combined single limit policy with aggregate limits in an amount of not less 
than TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000) shall be considered equivalent to the 
said required minimum limits set forth hereinabove. 

 
(c) PROOF OF INSURANCE  - The insurance required by this AGREEMENT shall be 

with insurers which are Best A rated, and California Admitted or better.  The 
CITY and Design Engineer and Construction Manager shall be named as 
“additional insured” on all policies required hereunder, and CONTRACTOR shall 
furnish CITY, concurrently with the execution hereof, with satisfactory proof of 
carriage of the insurance required, and adequate legal assurance that each 
carrier will give CITY at least thirty (30) days’ prior notice of the cancellation of 
any policy during the effective period of the contract. 

 
 (d) NOTICE TO COMMENCE WORK  - The CITY will not issue any notice authorizing 

CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor to commence work under this contact until 
CONTRACTOR has provided to the CITY the proof of insurance as required by 
subparagraph (c) of this article. 

 
 

ARTICLE XII - ATTORNEY FEES 
 
If either party to this Contract is required to initiate or defend, or is made a party to, any action or 
proceeding in any way connected with this Contract, the party prevailing in the final judgment in such 
action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief which may be granted, shall be entitled to 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. Attorney’s fees shall include reasonable costs for investigating 
such action. 
 
 

ARTICLE   XIII - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 
The parties agree that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to fix the actual damages to the 
CITY in the event the PROJECT is not commenced and/or completed on or before the dates specified for 
commencement and completion of the PROJECT in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The parties have 
considered the facts of a breach of this contract and have agreed that the liquidated damages sum 
hereinafter set forth is reasonable as liquidated damages in the event of a breach, and that said sum 
shall be presumed to be the amount of the damages sustained by the CITY in the event such work is not 
begun and/or completed and accepted by the times so specified in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, the 
sum of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) shall be presumed to be the amount of damages suffered by the 
CITY for each calendar day’s delay in the starting and/or  completion and acceptance of said PROJECT 
after the dates specified in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS for the start and/or completion thereof, and 
CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to pay said sum of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) as liquidated damages for 
each calendar day of delay in the starting and/or completing and acceptance of said PROJECT beyond 

Attachment H

268 of 426



12 

the dates specified in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  Any and all such liquidated damages assessed shall 
be done so in accordance with that certain edition of the Standard Specification for Public Works 
Construction currently in effect on the execution date of this CONTRACT.  The payment of such 
liquidated damages is not intended as a forfeiture or penalty within the meaning of California Civil Code 
§ 3275 or § 3369. 
 
CONTRACTOR: AFE SPORTS CITY OF CUDAHY 
a California Corporation    a Municipal Corporation 
 
 
by:___________________________    by:____________________________ 
 President       Mayor 
 
 

ARTICLE XIV - NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 
Upon completion of PROJECT and acceptance of same by the CITY Council, the CITY Manager shall have 
cause to be recorded a Notice of Completion with the office of the Los Angeles County Recorder; and, 
after thirty-five (35) days from the date said Notice of Completion is recorded, the Director of Finance of 
CITY shall release the funds retained pursuant to Article III hereof; provided there have been no 
mechanics’ liens or stop notices filed against said work which have not been paid, withdrawn or 
eliminated as liens against said work. 
 
 

ARTICLE XV - NO - ASSIGNMENT 
 
This contract shall not be assignable, either in whole or in part, by the CONTRACTOR without first 
obtaining the written consent of the CITY thereto. 
 
 

ARTICLE XVI - CUMULATIVE RIGHTS 
 
The provisions of this AGREEMENT are cumulative and in addition to and not in limitation of any rights 
or remedies available to CITY. 
 
 

ARTICLE XVII - TERMINATION 
 
A. Termination for Convenience.  The CITY may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, with 30 

days written notice to the CONTRACTOR when it is in the CITY’s best interest. The CONTRACTOR 
shall be paid its costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the 
time of termination. The CONTRACTOR shall promptly submit its termination claim to CITY to be 
paid the CONTRACTOR. If the CONTRACTOR has any property in its possession belonging to the CITY, 
the CONTRACTOR will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner the CITY directs. The 
CONTRACTOR may terminate this contract, in whole, with 90 days written notice to the CITY. 
 

B. Termination for Default.  If at any time the CONTRACTOR is determined to be in material breach of 
the Contract, a Notice of Potential Breach of Contract shall be prepared by the CITY, and will be 

Attachment H

269 of 426



13 

served upon the CONTRACTOR and its sureties. If the CONTRACTOR continues to neglect or refuses 
to comply with the Contract or with the Notice of Potential Breach of Contract to the satisfaction of 
the CITY within the time specified in such Notice, the CITY shall have the authority to terminate the 
Contract for this Project. 

 
C. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach.  In the event that CITY elects to waive its remedies for any 

breach by CONTRACTOR of any covenant, term or condition of this Contract, such waiver by CITY 
shall not limit CITY’s remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or 
condition of the Contract. 

 
 

ARTICLE XVIII – FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the construction work covered under this 
Agreement is financed in whole or in part with assistance provided under a program of the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development or some other source of Federal funding, Contractor 
shall also comply with and cause its subcontractors to comply with the requirements of the Davis-Bacon 
Act (40 U.S.C. 276 et seq.).  The Davis-Bacon Act requires the payment of wages to all laborers and 
mechanics at a rate not less than the minimum wage specified by the Secretary of Labor in the periodic 
wage rate determinations as described in the Federal Labor Standards Provisions (HUD-4010) available 
from the Agency’s Compliance Division.  If Contractor is required to comply with the Davis-Bacon Act, 
Contractor shall pay the higher of Davis-Bacon Act or state prevailing wages, on a trade-by-trade basis. 
By entering into this Agreement, Contractor certifies that it is not a person or firm ineligible to be 
awarded Government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or if 
HUD funds are involved, to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant to 
24 CFR Part 24.  Contractor agrees to include, or cause to be included, the above provision, to be 
applicable to contractors and subcontractors, in each contract and subcontract for work covered under 
this Agreement. 
 
Contractor shall comply with all mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which 
are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and 
Conservation Act. 
 
The City, the federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly 
authorized representatives shall have access to any books, documents papers and records of the 
Contractor and any subcontractors which are directly pertinent to this Agreement, for the purpose of 
making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions.  Contractor shall maintain all required records 
for three years after City makes final payments and all other pending matters are closed. 
 
Contractor shall comply with the Copeland “Anti-Kick Back” Act, 18 U.S.C. §874, as supplemented in 
Department of Labor regulations. (29 C.F.R. part 3.)   
 
Contractor shall ensure compliance with sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety 
Standards Act, 40 U.S.C. §§ 327 – 33, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations.  See 29 
C.F.R. part 5. 
 
Contractor and any subcontractors must comply with Executive Order 11246 as amended by Executive 
Order 11375 and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations.  (41 C.F.R. part 3.) 

Attachment H

270 of 426



14 

 
If the Compensation exceeds $100,000, Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, or 
requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act, Section 508 of the Clean Water Act, 
Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations, which prohibit the use 
under non-exempt federal contracts, grants or loans of facilities included on the EPA List of Violating 
Facilities.  (See e.g. 47 C.F.R. §18.36(i)(12).)   
 
If the Compensation exceeds $100,000 for construction or facility improvements, Contractor must 
observe the building requirements contained in Attachment B of OMB Circular A-110. 
 
 
 

--------SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE-------- 

Attachment H

271 of 426



15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be executed on the _____ day of 
_____________________, 20__, by their respective officers duly authorized in that behalf. 
 
 
CITY OF CUDAHY      CONTRACTOR: AFE SPORTS 
a Municipal Corporation    a California Corporation 
 
by:______________________________ 

________________, Mayor    by:______________________________ 
President 

 
by:_______________________________ 

ATTEST:        Secretary 
 
 
by:_______________________________ 

________________, City Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
by: _______________________________ 

________________, City Attorney 
 

Attachment H

272 of 426



16 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS WARRANTY 
LUGO PARK IMPROVEMENTS 

 
On ________________________, 200__, the City of CUDAHY accepted as complete and meeting the 
standards of City, the following public improvement(s):  
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________, built and constructed by or for  _____________________, 
("Contractor") 
 
Contractor hereby warrants and guarantees the aforementioned public improvements as to the material 
used and workmanship performed for a period of one (1) year following the date set forth above. 
 
In the event of a defect, malfunction, or failure to conform t the improvement specifications and all 
applicable local standards, the Contractor shall repair or replace said improvements at Contractor's own 
and sole expense within a reasonable time from notice of the defect from City.  Should Contractor fail to 
cure any defect within a reasonable period of time, Contractor agrees to reimburse City for any and all 
costs of City's efforts to cure any defect once City has provided notice to the Contractor of the defect 
and the City's intent to cure such defect. 
 
Should litigation be necessary to enforce the provisions of this warranty, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to reimbursement for attorneys fees and court and related costs. 
 
Executed at _________________________, California, on the day and year first written above. 
 CONTRACTOR 

 
By:__________________________ 
 Signature 
 
By:__________________________ 
 (Typed Name) 
 
Its:__________________________ 
 Title 
 
By:__________________________ 
 Signature 
 
By:__________________________ 
 (Typed Name) 
 
Its:__________________________ 
 Title 
 

[NOTARY REQUIRED] 

Attachment H

273 of 426



17 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 
LUGO PARK IMPROVEMENTS ARTIFICIAL TURF PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that _____________________________________________, as 
CONTRACTOR and_____________________________________, as SURETY, are held and firmly bound 
unto the City of CUDAHY, in the penal sum of _________________________________________dollars ($                    
), which is 100 percent of the total contract amount for the above stated project, for the payment of 
which sum, CONTRACTOR and SURETY agree to be bound, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
THE CONDITIONS OF THIS OBLIGATION ARE SUCH that, whereas CONTRACTOR has been awarded and is 
about to enter into the annexed Contract with the City for the above stated project, if CONTRACTOR 
faithfully performs and fulfills all obligations under the contract documents in the manner and time 
specified therein, then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and 
effect in favor of the City; provided that any alternations in the obligations or time for completion made 
pursuant to the terms of the contract documents shall not in any way release either CONTRACTOR or 
SURETY, and notice of such alternations are hereby waived by SURETY. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their names, titles, hands, and seals this ____day of 
_____________, 20      . 
 
CONTRACTOR* _________________________________________________________________________ 
 

       
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SURETY*       
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

      
_________________________________________________________________________ 
* Provide CONTRACTOR/SURETY name, address and telephone number and the name, title, address and 
telephone number for authorized representative. 
 
Subscribed and sworn to this ______ day of _______________, 20__. 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC:_______________________________________________________ 

Attachment H

274 of 426



18 

MATERIAL AND LABOR BOND 
LUGO PARK IMPROVEMENTS ARTIFICIAL TURF PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that _____________________________________________, as 
CONTRACTOR and_____________________________________, as SURETY, are held and firmly bound 
unto the City of CUDAHY, in the penal sum of _________________________________________dollars ($                    
), which is 100 percent of the total contract amount for the above stated project, for the payment of 
which sum, CONTRACTOR and SURETY agree to be bound, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
THE CONDITIONS OF THIS OBLIGATION ARE SUCH that, whereas CONTRACTOR has been awarded and is 
about to enter into the annexed Contract with the City for the above stated project, if CONTRACTOR 
faithfully performs and fulfills all obligations under the contract documents in the manner and time 
specified therein, then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and 
effect in favor of the City; provided that any alternations in the obligations or time for completion made 
pursuant to the terms of the contract documents shall not in any way release either CONTRACTOR or 
SURETY, and notice of such alternations are hereby waived by SURETY. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their names, titles, hands, and seals this ____day of 
_____________, 20      . 
 
CONTRACTOR* ____________________________________________________________ 

       
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 
SURETY*       
_________________________________________________________________________ 

    ______________________________________________________________________ 
* Provide CONTRACTOR/SURETY name, address and telephone number and the name, title, address and 
telephone number for authorized representative. 
 
Subscribed and sworn to this ______ day of _______________, 20__. 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC:______________________________________________________ 

Attachment H

275 of 426



EXHIBIT A-REQUEST FOR QUOTES WITH ALL WEATHER TURF PER CITY OF LA SPEC 

Exhibit A

276 of 426



EXHIBIT B-AFE SPORTS SUBMITTAL 

Exhibit B

277 of 426



From: Douglas E. Coulter [mailto:dcoulter@afesports.com]  
Sent: Monday, February 08, 2016 4:49 PM 
To: Ali Cayir <ali.cayir@transtech.org>; mallen@cityofcudahyca.gov 
Cc: 'Joe' <dgeronimo@aol.com>; 'Jeff Fenton' <jfenton@afesports.com> 
Subject: RE: CUDAHY-REQUEST FOR QUOTES FOR ALL WEATHER TURF PER CITY OF LA SPEC 

Michael, 

Attached please find Lugo quote for City of L.A. Recreation and Parks turf Spec. which includes DT-32 turf from 
Astroturf, Pro Play 20mm shock pad, and  Zeo-Fill for the infill. 
Specification and  additional information for all products included.   
Please call or email with any questions. 

Best Regards 

Douglas Coulter 
President 

AFE SPORTS 
2683 Lime Avenue Signal Hill CA 90755 

O:562.981.2508 
F:562.997.4109 
M:310.261.3837 
emai l :  mai lto :dcoul ter@afesports.com  
www.afesports.com 

Exhibit B

278 of 426

mailto:dcoulter@afesports.com
www.afesports.com


February 1, 2016 

To: Interested Artificial Turf Vendors 

Subject: City of Cudahy request for Price quotes to furnish and install "City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf' at 
Lugo Park In the City of Cudahy 

City of Cudahy is requesting from interested Vendors a price quote to furnish and install "City of Los Angeles Spec All 
Weather Turf' at Lugo Park in the City of Cudahy. Lugo Park is located at 7810 Otis Avenue, Cudahy, CA 90201 (north
east corner of Otis Avenue and Elizabeth Street). 

Soccer field play area is: 
300' x 150' = 45,000 sf 

Total turf area with additional side areas Is: 
330' x 165' = 54,450 sf 

Provide all labor, equipment and materials to 
install 
City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf 

with Zeolite Infill (1.75 lbs per sf), 
Underlayment Pad and Impermeable 

Isolation Fabric Liner per Attached 

Specifications. 

Price shall also include installation of soccer 
lines, and all transportation of materials and 
8 year Warranty as specified in the attached 
City of LA specifications. 

City will construct the field with necessary 
grading, base perimeter drainage pipe and 
curbs for the uCity of Los Angeles Spec All 
Weather Turf' installation under separate 
contract. 

-~COllP~_',..,.'. .. ·"~~3'.:'}--._~":r= 
NO'TE: 
G!W>EllE1WEENCONCRETE 
PERlllE1n CURB AND 
DRAlNAGE TRENCH SHOUlDBE 
COUNTER..sLOPED TO THE 
FIElD PER ELEVATIONS ON 
GRADING PIAN. A 
( --~ 

36"TVP 

ISOlATION 

'r THla<LAYERQF %' CRUSHEl> 
WASHED STONE (!111% COMPACTION) 
~·CRUSHED WASHED STONE 
(00% COMPACTION) 

NOTE: ,i.... __ ...:;,--tr' ADS ..... 2 PERFORATED HDPE 
DRAIN Pll'6 OR APPROVED EQUAL 

I. SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR MATE!RIAI. QUAU1Y SEE GRADING PlAN FOR INVERT ELEV. 
AND OTHER INSTALLATION REQI llREMENTS. 
2. USE IMP£RMEABlE ISOLATION FABRIC LINER 
WHEN sen. COND1TIONS REQUIRE. SEE PlANS. 

TYPICAL TURF PROFILE AND PERIMETER DRAINAGE 
N.T.S. 

Total Price to provide All Weather Turf in full compliance with City of lA Specs: ~57, <!>/(,. 

o With the price quote, submit your product specifications and a statement that your product is in full compliance with 
the attached City of LA Specs. 

o Price shall include taxes and all other costs. City may purchase the above thru CMAS or similar purchasing systems or 
per City of LA prices. 

o The selected vendor shall have the turf material ready and start the installation within 45 calendar days of City's 
approval of the purchase order, and complete the installation within 20 calendar days thereafter. 

The City will utlllze an independent Expert Turf Consultant (Joe DiGeronimo) to respond to any questions you may have, 
and to review the submitted information for compliance with the City of LA All Weather Turf Specs, and make a decision 
in the best interest of the City. The City will also utilize the Independent Expert Turf Consultant (Joe DiGeronimo) for the 
plant inspection, material testing to ensure the material is provided and installed in compliance with the attached City of 
LA specifications. 

Exhibit B

279 of 426



City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf” at Lugo Park 
7810 Otis Ave. ,Cudahy Ca. Lic: A-747934

2/8/2016
Revised 2/8/2016

Qty Unit Per Unit Total Notes

1.0 Synthetic Turf

1.1 Furnish and Install AstroTurf DT-32 and Zeo-Fill 54,450                 sf

Includes 8 year warranty $279,509.00

1.2 Proplay 20mm and drain mat and shock pad 54,450                 Sf

$77,506.00

Project is based on Prevailing  Wages 

Grand Total $357,015

For Scope and Qualification Questions: Please contact Jeff Fenton… 562.997.4129

The terms and conditions and specific bid inclusions and exclusions to be provide upon final drawings.

of

Date Signature Name and Title Company Name

[MUST BE AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OR PERSON WITH CONTRACT SIGNING AUTHORITY)

Agreed {signed}

Lugo Park2683 Lime Ave.
Signal Hill, CA 90755
p. 562.997.4129 / f. 562.997.4109

Exhibit B

280 of 426



City of Los Angeles Spec All Weather Turf” at Lugo Park 
7810 Otis Ave. ,Cudahy Ca. Lic: A-747934

2/8/2016

Qty Unit Per Unit Total Notes

1.0 Synthetic Turf

1.1 Furnish and Install AstroTurf DT-32 and Zeo-Fill 54,450                 sf

Includes 8 year warranty $77,506.00

1.2 Proplay 20mm and drain mat and shock pad 54,450                 Sf

$279,509.00

Project is based on Prevailing  Wages 

Grand Total $357,015

For Scope and Qualification Questions: Please contact Jeff Fenton… 562.997.4129

The terms and conditions and specific bid inclusions and exclusions to be provide upon final drawings.

of

Date Signature Name and Title Company Name

[MUST BE AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OR PERSON WITH CONTRACT SIGNING AUTHORITY)

Agreed {signed}

Lugo Park2683 Lime Ave.
Signal Hill, CA 90755
p. 562.997.4129 / f. 562.997.4109

Exhibit B

281 of 426



The 
Golden 
Ser i e S 

Exhibit B

282 of 426



From the Folks Who Invented  
NON-RUBBER FILLED Turf Systems

Simultaneously protecting our two 
most precious resources, our children 
and our water, is a challenge. AstroTurf 
was invented 50 years ago after it was 
discovered that “city kids” were less 
physically fit than children raised in the 
country. But the problem has not abated – 
we all know there is an epidemic of obesity 
afflicting children in America and the 
benefits of exercise and teamwork have 
never been more important.

Second, WATER.  In key parts of the country, 
water is just not plentiful enough to  
waste on lush, green playing fields. And to 
keep natural grass fields at optimum, even 
when water is plentiful, requires keeping 
players OFF fields to restrict wear and tear.  

In the past 15 years, “infilled” artificial  
turf has clearly met these challenges.   
Now synthetic turf is seen for what  
should be – a workhorse, a great tool for 
high-demand athletic and recreational 
facilities needing to offer “unlimited playing 
time”… or close to it. 

In honor of AstroTurf’s  
Golden Anniversary, we bring  
you the Golden Series

by

F
O

R
 E

V
E

R
Y

 C
H

A
L

L
E

N
G

E
,

 T
H

E
R

E
 I

S
 A

 S
O

L
U

T
I

O
N

The 
Golden 
Ser i e S 

The newest  Challenge 
Yet, turf market has evolved again.  
Some users and purchasers are reluctant 
to accept one of the key ingredients 
behind the success of today’s turf 
systems – SBR crumb rubber.

Exhibit B

283 of 426



In honor of AstroTurf’s  
Golden Anniversary, we bring  
you the Golden Series

THE GOLDEN SERIES –  
SOPHISTICATED TECHNOLOGY  
FOR DISCERNING CLIENTS

Using special fiber combinations and 
manufacturing equipment, AstroTurf’s 
Golden Series systems are unique.   
All versions incorporate a lower layer of 
high denier, texturized monofilament fiber 
– using AstroTurf’s famous RootZone® 
technology – to give the taller pile PE 
fibers unmatched “lift” and resilience.

The Golden Series’ tall pile is available 
with a choice of the two most durable  
PE fibers on the market today – XP slit 
film or the HM (“high micron”) mono 
recently introduced to the US market.  
Either fiber simply blows away competing 
fibers when it comes to wear tests, 
exceeding 150,000 cycles on the Lisport 
linear abrading tester. Any RootZone-
supported surface results in a more 
uniform, predictable playing field,  
which players justifiably demand.  
Golden Series systems are extremely 
dense, durable yet player-friendly.  
(Third Generation on the left v. Fourth Generation 

Golden Series on the right)

THE ROLE OF THE PAD 

While replacing cheap tire rubber with  
a heavy fiber pile and RootZone is  
NOT a cheap solution, AstroTurf has 
taken creative steps to minimize costs 
associated with eliminating cheap  
rubber and sand. First, it has reduced  
the pile height of the turf. This allows  
for a dense, uniform, sure-footed  
surface that players appreciate.   
In addition, all Golden Series systems  
are installed on a shock pad.   
This assures proper shock attenuation 
(Gmax) while eliminating the need for 
crumb rubber (or more expensive in-fill 
alternatives like TPE).

ADD SOME GRANULES

Golden Series systems require a bit  
of ballast, which can mean silica sand.   
But we haven’t stopped there.  

The first Golden Series system  
(DT32) incorporated Zeofill™,  
a moisture-absorbing mineral that  
adds a cooling function to the  
ballast layer. 

•	 Unmatched durability for unlimited 
playing time and ROI

•	 Uniform, predictable play with a focus 
on player safety

•	 Excellent bio-mechanical function 

•	 Superior system shock absorbency

•	 Cooler temperatures 
(no black rubber) at both chest level 
and on the surface itself

•	 Low abrasion PE fibers

•	 No rubber “splash”

•	 Grass-like appearance

•	 Low maintenance – less need for 
grooming and decompaction of infill

•	 Permanent lines and markings

•	 Worry-free seams

•	 Standard AstroTurf warranty  

and service

2015 InSTAllATIonS
Van Nuys Sherman Oaks Park, LA (soccer)

Gilbert Lindsay Park, LA (soccer)

Jesuit High Schooll, Sacramento (football)

San Francisco 49ers (sidelines)

Bernal Park, Pleasanton  (football)

Golden SeRIeS 
SYSTeMS hAVe  
All The BeneFITS oF 
TRAdITIonAl  
In-FIlled TURF

The Golden Series (over Brock Powerbase)

ASTRoTURF’S SolUTIon
While most AstroTurf systems incorporate crumb rubber  
– we do NOT believe science supports a ban on or concern 
about re-cycled tire rubber for sports surfaces – still, AstroTurf 
is the most experienced, capable turf manufacturer in the 
world when it comes to unfilled systems. As a result, AstroTurf 
was tasked by key industry designers and users to develop a 
new generation of high – performance “no rubber” systems 
providing all the important benefits of traditional in-filled turf.  
Challenge met – AstroTurf’s Golden Series. These rubber-free 
systems have quickly set a new benchmark for innovation and 
acceptance as an alternative for demanding clients. 

Exhibit B

284 of 426



www.astroturf.com   800-723-TURF (8873)   help@astroturf.com

Exhibit B

285 of 426



Polyethylene

Green

Value Units Value Units
1.25 In. 31.75 mm

80 oz/yd² 2,712 g/m²
106.5 oz/yd² 3,611 g/m²

6.5 oz/yd² 220 g/m²
20 oz/yd² 678 g/m²

>10 lbs. >3.6 kg.
>200 lbs. >91 kg.
<50 ppm <50 ppm

7,020 Denier 7,799 D-Tex
>50 % >50 %
>20 lbs. >9.1 kg.
248 F° 120 C°
3/16 In. 0.95 cm

>30 In./hr >76.2 cm/hr
3.9/3.9 mils 100 /100 microns

15 Ft. 4.6 M

           AstroTurf® has the right to modify technical specifications on the above-mentioned product.  Delivered products can slightly differ from the technical data. 

           AstroTurf® guarantees the technical quality of the proposed article.

           Minimum infill depth of .99 inches at time of completion of infill installation. 10jg15

Standard Color Field Green

ASTROTURF® DT-32
MATERIALS
Primary Yarn Polymer
Yarn Cross Section Slit Film

Polyethylene Yarn Denier / Ends 8,040 / 1

UV Stabilized Yes
Fabric Construction Tufted
Secondary Yarn Polymer Texturized Monofilament
Secondary Yarn Color
Primary Backing 18 Pic/ 13 Pic
Coating Type Polyurethane

Texturized Yarn Denier / Ends [Root Zone®] 6,000/8
AstroFlect™ Available

Finish Fabric English System Metric System ASTM Test F-1551
Nominal Specification Method
Pile Height [Nominal]** D-5823
Face Weight D-5848
Total Fabric Weight D-5848
Primary Backing Weight D-5848
Secondary Coating Weight D-5848
Tuft Bind D-1335
Grab Tear Strength [Average] D-5034
Lead Content F-2765

Yarn Melting Point D-789
Machine Gauge D-5793

Total Yarn Linear Density D-1577
Elongation to Break D-2256
Yarn Breaking Strength D-2256

Flammability TEST PASSED TEST PASSED D-2859
Water Permeability w/ Infill F-1551

Valid through 12/31/16.

Fiber Thickness [Primary/Secondary] D-3218
Fabric Width None

Note: Any change from the specified values is considered a special product that will require confirmation from manufacturing. All values are ± 5%

Exhibit B

286 of 426



  

 
* 

 

TEST REPORT 

 

DATE:       04-25-2015                                 TEST NUMBER: 0401055 

   

CLIENT AstroTurf 

    

TEST CONDUCTED Turf Battery  

  

  

 

 

PRODUCT NAME DT32 

DESCRIPTION OF PRODUCT TESTED 
179470 

Turf 

REFERENCE WR #15108 

 

TEST RESULTS: 

 
 

AVERAGE PILE YARN WEIGHT ASTM D5848 80.8 Ounces/Square Yard 

AVERAGE TOTAL WEIGHT ASTM D5848 107.8 Ounces/ Square Yard 

SECONDARY BACKING WEIGHT ASTM D5848 20.4 Ounces/ Square Yard 

PRIMARY BACKING ASTM D5848 6.6 Ounces/ Square Yard 

AVERAGE TUFT LENGTH     ASTM D5823 1.27 Inch 

STITCHES PER INCH ASTM D5793 5.4 Stitches Per Inch 

GAUGE ASTM D5793 3/16 

BACKING PERFORATION PATTERN  3 x 4 

BACKING PERFORATION DIAMETER  0.198 Inch 

PILL FLAMMABILITY W/INFILL SYSTEM ASTM D2859 8 of 8 - Passes 

TUFT BIND ASTM D1335 9.6 Lbs. 

GRAB TEAR (L/W) ASTM D5034 
268.6 Lbs. -  Length 

334.3 Lbs. - Width 

FIBER IDENTIFICATION AATCC 20 Polyethylene    

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B

287 of 426



 

ProPlay-Sport20D_USA 1-3 version 01-01-2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ProProProProPlayPlayPlayPlay----Sport20Sport20Sport20Sport20DDDD    
 

Technical data sheetTechnical data sheetTechnical data sheetTechnical data sheet    
 

    
ProPlayProPlayProPlayProPlay----Sport20Sport20Sport20Sport20D is D is D is D is designed as a sportdesigned as a sportdesigned as a sportdesigned as a sport    technical technical technical technical 

layer for artificial layer for artificial layer for artificial layer for artificial grass sportsgrass sportsgrass sportsgrass sports    fieldsfieldsfieldsfields....    

    

Next to the necessary sportNext to the necessary sportNext to the necessary sportNext to the necessary sport    technical chartechnical chartechnical chartechnical characteristics, acteristics, acteristics, acteristics, 

the ProPlaythe ProPlaythe ProPlaythe ProPlay----Sport20Sport20Sport20Sport20D has additional D has additional D has additional D has additional (in(in(in(in----plane) plane) plane) plane) 

drainage channelsdrainage channelsdrainage channelsdrainage channels    which ensure an adequate drainage which ensure an adequate drainage which ensure an adequate drainage which ensure an adequate drainage 

of water in case the artificial turf system is build on a of water in case the artificial turf system is build on a of water in case the artificial turf system is build on a of water in case the artificial turf system is build on a 

watertight bottom.watertight bottom.watertight bottom.watertight bottom.    

    

FFFFor a or a or a or a prompt installationprompt installationprompt installationprompt installation, the ProPlay, the ProPlay, the ProPlay, the ProPlay----Sport20Sport20Sport20Sport20D D D D is is is is 

suppliedsuppliedsuppliedsupplied    as as as as interlocking panelsinterlocking panelsinterlocking panelsinterlocking panels    which are equipped which are equipped which are equipped which are equipped 

with expansion slots. with expansion slots. with expansion slots. with expansion slots. The installation guideThe installation guideThe installation guideThe installation guide    can be can be can be can be 

downloaded at our website downloaded at our website downloaded at our website downloaded at our website (www.schmitzfoam.com) (www.schmitzfoam.com) (www.schmitzfoam.com) (www.schmitzfoam.com) 

oooor r r r available upavailable upavailable upavailable upon request at our sales department.on request at our sales department.on request at our sales department.on request at our sales department.        

    

 
    

 
 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    
     

Physical characteristicsPhysical characteristicsPhysical characteristicsPhysical characteristics 

 
ProPlay-Sport20D consists of thermal bonded (closed-celled) 
cross-linked Polyethene foam (PEX). This foam comes from 
production residues and contains no contaminants.  ProPlay-
Sport20D is tested based on microbiological resistance (according 
EN 12225) resistance to: weathering (according EN 12224), 
oxidation (according EN-ISO 13438), acids & bases (according EN 
14030). The predicted durability of PEX is a 100 years minimum 
(according ISO/TR 13434). 
 
ProPlay-Sport20D is tested on (mechanical) wear using the 
Lisporter test. Even after 65.000 cycles Lisporter (average 30* 
year usage) there are hardly any differences in sport technical 
characteristics  (SA,VD, HIC).  
 
The ProPlay-Sport20D is tested on aging according EN 13744 and 
EN 13817. This aging test has virtually no influence on the 
dimensional properties of ProPlay-Sport20D. 

 
* based on 1 cycle = 1 hour of usage and 2080 hours of usage per year (average usage  

    of 52 weeks a year and 40 hrs a week) 

   

7
,5

 ft 

3,08 ft 

Exhibit B

288 of 426



 

ProPlay-Sport20D_USA 2-3 version 01-01-2015 

 

  

    

    

Technical dataTechnical dataTechnical dataTechnical data    
 
PhysicalPhysicalPhysicalPhysical    

      
Thickness at 0,3 psi (2kPa) load 0,79 in 

 
Mass per unit area 0,66 lb/ft² 

    
StrengthStrengthStrengthStrength    

Tensile  38 psi ASTM D 3575 / EN 12230 

Compressive at 25% deflection 15 psi ASTM D 3575 

Thickness after 72 hr recovery 0,78 in 
 

Compressive at 50% deflection 52 psi ASTM D 3575 

Thickness after 72 hr recovery 0,77 in 
 

       
PerformancePerformancePerformancePerformance    

   
Impact attenuation [gmax] * 80-110 EN 1177 / ASTM F 1292 

    
Drainage and isolationDrainage and isolationDrainage and isolationDrainage and isolation    

   
Water flow rate under 2 in (51 mm) hydraulic head 15 gpm/ft² ASTM D 4491 / EN ISO 11058 

   (resulting) Water permeability by permittivity 5,9 gpm/ft² ASTM D 4491 / EN ISO 11058 
In-plane water flow rate at 0.3 psi (2 kPa) load and 
0.005 hydraulic gradient (0.5% slope) 

0,53 gpm/ft² ASTM D 4491 / EN ISO 11058 

(resulting) Hydraulic transmissivity [θ] 106 gpm/ft ASTM D 4716 / EN ISO 12958 

Thermal conductivity [λ10] 0,03 BTU/hr.ft.°F ASTM C 177 / EN 12667 

    (resulting) Thermal resistance [R-value] 2271 hr.ft².°F/BTU ASTM C 177 / EN 12667 

  
* Results will vary depending on actual field configuration and final cross-section design  
     

Exhibit B

289 of 426



 

ProPlay-Sport20D_USA 3-3 version 01-01-2015 

 

The provided information is, to the best of our knowledge, true and accurate (at the time of revision). This information is based on (independent) 
measurements and (where possible) based on average values, measured over a long and representative period. Additional information (e.g. 
additional characteristics, specific (independent) reports or statistical analysis) is available upon request. Schmitz Foam Products is allowed to 
change this information and/or the product (without notice) and assumes no legal responsibility for use of and/or reliance on this information. 

    

Drainage graphDrainage graphDrainage graphDrainage graph    
 

Drainage distance [m] versus rainfall [mm/h] at different gradients. Measured according to the 
LND method.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200

i=0,006…

drainage distance in  yardra
in

fa
ll

 i
n

  
 i
n

c
h

/h
r

Exhibit B

290 of 426



All Weather Sports Field Infill

Exhibit B

291 of 426



All Weather Sport Fields that utilize crumb rubber and silica sand started to be used since
1996. Today there are thousands ofrFields across the United States. Since 1996 players and
owners have had growing concerns with the infill systems that are on the market today. The
concerns weather true or not range from; high surface temperatures, crumb rubber
containing chemicals, bacteria, MRSA, pungent odor’s, abrasiveness of the surface, Prop 65
use of Silica Sand and players inhaling dust from silica sand, Some artificial grass infilluse of Silica Sand and players inhaling dust from silica sand, Some artificial grass infill
options that are being used today to get away from the traditional infill are Organic’s,
Envirofill, Durafill, Copper slag, TPE, TPV, Flexsand, Recycled Infill Materials. However
owners have found these products to be very expensive to the project and some of them
require a major amount of maintenance and water overtime.

Solution: A product named ZeoFill® born in 2008 made out of a natural organic resource
from the earth. It is different than any other infill because ZeoFill® is a negatively charged
honey-combed molecular structure which absorbs the water like a magnet and holds it for
slow release to cool the surface temperatures. You can use your existing irrigation to water
the field before practice and not have the humidity raise dramatically as it does today on
older fields. The surface will stay cool for much longer periods of time.

Exhibit B

292 of 426



One of the many health benefits that ZeoFill® provides is the Infill will pull any
gases towards itself and hold it until sodium ion (Na+) in rain water releases the
magnetivity and the force of heavy rainfall will flush out the bacteria, forcing it
through the turf into the ground making your turf virtually new again. The
sodium forces the calcium ions out and recharges the ZeoFill® when dry. Thissodium forces the calcium ions out and recharges the ZeoFill® when dry. This
also can be achieved by treating the field with a very low cost solution called
Field Clenz when mother nature does not cooperate.

The nicest part of ZeoFill® when pertaining to sport field application is that you are not
reinventing the wheel so to speak. The only difference in using ZeoFill® over silica sand is
you gain the benefits of a cooler surface, less pungent VOC of the rubber smell, no silica
sand for dusting and increase chances of silicosis collection of bacteria from the surface.
Your project budget is not being taxed, your maintenance is not changing, your watering is
not increasing everything you do today or plan on doing when building a new field all
remains the same.

t

Exhibit B

293 of 426



Compared to other zeolite products found in
the USA, ZeoFill has the purest clinoptilolite
zeolite to avoid possible issues with drainage or
even damage to the turf fibers. Harmful
elements of the environment in other zeolites
contain metals that could contain volcanic glass,
lead or even crystalline free silica. Our
competitors have 0.01% cyrstalline free silica
and claim to be 98% pure. I don't think so.
ZeoFill stands for quality and is the safest
zeolite for artificial grass infill.zeolite for artificial grass infill.

DURABILITY IN FIELD APPLICATION

Purity is not the only benefit of ZeoFill.
Performance testing has been done in Belgium
for durability in field applications. We have
established an 8 (eight) year warranty for
degeneration on ZeoFill due to the correct
Mohs hardness of ZeoFill. Other similar
products don't compare and could dissipate
sooner. ZeoFill is an angular infill but not sharp
enough to tear turf fibers.

Exhibit B

294 of 426



DURABILITY IN FIELD APPLICATION

Purity is not the only benefit of ZeoFill. Performance
testing has been done in Belgium for durability in field
applications. We have established an 8 (eight) year
warranty for degeneration on ZeoFill due to the
correct Mohs hardness of ZeoFill. Other similar
products don't compare and could dissipate sooner.products don't compare and could dissipate sooner.
ZeoFill is an agular infill but not sharp enough to tear
turf fibers.

PROPOSITION 65 SAFE

Proposition 65 Warning labels are not needed when
using ZeoFill Infill.

We are Prop 65 Safe. We do not have any trace of
crystalline free silica like our competitors.

Exhibit B

295 of 426



DRAINAGE

ZeoFill is a molecular structure which allows
liquid to drain through itself slowly after
saturation. We don't have the harmful
angular elements of the environment
restricting water from flowing through
ZeoFill like other zeolites.

COOLER FIBERSCOOLER FIBERS

Water down your turf before the big game.
Keeps turf cooler for longer periods of time
than any other infill product by
evapotranspiration. For more information, See
our ZeofiLites for Cooling Synthetic Turf pdf.

Exhibit B

296 of 426



Zeolites for Cooling Synthetic Turf 
 
Zeolite Cooling Properties  
Zeolite cooling properties are similar to Transpiration which is water within a plant and the subsequent 
loss of water as vapor through stomata in its leaves. The natural mineral zeolite (e.g. porous 
aluminosilicate) has the property to naturally attract (adsorb) water vapor for long periods of time and 
to incorporate it in its internal crystal lattice while releasing heat at the same time:  
 
Cooling System  
A zeolite cooling system requires cycling between adsorption and desorption.  
While heat is released in the zeolite, and cooling is seen at the evaporation level. If absorption proceeds 
in an evacuated environment the attraction of water by the zeolite is so forceful that the internal 
pressure drops dramatically. The remaining water in an attached vessel evaporates, cools down turf 
fibers immediately due to the effect of evapotranspiration resulting in cooler synthetic turf fibers. 
Evapotranspiration (ET) is the sum of evaporation and transpiration from the Earth's land surface to 
atmosphere which is an important part of the water cycle. Evaporation accounts for the movement of 
water to the air from the zeolite granule. 
  

 
Figure 5: Desorption phase of a Zeolite system 

 
Figure 5 shows the desorption phase. For a comparison to the absorption and transpiration of heat, the 
left container (sorber) in takes on the role of a single zeolite granule saturated with water under 
sunlight, and the right container is the (condenser) after evapotranspiration effect. When the zeolite is 
saturated with water either by soaking using any water source or condensation, desorption is initiated 
by heat from sunlight at high temperatures. The adsorbed water molecules are forced to evaporate 
(desorption), and condensation takes place in the condenser. The sequence of adsorption/desorption 
processes is completely reversible.  
 
Advantages and Disadvantages 
The adsorption of zeolites is very strong, thereby providing the family of materials with unique 
adsorption properties and permitting extremely high efficiencies for adsorption with artificial turf. 
Another advantage of zeolite systems is that they allow heating and cooling at the same time. One 
disadvantage of zeolite systems is that to provide continuous cooling, systems need to cycle between 
multiple sorption modules. Meaning; when the zeolite granules are dry, no evaporation occur resulting 
in comparable temperatures to standard silica sand infills. High humidity areas will benefit more than 
areas with low humidity.  
 
Materials 
Currently the zeolite mines produces more than 1.4 million tons of zeolite annually and it can be 
expected that the worldwide demand and consequently the production will further increase for a 
multiple of uses. Only 97% + pure zeolite is adequate for use as an infill for any synthetic turf application 
as lower purity can destroy turf fibers and/or cause drainage issues due to the negative elements it 
holds.  
 

Exhibit B

297 of 426



 

ZEOFILL                             TECHNICAL DATA SHEET 2010 

Hydrous Sodium Aluminosilicate 
Natural Clinoptilolite 

Zeolite Granules and Powders 
 

TYPICAL PROPERTIES 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

TYPICAL CHEMICAL ANALYSIS 
 

This product contains no detectable crystalline silica 
 

MAJOR EXCHANGEABLE CATIONS 

 
 

General Chemical Formula Na6[Al6Si30O72]24H2O 

Clinoptilolite Content 97%+ 

Cation Exchange Capacity (CEC) 1.6 – 2.0 meg/g 

Form Granules and powders 

Shape Angular 

Color Gray – green 

Pore Diameter 4.0 – 7.0 angstroms 

Specific Gravity 1.89 

Specific Surface Area 40m2/g 

Bulk Density 50 - 65 lbs/ft3 

pH (natural) 7.0 

Alkali Stability pH of 7 - 10 

Acid Stability pH of 3 - 7 

Hardness 4.0 - 5.0 Mohs 

Swelling Index Nil 

SiO2 Al2O3 Fe2O3 CaO MgO Na2O K2O MnO TiO2 

66.7 11.48 0.9 1.33 0.27 3.96 3.42 0.025 0.13 

Rb+ Na+ Ba+2 Mg+2 Li+ Ag+ Sr+2 Fe+3 K+ Cd+2 

Cu+2 Co+3 Cs+ Pb+2 Ca+2 Al+3 NH+4 Zn+2 Hg+2 Cr+3 

Exhibit B

298 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16  Page 1 of 3 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 14, 2016 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members  

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director  
  By:  Jennifer Hernandez, Acting Human Resources Specialist 

Subject: Adoption of a Proposed Resolution Superseding and Repealing Resolution No. 
16-04, and Amending the Adopted Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan Establishing 
Provisions for All Full-time Employees, Hourly Employees and Appointed 
Officials 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested ratify the classification of Deputy City Clerk by adopting a 
proposed resolution amending the Fringe Benefit and Salary Plan (FBSP) establishing 
provisions for all full-time employees, hourly employees, and appointed officials and repeal 
Resolution No. 16-04. 
  
 
BACKGROUND 

 
1. On April 20, 2011, the permanent City Clerk retired from his appointed position after 12 

years of service with the City. 
 
2. On May 9, 2011, the City deputized Administrative Assistant, Angela Bustamante, to 

perform the duties of the City Clerk’s office. 
 

3. On September 4, 2012, the City entered into a temporary PSA with City Clerk 
Management Services to perform interim City Clerk functions following the departure of 
the Deputy City Clerk. 
 

4. On August 5, 2014, the City entered into a temporary professional services agreement 
PSA with MuniTemps to perform the City Clerk functions. 

 

 

Item Number 

10I 

299 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16  Page 2 of 3 
    

5. On December 22, 2014, the City deputized Acting Administrative Assistant, Victor Ferrer, 
to perform the duties of the City Clerk’s office. 
 

6. On May 29, 2015, the Deputy City Clerk position was vacated the Sr. Administrative 
Analyst of the day to day responsibilities of the City Clerk’s office. 
 

7. On June 8, 2015, the City Council approved the FBSP plan establishing provisions for all 
full-time employees, hourly employees, and appointed officials, which consolidated 
agency-wide wage and benefit information onto one comprehensive document.  
 

8. On August 10, 2015, the City Council approved a PSA between the City and Laura 
Valdivia for City Clerk Services. 
 

9. On September 14, 2015, the FBSP was updated to include the positions of Community 
Development Manager and Public Safety and Services Manager. 

 
10. During the months of November 2015 through January 2016, the Human Resources 

Department initiated and carried the recruitment process for a permanent City Clerk, 
which did not produce a viable candidate for the position. 
 

11. On January 27, 2016, the FBSP was updated to accommodate results of the labor 
negotiation process with the City’s employee union, and the California Minimum Wage 
Order for 2016. 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Since the retirement of the previous full time City Clerk in 2011, this position has been in a 
state of flux for a number of reasons. One of the reasons has been because the City hasn’t 
had a strong succession plan which allows lower level staff to be trained to take on these job 
functions when vacancies arise. 
 
Interim City Clerk Laura Valdivia has a very limited amount of hours left in her PSA and the 
City currently does not have a permanent staff member to conduct City Council meetings 
after March 30, 2016. 
 
The City Council is being requested to approve a succession plan which would allow an 
existing staff member to step into the newly created Deputy City Clerk position for a few 
years, while receiving extensive training and mentoring with the end goal being to groom our 
own City Clerk. The classification of Deputy City Clerk is intended to be filled as a full-time, 

300 of 426



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16  Page 3 of 3 
    

non-exempt position. Compensation and benefits for this position will be comparable to the 
classification of a full time, non-exempt Administrative Assistant.   

 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
If the City Council does not approve the resolution to amend the FBSP, ratifying the 
classification of Deputy City Clerk, the City will run the risk of increasing a considerable 
amount of deficiencies within the department, which can lead to possible legal matters, 
particularly in the area of public records requests.  
 
Interim City Clerk, Laura Valdivia has a very limited amount of hours left in her PSA and the 
City currently does not have a permanent staff member to conduct City Council meetings, and 
cannot be certain that a volunteer will be available to perform the associated functions. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The anticipated fiscal impact resulting from the ratification of the classification Deputy City 
Clerk for the remaining three months of Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 is approximately $18,673.00. 
A portion of the designated salary and benefit appropriation for City Clerk, approved as part 
of the FY 2015-16 City Budget, will be used to fund this position.  

 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Classification Specification for Deputy City Clerk 
B. Proposed Resolution Superseding and Repealing Resolution No. 16-04, and Amending the 

Adopted Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan Establishing Provisions for All Full-time Employees, 
Hourly Employees, and Appointed Officials 

C. Resolution No. 16-04  
D. Updated Fringe Benefit Salary Plan (Redlined) 
E. Updated Fringe Benefit Salary Plan (Clean) 

301 of 426



Attachment A 
 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 

CLASSIFICATION SPECIFICATION 

 
DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

 
(Full-Time) 

 
DEFINITION: 
 
Under general direction, performs responsible clerical and secretarial duties of above average 
difficulty in support of the activities and services of the City Clerk’s Office; assists in the 
development, publication, and distribution of agendas; assists in the care and custody of official 
City records; assists the City Clerk in elections; provides public records information; ensures 
insurance requirements are met by all contractors;  assumes responsibility for the 
administration of the department in the absence of the City Clerk; and performs other work as 
required. 
 
EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL DUTIES: 
 
The duties and responsibilities listed below are intended to provide a representative list of the various 
types of work that may be performed. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within 
the job class, and incumbents may expect to perform other related similar duties.      
 

• Participates in the preparation, assembly, and distribution of agenda packets. 
 

• Records and maintains legislative history of City Council actions. 
 

• Assists in the maintenance of official City documents utilizing the city's records retention 
schedule and filing index. 
 

• Assists with Municipal Code maintenance. 
 

• Ensures that certificates of insurance for all City contracts are current. 
 

• Processes various financial documents including invoices and purchase orders. 
 

• Generates reports for reimbursement of petty cash funds. 
 

• Processes and issues applications for numerous special use permits and coordinates 
with assigned departments. 
 

• Responds to inquiries from the public and staff requesting public records. 
 

302 of 426



Deputy City Clerk Classification Specification 
Page 2 
 

• Assists in the publication and mailing of official notices. 
 

• Assists in the election process and submission of Fair Political Practices Commission 
filings. 
 

• Assists in the distribution and coordination of responses to internet electronic mail and 
receipt of facsimiles. 
 

• Assists in updating information on the City’s internet web page including publication of 
City Council meetings.  
 

• Assists in developing policies and procedures for implementing a computerized 
records management program. 
 

• Assists with the recordation of official City records and ensures documents are fully and 
promptly recorded. 
 

• Assists with proclamations, commendations, memoriam, and certificates of recognition 
with the City Council. 
 

• Assists with complex city council records and archives including ensuring complete, 
accurate, and trustworthy records. 
 

• Maintains complex research indexes so records can be located and retrieved. 
 

• Performs the duties of the City Clerk in his/her absence, or in a training/learning 
capacity. 

 
QUALIFICATIONS: 
 

Knowledge of: Operations, services and activities of City Clerk’s Office; methods 
and techniques of public meeting agenda preparation and notification requirements; 
principles and practices used in recording and transcribing public meeting minutes; 
English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation; modern office procedures and 
methods including computers and supporting word processing and spreadsheet 
applications; business letter writing and basic report preparation and procedures; 
pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations; legal requirements 
related to open meetings, public records, election laws, boards and commissions, 
and related record keeping requirements and maintenance; procedures and legal 
requirements necessary to develop, maintain, archive, preserve, and protect 
municipal records; principles of community relations. 
 
Ability to: Perform complex clerical and administrative duties in support of the City 
Clerk’s office; analyze situations carefully and adopt effective courses of action; assist in 
the planning, organizing, and directing of the functions of the City Clerk’s office; evaluate 
and develop improvements in operations, procedures, policies, or methods; interpret, 
explain, and apply pertinent laws, regulations, policies, and procedures; provide 
information and organize material in compliance with laws, regulations, and polices; 
maintain a variety of complex automated and manual files and records; assist in 
organizing, supervising, and implementing the City’s records management program; 

303 of 426



Deputy City Clerk Classification Specification 
Page 3 
 

prepare clear and concise reports; follow and comply with written and oral instructions; 
perform administrative detail work; ensure all City Clerk business documents comply 
with the office standards and guidelines; operate office equipment including computers 
and supporting word processing and spreadsheet applications; adapt to changing 
technologies and learn functionality of new equipment and systems; work independently 
in the absence of supervision; communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in 
writing; establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the 
course of work.  
 
Education and Experience: Any combination of education and experience which may 
provide the required knowledge and abilities and skills is qualifying.  A typical way is 
completion of high school, supplemented by business or college courses, and three 
(3)  years of progressively responsible clerical and administrative experience, 
including some experience closely related to the functions and duties of the Office of City 
Clerk.  The completion of the equivalent to an Associate’s Degree is highly desirable.   
 
Necessary Special Requirements:  Possession of a valid Class C motor vehicle 
operator's license from the State of California.  Possession of a Certified Municipal 
Clerk’s Certificate (CMC) is preferred, and if not certified, is required within two years of 
hire.  Ability to attend night meetings as assigned.  

  
 
OTHER QUALIFICATIONS: 
 
The physical demands described below are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of the job.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to 
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions on a case-by-case basis.   

 
Work is performed in an office setting.  The incumbent’s working conditions are typically 
moderately quiet, but may be loud on occasion during public meetings.  Ability to sit for up to 
four (4) hours at a time; ability to bend body downward and forward by bending legs and 
spine; ability to speak and hear; ability to see; ability to push, pull and/or lift up to 25 pounds 
occasionally; ability to climb a footstool or ladder for the purposes of retrieving records out of 
storage; ability to get from one location to another in the course of doing business. 
 

FLSA Status: Non-Exempt   Effective Date: March 14, 2016   

 
 

304 of 426



Attachment B 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-_____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY SUPERSEDING AND REPEALING 
RESOLUTION NO 16-04, AND AMENDING THE 
FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARY PLAN 
ESTABLISHING PROVISIONS FOR ALL FULL-TIME 
AND HOURLY EMPLOYEES, AND APPOINTED 
OFFICIALS  

WHEREAS, the salaries and compensation of officers and employees of the City 
of Cudahy (“City”) shall be fixed and determined by resolution of the City Council in 
accordance with Municipal Code Section 2.04.070; and  

WHEREAS, the City had previously proposed and adopted Resolution No. 16-04 
to consolidate compensation and benefit provisions for all Management, Miscellaneous, 
and Hourly employees as well as Appointed Officials under one comprehensive Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan document; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council proposes amend the Fringe Benefit and Salary plan for the 
sole purpose of adding the classification of Deputy City Clerk.  BASED UPON THE 
ABOVE RECITALS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Council hereby approves the Fringe Benefits and Salary 
Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

SECTION 2.  This Resolution and Exhibit A shall repeal and replace Resolution 
No. 16-04. This Resolution and Exhibit A amend the Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan 
solely to add the classification of Deputy City Clerk. Although all other parts of the 
Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan, which was previously adopted to consolidate current 
compensation and benefit provisions for all Management, Miscellaneous, and Hourly 
employees as well as Appointed Officials under one comprehensive document, remain 
unchanged, Exhibit A herein is the currently applicable version of the Fringe Benefits 
and Salary Plan; all previously adopted versions of the Plan are null and void. 

SECTION 3.  Notwithstanding the benefits and salary described in the Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan for individuals under employment agreements with the City, 
City employees with employment agreements shall only be entitled to those benefits 
and salary amounts identified in their individual employment agreements.  The Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan identifies benefits and salaries of employees under 
employment agreements with the City for administrative convenience purposes only, 
and the Plan shall not supersede any employment agreement provisions or control the 

305 of 426



Attachment B 
 

benefits and salary provided to employees with employment agreements with the City. 
To the extent that any benefits described in the Plan conflict with the applicable 
employment agreements, and as the employment agreements and memorandums of 
understanding may be amended from time to time, the employment agreements and 
memorandums of understanding control. 

SECTION 4. This Resolution serves as ratification of the new classification and 
salary of Deputy City Clerk. .   

SECTION 5. If any part of this Resolution, or the application thereof, is held to be 
invalid, the remainder of this Resolution shall not be affected thereby, and this 
Resolution shall otherwise continue in full force and effect. To this end, the provisions of 
this Resolution, and each of them, are severable. 

 
SECTION 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption by 

the City Council and the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this 
Resolution and enter it into the book of original Resolutions. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Cudahy at its 
regular meeting on this 14th day of March, 2016. 
 

          
  Cristian Markovich  
  Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________  __________________________ 
Laura Valdivia    Isabel Birrueta  
Interim City Clerk   Assistant City Attorney 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  )  SS: 

306 of 426



Attachment B 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY    ) 
 
 
I, Laura Valdivia, Interim City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution No. 16-XX was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Cudahy, signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk at a regular meeting of 
said Council held on the 14th day of March, 2016, and that said Resolution was adopted 
by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:    
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
   
 
 
   
Laura Valdivia 
Interim City Clerk 

 

 

307 of 426



Attachment C 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-04 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY SUPERSEDING AND REPEALING 
RESOLUTION NO 15-44, AND AMENDING THE 
FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARY PLAN 
ESTABLISHING PROVISIONS FOR ALL FULL-TIME 
AND HOURLY EMPLOYEES, AND APPOINTED 
OFFICIALS  

WHEREAS, the salaries and compensation of officers and employees of the City 
of Cudahy (“City”) shall be fixed and determined by resolution of the City Council in 
accordance with Municipal Code Section 2.04.070; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City had previously proposed and adopted Resolution No. 15-44 

to consolidate compensation and benefit provisions for all Management, Miscellaneous, 
and Hourly employees as well as Appointed Officials under one comprehensive Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan document; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed consolidated salary schedules include a full and 

complete audit of all current employee compensation for proper alignment of wages 
consistent with the range and steps associated with the job classifications. 

 
 BASED UPON THE ABOVE RECITALS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE AND RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Council hereby approves the Fringe Benefits and Salary 
Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Resolution and Exhibit A shall repeal and replace Resolution 

No. 15-44. This Resolution and Exhibit A consolidates current compensation and benefit 
provisions for all Management, Miscellaneous, and Hourly employees as well as 
Appointed Officials under one comprehensive Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan 
document currently applicable. 

 
SECTION 3.  Notwithstanding the benefits and salary described in the Fringe 

Benefits and Salary Plan for individuals under employment agreements with the City, 
City employees with employment agreements shall only be entitled to those benefits 
and salary amounts identified in their individual employment agreements.  The Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan identifies benefits and salaries of employees under 
employment agreements with the City for administrative convenience purposes only, 
and the Plan shall not supersede any employment agreement provisions or control the 
benefits and salary provided to employees with employment agreements with the City. 
To the extent that any benefits described in the Plan conflict with the applicable 
employment agreements, and as the employment agreements and memorandums of 

308 of 426



Attachment C 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

understanding may be amended from time to time, the employment agreements and 
memorandums of understanding control. 

 
SECTION 4. This Resolution serves as ratification of the terms and salary 

schedules approved under the new Memorandum of Understanding for FY 2015 – 2019 
between the City of Cudahy and the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association. 

   
SECTION 5. This Resolution further serves as ratification of the new salary 

schedules for Hourly Employees as they relate to the California Minimum Wage Order 
for 2016. 

 
SECTION 6. If any part of this Resolution, or the application thereof, is held to be 

invalid, the remainder of this Resolution shall not be affected thereby, and this 
Resolution shall otherwise continue in full force and effect. To this end, the provisions of 
this Resolution, and each of them, are severable. 

 
SECTION 7. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption by 

the City Council and the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this 
Resolution and enter it into the book of original Resolutions. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Cudahy at its 
special meeting on this 27th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
 

      
Cristian Markovich  
Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

              
Laura Valdivia Isabel Birrueta  
Interim City Clerk Assistant City Attorney 
  

309 of 426



Attachment C 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY    ) 
 
 

I, Laura Valdivia, Interim City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution No. 16-04 was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Cudahy, signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk at a special meeting of 
said Council held on the 27th day of January, 2016, and that said Resolution was 
adopted by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:  Sanchez, Hernandez, Markovich  
 
NOES: None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
ABSENT: Garcia, Guerrero 
   
 
 
       
    Laura Valdivia 
    Interim City Clerk 

 

 

310 of 426



	 	

	

	

	

	

	

	

FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARY 
PLAN 

(Exhibit  A to Resolution No. 16-XX) 
 

Effective March 14, 2016 
	

	

	

	

	

	

	

CITY OF CUDAHY CALIFORNIA 
Incorporated November 10, 1960 

Attachment D

311 of 426



   

2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Attachment D

312 of 426



   

3 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

PART I – THE FRINGE BENEFIT PLAN ................................................................................................................ 6 

Section 1.  Purpose ............................................................................................................................6 

Section 2.  Applicability ......................................................................................................................6 

Section 3.  Holidays ...........................................................................................................................7 

Section 4.  Vacation ...........................................................................................................................8 

Section 5.  Sick Leave .........................................................................................................................9 

Section 6.  Car Allowance ................................................................................................................. 10 

Section 7.  Reimbursement for Expenses ........................................................................................... 10 

Section 8.  Health Insurance ............................................................................................................. 11 

Section 9.  Health Insurance for Retirees ........................................................................................... 13 

Section 10.  Life Insurance ................................................................................................................ 14 

Section 11.  Disability Insurance ........................................................................................................ 15 

Section 12.  Dental Insurance ........................................................................................................... 16 

Section 13.  Vision Insurance .......................................................................................................... 17 

Section 14.  Deferred Compensation (457 or 401a) Plan ...................................................................... 18 

Section 15.  Retirement Contribution ................................................................................................ 19 

Section 16.  Severance Allowance ................................................................................................... 21 

Section 17.  Relocation Allowance ..................................................................................................... 21 

Section 18.  Uniform Allowance ........................................................................................................ 22 

Section 19. Cell Phone Stipend ......................................................................................................... 22 

Section 20.  Bereavement Leave ....................................................................................................... 22 

Section 21.  Miscellaneous Leaves of Absence .................................................................................... 23 

Section 22.  Education Reimbursement ............................................................................................. 24 

Section 24.   The Extension of Benefits to Other Classifications ....................................................... 25 

Section 25.   Hourly Employees....................................................................................................... 25 

PART II - THE SALARY PLAN ......................................................................................................................... 28 

Section 1.  Purpose ........................................................................................................................ 28 

Section 2.  The Classification Plan ................................................................................................... 28 

Section 3.  Basic Compensation Plan ............................................................................................... 29 

Section 4.  Pay Philosophy .............................................................................................................. 29 

Section 5.  Plan Maintenance .......................................................................................................... 30 

Section 6.  Eligibility for Salary Advancement ................................................................................. 30 

Attachment D

313 of 426



   

4 
 

Section 7.  Merit Ranges ................................................................................................................ 31 

Section 8.   Compaction Rule .......................................................................................................... 32 

Section 9.  Salaries Above Market Rate – Use of "Y" Rating Method ................................................ 32 

Section 10.  Trainee Positions ......................................................................................................... 32 

Section 11.   Salary Differentials/Stipends ...................................................................................... 33 

a. (5%) Salary Differential ............................................................................................................... 33 

b. (10%) Salary Differential ............................................................................................................. 33 

c. Bi-lingual Pay ............................................................................................................................... 33 

Section 12.  Overtime..................................................................................................................... 35 

Section 13. Compensatory Time Off ............................................................................................... 35 

Section 14.  Executive Leave ............................................................................................................. 36 

Section 15. On-Call (Standby) Pay ..................................................................................................... 36 

Section 16.  Call Back Pay ................................................................................................................. 36 

Section 17.    Additional Approved Increases in Compensation and Changes to the Salary and Classification 
Plans  ...................................................................................................................................... 37 

Section 18.  The Provisions of This Plan Shall Be Operative on the Date of Its Adoption. ......................... 37 

ADDENDUM: ................................................................................................................................................ 37 

1. HOURLY RANGE TABLES ................................................................................................. 37 

2. ASSOCIATION RANGE TABLES ......................................................................................... 37 

3. MANAGEMENT/CONFIDENTIAL RANGE TABLES .............................................................. 37 

4. SALARY SCHEDULES ....................................................................................................... 37 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Attachment D

314 of 426



   

5 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PART I 

THE FRINGE BENEFITS  
PLAN 

  

Attachment D

315 of 426



   

6 
 

PART I – THE FRINGE BENEFIT PLAN 
 
 

Section 1.  Purpose 
 

This Exhibit to Resolution No. 15-20 is enacted pursuant to Section 2.04.070 of the Cudahy 
Municipal Code to provide for the fringe benefits of City officers and employees.    
 
The City of Cudahy has established a number of benefit programs for its eligible employees.  This 
Plan does not restate all of the features of these benefit programs.  The purpose of this Plan is 
to identify the coverage amounts, costs and limitations of specific benefits as applied and 
approved by the City Council for specific employee groups. Additional terms, conditions, and 
limitations regarding program eligibility and benefit entitlement are included in official plan 
documents, which, notwithstanding the foregoing, shall control in determining coverage 
amounts, costs and limitations of specific benefits.  Additional administrative guidelines may 
also be found in the City’s Personnel Rules, and other terms and conditions of employment 
within the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Memoranda of Understanding.  The Fringe Benefit 
and Salary Plan shall not change the nature of any employee’s status as an at-will employee. 
 

 

Section 2.  Applicability 
 

This exhibit defines the various benefits provided to City officers and employees.  Each category 
covered herein indicates the specific group and/or classification of employee for which the 
benefit applies (e.g. Appointed Officials, Management/Confidential Employees, and 
Miscellaneous Employees).   
 
Hourly employees shall not be entitled to any City benefits except as otherwise provided herein, 
and defined specifically under Section 23 below.   
 
City employees with employment agreements shall only be entitled to those benefits and 
salary amounts identified in their individual employment agreements.  The Fringe Benefits 
and Salary Plan identifies benefits and salaries of employees under employment agreements 
with the City for administrative convenience purposes only, and the Plan shall not 
supersede any employment agreement provisions or control the benefits and salary 
provided to employees with employment agreements with the City. To the extent that any 
benefits described herein conflict with the applicable employment agreement, and as the 
employment agreements and memorandums of understanding may be amended from time 
to time, the employment agreement controls.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment D

316 of 426



   

7 
 

Section 3.  Holidays  
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
 
The City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager shall be entitled to the same holidays that 
Management/Confidential employees receive, unless changed by an amendment to this 
Resolution by the City Council.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits 
and Salary Plan. 
 

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same holidays that 
Miscellaneous employees are entitled to, unless changed by an amendment to this 
Resolution by the City Council.   
 

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)1 

 
Every employee shall be entitled to the following paid holidays each year and such other as 
may be designated by action of the City Council: 

1. New Year’s Day – January 1st 
2. Martin Luther King Jr. Day - The third Monday in January  
3. President’s Day - The third Monday in February  
4. Memorial Day - The last Monday in May 
5. Independence Day - July 4th 
6. Labor Day - The first Monday in September  
7. Veteran’s Day –  November 11th 
8. Thanksgiving Day  
9. Christmas Eve – December 24th 
10. Christmas Day – December 25th  
11. One  Floating Holidays (Pro-rated for New Employees based on hire date) 

 

The observance of holidays, work on a holiday, and other related rules as applied to holiday 
compensation shall be administered consistent with the City’s Personnel Rules and as 
defined in the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.  
 
If the Friday after Thanksgiving or Good Friday fall on a regularly scheduled work day, it shall 
be considered a designated holiday; alternatively, if the Friday after Thanksgiving or Good 
Friday fall on the employees day off, it shall not be considered a designated holiday.  

 
                                                           
1 See Memorandum of Understanding By and Between Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association and The City 
of Cudahy, July 1, 2015-June 30, 2019 (hereinafter “CMEA MOU”), pg. 15.  

Attachment D

317 of 426



   

8 
 

Section 4.  Vacation  

 
a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 

 
The City Clerk and City Treasurer shall be entitled to the same Vacation benefits that 
Miscellaneous Employees are entitled to, including buy-back provisions unless changed by 
an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.  
 
The City Manager shall receive a maximum of eighty (80) hours of vacation leave per year, 
and may carry over unused leave from year to year, not to exceed a total of 320 hours, at 
which time accruals shall cease.   On December 31st of each year, accumulated and unused 
vacation leave may be sold back to the City at the regular hourly rate, provided that fifty 
(50) hours of accrued vacation time remains on the books. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede 
and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same Vacation benefits that 
Miscellaneous employees are entitled to including buy-back provisions, unless changed by 
an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)2 

   
1) Accrual of Vacation Leave 

 
Full-time employees shall accrue paid vacation leave on the following scheduled basis.   
 

Years of Service    Hours Per Year    Bi-Weekly Accrual  Maximum Accrual 
 
    0-5              80        3.077   hours       160 hours 
     6-10            120        4.616   hours       240 hours 
    11+                    160                      6.154   hours       320 hours 
  

2) Vacation Buy Back 
 

At the end of each calendar year, provided that fifty (50) hours of accrued vacation time 
remains on the books, employees may request pay in lieu of time off for accrued and 
unused vacation time.  Upon separation from City employment, all accrued but unused 
vacation time is eligible to be sold back at full value based on the employee’s rate of pay 
at the time of separation. 

 
 
 

                                                           
2 See CMEA MOU, pp. 8-10. 

Attachment D

318 of 426



   

9 
 

 
3) Vacation Policy 

 
Vacation Leave shall be administered consistent with the City’s Personnel Rules and as 
defined in the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.  
  

Section 5.  Sick Leave 
 

a) Appointed Officials  (Non-represented) 
 
The City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager shall be entitled to twelve (12) days of sick 
leave per year (96) hours, and may sell back at full rate of pay accrued but unused sick leave 
on the same terms and conditions as established for other employees, unless changed by an 
amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede 
and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan. 
 

b) Management/Confidential Employees  (Non-represented) 
 
Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same Sick Leave benefits that 
Miscellaneous employees are entitled to, unless changed by an amendment to this 
Resolution by the City Council.   
 

c) Miscellaneous Employees  (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)3 
 

1) Accrual of Sick Leave 
 

Employees shall be granted sick leave with pay at the rate of eight (8) hours for each full 
month of service for a total of ninety-six (96) hours per year, which shall accrue at 3.70 
hours per pay period that the employee remains active on the payroll.  Any sick leave 
accrued but unused in any year shall be accumulated to a maximum accumulation of 
480 hours.  Once this maximum accrual is reached, all additional accrual will stop until 
usage brings it below the 480.0 hour maximum.   
 
The granting of any leave of absence without pay exceeding fifteen (15) consecutive 
calendar days shall cause the employees’ normal rate of sick leave accumulation to be 
extended by the number of calendar days for which such leave of absence has been 
granted less the first fifteen (15) calendar days of such leave.  Observed holidays 
occurring during sick leave shall not be counted as a day of sick leave.   
 

2) Sick Leave Buy-Back 
 
On July 1 of each year, employees may sell back at 50% value of the maximum 96 hours 
of sick leave that they have accrued but did not utilize during the previous fiscal year.  
This is subject to the condition that an employee must leave at least 58 hours of sick 

                                                           
3 See CMEA MOU pp. 10-11. 

Attachment D

319 of 426



   

10 
 

leave on the books prior to being eligible for any sick leave buy back. Sick leave buy-back 
shall be based on the employee's actual rate of pay on June 30 of the fiscal year in which 
it was accumulated.  Employees who are eligible to sell back unused sick leave retain the 
option of maintaining all or a portion of their accumulated sick leave on the books.  
Upon retirement from employment with the city, all accumulated sick leave is eligible to 
be sold back at 50% value of the maximum of 192 hours of sick leave that they have 
accrued but did not utilize based on the employee's rate of pay at the time of 
separation. 

3) Sick Leave Policy 
 
The use of Sick Leave shall be administered consistent with the City’s Personnel Rules 
and as defined in the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.  
   

 
Section 6.  Car Allowance  
 

The City recognizes that various Appointed Officials and Department Heads may require 
extensive use of an automobile in the ordinary course of performing duties for the City.  
Accordingly, the City, as added compensation, shall provide an automobile allowance to 
the following classifications, in the amounts defined below, unless changed by an 
amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   
 

 
POSITION                                                                      MONTHLY AMOUNT 
 
City Clerk                              $350.00 
 
City Manager                           $400.00 
 
City Treasurer                           $350.00   
 
Finance Manager                                                                       $350.00   
 
Director of Community Development                                    $350.00 
 
Community Development Manager              $350.00 
 
Public Safety and Services Manager              $350.00 
 

Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede 
and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan. 
 

 
Section 7.  Reimbursement for Expenses 
 

The City will reimburse employees for reasonable and authorized expenses incurred on 
behalf of the City of Cudahy.  All travel and other business expenses must be pre-

Attachment D

320 of 426



   

11 
 

approved by the department head and the City Manager, and must follow the 
Travel/Training Expense Policy and be reported within one (1) month from the time they 
are incurred.  Every attempt will be made to issue reimbursement for approved expenses 
within two (2) weeks from the time the expense report forms received by Finance.  Failure 
to report expenses in a timely manner may jeopardize timely reimbursement for expenses 
or lead to disciplinary action.   
 
Employees shall be reimbursed for the use of their vehicle for City Business at the 
allowable IRS Standard Mileage Rate for each year.  Employees shall be reimbursed upon 
submittal of a monthly reimbursement form with Department Head approval.    

 
 
Section 8.  Health Insurance  
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
 

For the City Treasurer and City Clerk, the City shall contribute towards the coverage 
in a health insurance program available through the Public Employees’ Retirement 
System as provided under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act.   The 
City’s maximum contribution shall be consistent with the contribution paid by the 
City for Management/Confidential employees, unless changed by an amendment to 
this Resolution by the City Council.   
 
For the City Manager, the City shall contribute towards the coverage in a health 
insurance program available through the Public Employees’ Retirement System as 
provided under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act. The City’s 
maximum contribution shall be 100% of plan cost for City Manager and Dependent’s 
Coverage. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 
 
 

b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 
For Management/Confidential Employees, the City shall contribute towards the 
coverage in a health insurance program as provided by the City.  The City’s maximum 
contribution shall be consistent with the contribution paid by the City for 
Miscellaneous employees, unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by 
the City Council.   

 
 

c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)4 
 

The City shall contribute toward the coverage of employees and their dependents in 
the medical insurance program available through the Public Employee's Retirement 

                                                           
4 See CMEA MOU p. 20.  

Attachment D

321 of 426



   

12 
 

System as provided for under the Public Employee's Medical and Hospital Care Act 
as follows: 
  

 
Effective January 11, 2016, the City shall contribute an amount up to 100% of the 
coverage amount for the Kaiser Permanente plan that corresponds to the 
employee’s coverage. 
 

  

Attachment D

322 of 426



   

13 
 

Section 9.  Health Insurance for Retirees  
 

a) Vesting of Medical Benefits for Appointed Officials  (Non-represented) 
 

 Appointed officials including the City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager may be 
eligible for vesting of medical benefits under the CalPERS Plan for life-time coverage, 
including spouse and eligible dependents consistent with CalPERS rules.  The City’s 
maximum contribution shall be that amount that is offered to top management 
employees, unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

   
 Appointed officials shall vest with life-time benefits for Dental Insurance and Vision 

Insurance upon the fifth anniversary of continuous service with the City. The City’s 
maximum contribution shall be that amount that is offered to top management 
employees,   unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
 
b) Vesting of Medical Benefits for Management/Confidential Employees (Non-

represented) 
 
 Management/Confidential Employees may be eligible for vesting of medical benefits 

under the CalPERS Plan for life-time coverage, including spouse and eligible 
dependents consistent with CalPERS rules and upon retirement from the City of 
Cudahy.  The City’s maximum contribution shall be that amount that is offered to 
Miscellaneous employees, unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by 
the City Council.   

 
 Management/Confidential Employees shall vest with life-time benefits for Dental 

Insurance and Vision Insurance upon the fifth anniversary of continuous service with 
the City.  The City’s maximum contribution shall be that amount that is offered to 
Miscellaneous employees,   unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by 
the City Council.   

 
c) Vesting of Medical Benefits for Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous 

Employees’ Association) 
 

 Miscellaneous Employees may be eligible for vesting of medical benefits under the 
CalPERS Plan for life-time coverage, including spouse and eligible dependents 
consistent with CalPERS rules.  The City’s maximum contribution is $1,200.00 of the 
plan cost.     

 
 

  

Attachment D

323 of 426



   

14 
 

Section 10.  Life Insurance 
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented)  
 

The City Clerk and City Treasurer shall receive City paid term life insurance benefits 
that Miscellaneous employees are entitled to, unless changed by an amendment to 
this Resolution by the City Council.   
 
The City Manager shall receive City paid term life insurance policy in the amount of 
$1,000,000.00. 

 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees  (Non-represented) 
 

Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same life Insurance 
benefits that Miscellaneous employees are entitled to, unless changed by an 
amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   
 

c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)5 
 
Effective January 11, 2016, the City will provide a term life insurance policy in the 
amount of $100,000 per employee.  The premium for such insurance shall be paid by 
the City.   
 

  

                                                           
5 See CMEA MOU p. 21. 

Attachment D

324 of 426



   

15 
 

Section 11.  Disability Insurance  
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
 

The City Manager, City Clerk, and City Treasurer shall receive a City paid Long Term 
Disability policy, unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City 
Council.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 
 

b) Management/Confidential Employees  (Non-represented) 
  

Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same Disability 
Insurance benefits that miscellaneous employees are entitled to, unless changed by 
an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)6 
 

The City will provide a sixty (60) day Long Term Disability policy.  100% of the 
premium coverage for such insurance shall be paid by the City.   
 

  

                                                           
6 See CMEA MOU, p. 21. 

Attachment D

325 of 426



   

16 
 

Section 12.  Dental Insurance  
 
a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 

 
For the City Clerk and City Treasurer, the City shall contribute towards the coverage in a 
dental insurance program as provided by the City.  The City’s maximum contribution shall be 
consistent with the contribution paid by the City for Management/Confidential employees,   
unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   
 
For the City Manager, the City shall contribute 100% towards the cost of the dental 
insurance plan as provided by the City for employee and eligible dependents.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede 
and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 

For Management/Confidential Employees, the City shall contribute towards the coverage in 
a dental insurance program as provided by the City.  The City’s maximum contribution shall 
be consistent with the contribution paid by the City for Miscellaneous employees,   unless 
changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)7 

 
The City shall offer a dental plan for employees and their dependents. The City will 
contribute towards the purchase of said dental coverage if the employee elects coverage as 
follows: 

 
 

Effective January 11, 2016, the City shall contribute an amount up to the average amount of the 
dental plans available that corresponds to the employee’s coverage. 

  

                                                           
7 See CMEA MOU, pp. 20-21. 

Attachment D

326 of 426



   

17 
 

Section 13.  Vision Insurance 
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
 
For the City Treasurer and City Clerk, the City shall contribute towards the coverage in a 
vision   insurance program as provided by the City.  The City’s maximum contribution shall 
be consistent with the contribution paid by the City for Management/Confidential 
employees, unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   
 
For the City Manager, the City shall contribute 100% towards the cost of the vision 
insurance plan as provided by the City for employee and eligible dependents.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede 
and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan. 
 

b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 
For Management/Confidential Employees, the City shall contribute towards the coverage in 
a vision   insurance program as provided by the City.  The City’s maximum contribution shall 
be consistent with the contribution paid by the City for Miscellaneous employees,   unless 
changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)8 
 

For Miscellaneous Employees,  the City shall offer vision care insurance for employees and 
their dependents. The City shall contribute towards the coverage in a vision insurance 
program as provided by the City.   Effective January 11, 2016, the City shall contribute 100% 
of the coverage amount that corresponds to the employee’s coverage.     

 
  

                                                           
8 See CMEA MOU, p. 21.  

Attachment D

327 of 426



   

18 
 

Section 14.  Deferred Compensation (457 or 401a) Plan 
 
a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 

 
The City does not make a contribution to said Plan on behalf of employees.  
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
The City does not make a contribution to said Plan on behalf of employees.   

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association) 

 
The City does not make a contribution to said Plan on behalf of employees.   

 
  

Attachment D

328 of 426



   

19 
 

Section 15.  Retirement Contribution  
 
Every full-time employee shall participate in the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(CalPERS) plan as adopted by the City Council, as well as part-time classes that are not formally 
excluded via the City’s CalPERS contract.   Hourly classes that are excluded via the City’s CalPERS 
contract shall not be enrolled in the plan.  Participation in the retirement plan continues until 
the employee terminates employment with the City for any reason, and shall then cease under 
the terms of said plan.  An employee is vested after five (5) years and may be eligible for 
benefits from the CalPERS system.  
 
a) First Tier Retirement Formula (“Classic Members”):   

Effective July 1, 2008, the City amended the CalPERS contract to provide the benefit knows 
as 2.7% at 55 retirement formula.   

1) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)9 

For unit members covered under the 2.7% at 55 retirement formula, who are defined as 
“classic members” under the Public Employees Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) (i.e. not 
defined as “new members” under Gov. Code section 7522.04(f): 

Effective January 11, 2016 - Classic members shall pay 3% of “compensation earnable” 
as defined in Gov. Code section 20636, representing the members’ employee’s 
contribution to CalPERS.  Effective July 1, 2016 – Classic members shall pay an additional 
3% for a total of 6% of “compensation earnable” as defined in Gov. Code section 20636, 
representing the members’ employee’s contribution to CalPERS.   
 
Effective July 1, 2017 – Classic members shall pay an additional 2% for a total of 8% of 
“compensation earnable” as defined in Gov. Code section 20636, representing the 
members’ employee’s contribution to CalPERS. 
 

b) Second Tier Retirement Formula (“Classic Members”):  

Effective October 16, 2011, the benefit known as 2% @ 60 retirement formula shall apply to 
employees hired or who become eligible for enrollment in the CalPERS Retirement Plan on 
or after the effective date of the City’s contract amendment with CalPERS to implement this 
benefit. For unit members covered under this 2% at 60 retirement formula, who are defined 
as “classic members” under the PEPRA (i.e. not defined as “new members” under Gov. Code 
section 7522.04(f)), the City will only contribute the normal employer contribution, and the 
employee is responsible for paying the entire employee’s contribution rate of 7% of 
“compensation earnable” as defined in Gov. Code section 20636.      

 

 

 

 

                                                           
9 See CMEA MOU, pp. 21-22.  

Attachment D

329 of 426



   

20 
 

c) Third Tier Retirement Formula (“New Members”): Effective January 1, 2013, in 
accordance with the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) and Gov. Code section 
7522.30, new employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 shall be enrolled in the benefit 
known as 2% @ 62 retirement formula.  The City will only contribute the normal employer 
contribution, and the employee is responsible for paying the employee contribution of  50% 
of the total normal cost, as defined by CalPERS.   

 
 

 
  

Attachment D

330 of 426



   

21 
 

Section 16.  Severance Allowance 
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
  

For Appointed Officials, the City shall provide any specified severance allowance in 
accordance with the agreed upon terms of employment addressed in individual 
employment contracts.   

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
For Management/Confidential employees, the City shall provide any specified severance 
allowance in accordance with the agreed upon terms of employment addressed in 
individual employment contracts.   

 

 
Section 17.  Relocation Allowance 

 
a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 

 
Relocation allowance may be provided within individual employment contracts, subject to 
approval by the City Council.    

 
 

   
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 

Relocation allowance may be provided within individual employment contracts, subject to 
approval by the City Council.    

 
  

Attachment D

331 of 426



   

22 
 

Section 18.  Uniform Allowance 
 

a. Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)10 
 

The City shall purchase uniforms for designated employees as budgeted, but not to 
exceed $500/year. 

 
Section 19.  Cell Phone Stipend  
 

a. Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)11 

 
Employees who are not issued cell phones by the City and use their personal cell phones 
for minimal work-related use are eligible to receive a monthly stipend in the amount of 
$20.  Employees who believe they are eligible to receive the stipend shall make a request 
to the City Manager for the stipend.  The City Manager or designee shall then decide 
whether the employee is eligible for the stipend.   
 
The following City positions are issued cell phones by the City, and employees holding 
these positions are not eligible to receive the cell phone stipend: Maintenance Leader, 
Maintenance Supervisor, and Code Enforcement Officer. 

 
Section 20.  Bereavement Leave 

 
The City shall provide bereavement leave to all full-time Appointed Officials, 
Management/Confidential Employees, and Miscellaneous employees12.     
 
Regular full-time employees are entitled to up to three (3) working days of leave, with pay, upon 
the death of an immediate family member, calculated at regular base rate, to arrange and 
attend the funeral.   
 
The City shall administer the provisions of this benefit as defined in the Personnel Rules and the 
City of Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.  Management/Confidential 
Employees and Appointed Officials shall follow the same provisions and rules as provided to 
Miscellaneous employees for Bereavement Leave.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits and 
Salary Plan. 
 
 

  

                                                           
10 See CMEA MOU, p. 24.  
11 See CMEA MOU, p. 25.  
12 See CMEA MOU, p. 12.  

Attachment D

332 of 426



   

23 
 

Section 21.  Miscellaneous Leaves of Absence 
 

The City shall provide leaves of absence policies for the following categories: 
 

a) Paid Bone Marrow or Organ Donor Leave 
b) Paid Time Off for Jury Duty/Witness Duty 
c) Time Off to Vote 
d) Family and Medical Leave (FMLA)/California Family Rights Leave (CFRA) 
e) Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL) 
f) Work Related Disability Leave 
g) Medical Disability Leave 
h) Industrial Leave 
i) Military Duty Leave 
j) Military Family Leave 
k) Spousal/Registered Domestic Partner Military Leave 
l) School Activities and School Visits Leave 
m) Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault and Other Crimes Leave 
n) Volunteer Civil Service Leave 
o) Literacy Assistance Leave 
p) Personal Leave/  

 
The City’s personnel rules shall serve as the official policy related to eligibility and benefits for 
the above stated leaves.  It is the intent of the City to comply with all state and federal laws 
related to leaves, and to the extent that state and federal laws provide a greater benefit, the 
City shall comply and provide such benefits to eligible employees.     
 
Management/Confidential Employees and Appointed Officials shall follow the same provisions 
and rules as provided to Miscellaneous employees for under the sectionLeave of Absence 
Without Pay.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits and 
Salary Plan. 
  
 

  

Attachment D

333 of 426



   

24 
 

Section 22.  Education Reimbursement 
 
a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 

 
The City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager shall be entitled to education 
reimbursement on the same terms and conditions as established for 
Management/Confidential employees. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits 
and Salary Plan. 
 

b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 

The City shall reimburse Management/Confidential Employees for the cost of books and 
tuition for courses taken at any State College, State University, Community College or an 
approved accredited private college or university as approved by the City Manager. 

 
c)  Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)13 

 
The City will reimburse employees for 100% of the cost of books, materials, parking and 
tuition up to a maximum reimbursement equivalent to a part-time Cal State tuition per 
fiscal year for courses taken at any state college, state university, private university or 
community college, not to exceed $5,000 per employee per year.  Courses must be related 
to the job, to a potential promotional position, or to general educational requirements as 
approved by the City Manager upon recommendation of the Department Head. The City 
Manager or designee must approve all courses in advance in order for the employee to be 
eligible for the reimbursement. 
 
 
The City shall administer the terms of this provision as further defined under the Education 
Incentive section of the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.   

 
 

Section 23.  Educational Seminars 

a.   Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)14 

Employees wishing to further their education through short-term courses or one-day 
seminars at City expense may do so but only with written Department Head approval. The 
City shall administer the terms of this provision as further defined under the Education 
Seminars section of the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU. 

 
 

                                                           
13 See CMEA MOU, p. 22. 
14 See CMEA MOU, p. 23.  

Attachment D

334 of 426



   

25 
 

Section 24.   The Extension of Benefits to Other Classifications 
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
 
The fringe benefits set forth herein are minimum benefits; to the extent greater benefits 
are extended to other employees of the City, the City Clerk, City Treasurer and City 
Manager shall be entitled to such benefits. All provisions of the Cudahy Municipal Code, 
any Memorandum of Understanding with represented employees of the City, and the City’s 
Personnel Rules that relate to fringe benefits as those provisions now exist, or hereinafter 
may be amended, shall apply to the City Clerk, City Treasurer, and City Manager in like 
manner as they apply to other employees of City. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits 
and Salary Plan.  

  
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
All Management/Confidential employees are entitled to and shall enjoy the specific fringe 
benefits as described and defined within each benefit provision.    
 
Except as otherwise stated within any section of the Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan, all 
Management/Confidential employees are exempt from the City’s Personnel Rules.  All 
Management/Confidential employees are at-will employees. 
 

Section 25.   Hourly Employees 
 

a) Eligibility for Benefits 
 

Hourly employees shall not be entitled to any City benefits except as otherwise provided 
herein.   

 
b) Paid Sick Leave Accrual 
 

Hourly employees, including temporary, extra help, part-time, and seasonal employees 
who work 30 or more days within a year from when employment commences, shall be 
entitled to 24 hours of sick leave per fiscal year, effective July 1, 2015, and employees 
shall receive subsequent annual sick leave accruals of 24 hours added to their leave bank 
in January of each calendar year.  Sick leave must be used in a minimum of 2 hour 
increments.  Unused sick leave under this program may be carried over to the following 
year not to exceed an accrual cap of six (6) days/forty-eight (48) hours of sick leave.  An 
employee may use no more than twenty-four (24) hours in any one year.  Employees are 
entitled to request and use accrued paid sick days beginning on the 90th day of 
employment.  The rate of pay shall be at the employee’s regular hourly wage.   

 
 
 
 

Attachment D

335 of 426



   

26 
 

c) FICA Alternative Plan  
 

Hourly employees shall be entitled to receive the City’s 3.75% FICA alternative plan 
contribution in lieu of Social Security and/or participation in CalPERS.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment D

336 of 426



   

27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II 
 

THE SALARY PLAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Attachment D

337 of 426



   

28 
 

PART II - THE SALARY PLAN 
 

Section 1.  Purpose 
 
This Exhibit to Resolution No. 15-20 is enacted pursuant to Section 2.04.070(2) of the Cudahy Municipal 
Code to provide for the compensation of City officers and employees and to conform to the principle of 
equal pay for equal work.    Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms of individual employment 
agreements shall control over the compensation amounts described in this Salary Plan when 
determining the salary of individual employees under contract with the City. 
 
 

Section 2.  The Classification Plan 
 
The Classification Plan includes the allocation of class titles to salary ranges for City officers and 
employees under one Plan in which all positions substantially similar with respect to duties, authority, 
responsibility and working conditions are included within the same class, and that the same schedules of 
compensation be made to apply with equity under the working conditions to all positions in the same 
class. 
 
The Classification Plan further includes the allocation of class titles to salary ranges for those employees 
which are designated as non-represented Management/Confidential employees who are exempt from 
the classified service.  These exempt classes consist of persons appointed by the City Council, including 
the City Manager, City Clerk, and City Treasurer, and persons appointed by the City Manager, including 
department heads or designees, that serve in an "at will" capacity subject to the terms and conditions of 
an employment agreement, and are exempt from the classified service.  
 
Non-classified positions are entitled to no more than the same benefits as provided to classified 
employees in a similar position and level in the organization. The Classification Plan as of the date of 
adoption of this Plan is hereby established as set forth in the addendum, referred to as the Salary 
Schedule, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The Classification Plan shall 
not change the nature of any employee’s status as an at-will employee. 
 
  

Attachment D

338 of 426



   

29 
 

Section 3.  Basic Compensation Plan 
 

The basic compensation plan for City officers and employees, as of the date of adoption of this 
Plan is hereby established as set forth in the Addendum, including the following: 

 
1) Hourly Range Table 
 
2) Association Range Table 
 
3) Management/Confidential Range Table 

 
4) Salary Schedule 

The Salary Plan shall be referred to as the Salary Schedule which incorporates the allocation of 
ranges (defined in the range tables) to classifications, which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.   
 
Range tables for the Cudahy Municipal Employees’ Association include  steps with 
approximately 2.5% between steps.   
 
Range tables for Appointed Officials (City Clerk, City Treasurer, and City Manager) have one 
step (flat rate).  
 
Range tables for Management/Confidential include ten (10) steps with approximately 2.5% 
between steps.  
 
Range tables for Hourly employees consist of one (1) to three (3) steps. 
 
 

Section 4.  Pay Philosophy 
 

The City Council establishes a pay philosophy that the base pay of all positions shall be ideally 
set at the median pay provided by comparable cities of similar size, budget, staff, and 
geographic area, based on the City’s financial ability to pay.    
 
 

  

Attachment D

339 of 426



   

30 
 

Section 5.  Plan Maintenance 
 

Increases to the Range tables and applied to the Salary Schedule are adopted and approved by 
the City Council via Resolution to amend the Fringe Benefit and Salary Plan.   
 
Such recommended increases are negotiated between the City and the Cudahy Miscellaneous 
Employees’ Association.  The City Council may further take appropriate action to extend such 
increases to unrepresented Management/Confidential Employees, Appointed Officials including 
the City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager, and positions appointed by the City Manager. 
 
In addition to negotiated increases, the City may take steps to maintain the Salary Plan by 
conducting regularly scheduled salary reviews and/or intermittent salary reviews as determined 
by changes in the labor market, and the need to compete for talent and/or retain current 
employees.   
 
 

Section 6.  Eligibility for Salary Advancement 
 

a) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 

Management/Confidential employees may receive the same considerations for salary 
advancement as provided to Miscellaneous Employees, at the City Manager’s discretion.  

 
b) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)15 
 

Salary step increases shall be considered on a merit basis only, and at prescribed times 
as defined in the Personnel Rules and the Cudahy Municipal Employees’ Association 
MOU.   
 
Any employee receiving a promotion shall receive a salary increase consistent with the 
Personnel Rules and the Cudahy Municipal Employees’ Association MOU.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           
15 See CMEA MOU, pp. 5-6.  

Attachment D

340 of 426



   

31 
 

 
 

Section 7.  Merit Ranges 

 
a) Appointed Officials and Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
Appointed City Officials including the City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager, as well as non-
represented Management/Confidential employees who serve in an at-will capacity and are 
exempt from the classified service, may, subject to the terms and conditions set forth below, be 
eligible to have his/her salary increased to a maximum of fifteen percent beyond the regularly 
assigned top step of his/her salary range or salary set forth in an existing contract.   The City 
Manager shall have administrative authority to assign, create and maintain the merit range (pay 
band) to implement the provisions of this Section.    
 
Such increase shall be subject to documentation of the eligible employee’s outstanding 
performance, based on performance and achievement of previously defined goals.  The City 
Manager shall solely determine placement within the merit range based on the employee’s 
performance.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, with regard to increases for the City Manager 
and other Officials appointed by the City Council, the City Council shall determine placement 
within the merit range based on the employee’s performance, subject to the Appointed 
Official’s employment agreement, if any.   

The continuation of increases pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall not be automatic, 
and failure to sustain “outstanding performance” shall cause the employee’s pay to revert to the 
regularly assigned step for his/her classification.  An employee who fails to sustain “outstanding 
performance” shall have their compensation reduced to the “regular range”, in accordance with 
this section, and at the City Manager’s discretion for Management/Confidential classes, and the 
City Council’s discretion for Appointed Officials.  Salary for Appointed Officials/ 
Management/Confidential employees who have an employment agreement with the City shall 
not be modified prior to an amendment to his/her employment agreement, unless the 
agreement permits the increase or decrease to be handled administratively.   

The regular salary range shall constitute the regularly defined Steps in the Salary Range (A-J).  
The “merit range” shall constitute a “pay band” with a minimum rate set one dollar above the 
maximum of the “regular salary range” and the maximum set at an amount not to exceed 
fifteen percent beyond the regularly assigned top step of the salary range.  The “pay band” shall 
be added to the Salary Schedule for the assigned non-represented Management/Confidential 
classifications and Appointed Officials when the increase is recommended by the City Manager 
or City Council.   
 
In no case shall an employee receive additional merit compensation above the designated 
“merit range” as defined herein.  
 
Eligibility for additional compensation granted to all employees as part of changes authorized by 
the City Council shall not be adversely affected by the employee’s status in steps granted 
beyond the regularly assigned step pursuant to the provisions of this Section.  Salaries granted 
pursuant to this provision shall be reported to PERS as compensation earned. 

Attachment D

341 of 426



   

32 
 

 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary 
Plan 
  
b) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association) 

  
As provided in the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU, employees may be 
eligible for merit longevity compensation as continuing incentive to career employees upon 
achieving the “J” step and completing ten continuous years of service.  Employees may be 
eligible for a 5% stipend above their base pay rate , and after twenty (20) years, the stipend shall 
increase to a total of  7.5% above the base pay rate.  Such payment shall be granted with the 
approval of the city Manager  to employees who continue to “Exceed Standards” as evidenced 
by the performance rating of such employee, which is defined as a comprehensive rating at or 
above the middle column of the current reporting form, or the equivalent rating on any revised 
reporting form.   Merit Longevity may be removed by the City Manager when the employee’s 
performance does not merit such additional compensation.   The provisions of this section shall 
be administered in accordance with the specific language in the Cudahy Miscellaneous 
Employees’ Association MOU.  
 
 

Section 8.   Compaction Rule 
 

The top step of the salary range of any Management/Confidential classification shall be a 
minimum of two steps (approximately ten percent) above the top step of the closest 
subordinate classification, with the exception of those Management/Confidential classifications 
supervising specialized classifications which are highly compensated due to labor market 
conditions. In the case of highly compensated positions due to labor market conditions, 
employees may directly supervise a subordinate classification where the maximum salary range 
exceeds the supervisory class without the two step minimum (approximately ten percent).  
Subordinate classification shall be defined as any position classification in which there are 
employees who are supervised by the Management/Confidential employee.  

 
 

Section 9.  Salaries Above Market Rate – Use of "Y" Rating Method 
 

The City Manager has the authority to implement a “Y” rating for employees whose range is 
found to exceed the market rate based on a salary survey.   The employee in this case shall 
receive no increase in salary unless the maximum salary established by this Plan for their 
classifications exceeds the amount of their "Y" rate.  

 
 

Section 10.  Trainee Positions 
 

The City Manager has the authority to establish a Trainee class for any class in the system.  The 
salary range for Trainee classes shall be established with a salary range starting fifteen percent 
(15%) below the first step of the regular position and ending five percent (5%) below the first 

Attachment D

342 of 426



   

33 
 

step of the regular position.   Employees who successfully complete the training program and 
meet the criteria for the higher level class, may be reclassified to the higher level class upon 
approval by the City Manager.   
 

Section 11.   Salary Differentials/Stipends  
 
Exceptions shall be made to Sections 2 and 3 of this Plan as follows:  
 

a. (5%) Salary Differential  
 
After investigation and approval by the City Manager, a 5% Salary Differential shall be  
assigned to persons found to possess as a regular assignment such additional duties and 
responsibilities or whose positions entail certain hazards as to warrant additional 
compensation, which additional salary shall be limited to the following:  

 
No current provisions  
 

b. (10%) Salary Differential  
 
After investigation and approval by the City Manager, a 10% Salary Differential shall be  
assigned to persons found to possess as a regular assignment such additional duties and 
responsibilities or whose positions entail certain hazards as to warrant additional 
compensation, which additional salary shall be limited to the following:  

 
 
         No current provisions 

 
c. Bi-lingual Pay 

 
1. Appointed Officials  (Non-represented) 

 
The City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager shall be entitled to the same 
compensation as provided to Management/Confidential employees, which shall 
be provided as a stipend rather than incorporated into base pay, when the 
positions have been designated as bi-lingual positions.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
2. Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same 
compensation as provided to Miscellaneous employees, which shall be provided 
as a stipend rather than incorporated into base pay, when the positions have 
been designated as bi-lingual positions.    

 

Attachment D

343 of 426



   

34 
 

3. Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)16 
 
Approved and certified employees shall be compensated with a bilingual pay 
stipend  in the amount of $75.00 per month for oral translation duties, and 
$125.00 per month for oral and written translations.   
The provisions of this section shall be administered in accordance with the 
specific language in the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.  
 

 
 

d. Temporary Upgrade – Acting Capacity   
 

1. Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees' Association)17 

 
 

An employee who has been designated by the City to serve in an acting capacity for 
thirty (30) consecutive work days or more shall receive Step A of the pay range for the 
classification in which the employee is performing active duties, or  a stipend of 5% 
above the base pay, whichever is greater.  Service in an acting capacity shall not be used 
as a basis for, or in support of, a request for reclassification.   The City Manager or 
designee may determine that a position filled pursuant to an acting assignment shall be 
filled based on a competitive process to afford an equal opportunity for 
internal/external candidates.  

 

e. Temporary Upgrade – Work Out of Class   

1.  Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees' Association)18 

The City may temporarily assign employees to work out of classification.  The selection 
of employees for an out-of-classification assignment shall be at the discretion of the City 
Manager or designee.  A temporary out-of-class stipend of  5% above the employee’s 
base pay shall be authorized with advance approval by the Department Head, upon 
consultation and approval from the City Manager or designee  when an employee is 
designated and scheduled to work in an out- of- class assignment.  Paid holidays shall be 
considered as days actually worked.  Other forms of authorized leave such as sick leave, 
emergency leave and vacation shall not be considered as days actually worked.  

 

                                                           
16 See CMEA MOU, p. 19.  
17 See CMEA MOU, pp. 7-8. 
18 See CMEA MOU, p. 8.  

Attachment D

344 of 426



   

35 
 

 
 

Section 12.  Overtime 
 
The City’s pay policy is intended to comply with the salary pay requirements of current State and Federal 
laws, and shall be construed in accordance with these laws and regulations.  Further, the City shall 
administer the pay practices related to overtime consistent with the City’s personnel rules and the 
Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.     
 
Non-exempt employees shall be paid for hours worked in accordance with all legal requirements.  Over-
time is calculated at one and one-half (1 ½) times the employee’s regular base rate of pay for all time 
worked over 40 hours in one workweek.  Hours paid that are not actually worked, such as holidays, sick 
days, and vacation hours do not count as hours worked when calculating weekly overtime.   
 
a. Miscellaneous Employees – (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association)19 

 
1. For all workweeks in which there is no designated holiday that falls during the workweek or 

a day in which the employee is sent home due to an unexpected City closure, or by 
management due to lack of work or an act of God, the employee shall be eligible for 
overtime pay (time and one half the employee’s regular rate of pay as that term is used in 
the Fair Labor Standards Act) for time worked over 40 hours per workweek.  In a workweek 
where there is a designated holiday that falls during the workweek or a day in which the 
employee is sent home due to an unexpected City closure, or by management due to lack 
of work or an act of God and is thus unable to work their regularly scheduled shift, and the 
employee has not taken any time off or leave during that same week (e.g. vacation, sick or 
other personal leave), the employee shall be eligible for overtime pay (time and one half) 
for time worked beyond the employee’s scheduled shift(s) during that workweek. 

 
2. When an employee is not regularly scheduled to work on Saturdays and Sundays the 

employee shall receive overtime pay (time and one-half) for all time worked on those days.  
When an employee works on a designated City holiday, the employee shall receive 
overtime pay (time and one half) for all time worked on the holiday. 

 
Exempt employees are not entitled to receive overtime pay even though they may have to work hours 
beyond their normal schedule, as work demands require.   

 
 

Section 13.  Compensatory Time Off 
 
a.     Miscellaneous Employees – (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association)20 
 

The City’s pay policy is intended to comply with the salary pay requirements of current State and 
Federal laws, and shall be construed in accordance with these laws and regulations.  Further, the 
City shall administer the pay practices related to Compensatory Time consistent with the City’s 
personnel rules and the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.     
 

                                                           
19 See CMEA MOU, pp. 16-17 
20 CMEA MOU, p. 18.  

Attachment D

345 of 426



   

36 
 

Compensatory time is an alternative method of overtime payment to non-exempt employees.  
In lieu of paying a non-exempt employee for overtime worked, employees may be granted 
compensatory time off at the overtime rate of one and one half (1 ½) for each hour of overtime 
worked.  Employees shall have the option of receiving overtime pay for any overtime worked.   
Use of earned compensatory time off must be approved in advance by the Department Head or 
designee.   The maximum accrual limit is 120 hours. 

 
 

Section 14.  Executive Leave 
 
Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to take three (3) days (27 hours) of executive 
leave per fiscal year. The three (3) days (27 hours) may not be carried over to the next fiscal year and 
their use must have the prior permission of the City Manager.  This provision shall be administered in 
accordance with the City’s Personnel Rules and the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.   
 

 

Section 15. On-Call (Standby) Pay 
 
a.  Miscellaneous Employees – (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association)21 
 

An employee who has been instructed by their direct supervisor to stand-by is free to use this 
time for their own benefit.  Employees On-Call (Standby) shall receive two (2) hours of 
compensatory time for an assigned 24 consecutive hour shift, which will not be counted towards 
over-time calculations.   
 
The City’s pay policy is intended to comply with the salary pay requirements of current State and 
Federal laws, and shall be construed in accordance with these laws and regulations.  Further, the 
City shall administer the pay practices related to On-Call (Standby) Pay consistent with the City’s 
personnel rules and the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.     

 

Section 16.  Call Back Pay 
 
a.  Miscellaneous Employees – (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association)22 
 

Call back duty occurs when an employee is called back in to work after their regular shift has 
ended.  An employee called back to duty shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours of 
compensatory time at a rate equal to time and one-half (1 ½) the regular hourly pay rate, and 
for actual hours worked at time and one-half the regular hourly pay rate, if hours worked 
exceeds two (2).    
 

                                                           
21 CMEA MOU, p. 18. 
22 CMEA MOU, p. 19. 

Attachment D

346 of 426



   

37 
 

The City’s pay policy is intended to comply with the salary pay requirements of current State and 
Federal laws, and shall be construed in accordance with these laws and regulations.  Further, the 
City shall administer the pay practices related to Call Back Pay consistent with the City’s 
personnel rules and the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.     

 
 
Section 17.    Additional Approved Increases in Compensation and Changes to the 
Salary and Classification Plans  
 
a.   Miscellaneous Employees – (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association)23 

All members shall receive: 
 

x  A 3% increase to their base rate effective July 1, 2015;  
x  A 3% increase to their base rate effective July 1, 2016; 
x  A 2% increase to their base rate effective July 1 2017; and  
x  A 2% increase to their base rate effective July 1, 2018. 

 
 
Section 18.  The Provisions of This Plan Shall Be Operative on the Date of Its 
Adoption. 
 

ADDENDUM:   
 

1.  HOURLY RANGE TABLES 
 

2.  ASSOCIATION RANGE TABLES 
 

3.  MANAGEMENT/CONFIDENTIAL RANGE TABLES 
 

4. SALARY SCHEDULES 
 

  

                                                           
23 CMEA MOU, p. 5. 

Attachment D

347 of 426



   

38 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HOURLY RANGE TABLES 
 

 

  

Attachment D

348 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective
January 01, 2016

Ranges A
Ranges A B C HF25 45.00

H1 10.00 10.25 10.50 HF26 50.00
H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
H3 11.56 12.19 12.86
H4 11.91 12.56 13.25
H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
H6 13.35 13.92 14.60
H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
H8 14.89 15.89 16.85
H9 17.20 17.60 18.00

H10 15.40 16.22 18.44
H11 18.20 18.60 19.00
H12 18.85 19.86 21.18

H10
H7
H4
H12

HF25
HF26

H5
H8
H2
H5
H6

Planning Technician H7
H1
H2

Sr. Recreation Leader H3
Recreation Leader

Clerk Typist
Code Enforcement Officer
Maintenance Aide
Maintenance Worker

Flat Rates

Account Clerk (B)
Administrative Aide

Municipal Enforcement Ofc.

Recreation Aide

Administrative Intern
Administrative Assistant
Building Inspector
CDBG Coordinator

Hourly Steps

Attachment D

349 of 426



   

39 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ASSOCIATION RANGE TABLES 

  

Attachment D

350 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective

         July 1, 2015

              Association
Steps

Ranges A B C D E F G H I J
A1 2899 2972 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3447 3533 3621
A2 3039 3114 3192 3272 3354 3438 3524 3612 3702 3795
A3 3190 3270 3351 3435 3521 3609 3699 3792 3887 3984
A4 3344 3428 3514 3602 3692 3784 3878 3975 4075 4177
A5 3508 3596 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381
A6 3684 3776 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601
A7 3717 3810 3905 4003 4103 4206 4311 4419 4529 4642
A8 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067

A10 4260 4367 4476 4588 4702 4820 4940 5064 5190 5320
A11 4472 4584 4699 4816 4937 5060 5186 5316 5449 5585
A12 4530 4643 4759 4878 5000 5125 5253 5385 5519 5657
A13 4692 4809 4929 5052 5179 5308 5441 5577 5716 5859
A14 4923 5046 5173 5302 5435 5570 5710 5852 5999 6149
A15 5165 5295 5427 5563 5702 5844 5990 6140 6294 6451
A16 5419 5554 5693 5835 5981 6131 6284 6441 6602 6767
A17 5687 5829 5975 6124 6277 6434 6595 6760 6929 7102
A18 5966 6115 6268 6424 6585 6750 6918 7091 7269 7450
A19 6259 6416 6576 6741 6909 7082 7259 7440 7626 7817
A20 6569 6734 6902 7074 7251 7433 7618 7809 8004 8204
A21 6894 7066 7243 7424 7609 7800 7995 8195 8399 8609
A22 7235 7416 7601 7791 7986 8185 8390 8600 8815 9035
A23 7592 7782 7976 8176 8380 8590 8805 9025 9250 9482
A24 7969 8168 8373 8582 8796 9016 9242 9473 9710 9952

Attachment D

351 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective

         July 1, 2016

Ranges A B C D E F G H I J
A1 2986 3061 3138 3216 3296 3379 3463 3550 3639 3730
A2 3130 3208 3288 3370 3455 3541 3629 3720 3813 3909
A3 3286 3368 3452 3538 3627 3717 3810 3906 4003 4103
A4 3445 3531 3619 3710 3802 3897 3995 4095 4197 4302
A5 3613 3704 3796 3891 3989 4088 4190 4295 4403 4513
A6 3795 3890 3987 4087 4189 4294 4401 4511 4624 4739
A7 3829 3925 4023 4123 4226 4332 4440 4551 4665 4782
A8 3983 4082 4184 4289 4396 4506 4619 4734 4852 4974
A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219

A10 4388 4498 4610 4725 4843 4964 5089 5216 5346 5480
A11 4606 4722 4840 4961 5085 5212 5342 5476 5612 5753
A12 4666 4782 4902 5025 5150 5279 5411 5546 5685 5827
A13 4832 4953 5077 5204 5334 5467 5604 5744 5888 6035
A14 5071 5198 5328 5461 5598 5737 5881 6028 6179 6333
A15 5320 5453 5590 5730 5873 6020 6170 6324 6482 6644
A16 5581 5721 5864 6011 6161 6315 6473 6635 6800 6970
A17 5857 6004 6154 6308 6465 6627 6793 6962 7136 7315
A18 6145 6298 6456 6617 6783 6952 7126 7304 7487 7674
A19 6447 6608 6773 6943 7116 7294 7477 7664 7855 8052
A20 6766 6936 7109 7287 7469 7656 7847 8043 8244 8450
A21 7101 7278 7460 7647 7838 8034 8235 8440 8651 8868
A22 7452 7638 7829 8025 8225 8431 8642 8858 9079 9306
A23 7820 8015 8216 8421 8632 8847 9069 9295 9528 9766
A24 8208 8413 8624 8839 9060 9287 9519 9757 10001 10251

 Association
Steps

Attachment D

352 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective

         July 1, 2017

Ranges A B C D E F G H I J
A1 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3446 3533 3621 3711 3804
A2 3192 3272 3354 3438 3524 3612 3702 3795 3889 3987
A3 3351 3435 3521 3609 3699 3792 3887 3984 4083 4185
A4 3514 3601 3692 3784 3878 3975 4075 4177 4281 4388
A5 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381 4491 4603
A6 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601 4716 4834
A7 3905 4003 4103 4206 4311 4419 4529 4642 4758 4877
A8 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829 4949 5073
A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323

A10 4476 4588 4702 4820 4940 5064 5190 5320 5453 5589
A11 4699 4816 4936 5060 5186 5316 5449 5585 5725 5868
A12 4759 4878 5000 5125 5253 5385 5519 5657 5799 5944
A13 4929 5052 5179 5308 5441 5577 5716 5859 6006 6156
A14 5173 5302 5434 5570 5709 5852 5999 6149 6302 6460
A15 5427 5562 5702 5844 5990 6140 6293 6451 6612 6777
A16 5693 5835 5981 6131 6284 6441 6602 6767 6936 7110
A17 5974 6124 6277 6434 6595 6759 6928 7102 7279 7461
A18 6268 6424 6585 6750 6918 7091 7269 7450 7636 7827
A19 6576 6740 6909 7082 7259 7440 7626 7817 8012 8213
A20 6902 7074 7251 7432 7618 7809 8004 8204 8409 8619
A21 7243 7424 7609 7800 7994 8194 8399 8609 8824 9045
A22 7601 7791 7986 8185 8390 8600 8815 9035 9261 9492
A23 7976 8176 8380 8590 8804 9024 9250 9481 9718 9961
A24 8372 8582 8796 9016 9242 9473 9709 9952 10201 10456

Steps
 Association

Attachment D

353 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective

         July 1, 2018

Ranges A B C D E F G H I J
A1 3107 3185 3264 3346 3430 3515 3603 3693 3786 3880
A2 3256 3337 3421 3506 3594 3684 3776 3870 3967 4066
A3 3418 3504 3591 3681 3773 3868 3964 4063 4165 4269
A4 3584 3674 3765 3859 3956 4055 4156 4260 4367 4476
A5 3759 3853 3950 4048 4150 4253 4360 4469 4580 4695
A6 3948 4047 4148 4252 4358 4467 4579 4693 4810 4931
A7 3983 4083 4185 4290 4397 4507 4620 4735 4853 4975
A8 4144 4247 4353 4462 4574 4688 4805 4925 5048 5175
A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430

A10 4565 4679 4796 4916 5039 5165 5294 5427 5562 5701
A11 4793 4912 5035 5161 5290 5422 5558 5697 5839 5985
A12 4854 4976 5100 5228 5358 5492 5630 5770 5915 6062
A13 5028 5153 5282 5414 5550 5688 5831 5976 6126 6279
A14 5276 5408 5543 5682 5824 5969 6119 6271 6428 6589
A15 5535 5674 5816 5961 6110 6263 6419 6580 6744 6913
A16 5807 5952 6101 6253 6410 6570 6734 6903 7075 7252
A17 6094 6246 6402 6562 6726 6895 7067 7244 7425 7610
A18 6393 6553 6717 6885 7057 7233 7414 7599 7789 7984
A19 6708 6875 7047 7223 7404 7589 7779 7973 8173 8377
A20 7040 7216 7396 7581 7771 7965 8164 8368 8577 8792
A21 7387 7572 7761 7955 8154 8358 8567 8781 9001 9226
A22 7753 7947 8145 8349 8558 8772 8991 9216 9446 9682
A23 8136 8339 8548 8761 8980 9205 9435 9671 9913 10161
A24 8540 8753 8972 9196 9426 9662 9904 10151 10405 10665

 Association
Steps

Attachment D

354 of 426



   

40 
 

 

 

 

 

 

MANAGEMENT/CONFIDENTIAL  

RANGE TABLES 

  

Attachment D

355 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective
July 1, 2008

Ranges A B C D E F G H I J
M1 5322 5474 5591 5729 5847 6020 6171 6325 6483 6645
M2 6011 6174 6317 6472 6634 6802 6972 7144 7324 7507
M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
M4 8436 8562 8703 8852 9007 9175 9357 9548 9763 9989
M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781

Management
Steps

Attachment D

356 of 426



   

41 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SALARY SCHEDULES 
 

Attachment D

357 of 426



TITLE GROUP RATE RANGE STEP	A STEP	B STEP	C STEP	D STEP	E STEP	F STEP	G STEP	H STEP	I STEP	J

Account	Clerk	 PT HOURLY H10 15.40 16.22 18.44
Account	Clerk CMEA MONTHLY A7 3717 3810 3905 4003 4103 4206 4311 4419 4529 4642
Account	Technician CMEA MONTHLY A12 4530 4643 4759 4878 5000 5125 5253 5385 5519 5657
Administrative	Aide PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Administrative	Assistant PT HOURLY H12 18.85 19.86 21.18
Administrative	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A8 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Administrative	Clerk	I	 CMEA MONTHLY A1 2899 2972 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3447 3533 3621
Administrative	Clerk	II CMEA MONTHLY A5 3508 3596 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381
Administrative	Intern PT HOURLY H4 11.91 12.56 13.25
Assistant	Engineer	A CMEA MONTHLY A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067
Assistant	Engineer	B CMEA MONTHLY A18 5966 6115 6268 6424 6585 6750 6918 7091 7269 7450
Building	Inspector PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF25 45.00
Cashier/Receptionist CMEA MONTHLY A1 2899 2972 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3447 3533 3621
CDBG	Coordinator PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF26 50.00
City	Council	Member ELECTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 483.60
City	Clerk APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 8270
City	Manager APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 15,000
City	Treasurer	 APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 5057
Clerk	Typist PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Code	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H8 14.89 15.89 16.85
Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A8 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Community	Development	Manager		 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Department	Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A6 3684 3776 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601
Deputy	City	Clerk MONTHLY 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Director	of	Community	Services MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Director	of	Parks	&	Recreation MGMT MONTHLY M4 8436 8562 8703 8852 9007 9175 9357 9548 9763 9989
Executive	Secretary/Human	Resources		Specialist MGMT MONTHLY M2 6011 6174 6317 6472 6634 6802 6972 7144 7324 7507
Finance	Manager MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Maintenance	Aide PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Maintenance	Foreman CMEA MONTHLY A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067
Maintenance	Leader CMEA MONTHLY A6 3684 3776 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601
Maintenance	Superintendent CMEA MONTHLY A11 4472 4584 4699 4816 4937 5060 5186 5316 5449 5585
Maintenance	Worker PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Maintenance	Worker CMEA MONTHLY A3 3190 3270 3351 3435 3521 3609 3699 3792 3887 3984
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H6 13.35 13.92 14.60
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A5 3508 3596 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381
Planning	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067
Planning	Associate CMEA MONTHLY A10 4260 4367 4476 4588 4702 4820 4940 5064 5190 5320
Planning	Technician PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Public	Safety	and	Services	Manager	 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Recreation	Aide PT HOURLY H1 10.00 10.25 10.50
Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A5 3508 3596 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381
Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Recreation	Supervisor CMEA MONTHLY A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067
Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A4 3344 3428 3514 3602 3692 3784 3878 3975 4075 4177
Senior	Accountant CMEA MONTHLY A17 5687 5829 5975 6124 6277 6434 6595 6760 6929 7102
Senior	Administrative	Analyst CMEA MONTHLY A8 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Senior	Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067
Senior	Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A6 3684 3776 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601
Senior	Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H3 11.56 12.19 12.86

CITY	OF	CUDAHY
SALARY	SCHEDULE

EFFECTIVE	DATE	MARCH	14,	2016

Attachment D

358 of 426



TITLE GROUP RATE RANGE STEP	A STEP	B STEP	C STEP	D STEP	E STEP	F STEP	G STEP	H STEP	I STEP	J

Account	Clerk	 PT HOURLY H10 15.40 16.22 18.44
Account	Clerk CMEA MONTHLY A7 3829 3925 4023 4123 4226 4332 4440 4551 4665 4782
Account	Technician CMEA MONTHLY A12 4666 4782 4902 5025 5150 5279 5411 5546 5685 5827
Administrative	Aide PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Administrative	Assistant PT HOURLY H12 18.85 19.86 21.18
Administrative	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A8 3983 4082 4184 4289 4396 4506 4619 4734 4852 4974
Administrative	Clerk	I	 CMEA MONTHLY A1 2986 3061 3138 3216 3296 3379 3463 3550 3639 3730
Administrative	Clerk	II CMEA MONTHLY A5 3613 3704 3796 3891 3989 4088 4190 4295 4403 4513
Administrative	Intern PT HOURLY H4 11.91 12.56 13.25
Assistant	Engineer	A CMEA MONTHLY A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219
Assistant	Engineer	B CMEA MONTHLY A18 6145 6298 6456 6617 6783 6952 7126 7304 7487 7674
Building	Inspector PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF25 45.00
Cashier/Receptionist CMEA MONTHLY A1 2986 3061 3138 3216 3296 3379 3463 3550 3639 3730
CDBG	Coordinator PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF26 50.00
City	Council	Member ELECTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 483.60
City	Clerk APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 8270
City	Manager APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 15,000
City	Treasurer	 APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 5057
Clerk	Typist PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Code	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H8 14.89 15.89 16.85
Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A8 3983 4082 4184 4289 4396 4506 4619 4734 4852 4974
Community	Development	Manager		 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Department	Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A6 3795 3890 3987 4087 4189 4294 4401 4511 4624 4739
Deputy	City	Clerk MONTHLY 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Director	of	Community	Services MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Director	of	Parks	&	Recreation MGMT MONTHLY M4 8436 8562 8703 8852 9007 9175 9357 9548 9763 9989
Executive	Secretary/Human	Resources		Specialist MGMT MONTHLY M2 6011 6174 6317 6472 6634 6802 6972 7144 7324 7507
Finance	Manager MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Maintenance	Aide PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Maintenance	Foreman CMEA MONTHLY A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219
Maintenance	Leader CMEA MONTHLY A6 3795 3890 3987 4087 4189 4294 4401 4511 4624 4739
Maintenance	Superintendent CMEA MONTHLY A11 4606 4722 4840 4961 5085 5212 5342 5476 5612 5753
Maintenance	Worker PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Maintenance	Worker CMEA MONTHLY A3 3286 3368 3452 3538 3627 3717 3810 3906 4003 4103
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H6 13.35 13.92 14.60
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A5 3613 3704 3796 3891 3989 4088 4190 4295 4403 4513
Planning	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219
Planning	Associate CMEA MONTHLY A10 4388 4489 4610 4725 4843 4964 5089 5216 5346 5480
Planning	Technician PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Public	Safety	and	Services	Manager	 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Recreation	Aide PT HOURLY H1 10.00 10.25 10.50
Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A5 3613 3704 3796 3891 3989 4088 4190 4295 4403 4513
Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Recreation	Supervisor CMEA MONTHLY A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219
Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A4 3445 3531 3619 3710 3802 3897 3995 4095 4197 4302
Senior	Accountant CMEA MONTHLY A17 5857 6004 6154 6308 6465 6627 6793 6962 7136 7315
Senior	Administrative	Analyst CMEA MONTHLY A8 3983 4082 4184 4289 4396 4506 4619 4734 4852 4974
Senior	Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219
Senior	Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A6 3795 3890 3987 4087 4189 4294 4401 4511 4624 4739
Senior	Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H3 11.56 12.19 12.86

CITY	OF	CUDAHY
SALARY	SCHEDULE

EFFECTIVE	DATE	JULY	1,	2016

Attachment D

359 of 426



TITLE GROUP RATE RANGE STEP	A STEP	B STEP	C STEP	D STEP	E STEP	F STEP	G STEP	H STEP	I STEP	J

Account	Clerk	 PT HOURLY H10 15.40 16.22 18.44
Account	Clerk CMEA MONTHLY A7 3905 4003 4103 4206 4311 4419 4529 4642 4758 4877
Account	Technician CMEA MONTHLY A12 4759 4878 5000 5125 5253 5385 5519 5657 5799 5944
Administrative	Aide PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Administrative	Assistant PT HOURLY H12 18.85 19.86 21.18
Administrative	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A8 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829 4949 5073
Administrative	Clerk	I	 CMEA MONTHLY A1 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3446 3533 3621 3711 3804
Administrative	Clerk	II CMEA MONTHLY A5 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381 4491 4603
Administrative	Intern PT HOURLY H4 11.91 12.56 13.25
Assistant	Engineer	A CMEA MONTHLY A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323
Assistant	Engineer	B CMEA MONTHLY A18 6268 6424 6585 6750 6918 7091 7269 7450 7636 7827
Building	Inspector PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF25 45.00
Cashier/Receptionist CMEA MONTHLY A1 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3446 3533 3621 3711 3804
CDBG	Coordinator PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF26 50.00
City	Council	Member ELECTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 483.60
City	Clerk APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 8270
City	Manager APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 15,000
City	Treasurer	 APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 5057
Clerk	Typist PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Code	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H8 14.89 15.89 16.85
Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A8 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829 4949 5073
Community	Development	Manager		 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Department	Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A6 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601 4716 4834
Deputy	City	Clerk MONTHLY 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Director	of	Community	Services MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Director	of	Parks	&	Recreation MGMT MONTHLY M4 8436 8562 8703 8852 9007 9175 9357 9548 9763 9989
Executive	Secretary/Human	Resources		Specialist MGMT MONTHLY M2 6011 6174 6317 6472 6634 6802 6972 7144 7324 7507
Finance	Manager MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Maintenance	Aide PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Maintenance	Foreman CMEA MONTHLY A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323
Maintenance	Leader CMEA MONTHLY A6 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601 4716 4834
Maintenance	Superintendent CMEA MONTHLY A11 4699 4816 4936 5060 5186 5316 5449 5585 5725 5868
Maintenance	Worker PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Maintenance	Worker CMEA MONTHLY A3 3351 3435 3521 3609 3699 3792 3887 3984 4083 4185
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H6 13.35 13.92 14.60
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A5 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381 4491 4603
Planning	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323
Planning	Associate CMEA MONTHLY A10 4476 4588 4702 4820 4940 5064 5190 5320 5453 5589
Planning	Technician PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Public	Safety	and	Services	Manager	 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Recreation	Aide PT HOURLY H1 10.00 10.25 10.50
Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A5 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381 4491 4603
Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Recreation	Supervisor CMEA MONTHLY A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323
Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A4 3514 3601 3692 3784 3878 3975 4075 4177 4281 4388
Senior	Accountant CMEA MONTHLY A17 5974 6124 6277 6434 6595 6759 6928 7102 7279 7461
Senior	Administrative	Analyst CMEA MONTHLY A8 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829 4949 5073
Senior	Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323
Senior	Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A6 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601 4716 4834
Senior	Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H3 11.56 12.19 12.86

CITY	OF	CUDAHY
SALARY	SCHEDULE

EFFECTIVE	DATE	JULY	1,	2017

Attachment D

360 of 426



TITLE GROUP RATE RANGE STEP	A STEP	B STEP	C STEP	D STEP	E STEP	F STEP	G STEP	H STEP	I STEP	J

Account	Clerk	 PT HOURLY H10 15.40 16.22 18.44
Account	Clerk CMEA MONTHLY A7 3983 4083 4185 4290 4397 4507 4620 4735 4853 4975
Account	Technician CMEA MONTHLY A12 4854 4976 5100 5228 5358 5492 5630 5770 5915 6062
Administrative	Aide PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Administrative	Assistant PT HOURLY H12 18.85 19.86 21.18
Administrative	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A8 4144 4247 4353 4462 4574 4688 4805 4925 5048 5175
Administrative	Clerk	I	 CMEA MONTHLY A1 3107 3185 3264 3346 3430 3515 3603 3693 3786 3880
Administrative	Clerk	II CMEA MONTHLY A5 3759 3853 3950 4048 4150 4253 4360 4469 4580 4695
Administrative	Intern PT HOURLY H4 11.91 12.56 13.25
Assistant	Engineer	A CMEA MONTHLY A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430
Assistant	Engineer	B CMEA MONTHLY A18 6393 6553 6717 6885 7057 7233 7414 7599 7789 7984
Building	Inspector PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF25 45.00
Cashier/Receptionist CMEA MONTHLY A1 3107 3185 3264 3346 3430 3515 3603 3693 3786 3880
CDBG	Coordinator PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF26 50.00
City	Council	Member ELECTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 483.60
City	Clerk APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 8270
City	Manager APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 15,000
City	Treasurer	 APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 5057
Clerk	Typist PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Code	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H8 14.89 15.89 16.85
Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A8 4144 4247 4353 4462 4574 4688 4805 4925 5048 5175
Community	Development	Manager		 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Department	Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A6 3948 4047 4148 4252 4358 4467 4579 4693 4810 4931
Deputy	City	Clerk MONTHLY 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Director	of	Community	Services MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Director	of	Parks	&	Recreation MGMT MONTHLY M4 8436 8562 8703 8852 9007 9175 9357 9548 9763 9989
Executive	Secretary/Human	Resources		Specialist MGMT MONTHLY M2 6011 6174 6317 6472 6634 6802 6972 7144 7324 7507
Finance	Manager MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Maintenance	Aide PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Maintenance	Foreman CMEA MONTHLY A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430
Maintenance	Leader CMEA MONTHLY A6 3948 4047 4148 4252 4358 4467 4579 4693 4810 4931
Maintenance	Superintendent CMEA MONTHLY A11 4793 4912 5035 5161 5290 5422 5558 5697 5839 5985
Maintenance	Worker PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Maintenance	Worker CMEA MONTHLY A3 3418 3504 3591 3681 3773 3868 3694 4063 4165 4269
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H6 13.35 13.92 14.60
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A5 3759 3853 3950 4048 4150 4253 4360 4469 4580 4695
Planning	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430
Planning	Associate CMEA MONTHLY A10 4565 4679 4796 4916 5039 5165 5294 5427 5562 5701
Planning	Technician PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Public	Safety	and	Services	Manager	 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Recreation	Aide PT HOURLY H1 10.00 10.25 10.50
Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A5 3759 3853 3950 4048 4150 4253 4360 4469 4580 4695
Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Recreation	Supervisor CMEA MONTHLY A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430
Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A4 3584 3674 3765 3859 3956 4055 4156 4260 4367 4476
Senior	Accountant CMEA MONTHLY A17 6094 6246 6402 6562 6726 6895 7067 7244 7425 7610
Senior	Administrative	Analyst CMEA MONTHLY A8 4144 4247 4353 4462 4574 4688 4805 4925 5048 5175
Senior	Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430
Senior	Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A6 3948 4047 4148 4252 4358 4467 4579 4693 4810 4931
Senior	Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H3 11.56 12.19 12.86

CITY	OF	CUDAHY
SALARY	SCHEDULE

EFFECTIVE	DATE	JULY	1,	2018

Attachment D

361 of 426



	 	

	

	

	

	

	

	

FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARY 
PLAN 

(Exhibit  A to Resolution No. 16-XX) 
 

Effective March 14, 2016 
	

	

	

	

	

	

	

CITY OF CUDAHY CALIFORNIA 
Incorporated November 10, 1960 

Attachment E

362 of 426



   

2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Attachment E

363 of 426



   

3 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

PART I – THE FRINGE BENEFIT PLAN ................................................................................................................ 6 

Section 1.  Purpose ............................................................................................................................6 

Section 2.  Applicability ......................................................................................................................6 

Section 3.  Holidays ...........................................................................................................................7 

Section 4.  Vacation ...........................................................................................................................8 

Section 5.  Sick Leave .........................................................................................................................9 

Section 6.  Car Allowance ................................................................................................................. 10 

Section 7.  Reimbursement for Expenses ........................................................................................... 10 

Section 8.  Health Insurance ............................................................................................................. 11 

Section 9.  Health Insurance for Retirees ........................................................................................... 13 

Section 10.  Life Insurance ................................................................................................................ 14 

Section 11.  Disability Insurance ........................................................................................................ 15 

Section 12.  Dental Insurance ........................................................................................................... 16 

Section 13.  Vision Insurance .......................................................................................................... 17 

Section 14.  Deferred Compensation (457 or 401a) Plan ...................................................................... 18 

Section 15.  Retirement Contribution ................................................................................................ 19 

Section 16.  Severance Allowance ................................................................................................... 21 

Section 17.  Relocation Allowance ..................................................................................................... 21 

Section 18.  Uniform Allowance ........................................................................................................ 22 

Section 19. Cell Phone Stipend ......................................................................................................... 22 

Section 20.  Bereavement Leave ....................................................................................................... 22 

Section 21.  Miscellaneous Leaves of Absence .................................................................................... 23 

Section 22.  Education Reimbursement ............................................................................................. 24 

Section 24.   The Extension of Benefits to Other Classifications ....................................................... 25 

Section 25.   Hourly Employees....................................................................................................... 25 

PART II - THE SALARY PLAN ......................................................................................................................... 28 

Section 1.  Purpose ........................................................................................................................ 28 

Section 2.  The Classification Plan ................................................................................................... 28 

Section 3.  Basic Compensation Plan ............................................................................................... 29 

Section 4.  Pay Philosophy .............................................................................................................. 29 

Section 5.  Plan Maintenance .......................................................................................................... 30 

Section 6.  Eligibility for Salary Advancement ................................................................................. 30 

Attachment E

364 of 426



   

4 
 

Section 7.  Merit Ranges ................................................................................................................ 31 

Section 8.   Compaction Rule .......................................................................................................... 32 

Section 9.  Salaries Above Market Rate – Use of "Y" Rating Method ................................................ 32 

Section 10.  Trainee Positions ......................................................................................................... 32 

Section 11.   Salary Differentials/Stipends ...................................................................................... 33 

a. (5%) Salary Differential ............................................................................................................... 33 

b. (10%) Salary Differential ............................................................................................................. 33 

c. Bi-lingual Pay ............................................................................................................................... 33 

Section 12.  Overtime..................................................................................................................... 35 

Section 13. Compensatory Time Off ............................................................................................... 35 

Section 14.  Executive Leave ............................................................................................................. 36 

Section 15. On-Call (Standby) Pay ..................................................................................................... 36 

Section 16.  Call Back Pay ................................................................................................................. 36 

Section 17.    Additional Approved Increases in Compensation and Changes to the Salary and Classification 
Plans  ...................................................................................................................................... 37 

Section 18.  The Provisions of This Plan Shall Be Operative on the Date of Its Adoption. ......................... 37 

ADDENDUM: ................................................................................................................................................ 37 

1. HOURLY RANGE TABLES ................................................................................................. 37 

2. ASSOCIATION RANGE TABLES ......................................................................................... 37 

3. MANAGEMENT/CONFIDENTIAL RANGE TABLES .............................................................. 37 

4. SALARY SCHEDULES ....................................................................................................... 37 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Attachment E

365 of 426



   

5 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PART I 

THE FRINGE BENEFITS  
PLAN 

  

Attachment E

366 of 426



   

6 
 

PART I – THE FRINGE BENEFIT PLAN 
 
 

Section 1.  Purpose 
 

This Exhibit to Resolution No. 15-20 is enacted pursuant to Section 2.04.070 of the Cudahy 
Municipal Code to provide for the fringe benefits of City officers and employees.    
 
The City of Cudahy has established a number of benefit programs for its eligible employees.  This 
Plan does not restate all of the features of these benefit programs.  The purpose of this Plan is 
to identify the coverage amounts, costs and limitations of specific benefits as applied and 
approved by the City Council for specific employee groups. Additional terms, conditions, and 
limitations regarding program eligibility and benefit entitlement are included in official plan 
documents, which, notwithstanding the foregoing, shall control in determining coverage 
amounts, costs and limitations of specific benefits.  Additional administrative guidelines may 
also be found in the City’s Personnel Rules, and other terms and conditions of employment 
within the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Memoranda of Understanding.  The Fringe Benefit 
and Salary Plan shall not change the nature of any employee’s status as an at-will employee. 
 

 

Section 2.  Applicability 
 

This exhibit defines the various benefits provided to City officers and employees.  Each category 
covered herein indicates the specific group and/or classification of employee for which the 
benefit applies (e.g. Appointed Officials, Management/Confidential Employees, and 
Miscellaneous Employees).   
 
Hourly employees shall not be entitled to any City benefits except as otherwise provided herein, 
and defined specifically under Section 23 below.   
 
City employees with employment agreements shall only be entitled to those benefits and 
salary amounts identified in their individual employment agreements.  The Fringe Benefits 
and Salary Plan identifies benefits and salaries of employees under employment agreements 
with the City for administrative convenience purposes only, and the Plan shall not 
supersede any employment agreement provisions or control the benefits and salary 
provided to employees with employment agreements with the City. To the extent that any 
benefits described herein conflict with the applicable employment agreement, and as the 
employment agreements and memorandums of understanding may be amended from time 
to time, the employment agreement controls.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment E

367 of 426



   

7 
 

Section 3.  Holidays  
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
 
The City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager shall be entitled to the same holidays that 
Management/Confidential employees receive, unless changed by an amendment to this 
Resolution by the City Council.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits 
and Salary Plan. 
 

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same holidays that 
Miscellaneous employees are entitled to, unless changed by an amendment to this 
Resolution by the City Council.   
 

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)1 

 
Every employee shall be entitled to the following paid holidays each year and such other as 
may be designated by action of the City Council: 

1. New Year’s Day – January 1st 
2. Martin Luther King Jr. Day - The third Monday in January  
3. President’s Day - The third Monday in February  
4. Memorial Day - The last Monday in May 
5. Independence Day - July 4th 
6. Labor Day - The first Monday in September  
7. Veteran’s Day –  November 11th 
8. Thanksgiving Day  
9. Christmas Eve – December 24th 
10. Christmas Day – December 25th  
11. One  Floating Holidays (Pro-rated for New Employees based on hire date) 

 

The observance of holidays, work on a holiday, and other related rules as applied to holiday 
compensation shall be administered consistent with the City’s Personnel Rules and as 
defined in the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.  
 
If the Friday after Thanksgiving or Good Friday fall on a regularly scheduled work day, it shall 
be considered a designated holiday; alternatively, if the Friday after Thanksgiving or Good 
Friday fall on the employees day off, it shall not be considered a designated holiday.  

 
                                                           
1 See Memorandum of Understanding By and Between Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association and The City 
of Cudahy, July 1, 2015-June 30, 2019 (hereinafter “CMEA MOU”), pg. 15.  

Attachment E

368 of 426



   

8 
 

Section 4.  Vacation  

 
a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 

 
The City Clerk and City Treasurer shall be entitled to the same Vacation benefits that 
Miscellaneous Employees are entitled to, including buy-back provisions unless changed by 
an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.  
 
The City Manager shall receive a maximum of eighty (80) hours of vacation leave per year, 
and may carry over unused leave from year to year, not to exceed a total of 320 hours, at 
which time accruals shall cease.   On December 31st of each year, accumulated and unused 
vacation leave may be sold back to the City at the regular hourly rate, provided that fifty 
(50) hours of accrued vacation time remains on the books. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede 
and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same Vacation benefits that 
Miscellaneous employees are entitled to including buy-back provisions, unless changed by 
an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)2 

   
1) Accrual of Vacation Leave 

 
Full-time employees shall accrue paid vacation leave on the following scheduled basis.   
 

Years of Service    Hours Per Year    Bi-Weekly Accrual  Maximum Accrual 
 
    0-5              80        3.077   hours       160 hours 
     6-10            120        4.616   hours       240 hours 
    11+                    160                      6.154   hours       320 hours 
  

2) Vacation Buy Back 
 

At the end of each calendar year, provided that fifty (50) hours of accrued vacation time 
remains on the books, employees may request pay in lieu of time off for accrued and 
unused vacation time.  Upon separation from City employment, all accrued but unused 
vacation time is eligible to be sold back at full value based on the employee’s rate of pay 
at the time of separation. 

 
 
 

                                                           
2 See CMEA MOU, pp. 8-10. 

Attachment E

369 of 426



   

9 
 

 
3) Vacation Policy 

 
Vacation Leave shall be administered consistent with the City’s Personnel Rules and as 
defined in the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.  
  

Section 5.  Sick Leave 
 

a) Appointed Officials  (Non-represented) 
 
The City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager shall be entitled to twelve (12) days of sick 
leave per year (96) hours, and may sell back at full rate of pay accrued but unused sick leave 
on the same terms and conditions as established for other employees, unless changed by an 
amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede 
and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan. 
 

b) Management/Confidential Employees  (Non-represented) 
 
Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same Sick Leave benefits that 
Miscellaneous employees are entitled to, unless changed by an amendment to this 
Resolution by the City Council.   
 

c) Miscellaneous Employees  (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)3 
 

1) Accrual of Sick Leave 
 

Employees shall be granted sick leave with pay at the rate of eight (8) hours for each full 
month of service for a total of ninety-six (96) hours per year, which shall accrue at 3.70 
hours per pay period that the employee remains active on the payroll.  Any sick leave 
accrued but unused in any year shall be accumulated to a maximum accumulation of 
480 hours.  Once this maximum accrual is reached, all additional accrual will stop until 
usage brings it below the 480.0 hour maximum.   
 
The granting of any leave of absence without pay exceeding fifteen (15) consecutive 
calendar days shall cause the employees’ normal rate of sick leave accumulation to be 
extended by the number of calendar days for which such leave of absence has been 
granted less the first fifteen (15) calendar days of such leave.  Observed holidays 
occurring during sick leave shall not be counted as a day of sick leave.   
 

2) Sick Leave Buy-Back 
 
On July 1 of each year, employees may sell back at 50% value of the maximum 96 hours 
of sick leave that they have accrued but did not utilize during the previous fiscal year.  
This is subject to the condition that an employee must leave at least 58 hours of sick 

                                                           
3 See CMEA MOU pp. 10-11. 

Attachment E

370 of 426



   

10 
 

leave on the books prior to being eligible for any sick leave buy back. Sick leave buy-back 
shall be based on the employee's actual rate of pay on June 30 of the fiscal year in which 
it was accumulated.  Employees who are eligible to sell back unused sick leave retain the 
option of maintaining all or a portion of their accumulated sick leave on the books.  
Upon retirement from employment with the city, all accumulated sick leave is eligible to 
be sold back at 50% value of the maximum of 192 hours of sick leave that they have 
accrued but did not utilize based on the employee's rate of pay at the time of 
separation. 

3) Sick Leave Policy 
 
The use of Sick Leave shall be administered consistent with the City’s Personnel Rules 
and as defined in the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.  
   

 
Section 6.  Car Allowance  
 

The City recognizes that various Appointed Officials and Department Heads may require 
extensive use of an automobile in the ordinary course of performing duties for the City.  
Accordingly, the City, as added compensation, shall provide an automobile allowance to 
the following classifications, in the amounts defined below, unless changed by an 
amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   
 

 
POSITION                                                                      MONTHLY AMOUNT 
 
City Clerk                              $350.00 
 
City Manager                           $400.00 
 
City Treasurer                           $350.00   
 
Finance Manager                                                                       $350.00   
 
Director of Community Development                                    $350.00 
 
Community Development Manager              $350.00 
 
Public Safety and Services Manager              $350.00 
 

Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede 
and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan. 
 

 
Section 7.  Reimbursement for Expenses 
 

The City will reimburse employees for reasonable and authorized expenses incurred on 
behalf of the City of Cudahy.  All travel and other business expenses must be pre-

Attachment E

371 of 426



   

11 
 

approved by the department head and the City Manager, and must follow the 
Travel/Training Expense Policy and be reported within one (1) month from the time they 
are incurred.  Every attempt will be made to issue reimbursement for approved expenses 
within two (2) weeks from the time the expense report forms received by Finance.  Failure 
to report expenses in a timely manner may jeopardize timely reimbursement for expenses 
or lead to disciplinary action.   
 
Employees shall be reimbursed for the use of their vehicle for City Business at the 
allowable IRS Standard Mileage Rate for each year.  Employees shall be reimbursed upon 
submittal of a monthly reimbursement form with Department Head approval.    

 
 
Section 8.  Health Insurance  
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
 

For the City Treasurer and City Clerk, the City shall contribute towards the coverage 
in a health insurance program available through the Public Employees’ Retirement 
System as provided under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act.   The 
City’s maximum contribution shall be consistent with the contribution paid by the 
City for Management/Confidential employees, unless changed by an amendment to 
this Resolution by the City Council.   
 
For the City Manager, the City shall contribute towards the coverage in a health 
insurance program available through the Public Employees’ Retirement System as 
provided under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act. The City’s 
maximum contribution shall be 100% of plan cost for City Manager and Dependent’s 
Coverage. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 
 
 

b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 
For Management/Confidential Employees, the City shall contribute towards the 
coverage in a health insurance program as provided by the City.  The City’s maximum 
contribution shall be consistent with the contribution paid by the City for 
Miscellaneous employees, unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by 
the City Council.   

 
 

c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)4 
 

The City shall contribute toward the coverage of employees and their dependents in 
the medical insurance program available through the Public Employee's Retirement 

                                                           
4 See CMEA MOU p. 20.  

Attachment E

372 of 426



   

12 
 

System as provided for under the Public Employee's Medical and Hospital Care Act 
as follows: 
  

 
Effective January 11, 2016, the City shall contribute an amount up to 100% of the 
coverage amount for the Kaiser Permanente plan that corresponds to the 
employee’s coverage. 
 

  

Attachment E

373 of 426



   

13 
 

Section 9.  Health Insurance for Retirees  
 

a) Vesting of Medical Benefits for Appointed Officials  (Non-represented) 
 

 Appointed officials including the City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager may be 
eligible for vesting of medical benefits under the CalPERS Plan for life-time coverage, 
including spouse and eligible dependents consistent with CalPERS rules.  The City’s 
maximum contribution shall be that amount that is offered to top management 
employees, unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

   
 Appointed officials shall vest with life-time benefits for Dental Insurance and Vision 

Insurance upon the fifth anniversary of continuous service with the City. The City’s 
maximum contribution shall be that amount that is offered to top management 
employees,   unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
 
b) Vesting of Medical Benefits for Management/Confidential Employees (Non-

represented) 
 
 Management/Confidential Employees may be eligible for vesting of medical benefits 

under the CalPERS Plan for life-time coverage, including spouse and eligible 
dependents consistent with CalPERS rules and upon retirement from the City of 
Cudahy.  The City’s maximum contribution shall be that amount that is offered to 
Miscellaneous employees, unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by 
the City Council.   

 
 Management/Confidential Employees shall vest with life-time benefits for Dental 

Insurance and Vision Insurance upon the fifth anniversary of continuous service with 
the City.  The City’s maximum contribution shall be that amount that is offered to 
Miscellaneous employees,   unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by 
the City Council.   

 
c) Vesting of Medical Benefits for Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous 

Employees’ Association) 
 

 Miscellaneous Employees may be eligible for vesting of medical benefits under the 
CalPERS Plan for life-time coverage, including spouse and eligible dependents 
consistent with CalPERS rules.  The City’s maximum contribution is $1,200.00 of the 
plan cost.     

 
 

  

Attachment E

374 of 426



   

14 
 

Section 10.  Life Insurance 
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented)  
 

The City Clerk and City Treasurer shall receive City paid term life insurance benefits 
that Miscellaneous employees are entitled to, unless changed by an amendment to 
this Resolution by the City Council.   
 
The City Manager shall receive City paid term life insurance policy in the amount of 
$1,000,000.00. 

 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees  (Non-represented) 
 

Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same life Insurance 
benefits that Miscellaneous employees are entitled to, unless changed by an 
amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   
 

c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)5 
 
Effective January 11, 2016, the City will provide a term life insurance policy in the 
amount of $100,000 per employee.  The premium for such insurance shall be paid by 
the City.   
 

  

                                                           
5 See CMEA MOU p. 21. 

Attachment E

375 of 426



   

15 
 

Section 11.  Disability Insurance  
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
 

The City Manager, City Clerk, and City Treasurer shall receive a City paid Long Term 
Disability policy, unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City 
Council.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 
 

b) Management/Confidential Employees  (Non-represented) 
  

Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same Disability 
Insurance benefits that miscellaneous employees are entitled to, unless changed by 
an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)6 
 

The City will provide a sixty (60) day Long Term Disability policy.  100% of the 
premium coverage for such insurance shall be paid by the City.   
 

  

                                                           
6 See CMEA MOU, p. 21. 

Attachment E

376 of 426



   

16 
 

Section 12.  Dental Insurance  
 
a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 

 
For the City Clerk and City Treasurer, the City shall contribute towards the coverage in a 
dental insurance program as provided by the City.  The City’s maximum contribution shall be 
consistent with the contribution paid by the City for Management/Confidential employees,   
unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   
 
For the City Manager, the City shall contribute 100% towards the cost of the dental 
insurance plan as provided by the City for employee and eligible dependents.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede 
and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 

For Management/Confidential Employees, the City shall contribute towards the coverage in 
a dental insurance program as provided by the City.  The City’s maximum contribution shall 
be consistent with the contribution paid by the City for Miscellaneous employees,   unless 
changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)7 

 
The City shall offer a dental plan for employees and their dependents. The City will 
contribute towards the purchase of said dental coverage if the employee elects coverage as 
follows: 

 
 

Effective January 11, 2016, the City shall contribute an amount up to the average amount of the 
dental plans available that corresponds to the employee’s coverage. 

  

                                                           
7 See CMEA MOU, pp. 20-21. 

Attachment E

377 of 426



   

17 
 

Section 13.  Vision Insurance 
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
 
For the City Treasurer and City Clerk, the City shall contribute towards the coverage in a 
vision   insurance program as provided by the City.  The City’s maximum contribution shall 
be consistent with the contribution paid by the City for Management/Confidential 
employees, unless changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   
 
For the City Manager, the City shall contribute 100% towards the cost of the vision 
insurance plan as provided by the City for employee and eligible dependents.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede 
and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe 
Benefits and Salary Plan. 
 

b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 
For Management/Confidential Employees, the City shall contribute towards the coverage in 
a vision   insurance program as provided by the City.  The City’s maximum contribution shall 
be consistent with the contribution paid by the City for Miscellaneous employees,   unless 
changed by an amendment to this Resolution by the City Council.   

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)8 
 

For Miscellaneous Employees,  the City shall offer vision care insurance for employees and 
their dependents. The City shall contribute towards the coverage in a vision insurance 
program as provided by the City.   Effective January 11, 2016, the City shall contribute 100% 
of the coverage amount that corresponds to the employee’s coverage.     

 
  

                                                           
8 See CMEA MOU, p. 21.  

Attachment E

378 of 426



   

18 
 

Section 14.  Deferred Compensation (457 or 401a) Plan 
 
a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 

 
The City does not make a contribution to said Plan on behalf of employees.  
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
The City does not make a contribution to said Plan on behalf of employees.   

 
c) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association) 

 
The City does not make a contribution to said Plan on behalf of employees.   

 
  

Attachment E

379 of 426



   

19 
 

Section 15.  Retirement Contribution  
 
Every full-time employee shall participate in the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(CalPERS) plan as adopted by the City Council, as well as part-time classes that are not formally 
excluded via the City’s CalPERS contract.   Hourly classes that are excluded via the City’s CalPERS 
contract shall not be enrolled in the plan.  Participation in the retirement plan continues until 
the employee terminates employment with the City for any reason, and shall then cease under 
the terms of said plan.  An employee is vested after five (5) years and may be eligible for 
benefits from the CalPERS system.  
 
a) First Tier Retirement Formula (“Classic Members”):   

Effective July 1, 2008, the City amended the CalPERS contract to provide the benefit knows 
as 2.7% at 55 retirement formula.   

1) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)9 

For unit members covered under the 2.7% at 55 retirement formula, who are defined as 
“classic members” under the Public Employees Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) (i.e. not 
defined as “new members” under Gov. Code section 7522.04(f): 

Effective January 11, 2016 - Classic members shall pay 3% of “compensation earnable” 
as defined in Gov. Code section 20636, representing the members’ employee’s 
contribution to CalPERS.  Effective July 1, 2016 – Classic members shall pay an additional 
3% for a total of 6% of “compensation earnable” as defined in Gov. Code section 20636, 
representing the members’ employee’s contribution to CalPERS.   
 
Effective July 1, 2017 – Classic members shall pay an additional 2% for a total of 8% of 
“compensation earnable” as defined in Gov. Code section 20636, representing the 
members’ employee’s contribution to CalPERS. 
 

b) Second Tier Retirement Formula (“Classic Members”):  

Effective October 16, 2011, the benefit known as 2% @ 60 retirement formula shall apply to 
employees hired or who become eligible for enrollment in the CalPERS Retirement Plan on 
or after the effective date of the City’s contract amendment with CalPERS to implement this 
benefit. For unit members covered under this 2% at 60 retirement formula, who are defined 
as “classic members” under the PEPRA (i.e. not defined as “new members” under Gov. Code 
section 7522.04(f)), the City will only contribute the normal employer contribution, and the 
employee is responsible for paying the entire employee’s contribution rate of 7% of 
“compensation earnable” as defined in Gov. Code section 20636.      

 

 

 

 

                                                           
9 See CMEA MOU, pp. 21-22.  

Attachment E

380 of 426



   

20 
 

c) Third Tier Retirement Formula (“New Members”): Effective January 1, 2013, in 
accordance with the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) and Gov. Code section 
7522.30, new employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 shall be enrolled in the benefit 
known as 2% @ 62 retirement formula.  The City will only contribute the normal employer 
contribution, and the employee is responsible for paying the employee contribution of  50% 
of the total normal cost, as defined by CalPERS.   

 
 

 
  

Attachment E

381 of 426



   

21 
 

Section 16.  Severance Allowance 
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
  

For Appointed Officials, the City shall provide any specified severance allowance in 
accordance with the agreed upon terms of employment addressed in individual 
employment contracts.   

 
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
For Management/Confidential employees, the City shall provide any specified severance 
allowance in accordance with the agreed upon terms of employment addressed in 
individual employment contracts.   

 

 
Section 17.  Relocation Allowance 

 
a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 

 
Relocation allowance may be provided within individual employment contracts, subject to 
approval by the City Council.    

 
 

   
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 

Relocation allowance may be provided within individual employment contracts, subject to 
approval by the City Council.    

 
  

Attachment E

382 of 426



   

22 
 

Section 18.  Uniform Allowance 
 

a. Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)10 
 

The City shall purchase uniforms for designated employees as budgeted, but not to 
exceed $500/year. 

 
Section 19.  Cell Phone Stipend  
 

a. Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)11 

 
Employees who are not issued cell phones by the City and use their personal cell phones 
for minimal work-related use are eligible to receive a monthly stipend in the amount of 
$20.  Employees who believe they are eligible to receive the stipend shall make a request 
to the City Manager for the stipend.  The City Manager or designee shall then decide 
whether the employee is eligible for the stipend.   
 
The following City positions are issued cell phones by the City, and employees holding 
these positions are not eligible to receive the cell phone stipend: Maintenance Leader, 
Maintenance Supervisor, and Code Enforcement Officer. 

 
Section 20.  Bereavement Leave 

 
The City shall provide bereavement leave to all full-time Appointed Officials, 
Management/Confidential Employees, and Miscellaneous employees12.     
 
Regular full-time employees are entitled to up to three (3) working days of leave, with pay, upon 
the death of an immediate family member, calculated at regular base rate, to arrange and 
attend the funeral.   
 
The City shall administer the provisions of this benefit as defined in the Personnel Rules and the 
City of Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.  Management/Confidential 
Employees and Appointed Officials shall follow the same provisions and rules as provided to 
Miscellaneous employees for Bereavement Leave.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits and 
Salary Plan. 
 
 

  

                                                           
10 See CMEA MOU, p. 24.  
11 See CMEA MOU, p. 25.  
12 See CMEA MOU, p. 12.  

Attachment E

383 of 426



   

23 
 

Section 21.  Miscellaneous Leaves of Absence 
 

The City shall provide leaves of absence policies for the following categories: 
 

a) Paid Bone Marrow or Organ Donor Leave 
b) Paid Time Off for Jury Duty/Witness Duty 
c) Time Off to Vote 
d) Family and Medical Leave (FMLA)/California Family Rights Leave (CFRA) 
e) Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL) 
f) Work Related Disability Leave 
g) Medical Disability Leave 
h) Industrial Leave 
i) Military Duty Leave 
j) Military Family Leave 
k) Spousal/Registered Domestic Partner Military Leave 
l) School Activities and School Visits Leave 
m) Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault and Other Crimes Leave 
n) Volunteer Civil Service Leave 
o) Literacy Assistance Leave 
p) Personal Leave/  

 
The City’s personnel rules shall serve as the official policy related to eligibility and benefits for 
the above stated leaves.  It is the intent of the City to comply with all state and federal laws 
related to leaves, and to the extent that state and federal laws provide a greater benefit, the 
City shall comply and provide such benefits to eligible employees.     
 
Management/Confidential Employees and Appointed Officials shall follow the same provisions 
and rules as provided to Miscellaneous employees for under the sectionLeave of Absence 
Without Pay.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits and 
Salary Plan. 
  
 

  

Attachment E

384 of 426



   

24 
 

Section 22.  Education Reimbursement 
 
a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 

 
The City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager shall be entitled to education 
reimbursement on the same terms and conditions as established for 
Management/Confidential employees. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits 
and Salary Plan. 
 

b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 

The City shall reimburse Management/Confidential Employees for the cost of books and 
tuition for courses taken at any State College, State University, Community College or an 
approved accredited private college or university as approved by the City Manager. 

 
c)  Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)13 

 
The City will reimburse employees for 100% of the cost of books, materials, parking and 
tuition up to a maximum reimbursement equivalent to a part-time Cal State tuition per 
fiscal year for courses taken at any state college, state university, private university or 
community college, not to exceed $5,000 per employee per year.  Courses must be related 
to the job, to a potential promotional position, or to general educational requirements as 
approved by the City Manager upon recommendation of the Department Head. The City 
Manager or designee must approve all courses in advance in order for the employee to be 
eligible for the reimbursement. 
 
 
The City shall administer the terms of this provision as further defined under the Education 
Incentive section of the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.   

 
 

Section 23.  Educational Seminars 

a.   Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)14 

Employees wishing to further their education through short-term courses or one-day 
seminars at City expense may do so but only with written Department Head approval. The 
City shall administer the terms of this provision as further defined under the Education 
Seminars section of the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU. 

 
 

                                                           
13 See CMEA MOU, p. 22. 
14 See CMEA MOU, p. 23.  

Attachment E

385 of 426



   

25 
 

Section 24.   The Extension of Benefits to Other Classifications 
 

a) Appointed Officials (Non-represented) 
 
The fringe benefits set forth herein are minimum benefits; to the extent greater benefits 
are extended to other employees of the City, the City Clerk, City Treasurer and City 
Manager shall be entitled to such benefits. All provisions of the Cudahy Municipal Code, 
any Memorandum of Understanding with represented employees of the City, and the City’s 
Personnel Rules that relate to fringe benefits as those provisions now exist, or hereinafter 
may be amended, shall apply to the City Clerk, City Treasurer, and City Manager in like 
manner as they apply to other employees of City. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of benefits/salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits 
and Salary Plan.  

  
b) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
All Management/Confidential employees are entitled to and shall enjoy the specific fringe 
benefits as described and defined within each benefit provision.    
 
Except as otherwise stated within any section of the Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan, all 
Management/Confidential employees are exempt from the City’s Personnel Rules.  All 
Management/Confidential employees are at-will employees. 
 

Section 25.   Hourly Employees 
 

a) Eligibility for Benefits 
 

Hourly employees shall not be entitled to any City benefits except as otherwise provided 
herein.   

 
b) Paid Sick Leave Accrual 
 

Hourly employees, including temporary, extra help, part-time, and seasonal employees 
who work 30 or more days within a year from when employment commences, shall be 
entitled to 24 hours of sick leave per fiscal year, effective July 1, 2015, and employees 
shall receive subsequent annual sick leave accruals of 24 hours added to their leave bank 
in January of each calendar year.  Sick leave must be used in a minimum of 2 hour 
increments.  Unused sick leave under this program may be carried over to the following 
year not to exceed an accrual cap of six (6) days/forty-eight (48) hours of sick leave.  An 
employee may use no more than twenty-four (24) hours in any one year.  Employees are 
entitled to request and use accrued paid sick days beginning on the 90th day of 
employment.  The rate of pay shall be at the employee’s regular hourly wage.   

 
 
 
 

Attachment E

386 of 426



   

26 
 

c) FICA Alternative Plan  
 

Hourly employees shall be entitled to receive the City’s 3.75% FICA alternative plan 
contribution in lieu of Social Security and/or participation in CalPERS.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment E

387 of 426



   

27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II 
 

THE SALARY PLAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Attachment E

388 of 426



   

28 
 

PART II - THE SALARY PLAN 
 

Section 1.  Purpose 
 
This Exhibit to Resolution No. 15-20 is enacted pursuant to Section 2.04.070(2) of the Cudahy Municipal 
Code to provide for the compensation of City officers and employees and to conform to the principle of 
equal pay for equal work.    Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms of individual employment 
agreements shall control over the compensation amounts described in this Salary Plan when 
determining the salary of individual employees under contract with the City. 
 
 

Section 2.  The Classification Plan 
 
The Classification Plan includes the allocation of class titles to salary ranges for City officers and 
employees under one Plan in which all positions substantially similar with respect to duties, authority, 
responsibility and working conditions are included within the same class, and that the same schedules of 
compensation be made to apply with equity under the working conditions to all positions in the same 
class. 
 
The Classification Plan further includes the allocation of class titles to salary ranges for those employees 
which are designated as non-represented Management/Confidential employees who are exempt from 
the classified service.  These exempt classes consist of persons appointed by the City Council, including 
the City Manager, City Clerk, and City Treasurer, and persons appointed by the City Manager, including 
department heads or designees, that serve in an "at will" capacity subject to the terms and conditions of 
an employment agreement, and are exempt from the classified service.  
 
Non-classified positions are entitled to no more than the same benefits as provided to classified 
employees in a similar position and level in the organization. The Classification Plan as of the date of 
adoption of this Plan is hereby established as set forth in the addendum, referred to as the Salary 
Schedule, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The Classification Plan shall 
not change the nature of any employee’s status as an at-will employee. 
 
  

Attachment E

389 of 426



   

29 
 

Section 3.  Basic Compensation Plan 
 

The basic compensation plan for City officers and employees, as of the date of adoption of this 
Plan is hereby established as set forth in the Addendum, including the following: 

 
1) Hourly Range Table 
 
2) Association Range Table 
 
3) Management/Confidential Range Table 

 
4) Salary Schedule 

The Salary Plan shall be referred to as the Salary Schedule which incorporates the allocation of 
ranges (defined in the range tables) to classifications, which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.   
 
Range tables for the Cudahy Municipal Employees’ Association include  steps with 
approximately 2.5% between steps.   
 
Range tables for Appointed Officials (City Clerk, City Treasurer, and City Manager) have one 
step (flat rate).  
 
Range tables for Management/Confidential include ten (10) steps with approximately 2.5% 
between steps.  
 
Range tables for Hourly employees consist of one (1) to three (3) steps. 
 
 

Section 4.  Pay Philosophy 
 

The City Council establishes a pay philosophy that the base pay of all positions shall be ideally 
set at the median pay provided by comparable cities of similar size, budget, staff, and 
geographic area, based on the City’s financial ability to pay.    
 
 

  

Attachment E

390 of 426



   

30 
 

Section 5.  Plan Maintenance 
 

Increases to the Range tables and applied to the Salary Schedule are adopted and approved by 
the City Council via Resolution to amend the Fringe Benefit and Salary Plan.   
 
Such recommended increases are negotiated between the City and the Cudahy Miscellaneous 
Employees’ Association.  The City Council may further take appropriate action to extend such 
increases to unrepresented Management/Confidential Employees, Appointed Officials including 
the City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager, and positions appointed by the City Manager. 
 
In addition to negotiated increases, the City may take steps to maintain the Salary Plan by 
conducting regularly scheduled salary reviews and/or intermittent salary reviews as determined 
by changes in the labor market, and the need to compete for talent and/or retain current 
employees.   
 
 

Section 6.  Eligibility for Salary Advancement 
 

a) Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 
 

Management/Confidential employees may receive the same considerations for salary 
advancement as provided to Miscellaneous Employees, at the City Manager’s discretion.  

 
b) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)15 
 

Salary step increases shall be considered on a merit basis only, and at prescribed times 
as defined in the Personnel Rules and the Cudahy Municipal Employees’ Association 
MOU.   
 
Any employee receiving a promotion shall receive a salary increase consistent with the 
Personnel Rules and the Cudahy Municipal Employees’ Association MOU.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           
15 See CMEA MOU, pp. 5-6.  

Attachment E

391 of 426



   

31 
 

 
 

Section 7.  Merit Ranges 

 
a) Appointed Officials and Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
Appointed City Officials including the City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager, as well as non-
represented Management/Confidential employees who serve in an at-will capacity and are 
exempt from the classified service, may, subject to the terms and conditions set forth below, be 
eligible to have his/her salary increased to a maximum of fifteen percent beyond the regularly 
assigned top step of his/her salary range or salary set forth in an existing contract.   The City 
Manager shall have administrative authority to assign, create and maintain the merit range (pay 
band) to implement the provisions of this Section.    
 
Such increase shall be subject to documentation of the eligible employee’s outstanding 
performance, based on performance and achievement of previously defined goals.  The City 
Manager shall solely determine placement within the merit range based on the employee’s 
performance.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, with regard to increases for the City Manager 
and other Officials appointed by the City Council, the City Council shall determine placement 
within the merit range based on the employee’s performance, subject to the Appointed 
Official’s employment agreement, if any.   

The continuation of increases pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall not be automatic, 
and failure to sustain “outstanding performance” shall cause the employee’s pay to revert to the 
regularly assigned step for his/her classification.  An employee who fails to sustain “outstanding 
performance” shall have their compensation reduced to the “regular range”, in accordance with 
this section, and at the City Manager’s discretion for Management/Confidential classes, and the 
City Council’s discretion for Appointed Officials.  Salary for Appointed Officials/ 
Management/Confidential employees who have an employment agreement with the City shall 
not be modified prior to an amendment to his/her employment agreement, unless the 
agreement permits the increase or decrease to be handled administratively.   

The regular salary range shall constitute the regularly defined Steps in the Salary Range (A-J).  
The “merit range” shall constitute a “pay band” with a minimum rate set one dollar above the 
maximum of the “regular salary range” and the maximum set at an amount not to exceed 
fifteen percent beyond the regularly assigned top step of the salary range.  The “pay band” shall 
be added to the Salary Schedule for the assigned non-represented Management/Confidential 
classifications and Appointed Officials when the increase is recommended by the City Manager 
or City Council.   
 
In no case shall an employee receive additional merit compensation above the designated 
“merit range” as defined herein.  
 
Eligibility for additional compensation granted to all employees as part of changes authorized by 
the City Council shall not be adversely affected by the employee’s status in steps granted 
beyond the regularly assigned step pursuant to the provisions of this Section.  Salaries granted 
pursuant to this provision shall be reported to PERS as compensation earned. 

Attachment E

392 of 426



   

32 
 

 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall supersede and 
control over any description of salary that may be contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary 
Plan 
  
b) Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association) 

  
As provided in the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU, employees may be 
eligible for merit longevity compensation as continuing incentive to career employees upon 
achieving the “J” step and completing ten continuous years of service.  Employees may be 
eligible for a 5% stipend above their base pay rate , and after twenty (20) years, the stipend shall 
increase to a total of  7.5% above the base pay rate.  Such payment shall be granted with the 
approval of the city Manager  to employees who continue to “Exceed Standards” as evidenced 
by the performance rating of such employee, which is defined as a comprehensive rating at or 
above the middle column of the current reporting form, or the equivalent rating on any revised 
reporting form.   Merit Longevity may be removed by the City Manager when the employee’s 
performance does not merit such additional compensation.   The provisions of this section shall 
be administered in accordance with the specific language in the Cudahy Miscellaneous 
Employees’ Association MOU.  
 
 

Section 8.   Compaction Rule 
 

The top step of the salary range of any Management/Confidential classification shall be a 
minimum of two steps (approximately ten percent) above the top step of the closest 
subordinate classification, with the exception of those Management/Confidential classifications 
supervising specialized classifications which are highly compensated due to labor market 
conditions. In the case of highly compensated positions due to labor market conditions, 
employees may directly supervise a subordinate classification where the maximum salary range 
exceeds the supervisory class without the two step minimum (approximately ten percent).  
Subordinate classification shall be defined as any position classification in which there are 
employees who are supervised by the Management/Confidential employee.  

 
 

Section 9.  Salaries Above Market Rate – Use of "Y" Rating Method 
 

The City Manager has the authority to implement a “Y” rating for employees whose range is 
found to exceed the market rate based on a salary survey.   The employee in this case shall 
receive no increase in salary unless the maximum salary established by this Plan for their 
classifications exceeds the amount of their "Y" rate.  

 
 

Section 10.  Trainee Positions 
 

The City Manager has the authority to establish a Trainee class for any class in the system.  The 
salary range for Trainee classes shall be established with a salary range starting fifteen percent 
(15%) below the first step of the regular position and ending five percent (5%) below the first 

Attachment E

393 of 426



   

33 
 

step of the regular position.   Employees who successfully complete the training program and 
meet the criteria for the higher level class, may be reclassified to the higher level class upon 
approval by the City Manager.   
 

Section 11.   Salary Differentials/Stipends  
 
Exceptions shall be made to Sections 2 and 3 of this Plan as follows:  
 

a. (5%) Salary Differential  
 
After investigation and approval by the City Manager, a 5% Salary Differential shall be  
assigned to persons found to possess as a regular assignment such additional duties and 
responsibilities or whose positions entail certain hazards as to warrant additional 
compensation, which additional salary shall be limited to the following:  

 
No current provisions  
 

b. (10%) Salary Differential  
 
After investigation and approval by the City Manager, a 10% Salary Differential shall be  
assigned to persons found to possess as a regular assignment such additional duties and 
responsibilities or whose positions entail certain hazards as to warrant additional 
compensation, which additional salary shall be limited to the following:  

 
 
         No current provisions 

 
c. Bi-lingual Pay 

 
1. Appointed Officials  (Non-represented) 

 
The City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Manager shall be entitled to the same 
compensation as provided to Management/Confidential employees, which shall 
be provided as a stipend rather than incorporated into base pay, when the 
positions have been designated as bi-lingual positions.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, provisions of an employment agreement shall 
supersede and control over any description of benefits/salary that may be 
contained in this Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan. 

 
2. Management/Confidential Employees (Non-represented) 

 
Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to the same 
compensation as provided to Miscellaneous employees, which shall be provided 
as a stipend rather than incorporated into base pay, when the positions have 
been designated as bi-lingual positions.    

 

Attachment E

394 of 426



   

34 
 

3. Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association)16 
 
Approved and certified employees shall be compensated with a bilingual pay 
stipend  in the amount of $75.00 per month for oral translation duties, and 
$125.00 per month for oral and written translations.   
The provisions of this section shall be administered in accordance with the 
specific language in the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.  
 

 
 

d. Temporary Upgrade – Acting Capacity   
 

1. Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees' Association)17 

 
 

An employee who has been designated by the City to serve in an acting capacity for 
thirty (30) consecutive work days or more shall receive Step A of the pay range for the 
classification in which the employee is performing active duties, or  a stipend of 5% 
above the base pay, whichever is greater.  Service in an acting capacity shall not be used 
as a basis for, or in support of, a request for reclassification.   The City Manager or 
designee may determine that a position filled pursuant to an acting assignment shall be 
filled based on a competitive process to afford an equal opportunity for 
internal/external candidates.  

 

e. Temporary Upgrade – Work Out of Class   

1.  Miscellaneous Employees (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees' Association)18 

The City may temporarily assign employees to work out of classification.  The selection 
of employees for an out-of-classification assignment shall be at the discretion of the City 
Manager or designee.  A temporary out-of-class stipend of  5% above the employee’s 
base pay shall be authorized with advance approval by the Department Head, upon 
consultation and approval from the City Manager or designee  when an employee is 
designated and scheduled to work in an out- of- class assignment.  Paid holidays shall be 
considered as days actually worked.  Other forms of authorized leave such as sick leave, 
emergency leave and vacation shall not be considered as days actually worked.  

 

                                                           
16 See CMEA MOU, p. 19.  
17 See CMEA MOU, pp. 7-8. 
18 See CMEA MOU, p. 8.  

Attachment E

395 of 426



   

35 
 

 
 

Section 12.  Overtime 
 
The City’s pay policy is intended to comply with the salary pay requirements of current State and Federal 
laws, and shall be construed in accordance with these laws and regulations.  Further, the City shall 
administer the pay practices related to overtime consistent with the City’s personnel rules and the 
Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.     
 
Non-exempt employees shall be paid for hours worked in accordance with all legal requirements.  Over-
time is calculated at one and one-half (1 ½) times the employee’s regular base rate of pay for all time 
worked over 40 hours in one workweek.  Hours paid that are not actually worked, such as holidays, sick 
days, and vacation hours do not count as hours worked when calculating weekly overtime.   
 
a. Miscellaneous Employees – (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association)19 

 
1. For all workweeks in which there is no designated holiday that falls during the workweek or 

a day in which the employee is sent home due to an unexpected City closure, or by 
management due to lack of work or an act of God, the employee shall be eligible for 
overtime pay (time and one half the employee’s regular rate of pay as that term is used in 
the Fair Labor Standards Act) for time worked over 40 hours per workweek.  In a workweek 
where there is a designated holiday that falls during the workweek or a day in which the 
employee is sent home due to an unexpected City closure, or by management due to lack 
of work or an act of God and is thus unable to work their regularly scheduled shift, and the 
employee has not taken any time off or leave during that same week (e.g. vacation, sick or 
other personal leave), the employee shall be eligible for overtime pay (time and one half) 
for time worked beyond the employee’s scheduled shift(s) during that workweek. 

 
2. When an employee is not regularly scheduled to work on Saturdays and Sundays the 

employee shall receive overtime pay (time and one-half) for all time worked on those days.  
When an employee works on a designated City holiday, the employee shall receive 
overtime pay (time and one half) for all time worked on the holiday. 

 
Exempt employees are not entitled to receive overtime pay even though they may have to work hours 
beyond their normal schedule, as work demands require.   

 
 

Section 13.  Compensatory Time Off 
 
a.     Miscellaneous Employees – (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association)20 
 

The City’s pay policy is intended to comply with the salary pay requirements of current State and 
Federal laws, and shall be construed in accordance with these laws and regulations.  Further, the 
City shall administer the pay practices related to Compensatory Time consistent with the City’s 
personnel rules and the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.     
 

                                                           
19 See CMEA MOU, pp. 16-17 
20 CMEA MOU, p. 18.  

Attachment E

396 of 426



   

36 
 

Compensatory time is an alternative method of overtime payment to non-exempt employees.  
In lieu of paying a non-exempt employee for overtime worked, employees may be granted 
compensatory time off at the overtime rate of one and one half (1 ½) for each hour of overtime 
worked.  Employees shall have the option of receiving overtime pay for any overtime worked.   
Use of earned compensatory time off must be approved in advance by the Department Head or 
designee.   The maximum accrual limit is 120 hours. 

 
 

Section 14.  Executive Leave 
 
Management/Confidential employees shall be entitled to take three (3) days (27 hours) of executive 
leave per fiscal year. The three (3) days (27 hours) may not be carried over to the next fiscal year and 
their use must have the prior permission of the City Manager.  This provision shall be administered in 
accordance with the City’s Personnel Rules and the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.   
 

 

Section 15. On-Call (Standby) Pay 
 
a.  Miscellaneous Employees – (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association)21 
 

An employee who has been instructed by their direct supervisor to stand-by is free to use this 
time for their own benefit.  Employees On-Call (Standby) shall receive two (2) hours of 
compensatory time for an assigned 24 consecutive hour shift, which will not be counted towards 
over-time calculations.   
 
The City’s pay policy is intended to comply with the salary pay requirements of current State and 
Federal laws, and shall be construed in accordance with these laws and regulations.  Further, the 
City shall administer the pay practices related to On-Call (Standby) Pay consistent with the City’s 
personnel rules and the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.     

 

Section 16.  Call Back Pay 
 
a.  Miscellaneous Employees – (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association)22 
 

Call back duty occurs when an employee is called back in to work after their regular shift has 
ended.  An employee called back to duty shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours of 
compensatory time at a rate equal to time and one-half (1 ½) the regular hourly pay rate, and 
for actual hours worked at time and one-half the regular hourly pay rate, if hours worked 
exceeds two (2).    
 

                                                           
21 CMEA MOU, p. 18. 
22 CMEA MOU, p. 19. 

Attachment E

397 of 426



   

37 
 

The City’s pay policy is intended to comply with the salary pay requirements of current State and 
Federal laws, and shall be construed in accordance with these laws and regulations.  Further, the 
City shall administer the pay practices related to Call Back Pay consistent with the City’s 
personnel rules and the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees’ Association MOU.     

 
 
Section 17.    Additional Approved Increases in Compensation and Changes to the 
Salary and Classification Plans  
 
a.   Miscellaneous Employees – (Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association)23 

All members shall receive: 
 

x  A 3% increase to their base rate effective July 1, 2015;  
x  A 3% increase to their base rate effective July 1, 2016; 
x  A 2% increase to their base rate effective July 1 2017; and  
x  A 2% increase to their base rate effective July 1, 2018. 

 
 
Section 18.  The Provisions of This Plan Shall Be Operative on the Date of Its 
Adoption. 
 

ADDENDUM:   
 

1.  HOURLY RANGE TABLES 
 

2.  ASSOCIATION RANGE TABLES 
 

3.  MANAGEMENT/CONFIDENTIAL RANGE TABLES 
 

4. SALARY SCHEDULES 
 

  

                                                           
23 CMEA MOU, p. 5. 

Attachment E

398 of 426



   

38 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HOURLY RANGE TABLES 
 

 

  

Attachment E

399 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective
January 01, 2016

Ranges A
Ranges A B C HF25 45.00

H1 10.00 10.25 10.50 HF26 50.00
H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
H3 11.56 12.19 12.86
H4 11.91 12.56 13.25
H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
H6 13.35 13.92 14.60
H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
H8 14.89 15.89 16.85
H9 17.20 17.60 18.00

H10 15.40 16.22 18.44
H11 18.20 18.60 19.00
H12 18.85 19.86 21.18

H10
H7
H4
H12

HF25
HF26

H5
H8
H2
H5
H6

Planning Technician H7
H1
H2

Sr. Recreation Leader H3
Recreation Leader

Clerk Typist
Code Enforcement Officer
Maintenance Aide
Maintenance Worker

Flat Rates

Account Clerk (B)
Administrative Aide

Municipal Enforcement Ofc.

Recreation Aide

Administrative Intern
Administrative Assistant
Building Inspector
CDBG Coordinator

Hourly Steps

Attachment E

400 of 426



   

39 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ASSOCIATION RANGE TABLES 

  

Attachment E

401 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective

         July 1, 2015

              Association
Steps

Ranges A B C D E F G H I J
A1 2899 2972 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3447 3533 3621
A2 3039 3114 3192 3272 3354 3438 3524 3612 3702 3795
A3 3190 3270 3351 3435 3521 3609 3699 3792 3887 3984
A4 3344 3428 3514 3602 3692 3784 3878 3975 4075 4177
A5 3508 3596 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381
A6 3684 3776 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601
A7 3717 3810 3905 4003 4103 4206 4311 4419 4529 4642
A8 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067

A10 4260 4367 4476 4588 4702 4820 4940 5064 5190 5320
A11 4472 4584 4699 4816 4937 5060 5186 5316 5449 5585
A12 4530 4643 4759 4878 5000 5125 5253 5385 5519 5657
A13 4692 4809 4929 5052 5179 5308 5441 5577 5716 5859
A14 4923 5046 5173 5302 5435 5570 5710 5852 5999 6149
A15 5165 5295 5427 5563 5702 5844 5990 6140 6294 6451
A16 5419 5554 5693 5835 5981 6131 6284 6441 6602 6767
A17 5687 5829 5975 6124 6277 6434 6595 6760 6929 7102
A18 5966 6115 6268 6424 6585 6750 6918 7091 7269 7450
A19 6259 6416 6576 6741 6909 7082 7259 7440 7626 7817
A20 6569 6734 6902 7074 7251 7433 7618 7809 8004 8204
A21 6894 7066 7243 7424 7609 7800 7995 8195 8399 8609
A22 7235 7416 7601 7791 7986 8185 8390 8600 8815 9035
A23 7592 7782 7976 8176 8380 8590 8805 9025 9250 9482
A24 7969 8168 8373 8582 8796 9016 9242 9473 9710 9952

Attachment E

402 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective

         July 1, 2016

Ranges A B C D E F G H I J
A1 2986 3061 3138 3216 3296 3379 3463 3550 3639 3730
A2 3130 3208 3288 3370 3455 3541 3629 3720 3813 3909
A3 3286 3368 3452 3538 3627 3717 3810 3906 4003 4103
A4 3445 3531 3619 3710 3802 3897 3995 4095 4197 4302
A5 3613 3704 3796 3891 3989 4088 4190 4295 4403 4513
A6 3795 3890 3987 4087 4189 4294 4401 4511 4624 4739
A7 3829 3925 4023 4123 4226 4332 4440 4551 4665 4782
A8 3983 4082 4184 4289 4396 4506 4619 4734 4852 4974
A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219

A10 4388 4498 4610 4725 4843 4964 5089 5216 5346 5480
A11 4606 4722 4840 4961 5085 5212 5342 5476 5612 5753
A12 4666 4782 4902 5025 5150 5279 5411 5546 5685 5827
A13 4832 4953 5077 5204 5334 5467 5604 5744 5888 6035
A14 5071 5198 5328 5461 5598 5737 5881 6028 6179 6333
A15 5320 5453 5590 5730 5873 6020 6170 6324 6482 6644
A16 5581 5721 5864 6011 6161 6315 6473 6635 6800 6970
A17 5857 6004 6154 6308 6465 6627 6793 6962 7136 7315
A18 6145 6298 6456 6617 6783 6952 7126 7304 7487 7674
A19 6447 6608 6773 6943 7116 7294 7477 7664 7855 8052
A20 6766 6936 7109 7287 7469 7656 7847 8043 8244 8450
A21 7101 7278 7460 7647 7838 8034 8235 8440 8651 8868
A22 7452 7638 7829 8025 8225 8431 8642 8858 9079 9306
A23 7820 8015 8216 8421 8632 8847 9069 9295 9528 9766
A24 8208 8413 8624 8839 9060 9287 9519 9757 10001 10251

 Association
Steps

Attachment E

403 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective

         July 1, 2017

Ranges A B C D E F G H I J
A1 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3446 3533 3621 3711 3804
A2 3192 3272 3354 3438 3524 3612 3702 3795 3889 3987
A3 3351 3435 3521 3609 3699 3792 3887 3984 4083 4185
A4 3514 3601 3692 3784 3878 3975 4075 4177 4281 4388
A5 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381 4491 4603
A6 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601 4716 4834
A7 3905 4003 4103 4206 4311 4419 4529 4642 4758 4877
A8 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829 4949 5073
A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323

A10 4476 4588 4702 4820 4940 5064 5190 5320 5453 5589
A11 4699 4816 4936 5060 5186 5316 5449 5585 5725 5868
A12 4759 4878 5000 5125 5253 5385 5519 5657 5799 5944
A13 4929 5052 5179 5308 5441 5577 5716 5859 6006 6156
A14 5173 5302 5434 5570 5709 5852 5999 6149 6302 6460
A15 5427 5562 5702 5844 5990 6140 6293 6451 6612 6777
A16 5693 5835 5981 6131 6284 6441 6602 6767 6936 7110
A17 5974 6124 6277 6434 6595 6759 6928 7102 7279 7461
A18 6268 6424 6585 6750 6918 7091 7269 7450 7636 7827
A19 6576 6740 6909 7082 7259 7440 7626 7817 8012 8213
A20 6902 7074 7251 7432 7618 7809 8004 8204 8409 8619
A21 7243 7424 7609 7800 7994 8194 8399 8609 8824 9045
A22 7601 7791 7986 8185 8390 8600 8815 9035 9261 9492
A23 7976 8176 8380 8590 8804 9024 9250 9481 9718 9961
A24 8372 8582 8796 9016 9242 9473 9709 9952 10201 10456

Steps
 Association

Attachment E

404 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective

         July 1, 2018

Ranges A B C D E F G H I J
A1 3107 3185 3264 3346 3430 3515 3603 3693 3786 3880
A2 3256 3337 3421 3506 3594 3684 3776 3870 3967 4066
A3 3418 3504 3591 3681 3773 3868 3964 4063 4165 4269
A4 3584 3674 3765 3859 3956 4055 4156 4260 4367 4476
A5 3759 3853 3950 4048 4150 4253 4360 4469 4580 4695
A6 3948 4047 4148 4252 4358 4467 4579 4693 4810 4931
A7 3983 4083 4185 4290 4397 4507 4620 4735 4853 4975
A8 4144 4247 4353 4462 4574 4688 4805 4925 5048 5175
A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430

A10 4565 4679 4796 4916 5039 5165 5294 5427 5562 5701
A11 4793 4912 5035 5161 5290 5422 5558 5697 5839 5985
A12 4854 4976 5100 5228 5358 5492 5630 5770 5915 6062
A13 5028 5153 5282 5414 5550 5688 5831 5976 6126 6279
A14 5276 5408 5543 5682 5824 5969 6119 6271 6428 6589
A15 5535 5674 5816 5961 6110 6263 6419 6580 6744 6913
A16 5807 5952 6101 6253 6410 6570 6734 6903 7075 7252
A17 6094 6246 6402 6562 6726 6895 7067 7244 7425 7610
A18 6393 6553 6717 6885 7057 7233 7414 7599 7789 7984
A19 6708 6875 7047 7223 7404 7589 7779 7973 8173 8377
A20 7040 7216 7396 7581 7771 7965 8164 8368 8577 8792
A21 7387 7572 7761 7955 8154 8358 8567 8781 9001 9226
A22 7753 7947 8145 8349 8558 8772 8991 9216 9446 9682
A23 8136 8339 8548 8761 8980 9205 9435 9671 9913 10161
A24 8540 8753 8972 9196 9426 9662 9904 10151 10405 10665

 Association
Steps

Attachment E

405 of 426



   

40 
 

 

 

 

 

 

MANAGEMENT/CONFIDENTIAL  

RANGE TABLES 

  

Attachment E

406 of 426



Compensation Schedule Effective
July 1, 2008

Ranges A B C D E F G H I J
M1 5322 5474 5591 5729 5847 6020 6171 6325 6483 6645
M2 6011 6174 6317 6472 6634 6802 6972 7144 7324 7507
M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
M4 8436 8562 8703 8852 9007 9175 9357 9548 9763 9989
M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781

Management
Steps

Attachment E

407 of 426



   

41 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SALARY SCHEDULES 
 

Attachment E

408 of 426



TITLE GROUP RATE RANGE STEP	A STEP	B STEP	C STEP	D STEP	E STEP	F STEP	G STEP	H STEP	I STEP	J

Account	Clerk	 PT HOURLY H10 15.40 16.22 18.44
Account	Clerk CMEA MONTHLY A7 3717 3810 3905 4003 4103 4206 4311 4419 4529 4642
Account	Technician CMEA MONTHLY A12 4530 4643 4759 4878 5000 5125 5253 5385 5519 5657
Administrative	Aide PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Administrative	Assistant PT HOURLY H12 18.85 19.86 21.18
Administrative	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A8 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Administrative	Clerk	I	 CMEA MONTHLY A1 2899 2972 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3447 3533 3621
Administrative	Clerk	II CMEA MONTHLY A5 3508 3596 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381
Administrative	Intern PT HOURLY H4 11.91 12.56 13.25
Assistant	Engineer	A CMEA MONTHLY A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067
Assistant	Engineer	B CMEA MONTHLY A18 5966 6115 6268 6424 6585 6750 6918 7091 7269 7450
Building	Inspector PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF25 45.00
Cashier/Receptionist CMEA MONTHLY A1 2899 2972 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3447 3533 3621
CDBG	Coordinator PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF26 50.00
City	Council	Member ELECTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 483.60
City	Clerk APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 8270
City	Manager APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 15,000
City	Treasurer	 APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 5057
Clerk	Typist PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Code	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H8 14.89 15.89 16.85
Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A8 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Community	Development	Manager		 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Department	Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A6 3684 3776 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601
Deputy	City	Clerk MONTHLY 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Director	of	Community	Services MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Director	of	Parks	&	Recreation MGMT MONTHLY M4 8436 8562 8703 8852 9007 9175 9357 9548 9763 9989
Executive	Secretary/Human	Resources		Specialist MGMT MONTHLY M2 6011 6174 6317 6472 6634 6802 6972 7144 7324 7507
Finance	Manager MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Maintenance	Aide PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Maintenance	Foreman CMEA MONTHLY A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067
Maintenance	Leader CMEA MONTHLY A6 3684 3776 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601
Maintenance	Superintendent CMEA MONTHLY A11 4472 4584 4699 4816 4937 5060 5186 5316 5449 5585
Maintenance	Worker PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Maintenance	Worker CMEA MONTHLY A3 3190 3270 3351 3435 3521 3609 3699 3792 3887 3984
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H6 13.35 13.92 14.60
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A5 3508 3596 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381
Planning	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067
Planning	Associate CMEA MONTHLY A10 4260 4367 4476 4588 4702 4820 4940 5064 5190 5320
Planning	Technician PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Public	Safety	and	Services	Manager	 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Recreation	Aide PT HOURLY H1 10.00 10.25 10.50
Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A5 3508 3596 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381
Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Recreation	Supervisor CMEA MONTHLY A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067
Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A4 3344 3428 3514 3602 3692 3784 3878 3975 4075 4177
Senior	Accountant CMEA MONTHLY A17 5687 5829 5975 6124 6277 6434 6595 6760 6929 7102
Senior	Administrative	Analyst CMEA MONTHLY A8 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Senior	Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A9 4057 4159 4263 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067
Senior	Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A6 3684 3776 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601
Senior	Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H3 11.56 12.19 12.86

CITY	OF	CUDAHY
SALARY	SCHEDULE

EFFECTIVE	DATE	MARCH	14,	2016

Attachment E

409 of 426



TITLE GROUP RATE RANGE STEP	A STEP	B STEP	C STEP	D STEP	E STEP	F STEP	G STEP	H STEP	I STEP	J

Account	Clerk	 PT HOURLY H10 15.40 16.22 18.44
Account	Clerk CMEA MONTHLY A7 3829 3925 4023 4123 4226 4332 4440 4551 4665 4782
Account	Technician CMEA MONTHLY A12 4666 4782 4902 5025 5150 5279 5411 5546 5685 5827
Administrative	Aide PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Administrative	Assistant PT HOURLY H12 18.85 19.86 21.18
Administrative	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A8 3983 4082 4184 4289 4396 4506 4619 4734 4852 4974
Administrative	Clerk	I	 CMEA MONTHLY A1 2986 3061 3138 3216 3296 3379 3463 3550 3639 3730
Administrative	Clerk	II CMEA MONTHLY A5 3613 3704 3796 3891 3989 4088 4190 4295 4403 4513
Administrative	Intern PT HOURLY H4 11.91 12.56 13.25
Assistant	Engineer	A CMEA MONTHLY A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219
Assistant	Engineer	B CMEA MONTHLY A18 6145 6298 6456 6617 6783 6952 7126 7304 7487 7674
Building	Inspector PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF25 45.00
Cashier/Receptionist CMEA MONTHLY A1 2986 3061 3138 3216 3296 3379 3463 3550 3639 3730
CDBG	Coordinator PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF26 50.00
City	Council	Member ELECTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 483.60
City	Clerk APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 8270
City	Manager APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 15,000
City	Treasurer	 APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 5057
Clerk	Typist PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Code	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H8 14.89 15.89 16.85
Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A8 3983 4082 4184 4289 4396 4506 4619 4734 4852 4974
Community	Development	Manager		 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Department	Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A6 3795 3890 3987 4087 4189 4294 4401 4511 4624 4739
Deputy	City	Clerk MONTHLY 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Director	of	Community	Services MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Director	of	Parks	&	Recreation MGMT MONTHLY M4 8436 8562 8703 8852 9007 9175 9357 9548 9763 9989
Executive	Secretary/Human	Resources		Specialist MGMT MONTHLY M2 6011 6174 6317 6472 6634 6802 6972 7144 7324 7507
Finance	Manager MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Maintenance	Aide PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Maintenance	Foreman CMEA MONTHLY A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219
Maintenance	Leader CMEA MONTHLY A6 3795 3890 3987 4087 4189 4294 4401 4511 4624 4739
Maintenance	Superintendent CMEA MONTHLY A11 4606 4722 4840 4961 5085 5212 5342 5476 5612 5753
Maintenance	Worker PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Maintenance	Worker CMEA MONTHLY A3 3286 3368 3452 3538 3627 3717 3810 3906 4003 4103
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H6 13.35 13.92 14.60
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A5 3613 3704 3796 3891 3989 4088 4190 4295 4403 4513
Planning	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219
Planning	Associate CMEA MONTHLY A10 4388 4489 4610 4725 4843 4964 5089 5216 5346 5480
Planning	Technician PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Public	Safety	and	Services	Manager	 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Recreation	Aide PT HOURLY H1 10.00 10.25 10.50
Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A5 3613 3704 3796 3891 3989 4088 4190 4295 4403 4513
Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Recreation	Supervisor CMEA MONTHLY A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219
Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A4 3445 3531 3619 3710 3802 3897 3995 4095 4197 4302
Senior	Accountant CMEA MONTHLY A17 5857 6004 6154 6308 6465 6627 6793 6962 7136 7315
Senior	Administrative	Analyst CMEA MONTHLY A8 3983 4082 4184 4289 4396 4506 4619 4734 4852 4974
Senior	Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A9 4179 4283 4390 4500 4613 4728 4846 4967 5092 5219
Senior	Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A6 3795 3890 3987 4087 4189 4294 4401 4511 4624 4739
Senior	Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H3 11.56 12.19 12.86

CITY	OF	CUDAHY
SALARY	SCHEDULE

EFFECTIVE	DATE	JULY	1,	2016

Attachment E

410 of 426



TITLE GROUP RATE RANGE STEP	A STEP	B STEP	C STEP	D STEP	E STEP	F STEP	G STEP	H STEP	I STEP	J

Account	Clerk	 PT HOURLY H10 15.40 16.22 18.44
Account	Clerk CMEA MONTHLY A7 3905 4003 4103 4206 4311 4419 4529 4642 4758 4877
Account	Technician CMEA MONTHLY A12 4759 4878 5000 5125 5253 5385 5519 5657 5799 5944
Administrative	Aide PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Administrative	Assistant PT HOURLY H12 18.85 19.86 21.18
Administrative	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A8 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829 4949 5073
Administrative	Clerk	I	 CMEA MONTHLY A1 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3446 3533 3621 3711 3804
Administrative	Clerk	II CMEA MONTHLY A5 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381 4491 4603
Administrative	Intern PT HOURLY H4 11.91 12.56 13.25
Assistant	Engineer	A CMEA MONTHLY A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323
Assistant	Engineer	B CMEA MONTHLY A18 6268 6424 6585 6750 6918 7091 7269 7450 7636 7827
Building	Inspector PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF25 45.00
Cashier/Receptionist CMEA MONTHLY A1 3046 3122 3200 3280 3362 3446 3533 3621 3711 3804
CDBG	Coordinator PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF26 50.00
City	Council	Member ELECTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 483.60
City	Clerk APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 8270
City	Manager APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 15,000
City	Treasurer	 APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 5057
Clerk	Typist PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Code	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H8 14.89 15.89 16.85
Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A8 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829 4949 5073
Community	Development	Manager		 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Department	Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A6 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601 4716 4834
Deputy	City	Clerk MONTHLY 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Director	of	Community	Services MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Director	of	Parks	&	Recreation MGMT MONTHLY M4 8436 8562 8703 8852 9007 9175 9357 9548 9763 9989
Executive	Secretary/Human	Resources		Specialist MGMT MONTHLY M2 6011 6174 6317 6472 6634 6802 6972 7144 7324 7507
Finance	Manager MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Maintenance	Aide PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Maintenance	Foreman CMEA MONTHLY A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323
Maintenance	Leader CMEA MONTHLY A6 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601 4716 4834
Maintenance	Superintendent CMEA MONTHLY A11 4699 4816 4936 5060 5186 5316 5449 5585 5725 5868
Maintenance	Worker PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Maintenance	Worker CMEA MONTHLY A3 3351 3435 3521 3609 3699 3792 3887 3984 4083 4185
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H6 13.35 13.92 14.60
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A5 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381 4491 4603
Planning	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323
Planning	Associate CMEA MONTHLY A10 4476 4588 4702 4820 4940 5064 5190 5320 5453 5589
Planning	Technician PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Public	Safety	and	Services	Manager	 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Recreation	Aide PT HOURLY H1 10.00 10.25 10.50
Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A5 3686 3778 3872 3969 4068 4170 4274 4381 4491 4603
Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Recreation	Supervisor CMEA MONTHLY A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323
Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A4 3514 3601 3692 3784 3878 3975 4075 4177 4281 4388
Senior	Accountant CMEA MONTHLY A17 5974 6124 6277 6434 6595 6759 6928 7102 7279 7461
Senior	Administrative	Analyst CMEA MONTHLY A8 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829 4949 5073
Senior	Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A9 4262 4369 4478 4590 4705 4823 4943 5067 5193 5323
Senior	Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A6 3871 3968 4067 4168 4273 4379 4489 4601 4716 4834
Senior	Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H3 11.56 12.19 12.86

CITY	OF	CUDAHY
SALARY	SCHEDULE

EFFECTIVE	DATE	JULY	1,	2017

Attachment E

411 of 426



TITLE GROUP RATE RANGE STEP	A STEP	B STEP	C STEP	D STEP	E STEP	F STEP	G STEP	H STEP	I STEP	J

Account	Clerk	 PT HOURLY H10 15.40 16.22 18.44
Account	Clerk CMEA MONTHLY A7 3983 4083 4185 4290 4397 4507 4620 4735 4853 4975
Account	Technician CMEA MONTHLY A12 4854 4976 5100 5228 5358 5492 5630 5770 5915 6062
Administrative	Aide PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Administrative	Assistant PT HOURLY H12 18.85 19.86 21.18
Administrative	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A8 4144 4247 4353 4462 4574 4688 4805 4925 5048 5175
Administrative	Clerk	I	 CMEA MONTHLY A1 3107 3185 3264 3346 3430 3515 3603 3693 3786 3880
Administrative	Clerk	II CMEA MONTHLY A5 3759 3853 3950 4048 4150 4253 4360 4469 4580 4695
Administrative	Intern PT HOURLY H4 11.91 12.56 13.25
Assistant	Engineer	A CMEA MONTHLY A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430
Assistant	Engineer	B CMEA MONTHLY A18 6393 6553 6717 6885 7057 7233 7414 7599 7789 7984
Building	Inspector PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF25 45.00
Cashier/Receptionist CMEA MONTHLY A1 3107 3185 3264 3346 3430 3515 3603 3693 3786 3880
CDBG	Coordinator PT HOURLY/FLAT	RATE HF26 50.00
City	Council	Member ELECTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 483.60
City	Clerk APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 8270
City	Manager APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 15,000
City	Treasurer	 APPOINTED MONTHLY FLAT	RATE 5057
Clerk	Typist PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Code	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H8 14.89 15.89 16.85
Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A8 4144 4247 4353 4462 4574 4688 4805 4925 5048 5175
Community	Development	Manager		 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Department	Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A6 3948 4047 4148 4252 4358 4467 4579 4693 4810 4931
Deputy	City	Clerk MONTHLY 3867 3963 4062 4164 4268 4375 4484 4596 4711 4829
Director	of	Community	Services MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Director	of	Parks	&	Recreation MGMT MONTHLY M4 8436 8562 8703 8852 9007 9175 9357 9548 9763 9989
Executive	Secretary/Human	Resources		Specialist MGMT MONTHLY M2 6011 6174 6317 6472 6634 6802 6972 7144 7324 7507
Finance	Manager MGMT MONTHLY M5 9751 9957 10181 10417 10659 10909 11151 11382 11614 11781
Maintenance	Aide PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Maintenance	Foreman CMEA MONTHLY A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430
Maintenance	Leader CMEA MONTHLY A6 3948 4047 4148 4252 4358 4467 4579 4693 4810 4931
Maintenance	Superintendent CMEA MONTHLY A11 4793 4912 5035 5161 5290 5422 5558 5697 5839 5985
Maintenance	Worker PT HOURLY H5 12.56 13.25 13.93
Maintenance	Worker CMEA MONTHLY A3 3418 3504 3591 3681 3773 3868 3694 4063 4165 4269
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer PT HOURLY H6 13.35 13.92 14.60
Municipal	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A5 3759 3853 3950 4048 4150 4253 4360 4469 4580 4695
Planning	Assistant CMEA MONTHLY A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430
Planning	Associate CMEA MONTHLY A10 4565 4679 4796 4916 5039 5165 5294 5427 5562 5701
Planning	Technician PT HOURLY H7 14.50 15.47 16.43
Public	Safety	and	Services	Manager	 MGMT MONTLY M3 7102 7279 7462 7649 7841 8037 8238 8445 8655 8871
Recreation	Aide PT HOURLY H1 10.00 10.25 10.50
Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A5 3759 3853 3950 4048 4150 4253 4360 4469 4580 4695
Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H2 10.50 11.00 11.50
Recreation	Supervisor CMEA MONTHLY A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430
Secretary CMEA MONTHLY A4 3584 3674 3765 3859 3956 4055 4156 4260 4367 4476
Senior	Accountant CMEA MONTHLY A17 6094 6246 6402 6562 6726 6895 7067 7244 7425 7610
Senior	Administrative	Analyst CMEA MONTHLY A8 4144 4247 4353 4462 4574 4688 4805 4925 5048 5175
Senior	Code	Enforcement	Officer CMEA MONTHLY A9 4348 4456 4568 4682 4799 4919 5042 5168 5297 5430
Senior	Recreation	Coordinator CMEA MONTHLY A6 3948 4047 4148 4252 4358 4467 4579 4693 4810 4931
Senior	Recreation	Leader PT HOURLY H3 11.56 12.19 12.86

CITY	OF	CUDAHY
SALARY	SCHEDULE

EFFECTIVE	DATE	JULY	1,	2018

Attachment E

412 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16  Page 1 of 2 
    

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Date:  March 14, 2016 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  Jessica Balandran, Senior Administrative Analyst   

Subject: Adoption of a Proposed Resolution Amending the Rules to Place Items on City 
Council Agendas and the Standard Order of Business of City Council Meetings 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to adopt a proposed resolution amending the rules to place 
items on the City Council Agendas and the Standard Order of Business of the City Council 
meetings.  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On May 19, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 15-18, establishing a 

Standard of Order of Business for its meetings.  
 

2. On September 28, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 15-49, amending the 
rules to place items on City Council agendas and amending the Statndard Order of 
Business by adding an agenda item devoted to Reports Regarding Ad Hoc, Advisory, 
Standing, or Other Committee Meetings.   
 

3. On February 22, 2016, City Council approved a motion to bring forth a resolution to the 
March 14, 2016 City Council meeting, amending the Standard Order of Business 
concerning public comment.  
 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
Members of the public have expressed concerns that the late hour of the public comment for 
items not listed on the agenda, but within the City’s jurisdiction, is inhibiting public 

 

Item Number 

10J 

413 of 426



“Serving The People” "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/14/16  Page 2 of 2 
    

participation in the discussion of these items because many members of the public are not 
available to stay for the public comment that is currently held until after the Closed Session 
Announcement. The City Council shares these concerns and values the participation of 
members of the public as an important aspect of a transparent government. 

As a result of these concerns, the City Council seeks to amend the Standard Order of Business 
to enable more efficient City Council meetings and encourage participation of the public at 
such meetings. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
This resolution repeals City Council Resolutions 15-18 and 15-49.  Further, to the extent that 
any provisions of any prior resolutions of the City Council are inconsistent with the 
provisions of this resolution, they are hereby repealed. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Proposed Resolution 
B. Resolution No. 15-18 
C. Resolution No. 15-49 

414 of 426



Attachment A 
 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY AMENDING THE RULES TO PLACE ITEMS 
ON CITY COUNCIL AGENDAS AND THE STANDARD 
ORDER OF BUSINESS OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 

 
WHEREAS, on May 19, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution 15-18, 

establishing a Standard Order of Business for its meetings; and 

WHEREAS, on September 28, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution 15-
49 amending the rules to place items on the City Council agendas and amending the 
Standard Order of Business by adding an agenda item devoted to: REPORTS 
REGARDING AD HOC, ADVISORY, STANDING, OR OTHER COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council currently conducts its regular meetings on the 
second and fourth Monday of each and every month, in accordance with Ordinance 
No. ____, and section 2.04.020 of Chapter 2.04 (City Council) of Title 2 
(Administration and Personnel) of the Cudahy Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, members of the public have expressed concerns that the late 
hour of the public comment for items not listed on the agenda, but within the City’s 
jurisdiction, is inhibiting public participation in the discussion of these items because 
many members of the public are not available to stay for the public comment that is 
currently held until after the Closed Session Announcement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council shares these concerns and values the 
participation of members of the public as an important aspect of a transparent 
government; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of these concerns, the City Council seeks to amend 
the Standard Order of Business to enable more efficient City Council meetings and 
encourage participation of the public at such meetings. 

BASED UPON THE ABOVE RECITALS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE AND RESOLVE 
AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. In order to keep the number of agenda items for each City 
Council meeting at a reasonable number and in the interest of preventing agenda 
items from being tabled due to time constraints, each City Council Member may only 
place two (2) items on a City Council agenda.  Acknowledging that there may be a 
number of important or time-sensitive agenda items in excess of this restriction, the 
City Manager shall have the authority to place additional agenda items on an agenda 

415 of 426



Attachment A 
 

2 

if, in his discretion, he deems it necessary for the continued operations of the City or 
to properly conduct City business. 

SECTION 2. There shall be a section in each regular City Council meeting 
agenda entitled “Requests for Agenda Items.”  During a regular City Council meeting, 
each City Council Member may use this section as a time to propose one (1) or two 
(2) agenda items he/she wishes to place on the following regular City Council 
meeting agenda.  If a City Council Member wishes to place a third agenda item on 
the following regular City Council meeting agenda, the proposal to add of such an 
item must be approved by a majority vote of the City Council Members present at the 
meeting.  If, outside of a regular City Council meeting, a City Council Member wishes 
to place an agenda item on a future agenda, the City Council Member shall do so 
pursuant to the procedures established in Section 3 and 4 of this Resolution. 

SECTION 3. City Council Members seeking to place items on a City Council 
agenda shall first present the items to the City Manager. 

SECTION 4. Agenda items shall be presented to the City Manager at least 
fourteen (14) days prior to the City Council meeting, to allow the City Manager to 
work with the Office of the City Clerk and other City staff to make any applicable 
modifications to the agenda items and prepare the agenda. 

SECTION 5. The order of business for all regular and adjourned regular 
meetings shall be as follows: 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PRESENTATIONS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (only on items on the agenda and  only speakers that 
submitted comment cards within the first 20 minutes of the meeting will be 
permitted to speak on all items under the City Council’s jurisdiction, including 
items on the agenda and closed session items) 

CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS 

CITY MANAGER REPORT (information only) 

REPORTS REGARDING AD HOC, ADVISORY, STANDING, OR OTHER 
COMMITTEE MEETINGS (only discussed when Council members have items 
to report out otherwise this section can be removed from the agenda) 

WAIVER OF FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

416 of 426



Attachment A 
 

3 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

PUBLIC HEARING  

CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS SESSION 

COUNCIL DISCUSSION 

PUBLIC COMMENT (closed session items only) 

CLOSED SESSION 

CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT 

PUBLIC COMMENT (only for items relating to those matters under City 
Council’s jurisdiction and only speakers that submitted comment cards within the first 
20 minutes of the meeting will be permitted to speak) 

ADJOURNMENT 

Except with majority consent of the Council, items may not be taken out of 
order.  If there are no items to be considered in any section(s), that section(s) may be 
omitted from that agenda. 

SECTION 6. The order of business at special meetings shall be as follows: 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS FOR WHICH THE SPECIAL MEETING WAS 
CALLED 

ADJOURNMENT 

SECTION 7. This resolution repeals City Council Resolutions 15-18, 15-49 
and 14-30. Further, to the extent that any provisions of any prior resolutions of the 
City Council of the City of Cudahy are inconsistent with the provisions of this 
resolution, they are hereby repealed. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy at its regular meeting on this 14th day of March, 2016. 

 
     
Cristian Markovich 
Mayor 

417 of 426



Attachment A 
 

4 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Laura Valdivia  
Interim City Clerk 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 
 

I, Laura Valdivia, Interim City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that 
the foregoing Resolution No. ______ was passed and adopted by the City Council of 
the City of Cudahy, signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk at a regular 
meeting of said Council held on the 14th day of March, 2016, and that said 
Resolution was adopted by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

     
Laura Valdivia  
Interim City Clerk 

 

418 of 426



Attachment B

419 of 426



Attachment B

420 of 426



Attachment B

421 of 426



Attachment B

422 of 426



Attachment C

423 of 426



Attachment C

424 of 426



Attachment C

425 of 426



Attachment C

426 of 426


	10A -  HAT Form Amendment_Revised.pdf
	10A Attach - Resolution Cudahy SA Housing Assets Amendment to HAT2-Revised.pdf
	Secretary of the City of Cudahy
	as Housing Successor Agency
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSTAIN:
	ABSENT:
	Secretary of the City of Cudahy as Housing Successor Agency


	10B. Demands and Payroll Reports.pdf
	The City Council is requested to approve the Demands and Payroll in the amount of $870,167.98 including Cash and Investment Report by Fund for the month of January 2016.
	UBACKGROUND
	1. On December 13, 1993, Ordinance 476 was adopted and codified as Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080 indicating, "Except as otherwise provided, no warrant shall be drawn or evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time suffici...
	2. On January 2016, the following demands and payroll have been audited by the Finance Department:
	10B Attach C - 2016 Mar (Jan) Investment Report.pdf
	sheet 1

	10B. Attach D - FY2016 Cash Summary Report.pdf
	Sheet1

	10B Attach E - FY2015 Cash Summary Report.pdf
	Sheet1


	10C. LAIF 2016 01 31.pdf
	URECOMMENDATIONU
	The City Council is requested to approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for the month of January 2016 in the amount of $4,685,196.13.

	10E - Cal Recycle Resolution.pdf
	10E Attach A - CalRecycle Payment Program Reso.pdf
	Attachment A
	RESOLUTION NO.


	10F. PSA for Wendy Chung.pdf
	10F. Wendy Chung PSA Agreement 1 YEAR.pdf
	I.
	ENGAGEMENT TERMS
	1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter referred to as the “Sc...
	1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of one (1) year.  Nothing in this Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement at any time for convenience or for cause.
	2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the City Manager and the Senior Administrative Analyst (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The City Manager shall be th...
	2.2 CONSULTANT’S REPRESENTATIVES: CONSULTANT hereby designates Wendy Chung or designee, which designee CONSULTANT may assign by notifying CITY in writing, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Rep...
	2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at all reasonable times....
	2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following:
	2.5 ASSIGNMENT:  The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform ...
	2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requi...
	2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants are determined by the CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely perf...
	2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in compliance with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT’s compliance with appli...
	2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orien...
	2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and shall at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, ...
	IV.
	INDEMNIFICATION
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Scope of Services
	EXHIBIT “B”
	Approved Rate Schedule




	10G. - Fuel Creative Group.pdf
	10G Attach A - Fuel Creative Group First Amendment to Agreement PSA.pdf
	UFIRST AMENDMENT
	UTO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	(Parties:  Fuel Creative Group and City of Cudahy)
	URECITALS
	ATTACHMENT 1
	MASTER AGREEMENT
	ATTACHMENT 2
	PROPOSAL TO AUGMENT EXHIBIT “A” OF MASTER AGREEMENT
	10F Attach A - pg 1-4.pdf
	FIRST AMENDMENT
	TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	(Parties:  Fuel Creative Group and City of Cudahy)
	RECITALS
	ATTACHMENT 1
	MASTER AGREEMENT
	ATTACHMENT 2
	PROPOSAL TO AUGMENT EXHIBIT “A” OF MASTER AGREEMENT

	10G Attach A - Fuel Creative Group pg 1-3.pdf
	UFIRST AMENDMENT
	UTO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	(Parties:  Fuel Creative Group and City of Cudahy)
	URECITALS
	ATTACHMENT 1
	MASTER AGREEMENT
	ATTACHMENT 2
	PROPOSAL TO AUGMENT EXHIBIT “A” OF MASTER AGREEMENT

	10G Attach A - Fuel Creative Group pg 1-3.pdf
	FIRST AMENDMENT
	TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	(Parties:  Fuel Creative Group and City of Cudahy)
	RECITALS



	10H. Lugo Park LA Spec All Weather Turf Selection.pdf
	10H. Attachments A-F - Lugo Park LA Spec All Weather Turf....pdf
	DRAFT-CC Staff Report - Lugo Park LA Spec All Weather Turf Selection.pdf
	STAFF REPORT ATTACHMENTS.pdf
	ATTACHMENT 1.0-REQUEST FOR QUOTES WITH ALL WEATHER TURF PER CITY OF LA SPEC.pdf
	ATTACHMENT 1-REQUEST FOR QUOTES WITH ALL WEATHER TURF PER CITY OF LA SPEC.pdf
	0CUDAHY-REQUEST FOR QUOTES AND INFO FOR CITY OF LA ALL WEATHER TURF.pdf
	1Attachment 1-Site Map.pdf
	Attachment 2.1-City of LA Specs for All Weather Turf.pdf
	Attachment 2.2-City of LA Specs for All Weather Turf.pdf
	0Synthetic turf revised specification Mar 2015.pdf
	1Synthetic turf and drainage detail Mar 2015.pdf
	2Memo - Revisions to RAP Synthetic Turf Specifications Mar 2015.pdf


	ATTACHMENT 2A.0-AFE SPORTS SUBMITTAL.pdf
	ATTACHMENT 2A-AFE SPORTS SUBMITTAL.pdf
	1 Lugo DT 32 QUOTE.pdf
	2A.pdf
	2B Lugo park DT and Pro Play.pdf
	3 Golden Series _DT32.pdf
	4 2016 DT Specs .pdf
	5 DT32 ASTM.pdf
	6 PP-Sp20D (USA) rev 01-01-2015.pdf
	7 Zeofill Product Overview.pdf

	ATTACHMENT 2B.0-SHAW SPORTS TURF SUBMITTAL.pdf
	ATTACHMENT 2B-SHAW SPORTS TURF SUBMITTAL.pdf
	ATTACHMENT 2C.0-DURATURF SUBMITTAL.pdf
	ATTACHMENT 2C-DURATURF SUBMITTAL.pdf
	0. quote.pdf
	1. Desso UNI X ENG product sheet.pdf
	3. Desso Uni-X-30 US Units.pdf
	4. ASTM Testing-DESSO Uni-X -Turf-REVISED.pdf

	ATTACHMENT 2D.0-HELLAS SUBMITTAL.pdf
	ATTACHMENT 2D-HELLAS SUBMITTAL.pdf
	Total Price Form - Hellas Construciton.pdf
	Velocity XP - Thatch, Zeolite.pdf

	ATTACHMENT 3.0-JOES REPORT.pdf
	ATTACHMENT 3-JOES REPORT.pdf


	10H. Attachment H - TURF CONTRACT TO BE EXECUTED.pdf
	ARTICLE VI – NO DISCRIMINATION
	UCompliance with SB 854 RegistrationU:  This Work is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.  No prime contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public works project (submitte...
	Contractor acknowledges that under California Labor Code sections 1810 and following, 8 hours of labor constitutes a legal day’s work.  Contractor will forfeit as a penalty to City the sum of $25.00 for each worker employed in the execution of this Ag...
	Copies of the determination of the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations of the prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute this Agreement will be made available upon request from t...
	Contractor, and any subcontractor engaged by Contractor, must pay not less than the specified prevailing rate of per diem wages to all workers employed in the execution of the contract.  (Labor Code § 1774.)  Contractor is responsible for compliance w...
	Contractor must comply with all provisions of Labor Code section 1775.  Under Section 1775, Contractor may forfeit as a penalty to City up to $50.00 for each worker employed in the execution of the Contract by Contractor or any subcontractor for each ...
	Nothing in this Contract prevents Contractor or any subcontractor from employing properly registered apprentices in the execution of the Contract.  Contractor is responsible for compliance with Labor Code section 1777.5 for all apprenticeable occupati...
	ARTICLE IX - INDEMNITY
	UWarranty & Guarantee
	UNew MaterialsU.  Contractor guarantees that all materials and equipment furnished will be new unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents.
	UOne Year GuaranteeU.  Contractor guarantees all materials and equipment furnished and Work performed for a period of one (1) year from the date of substantial completion is free from all defects due to faulty materials or workmanship.  Contractor sha...

	UBondsU.
	Contractor shall provide a payment bond consistent with the terms of this section and City may not waive this requirement.  Contractor shall also provide a performance bond consistent with the terms of this section, unless City waives such requirement...
	UPayment BondU.  Contractor shall furnish and file with City a bond in the sum of one hundred percent (100%) of the Compensation.  Consistent with Civil Code § 3248, the bond shall provide that if the Contractor or any subcontractors hired by Contract...
	UPerformance BondU.  Contractor shall provide City with a bond in the sum of one hundred percent (100%) of the Compensation to guarantee the completion of the Work, to protect City if Developer is in default of this Agreement, and to secure Contractor...
	Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the construction work covered under this Agreement is financed in whole or in part with assistance provided under a program of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development or some other...
	By entering into this Agreement, Contractor certifies that it is not a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or if HUD funds are involved, to be awarded HUD c...
	Contractor shall comply with all mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.
	The City, the federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives shall have access to any books, documents papers and records of the Contractor and any subcontractors which are directl...
	Contractor shall comply with the Copeland “Anti-Kick Back” Act, 18 U.S.C. §874, as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations. (29 C.F.R. part 3.)
	Contractor shall ensure compliance with sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 40 U.S.C. §§ 327 – 33, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations.  See 29 C.F.R. part 5.
	Contractor and any subcontractors must comply with Executive Order 11246 as amended by Executive Order 11375 and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations.  (41 C.F.R. part 3.)
	If the Compensation exceeds $100,000, Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act, Section 508 of the Clean Water Act, Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection...
	If the Compensation exceeds $100,000 for construction or facility improvements, Contractor must observe the building requirements contained in Attachment B of OMB Circular A-110.


	10H. Attachment H - TURF CONTRACT TO BE EXECUTED.pdf
	ARTICLE VI – NO DISCRIMINATION
	UCompliance with SB 854 RegistrationU:  This Work is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.  No prime contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public works project (submitte...
	Contractor acknowledges that under California Labor Code sections 1810 and following, 8 hours of labor constitutes a legal day’s work.  Contractor will forfeit as a penalty to City the sum of $25.00 for each worker employed in the execution of this Ag...
	Copies of the determination of the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations of the prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute this Agreement will be made available upon request from t...
	Contractor, and any subcontractor engaged by Contractor, must pay not less than the specified prevailing rate of per diem wages to all workers employed in the execution of the contract.  (Labor Code § 1774.)  Contractor is responsible for compliance w...
	Contractor must comply with all provisions of Labor Code section 1775.  Under Section 1775, Contractor may forfeit as a penalty to City up to $50.00 for each worker employed in the execution of the Contract by Contractor or any subcontractor for each ...
	Nothing in this Contract prevents Contractor or any subcontractor from employing properly registered apprentices in the execution of the Contract.  Contractor is responsible for compliance with Labor Code section 1777.5 for all apprenticeable occupati...
	ARTICLE IX - INDEMNITY
	UWarranty & Guarantee
	UNew MaterialsU.  Contractor guarantees that all materials and equipment furnished will be new unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents.
	UOne Year GuaranteeU.  Contractor guarantees all materials and equipment furnished and Work performed for a period of one (1) year from the date of substantial completion is free from all defects due to faulty materials or workmanship.  Contractor sha...

	UBondsU.
	Contractor shall provide a payment bond consistent with the terms of this section and City may not waive this requirement.  Contractor shall also provide a performance bond consistent with the terms of this section, unless City waives such requirement...
	UPayment BondU.  Contractor shall furnish and file with City a bond in the sum of one hundred percent (100%) of the Compensation.  Consistent with Civil Code § 3248, the bond shall provide that if the Contractor or any subcontractors hired by Contract...
	UPerformance BondU.  Contractor shall provide City with a bond in the sum of one hundred percent (100%) of the Compensation to guarantee the completion of the Work, to protect City if Developer is in default of this Agreement, and to secure Contractor...
	Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the construction work covered under this Agreement is financed in whole or in part with assistance provided under a program of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development or some other...
	By entering into this Agreement, Contractor certifies that it is not a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or if HUD funds are involved, to be awarded HUD c...
	Contractor shall comply with all mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.
	The City, the federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives shall have access to any books, documents papers and records of the Contractor and any subcontractors which are directl...
	Contractor shall comply with the Copeland “Anti-Kick Back” Act, 18 U.S.C. §874, as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations. (29 C.F.R. part 3.)
	Contractor shall ensure compliance with sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 40 U.S.C. §§ 327 – 33, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations.  See 29 C.F.R. part 5.
	Contractor and any subcontractors must comply with Executive Order 11246 as amended by Executive Order 11375 and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations.  (41 C.F.R. part 3.)
	If the Compensation exceeds $100,000, Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act, Section 508 of the Clean Water Act, Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection...
	If the Compensation exceeds $100,000 for construction or facility improvements, Contractor must observe the building requirements contained in Attachment B of OMB Circular A-110.


	Attach H - EXHIBIT B-PRICE QUOTE RECEIVED FROM AFE SPORTS.PDF
	ATTACHMENT 2A.0-AFE SPORTS SUBMITTAL.pdf
	ATTACHMENT 2A-AFE SPORTS SUBMITTAL.pdf
	1 Lugo DT 32 QUOTE.pdf
	2A.pdf
	2B Lugo park DT and Pro Play.pdf
	3 Golden Series _DT32.pdf
	4 2016 DT Specs .pdf
	5 DT32 ASTM.pdf
	6 PP-Sp20D (USA) rev 01-01-2015.pdf
	7 Zeofill Product Overview.pdf


	Attach H - EXHIBIT B-PRICE QUOTE RECEIVED FROM AFE SPORTS.PDF
	ATTACHMENT 2A.0-AFE SPORTS SUBMITTAL.pdf
	ATTACHMENT 2A-AFE SPORTS SUBMITTAL.pdf
	1 Lugo DT 32 QUOTE.pdf
	2A.pdf
	2B Lugo park DT and Pro Play.pdf
	3 Golden Series _DT32.pdf
	4 2016 DT Specs .pdf
	5 DT32 ASTM.pdf
	6 PP-Sp20D (USA) rev 01-01-2015.pdf
	7 Zeofill Product Overview.pdf



	10I. FBSP Amendment 3-14-16 (Dep. City Clerk).pdf
	10I. Attach A. Deputy City Clerk Classification Specification.pdf
	Necessary Special Requirements:  Possession of a valid Class C motor vehicle operator's license from the State of California.  Possession of a Certified Municipal Clerk’s Certificate (CMC) is preferred, and if not certified, is required within two yea...





